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As filed with Securities and Exchange Commission oApril 19, 2004
Registration Statement No. 333t1404:

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549
PRE-EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT NO. 1
To

Form S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

AMERCO

Co-registrants are listed on the following page
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Girart

Nevada 7510 86-0663060
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (I.LR.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization Classification Code Numbe Identification Number
1325 Airmotive Way
Suite 100

Reno, Nevada 89502-3239
(775) 688-6300
(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Numihehiding
Area Code, of Registrant’s Principal Executive €d8)

Gary V. Klinefelter Copies to:
General Counsel Michael M. Donahey
1325 Airmotive Way, Suite 100 Snell & Wilmer L.L.P.
Reno, Nevada 89502-3239 One Arizona Center
(775) 688-6300 400 East Van Buren Street

Phoenix, Arizona 85004
(602) 38:-6000

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale the public: As soon as practicable after this registratiorestaint becomes
effective and all other conditions to the exchaaffer pursuant to the registration rights agreentkscribed in the enclosed prospectus have
been satisfied or waived.

If the securities being registered os tbim are being offered in connection with therfation of a holding company and there is
compliance with General Instruction G, check thofeing box. O

If this form is filed to register additial securities for an offering pursuant to Rule @$2inder the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration staaatmumber of the earlier effective registratictestnent for the same offering. O

If this form is a post-effective amendmiied pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Secwgifiet, check the following box and list the
Securities Act registration statement number ofehidier effective registration statement for thene offering. O

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statment on such date or dates as may be necessarylétay its effective date
until the Registrant shall file a further amendmentwhich specifically states that this Registration tatement shall thereafter become
effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the 8arities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Staement shall become effective on su
date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Se&m 8(a), may determine.
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Table of Co-Registrants(1)

Name of Each Co-Registrant State or Other Jurisdiction of I.R.S. Employer

as Specified in Its Charter Incorporation or Organization Identification No.
A&M Associates, Inc. Arizona 86-025315!
Amerco Real Estate Compa Nevada 88-021039¢
Amerco Real Estate Company of Alabama, | Alabama 86-068682:
Amerco Real Estate Company of Texas, | Texas 86-065554"
Amerco Real Estate Services, Ir Nevada 86-102188!
Eight PAC Compan Nevada 86-078325!
Eleven PAC Compan Nevada 86-078555!
EMove, Inc. Nevada 86-104532.
Fifteen PAC Compan Nevada 86-096348!
Five PAC Compan' Nevada 86-078224.
Four PAC Compan Nevada 86-078224(
Fourteen PAC Compar Nevada 86-096224.
Nationwide Commercial Co Arizona 92-004101-
Nine PAC Compan' Nevada 86-078325!
One PAC Compan Nevada 88-032921°
PF&F Holdings Corporatio Delaware 11-369216!
Seven PAC Compar Nevada 86-078325
Seventeen PAC Compa Nevada 86-101348-
Six PAC Compan Nevada 86-078195
Sixteen PAC Compan Nevada 86-100376:
Ten PAC Compan Nevada 86-078326!(
Three PAC Compan Nevada 88-032921!
Twelve PAC Compan Nevada 86-078748
Two PAC Compan' Nevada 88-032921!
U-Haul Business Consultants, In Arizona 93-072869:
U-Haul Co. of Alabama, Inc Alabama 86-066062:
U-Haul Co. of Alaskz Alaska 86-021951:
U-Haul Co. of Arizone Arizona 86-022555!
U-Haul Co. of Arkansa Arkansas 71-041408!
U-Haul Co. of Californie California 94-171207!
U-Haul Co. (Canada) Ltd Ontario, Canad 11935-1
U-Haul Co. of Colorads Colorado 84-059843:
U-Haul Co. of Connectict Connecticu 06-086122¢
U-Haul Co. of District of Columbia, Inc District of Columbia 86-067034!
U-Haul Co. of Floride Florida 59-128675:
U-Haul Co. of Georgii Georgia 58-108363°
U-Haul of Hawaii, Inc. Hawaii 99-022961(
U-Haul Co. of Idaho, Inc Idaho 86-025118!
U-Haul Co. of lllinois, Inc. lllinois 36-373981:
U-Haul Co. of Indiana, Inc Indiana 35-116776°
U-Haul Co. of lowa, Inc. lowa 86-066899
U-Haul Co. of Kansas, Inc Kansas 48-077469:
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Name of Each Co-Registrant State or Other Jurisdiction of I.R.S. Employer

as Specified in Its Charter Incorporation or Organization Identification No.
U-Haul Co. of Kentucky Kentucky 61-070627:
U-Haul Co. of Louisiani Louisiana 72-068769
U-Haul Co. of Maine, Inc, Maine 86-066988t
U-Haul Co. of Maryland, Inc Maryland 52-090001.:
U-Haul Co. of Massachusetts and Ohio, || Massachuseti 86-066062!
U-Haul Co. of Michigar Michigan 86-066062:
U-Haul Co. of Minnesot Minnesota 41-095956!
U-Haul Co. of Mississipg Mississippi 64-047906t(
U-Haul Company of Missou Missouri 43-094992
U-Haul Co. of Montana, Inc Montana 86-028695.
U-Haul Co. of Nebrask Nebraske 42-095217:
U-Haul Co. of Nevada, Inc Nevada 88-010978t
U-Haul Co. of New Hampshire, Inc New Hampshire 01-028648:
U-Haul Co. of New Jersey, Inc New Jerse) 86-066062!
U-Haul Co. of New Mexico, Inc New Mexico 86-066061!
U-Haul Co. of New York, Inc. New York 14-151150!
U-Haul Co. of North Carolin North Caroling 56-094560!
U-Haul Co. of North Dakot North Dakotz 41-095948!
U-Haul Co. of Oklahoma, Inc Oklahoma 73-078827:
U-Haul Co. of Oregol Oregon 93-058133:
U-Haul Co. of Pennsylvan Pennsylvani: 06-130707-
U-Haul Co. of Rhode Islan Rhode Islanc 86-066062
U-Haul Co. of South Carolina, Inc South Carolin: 57-052215(
U-Haul Co. of South Dakota, Inc South Dakot: 86-066936:
U-Haul Co. of Tennesse Tennesse 62-081480:
U-Haul Co. of Texa: Texas 75-131661(
U-Haul Co. of Utah, Inc. Utah 87-028566!
U-Haul Co. of Virginia Virginia 54-085807¢
U-Haul Co. of Washingto Washingtor 91-085357°
U-Haul Co. of West Virginie West Virginia 55-051909¢
U-Haul Co. of Wisconsin, Inc Wisconsin 39-113541°
U-Haul Co. of Wyoming, Inc. Wyoming 86-066832(
U-Haul Inspections Ltd British Columbia, Canad
U-Haul International, Inc Nevada 86-066306!(
U-Haul Leasing & Sales Cc Nevada 88-010270!
U-Haul SeltStorage Corporatio Nevada 86-074031-
U-Haul Sel+Storage Management (WPC), In Nevada 20-061581:
Web Team Associates, In Nevada 05-058111:
Yonkers Property Corporatic New York 86-077076:

(1) The address, including zip code, and teleptmmaber, including area code, of each co-regisiea2727 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix,
Arizona 85004, (775) 6¢{-6300.
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The information in this prospectus is not compbatd may be changed. We may not sell these sesuuitiid the registration statement
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisssoeffective. This prospectus is not an offer td thelse securities and it is not solicitin
an offer to buy these securities in any state whwreffer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED APRIL 19, 2004

PROSPECTUS

AMERCO

OFFER TO EXCHANGE
$80,000,000

AMERCO
9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2009
which have been registered under the Securities Acf 1933 and
guaranteed fully and unconditionally by the subsidary guarantors listed on
pages (i) and (ii) of this prospectus for any andlbof the outstanding AMERCO
unregistered 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notdsie 2009

THE EXCHANGE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIR E AT 5:00 P.M.,
NEW YORK TIME, ON , 2004, UNLES EXTENDED.

We are offering to exchange up to $80,00008ur 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes @08 2he “exchange notes”), which
have been registered under the Securities Act 88,18 amended, for the identical principal amatfimur outstanding unregistered 9.0%
Second Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2009 (thetanding notes” or the “Series B Notes”). The aggte principal amount at maturity of
the outstanding notes, and therefore, the prin@palunt at maturity of exchange notes which woddskued if all the outstanding notes
were exchanged, is $80,000,000. The terms of thkeasmge notes will be substantially identical whik terms of the outstanding notes, except
that the issuance of the exchange notes is begigteeed under the Securities Act of 1933, andeffoee the exchange notes will not be
subject to the restrictions on transfer which applthe outstanding notes.

Prior to the exchange offer, there has beepublic market for the exchange notes. We do noeatly intend to list the exchange notes
on a securities exchange or seek approval for tjantaf the exchange notes on an automated quotayistem. Therefore, it is unlikely that
an active trading market for the exchange notelsdeitelop.

The exchange agent for the exchange offéfalls Fargo Bank, N.A.

See “Risk Factors,” which begin on page 13, for aiscussion of certain factors that should be consided in evaluating the
exchange offer.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission n@ny state securities commission approved or disappved of these securities
or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this pgpectus. Any representation to the contrary is a éminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is , 2004.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This prospectus incorporates important busirsnd financial information about us that is notuded in or delivered with the prospectus.
This information is available without charge towegty holders upon written or oral request. You magjuest a copy of this information, at no
cost, by calling us or by writing to us at our gifral executive offices in Nevada at the followaddress: AMERCO, 1325 Airmotive Way,
Suite 100, Reno, Nevada 89502-3239, Attention: stveRelations. Our telephone number is (775) 68836In order to obtain timely
delivery, you must make your request no later fiianbusiness days before the expiration of théharge offer. The exchange offer will
expire on , 2004, unless exéshd

Our obligations under the Exchange Act te fieriodic reports and other information with tieCSmay be suspended, under certain
circumstances, if our common stock and exchangesrare each held of record by fewer than 300 helaiethe beginning of any fiscal year
and are not listed on a national securities exchawe have agreed that, whether or not we arenextjto do so by the rules and regulations
of the SEC, for so long as any of the exchangesn@aain outstanding we will furnish to the holdefshe exchange notes, and if requirec
the Exchange Act, file with the SEC, all annualaderly and current reports that we are or woulddwgiired to file with the SEC pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. In &ddj we have agreed that, as long as any of thk&tanding notes remain outstanding, we
will take such further action as any holder maysogembly request to enable such holder to sell exgghaotes without registration under
Rule 144(k) or Rule 144A of the Securities Act.

No person has been authorized to give amynmdtion or to make any representations, other thase contained in this prospectus. If
given or made, that information or those represemis may not be relied upon as having been awbdty us. This prospectus does not
constitute an offer to or solicitation of any perso any jurisdiction in which such an offer orisghtion would be unlawful.

SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS

A&M Associates, Inc. U-Haul Co. of lowa, Inc
Amerco Real Estate Compa U-Haul Co. of Kansas, Ini
Amerco Real Estate Company of Alabama, | U-Haul Co. of Kentucky
Amerco Real Estate Company of Texas, | U-Haul Co. of Louisiani
Amerco Real Estate Services, Ir U-Haul Co. of Maine, Inc

Eight PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of Maryland, Inc
Eleven PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of Massachusetts and Ohio, |
EMove, Inc. U-Haul Co. of Michigar

Fifteen PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of Minnesot

Five PAC Compan' U-Haul Co. of Mississipf

Four PAC Compan U-Haul Company of Missou
Fourteen PAC Compar U-Haul Co. of Montana, Inc
Nationwide Commercial Co U-Haul Co. of Nebrask

Nine PAC Compan' U-Haul Co. of Nevada, In
One PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of New Hampshire, In
PF&F Holdings Corporatio U-Haul Co. of New Jersey, In
Seven PAC Compar U-Haul Co. of New Mexico, Inc
Seventeen PAC Compa U-Haul Co. of New York, Inc
Six PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of North Carolin
Sixteen PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of North Dakot
Ten PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of Oklahoma, Int

Three PAC Compan U-Haul Co. of Oregol
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SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS — (Continued)

Twelve PAC Compan

Two PAC Compan'

U-Haul Business Consultants, In
U-Haul Co. of Alabama, Inc
U-Haul Co. of Alaskz

U-Haul Co. of Arizone

U-Haul Co. of Arkansa

U-Haul Co. of Californie

U-Haul Co. (Canada) Ltc

U-Haul Co. of Colorad:

U-Haul Co. of Connectict
U-Haul Co. of District of Columbia, Inc
U-Haul Co. of Floride

U-Haul Co. of Georgii

U-Haul of Hawaii, Inc.

U-Haul Co. of Idaho, Inc

U-Haul Co. of lllinois, Inc.
U-Haul Co. of Indiana, Inc

U-Haul Co. of Pennsylvan
U-Haul Co. of Rhode Islan
U-Haul Co. of South Carolina, In
U-Haul Co. of South Dakota, In
U-Haul Co. of Tennesst

U-Haul Co. of Texa

U-Haul Co. of Utah, Inc

U-Haul Co. of Virginia

U-Haul Co. of Washingto
U-Haul Co. of West Virginit
U-Haul Co. of Wisconsin, Inc
U-Haul Co. of Wyoming, Inc
U-Haul Inspections Ltc

U-Haul International, Inc

U-Haul Leasing & Sales Ci
U-Haul Sel+Storage Corporatio
U-Haul SeltStorage Management (WPC), I
Web Team Associates, Ir
Yonkers Property Corporatic
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary highlights selectedimhation contained elsewhere in this prospectusaengnot contain all of the information
that is important to you. This summary is not coetpland does not contain all of the information gbauld consider before investing in the
notes. For a more complete understanding of thskanxge offer, we encourage you to read this edtiorment and the documents to which
we have referred you.

The Company

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation (AMERCO), is Hwding company for U-Haul International, Inc. f&ul), Amerco Real Estate
Company (Real Estate), Republic Western Insurameepany (RepWest) and Oxford Life Insurance Comp@nford). Throughout this
prospectus, unless the context otherwise requtiegerm “Company” refers to AMERCO and all oflggal subsidiaries. AMERCO’s
executive offices are located at 1325 Airmotive W@yite 100, Reno, Nevada 89502-3239, and thehtefeppnumber is (775) 688-6300. As
used in this prospectus, all references to a figeat refer to AMERCO's fiscal year ended MarchoBihat year. RepWest and Oxford are
consolidated on the basis of calendar years endedrbber 31. Accordingly, all references to the y2&02, 2001 and 2000 for RepWest and
Oxford correspond to AMERCO's fiscal years 2003)2@nd 2001, respectively. The Company has fourstrtg segments represented by
Moving and Storage Operations (U-Haul), Real EsRteperty and Casualty Insurance (RepWest) arellhgurance (Oxford). See Note 22
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ghedlin this prospectus for financial informatiogaeding the industry segments and
geographic areas.

SAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Caqtion I, Nevada corporations (collectively, SA@IHings), are the holding companies
for several individual corporations that own seétirage properties managed by AMERCO subsidiari¢lsdrordinary course of business. The
Company has made significant loans to SAC Holdamgs is entitled to participate in certain SAC Holgh’ excess cash flows (after senior
debt service). Mark V. Shoen, a significant shalgdroof AMERCO and executive officer of U-Haul, osvthrough its parent company
substantially all of the equity interest of SAC Hiolgs. The Company does not have an equity owneistérest in SAC Holdings, except for
minority investments made by RepWest and Oxforal 8AC Holdings-controlled limited partnership, whiwolds Canadian self-storage
properties. SAC Holdings is not a legal subsidiarAMERCO. The Company is not liable for the detftSAC Holdings. U-Haul currently
manages the properties owned by SAC Holdings um@gragement agreements and receives a managemedafeéioldings operates in
one business segment — moving and storage opesafon financial reporting purposes, SAC Holdingsansolidated in our consolidated
financial statements.

We are the largest do-it-yourself moving atatage company in North America. Since 1945, ooving and self-storage subsidiary, U-
Haul, has developed the most recognized branckimethtal of trucks, trailers and support itemsh@®do-it-yourself moving customer. We are
the leading “one-stop shop” for customers’ resiggmhoving and self-storage needs. As of March2BD3, U-Haul moving equipment was
available for rent at 15,624 locations in 50 statesd Canada, which we believe is more than twieenttrmber of locations of our national
competitors combined. Through the U-Haul networkjteyourself movers have access to the largest i moving equipment available for
rent. We also offer our customers an extensivedimaoving and storage supplies such as boxes aag¢ow dollies. We are the second-
largest operator of self-storage facilities in Nioftmerica with over 1,000 locations and approxinya82.5 million square feet of total
rentable self-storage space as of March 31, 20@3alb own real estate and insurance businesgesthalement our U-Haul business.

We believe that our focus on do-it-yoursetfivimg and storage customers, whose moving andstmiige needs are not necessarily
correlated with general economic conditions, presids with an operating profile that is less vudbé to economic downturns. A substantial
majority of U-Haul’s rental revenues are generditeth residential do-it-yourself movers. Demanddar products and services is driven
primarily by the mobility of the population resulg from, among other things, changes in employntenising preference
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and marital status. Our self-storage businesspmt»ades us with a predictable revenue stream dilkehthe duration of the industry average
storage space rental is over 13 months.

As of March 31, 2003, we had over 92,000ks,@3,000 trailers and 19,000 tow dollies avaéddbl rent, a majority of which are owned
by us.

Our real estate and insurance businessesdupp core do-it-yourself moving and storage fadReal Estate acquires properties for the
development of, or conversion into, U-Haul Cengard/or self-storage facilities. RepWest providexpprty and casualty insurance to us and
insures U-Haul's customers, dealers and indeperiedtparties. The majority of our U-Haul custom@urchase RepWest products. We
believe that these business lines assist us intaiaiing our competitive advantages in the do-itrgelf moving and storage businesses. In
addition, RepWest’s business activities includediand assumed reinsurance underwriting. Oxfaginates and reinsures annuities, credit
life and disability, life insurance and suppleméhgalth products.

Recent Developments

Emergence From Chapter 11 Restructuri@gm June 20, 2003, AMERCO filed a voluntary petitfonrelief under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code. Amerco Real Estatagany also filed a voluntary petition for reliefder Chapter 11 on August 13, 2003.
AMERCO's other subsidiaries were not included ithei of the filings. The Chapter 11 filing was urtd&en to facilitate a restructuring of
AMERCO's debt in response to liquidity issues, whiteveloped in the second half of 2002. Thesediguissues began when our prior
independent auditors advised the Company in 2082tthfinancial statements would have to be redtéd consolidate, for reporting
purposes, SAC Holdings. This consolidation, andréiseilting lack of clarity regarding AMERCO'’s opting results and financial condition,
contributed substantially and directly to a seaksignificant developments adversely impacting@menpany’s access to capital. The
consolidation of SAC Holdings resulted in a matediecrease in the Company’s net worth and a cooradipg increase in its leverage ratios.
Consolidating SAC Holdings also required a costlgl ime-consuming restatement of prior period sdhiat led to the untimely filing of
quarterly and annual reports with the Securities Bxchange Commission.

As this situation was occurring, AMERCO wé#®empting to negotiate and replace its then exgstévolving credit facility and complete a
$275 million bond offering. Although we were abtestuccessfully renegotiate our revolving creditlfig¢ the amount of the facility was
substantially reduced. We were not able to sucabgsiomplete the $275 million bond offering, exdifying AMERCO'’s significantly
reduced access to the capital markets to meen#ndial needs due to, among other things, theusiori and adverse perception resulting
from the SAC Holdings consolidation. As a resulbaf failure to complete the $275 million bond oiifg, we did not have sufficient funds
meet our maturity obligations for our Series 199Bdhd Backed Asset Trust (BBAT) and related SWAReaments which were due on
October 15, 2002. Our inability to meet these nigtabligations resulted in a default on BBAT oldtgpns, which led to cross-defaults and
an acceleration of substantially all of the othetstanding instruments in the Company’s debt atinectAlthough we worked diligently with
our creditors to resolve and cure or restructuesdhdefaults, we were left with no viable alten@biut to seek Chapter 11 protection, which
we did on June 20, 2003.

On March 15, 2004, we emerged from Chapter 11 {fes nine months from our petition date) with folyment to our creditors and w
no dilution to our stockholders. In connection wailir emergence from bankruptcy, we believe ourdzaasheet is strengthened, having
restructured over $1.2 billion in debt and leaskgations. Following is a summary of the highliglefsour completed plan of reorganization
and new financial structure. For a more detailestdption of our new capital structure, see “Degstion of the Exchange Notes”;
“Description of Other Indebtedness and Other Olilhgs”; and “Management’s Discussion and Analyg$isinancial Condition and Results
of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
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Exit Financing Facility

We entered into a new $550 million creditiifacwith a banking syndicate led and arrangedglls Fargo Foothill, a part of Wells
Fargo & Company (the “Exit Financing Facility”). &tExit Financing Facility consists of two comporsera $200 million revolving credit
facility (including a $50 million letter of creddub-facility) and a $350 million amortizing termala The proceeds we received from the Exit
Financing Facility were used primarily to satisfi tclaims of the creditors in our Chapter 11 prdeegand pay related fees and expenses
incurred in connection therewith.

The $350 million amortizing term loan calts monthly principal payments of $291,667 and mbnithiterest payments with the balance
due on maturity in 2009. Advances under the rewgi\dredit facility are based on a borrowing basenfda which is based on a percentage of
the value of our eligible real estate and rentaisles. On March 15, 2004 (the date of our Chapteemergence), outstanding advances L
the revolving credit facility totaled $165 milliaand $35 million was available to borrow. The Exitdancing Facility is secured by a first
priority position in substantially all of the assetf AMERCO and its subsidiaries, except for ouesaeceivable from SAC Holdings, real
estate subject to synthetic leases, certain reglgpty held for sale on the date of our emergerara bankruptcy (which property secures the
New AMERCO Notes) and the capital stock of our iasie subsidiarie:

9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes

AMERCO issued $200 million aggregate printgraount of 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Nates2009. AMERCO issued an
aggregate principal amount of $120 million of thasées to our existing creditors in connection vaitli emergence from Chapter 11
bankruptcy and we issued $80 million aggregatecppal amount to new investors in a private placemegempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. This prospeistdsr the purpose of offering to exchange $8diarilaggregate principal amount of
registered 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Note2@09 for an identical amount of the unregist&.€8b Second Lien Senior Secured
Notes due 2009 that were issued to the new invegiaronnection with our emergence from bankrupttyese notes represent our sel
secured obligations and rapkri passun right of payment to all other indebtedness of BRICO, including our obligations under the Exit
Financing Facility. These notes are secured byargkpriority position in the same collateral whgtures our obligations under the Exit
Financing Facility. See “Description of the Excharigotes.”

New AMERCO Notes

AMERCO issued 12% senior subordinated notes2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $8B 87 (the “New AMERCO
Note¢") to our unsecured creditors in the Chapter 1Teding. No principal payments are due on the NBAERCO Notes until maturity.
These notes, which are subordinated to all of AMBRCsenior indebtedness (including the Exit Finanéiagility and the 9.0% Second Li
Senior Secured Notes due 2009), are secured ircagsets of AMERCO, including the capital stotkur life insurance subsidiary (Oxfc
Life Insurance Company), real property having aprapimate book value of $7.7 million that is undentract for sale on March 15, 2004
(the date of our emergence from Chapter 11), 75%ehet proceeds in excess of $50 million assediaith the settlement, judgment or
recovery related to our litigation against PricesvabuseCoopers (after deduction of attornésss and costs and taxes payable with resp
such proceeds), and payments from notes receifranieSAC Holdings having an aggregate outstandiimcjpal balance at March 15, 2004
of approximately $203.8 million.

New SAC Holdings Senior Notes

In connection with AMERCOQ'’s Chapter 11 barkay restructuring, our SAC Holdings affiliates egd to issue to creditors in our
Chapter 11 proceeding 8.5% senior notes due 20adgregate principal amount of $200 million (thee¥WSAC Holdings Notes”). The
issuance of these notes by SAC Holdings was panhagreed upon set of transactions in connectitnomr bankruptcy reorganization plan
which had the effect of eliminating $200 million mdtes receivable from SAC Holdings that were presly held by AMERCO.
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Restructuring of Synthetic Lease Arrangements

At the time of our emergence from bankrupismerco Real Estate restructured approximately $2d8llion of our obligations under
synthetic lease arrangements (the “Synthetic LEpsks part of this restructuring we paid down apgmately $31 million of obligations
under the Synthetic Leases and entered into nese legreements with the lessors. Our obligationsuthd@ new Synthetic Leases are
approximately $218.5 million. The new lease agregmare for a term of three years, and include éméryear renewal options.

The purpose of these leases was to finamcputchase of self-storage properties and constalicstorage facilities on existing properti
AMERCO continues to guarantee each of these reéatedt Synthetic Leases. Title to the real propsulyject to these leases is in the name of
off balance sheet special purpose entities. Thetes are lessors who then lease the propediesé¢ or more subsidiaries of AMERCO.

Our approved Chapter 11 plan of reorganizationeraptates that our obligations under the Synthegi@ses will be satisfied when the |
property subject to the leases is sold to a thartlyp This transaction closed into escrow on M&th2004. As a result of such transaction, we
expect that over approximately the next 24 montaswill be reimbursed for capital improvements wadméo the leased properties. In
addition, as part of this transaction U-Haul erddérgo arrangements to manage these propertiesitbat us to continue to operate them as
part of the U-Haul moving and self-storage system.

Upgraded Ratings of AMERCO Life Insurance SubsiesaA.M. Best Co. recently upgraded the financial sgtbrratings to B-
(fair) from C+ (weak) of Oxford Life Insurance Comngy and its subsidiaries Christian Fidelity Lifessimance Company and North American
Insurance Company. The rating outlook for all theempanies is positive. Although our life insurasaésidiaries continue to face challenges
to regain their marketing momentum, we believeetrasing upgrades will favorably impact the openadi of our life insurance subsidiaries.

Financial Statement Re-audit and Resulting Restate¢imf 2002 and 2001 Financial StatemeBBO Seidman, LLP (BDO) has
completed the re-audit of the financial statemefSMERCO and its subsidiaries and SAC Holdings dasdubsidiaries for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2002 and 2001. In connection ithre-audit, it was determined that there wasealrier the Company to record
adjustments relating to insurance reserves for peoiods at AMERCO and its subsidiary, RepWes#djust for recognizing losses of Priv
Mini pursuant to the equity method; as well as o#ignificant adjustments. These adjustments haselted in the restatement of the
Company’s financial statements for the fiscal yearded March 31, 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001

As Previously As Previously
Reported Restated Reported Restated

(In thousands)
Revenue: 2,058,501 2,193,57! 1,882,44 2,029,48!
Net earnings (loss 2,721 (47,440 1,01z (42,110

This report contains restated consolidatedrftial statements for the years ended March 312 26d 2001, and for the quarters ended in
the periods ended March 31, 2002 and December(®P,. 2

The major components for the restatement wereegtkat 1) insurance and 2) the equity loss recagmibf Private Mini by AMERCO. F¢
2002 the insurance related after tax adjustment$4&amillion and for 2001 it was $38 million. Thewte Mini related adjustment for 2002
was $7 million and for 2001 it was $5.7 million.

As a result of the restatement, total assetsf March 31, 2002 decreased from $3,773,458,i03®,317 and total stockholders’ equity as
of March 31, 2002 decreased from $499,106 to $2811,5

For more information about the reinstatemesde Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statésiroluded in this prospectus.
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SEC InvestigationThe Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) kasdisa formal order of investigation to determirether the
Company has violated the Federal securities lawsJduary 7, 2003, the Company received the firsixasubpoenas issued by the SEC.
SAC Holdings, the Company'’s current and former tudj and others have also received one or morgogmas relating to this matter. The
Company is cooperating with the SEC and is fatiitighthe expeditious review of its financial statmts and any other issues that may arise.
Although the Company has produced a large volunio@iments and other materials in response touiyeognas, and the Company is
continuing to assemble and produce additional detusand materials for the SEC the SEC filed a seih@ enforcement action against the
Company on March 5, 2004. The Company has coopkvath the SEC in this matter and intends to cargito cooperate, however, the SEC
may determine that the Company has violated Federalrities laws. We cannot predict when this itigason will be completed or its
outcome. If the SEC makes a determination thatave lviolated Federal securities laws, we may facetons, including, but not limited to,
significant monetary penalties and injunctive relie

Arizona Department of Insurance Supervision of RépWesternOn May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to an OrdeSdpervision
issued by the Arizona Department of Insurance (DTHe DOI determined that RepWest's level of rigledd capital (“RBC”) allowed for
regulatory control. Pursuant to this order and émi law, during the period of supervision, RepWeay not engage in any of the following
activities without the prior approval of the DOI:

a. dispose of, convey or encumber any of its aggdts business in force;

b. withdraw any of its bank accounts;

c. lend any of its funds;

d. invest any of its funds;

e. transfer any of its property;

f. incur any debt, obligation or liability includjnthe issuance of all new and renewal business;
g. merge or consolidate with another company;

h. enter into any new reinsurance contract or\resat

i. enter into any affiliate transactions

In order to abate the DOI's order, RepWesstnastablish that it possesses surplus in comgiaith Arizona law and as the Arizona
Director of Insurance may require based on typkjnae or nature of its business pursuant to Arizeamaand establish that certain credit risks
associated with the exposures to AMERCO and itkcaéfs have been eliminated.

If RepWest fails to satisfy the requirementabate DOI's concerns, the DOl may take furtiatioa, including, but not limited to,
commencing a conservatorship.

In April 2003, RepWest announced that in @ion with the Company’s overall restructuringoef$, it is redirecting its operating focus.
In particular, RepWest is exiting non-U-Haul rethtmes of business. This exit has resulted in tean losses as these lines were eliminated.

Issuance of the Outstanding Notes

The outstanding $80 million principal amount 9.0%c&nd Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2009 werebsol to investors on March 1
2004 pursuant to a purchase agreement dated Magf}04, between the initial purchasers and us. idettze initial purchasers also entered
into a registration rights agreement pursuant titkvive agreed to offer to exchange the exchangesnegistered under the Securities Act
the outstanding notes and also granted holderatsfanding notes rights under some circumstanchaue resales of outstanding notes
registered under the Securities Act. The exchafffge is intended to satisfy
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certain of our obligations under the registratigits agreement. See “Description of the Exchange&N— Registered Exchange Offer;
Registration Rights” and “The Exchange Offer — Risgs and Effects.”

The outstanding notes were issued underdeninre dated as of March 1, 2004, between AMERGQubsidiary guarantors and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee. The exchange nosesaat being issued under the indenture and atkedrib the benefits of the indenture. 1
form and terms of the exchange notes will be idahin all material respects with the form and temwhthe outstanding notes, except that
(1) the exchange notes will have been registereétie Securities Act and, therefore, will notidegends describing restrictions on
transferring them, and (2) holders of exchangesai# not be, and upon the completion of the exdgwoffer, holders of outstanding notes
will no longer be, entitled to certain rights undee registration rights agreement intended fortiblelers of unregistered securities. The
exchange offer will be deemed completed upon thigedg by us to the exchange agent under the inderdf exchange notes in the same
aggregate principal amount as the aggregate pahaipount of outstanding notes that are validlglézad and not withdrawn by holders of
them in response to the exchange offer. See “Tloh&hge Offer — Termination of Certain Rights” ard Procedures for Tendering” and
“Description of the Exchange Notes.”

We will receive no proceeds from completidithe exchange offer. The proceeds we received fr@mssuance of the outstanding notes
were used to satisfy the claims of existing creditind provide working capital in connection witlr €hapter 11 plan of reorganization.

Our principal executive office in Nevadaadsated at 1325 Airmotive Way, Suite 100, Reno, Mev@9502-3239, and our telephone
number there is (775) 688-6300. Information abautammpany is provided through our website www.aragrom. Information on this
website is not incorporated by reference in or mtfise part of this prospectus.
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The Exchange Offer

Expiration of the Exchange Offer

Conditions of the Exchange Offer

Accrued Interest on the Outstanding
Notes

Procedures for Tendering the
Outstanding Notes

Summary Description of the Exchange Offer

We are offering to exchange $80 million of our 9.8%cond Lien Senior Secured Notes due 20C
identical principal amounts of our outstanding wistered 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes
due 2009. At the date of this prospectus, $80 enilfirincipal amount at maturity of outstanding
notes are outstanding. £ The Exchange Offe— Terms of the Exchange Off”

5:00 p.m., New Ktime, on , 2004, unless tkehange offer is extended (the day on
which the exchange offer expires being the exgiratiate). See “The Exchange Offer — Expiration
Date; Extension; Termination; Amendme”

The exchange dff@ot conditioned upon any minimum principal amioof outstanding notes
being tendered for exchange. However, the exchafigeis subject to certain customary conditions,
which we may waive. Se"The Exchange Offe— Conditions of the Exchange Off”

The exchange notes will bear interest at the 8086 per annum from and including their date of
issuance. When the first interest payment is matteregard to the exchange notes, we will also pay
interest on the outstanding notes which are exadrfgom the date they were issued or the most
recent interest date on which interest had beeh (fapplicable) to, but not including, the dagth
exchange notes are issued. Interest on the ouistandtes which are exchanged will cease to accrue
on the day prior to the day on which the exchargesare issued. The interest rate on the
outstanding notes may increase under certain cstames if we are not in compliance with our
obligations under the registration rights agreeneerthe indenture. Se®¢€scription of the Exchan
Notes”

A holder of outstanding notes who wishes to actiepexchange offer must complete, sign and date
a letter of transmittal, or a facsimile of oneaccordance with the instructions contained under th
“The Exchange Offer — Procedures for Tendering” entthe letter of transmittal, and deliver the
letter of transmittal, or facsimile, together witte outstanding notes and any other required
documentation to the exchange agent at the adse¢$srth in “The Exchange Offer — Exchange
Agent.” Outstanding notes will be delivered phy#icaBy executing a letter of transmittal, a holder
will represent to us that, among other things,péieson acquiring the outstanding notes will be goin
so in the ordinary course of the persohusiness, whether or not the person is the halusrneithe
the holder nor any other person is engaged imtends to engage in, or has an arrangement or
understanding with any person to participate ia,dtstribution of the exchange notes and that at
the holder nor any such other person is an “afiliaas defined under Rule 405 of the Securities
Each broker or dealer that receives exchange fatés own account in exchange for outstanding
notes which were acquired
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the broker or dealer as a result of manketking activities or other trade activities, muskrzowledgs
that it will deliver a prospectus in connectiontwény resale of the exchange notes. See “The
Exchange Offe— Procedures for Tenderir”

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures Eligible holdersutétanding notes who wish to tender their outstapdotes and (1) whose
outstanding notes are not immediately availabl@pwho cannot deliver their outstanding notes or
any other documents required by the letter of trattal to the exchange agent prior to the expiratio
date, may tender their outstanding notes accotditige guaranteed delivery procedures described ir
the letter of transmittal. S¢‘ The Exchange Offe— Guaranteed Delivery Procedur”

Acceptance of the Outstanding Notes Upon satisfaction or waiver of all conditions t@ tbexchange offer, we will accept any and all

and Delivery of the Exchange Notes outstanding notes that are properly tendered jporese to the exchange offer prior to 5:00 p.m.,
New York time, on the expiration date. The exchangkes issued pursuant to the exchange offe
be delivered promptly after expiration of the exulp@ offer. See “The Exchange Offer Procedure
for Tenderin¢”

Withdrawal Rights Tenders of outstanding notes mayvithdrawn at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., Newk time, on
the expiration date. S¢ The Exchange Offe— Withdrawal of Tender”

The Exchange Agent Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is thehaxge agent. The address and telephone number ekthange
agent are set forth “The Exchange Offe— Exchange Ager”

Fees and Expenses We will bear all expenses inciderur consummation of the exchange offer andptiamce with
the registration rights agreement. We will also pay transfer taxes which are applicable to the
exchange offer (but not transfer taxes due to tems®f outstanding notes or exchange notes by the
holder). Se¢“ The Exchange Offe— Fees and Expens”

Resales of the Exchange Notes Based on interpresaltly the staff of the SEC set forth in no-actedters issued to persons
unrelated to us, we believe exchange notes issuesdignt to the exchange offer in exchange for
outstanding notes may be offered for resale, rematotherwise transferred by the holder (othem
(1) a broker-dealer who purchased the outstanditgsrdirectly from us for resale pursuant to
Rule 144A under the Securities Act or another ex@npnder the Securities Act or (2) a person
is an affiliate of ours, as that term is definedRine 405 under the Securities Act), without
registration or the need to deliver a prospectuteuthe Securities Act, provided that the holder is
acquiring the exchange notes in the ordinary coofseisiness and is not participating, and has no
arrangement or understanding with any person tiicfizate, in a distribution of the exchange notes.
Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notatsfown account in exchange for outstanding
notes, which outstanding notes were acquired bytbker as a result of market-making or other
trading activities, must acknowledge that it willider a prospectus in connecti
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Federal Income Tax Consequences

with any resale of the exchange notes. “The Exchange Offe— Purposes and Effec”

The exchangewdff@ot be treated as a taxable event for Uniteate federal income tax
purposes. Se"*United States Federal Income Tax Considerat’

Summary Description of the Exchange Notes

The exchange notes will evidence the sameatethe outstanding notes and will be entitlethéobenefits of the indenture under which
both the outstanding notes were, and the exchamigs will be, issued. The following summary is mdénded to be complete. For a more
detailed description of the notes, see “Descriptibthe Exchange Notes.”

Issuer

Securities Offered

Maturity Date

Interest

AMERCO.

$80 million aggregate princigiadount of 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Note2@08 that
have been registered under the Securities Actfdine and term of the exchange notes are
substantially identical in all material respectstte form and terms of the outstanding notes fack
they may be exchanged pursuant to the exchange effeept for certain transfer restrictions and
registration rights relating to the outstandingesoand except for certain provisions providingsor
increase in the interest rate on the outstanditgsnander circumstances relating to the exchange
offer. On March 15, 2004 in connection with the fomnation of our Chapter 11 restructuring plan,
we also issued an additional $120 million aggregaitecipal amount of our 9.0% Second Lien
Senior Secured Notes due 2009 (collectively, thergpt notes” or the “Series A Notes”). The
exempt notes were issued pursuant to an exemptaitable under section 1145 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code. The exempt notes are not pahisfexchange offer but are part of the same serie:
of debt securities under the indenture governiegatlitstanding notes. As of the date of this
prospectus, we have outstanding $200 million aggeegrincipal amount of our 9.0% Second Lien
Senior Secured Notes. Unless the context othemgiggires, the outstanding notes, the exempt notes
and the exchange notes are sometimes referredhsiprospectus as tl“notes”

February 27, 200¢

The exchange notes will accrue interesh fthe date of their issuance at the rate of 9.884ear.
Interest on the exchange notes will be payabletgdwin arrears on each March 15, June 15,
September 15 and December 15 commencing on Jur2®08, In connection with the issuance of
the outstanding notes on March 15, 2004, we anduheantors agreed t

« file a registration statement to endimders of the outstanding notes to exchange the
outstanding notes for registered notes within 8@dd the original issue date of the outstanding
notes, or by May 14, 200

* use our respective reasonable bestteffo cause the registration statement to become
effective under the Sec-
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Optional Redemption

Ranking and Guarantees

ties Act within 150 days following the original iss date of the outstanding notes, or by August 12,
2004; anc

* use our respective reasonable bestteffo complete the exchange offer within 180 days
after the original issue date of the outstandingscor by September 11, 20l

If we do not comply with these obligations (a “retgation default”), we will be required to pay
liquidated damages to the holders of the outstandates in the form of higher interest rates. Upon
the occurrence of a registration default, the ggerate borne by the notes will be increased by
0.25% per annum for the first 90-day period immtadjafollowing the registration default and will
continue to increase by 0.50% each subsequenty@patad that the liquidated damages continue to
accrue, up to a maximum of 2.0% per annum. Afterdiwe of registration defaults, the accrual of
liquidated damages will stop and the interest wallerevert to the original rate

In addition, under the terms of the indenture weehb50 days after the issue date of the outstanding
notes to register our vehicles and obtain newfaates of title naming Wells Fargo Foothill assfir
priority lienholder and the trustee as second fiyidienholder. If at least 90% of the certificatafs

title are not registered in accordance with themgeof the indenture within 150 days after the issue
date of the outstanding notes, the interest rath@motes will automatically increase by 0.25%
retroactive to the issue date and will increasaditional 0.25% each succeeding 91st day there

up to a maximum of 1.0% until such time as at 16886 of the certificates of title are so registe

We may redeem the notes, inemiioin part, at any time on one or more occasamsr after
March 16, 2005, at the redemption prices (expreasqeercentages of principal amount) set forth
below, together with accrued interest to the redenplate, if redeemed during the 12-month period
beginning March 16 of the years indicat

Calendar Year Percentage

105.5(%
104.5(%
101.0(%

2008 and thereaftt 100.0(%

The notes represent oar s&dured obligations and rank pari passu in 0gipayment to our Exit
Financing Facility, except that the notes are sston a second-priority basis behind the first-
priority basis held by the holders of the Exit Finang Facility obligations. Borrowings under our
Exit Financing Facility rank senior in right of pagnt to all other indebtedness of AMERCO and its
legal subsidiaries, except for indebtedness ofrmsurance subsidiaries, Oxford and RepWest and
except for SAC Holdings

The notes are guaranteed by all affiliates andidigvees of AMERCO, except for SAC Holdings,
our insurance subsidiaries Oxford and RepWest lagid tespective subsidiaries, and Stor
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Realty, L.L.C., a Texas limited liability comparii)yW Company, a Washington corporation and
certain dormant subsidiarie

Restrictive Covenants The indenture governing thitesicontains covenants that, among other thimgs,dur ability and
the ability of our subsidiaries t

« incur additional indebtedness or lie

* enter into sale/leaseback transactic

» consolidate or merg:

« sell our asset:

« change our name or corporate struct

« change the nature of our business or relocatetoaf executive office

« transfer our ownership of assets tesglisaries that are not, or do not become, guarantor
under the indenture

* pay dividends or make other distributions or repase or redeem our sto«
* make investment:

* enter into transactions with affiliates; a

« amend existing agreemen

These covenants are subject to important exceptindgjualifications, which are described unde
heading“Description of the Exchange No-Certain Covenan” in this prospectus

Financial Covenants The indenture requires thametallow our EBITDA minus capital expenditures ¢kesined), each
measured on a fiscal quarter-end basis for thacgipé period set forth below, to be less than the
applicable amounts set forth belc

Applicable Amount Applicable Date

$15 million For the three month period ending
June 30, 2004

$65 million For the six month period ending
September 30, 200

$65 million For the nine month period ending
December 31, 200«

$60 million For the twelve month period ending
March 31, 2005

$48 million For the twelve month period ending
June 30, 200t

$25 million For the twelve month period ending
September 30, 200

$25 million For the twelve month period ending
December 31, 200!

$30 million For the twelve month period ending
March 31, 2006

$80 million For the twelve month period ending
June 30, 200¢

$115 million For the twelve month period ending

September 30, 200

11
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Absence of a Public Market

Use of Proceeds

Trustee

Applicable Amount Applicable Date

$110 million For the twelve month period ending

December 31, 2006; at

$105 million For the twelve month period ending

March 31, 200°

We are also restricted in the amount of capitakexitures we can make in any fiscal year as
follows: fiscal 2005, $185 million; fiscal 2006, 42 million; and fiscal 2007, $195 millio

For each fiscal quarter after March 31, 2007, edic¢he above covenants will be established using
the same methodology as utilized for 2004, 2005206, based on financial projections we submit
to the trustee. The trustee will present the nevenants to us for approval, which we shall not
unreasonably withhold. In the event we do not appitbe trustee’s calculations of the new
covenants, the holders of 51% of the commitmentshi® Term A Notes under the Exit Financing
Facility will establish such covenan

The exchange notesheith new issue of securities and there is curretlgstablished market for
them. The exchange notes, when issued, will gegdralfreely transferable (subject to restrictions
discussed elsewhere herein) but will be a new is§gecurities for which there will not initiallyeba
market. Accordingly, there can be no assurance twetdevelopment or liquidity of any market for
the outstanding notes or, when issued, the exchaoigs.

We will receive no proceeds fragrettchange of the exchange notes for the outstgumdites
pursuant to the exchange offer. The net proceedsaaved from the outstanding notes were us
satisfy the claims of existing creditors and presdorking capital in connection with our Chapter 11
plan of reorganizatior

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A

Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the informats®t forth in the section of this prospectus estitiRisk Factors” beginning on page 13 and
all the other information provided to you in thimppectus in deciding whether to invest in the siote
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RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the informatiet forth in this section along with all the otlivgiormation provided to you or incorporated
by reference in this prospectus in deciding whetbénvest in the notes.

Risks Relating to AMERCO
We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The truck rental industry is highly compefitiand includes a number of significant nationa hundreds of regional and local
competitors. Competition is generally based ongynizoduct quality, convenience, availability, litarame recognition and service. In our
truck rental business, we face competition from dgaidCar and Truck Rental Company and Penske Traekihg. Some of our competitors
may have greater financial resources than we Nafeecannot assure you that we will not be forceetiuce our rental prices or delay price
increases.

We compete with national and regional selfafje operators as well as local operators. Cotigreth the market areas in which we
operate is significant and affects the occupaneglée rental rates and operating expenses of ailitifiss. Competition might cause us to
experience a decrease in occupancy levels, limniability to increase rental rates and compel usffier discounted rental rates which could
have a material adverse effect on our operatingtses

Entry into the self-storage business throagduisition of existing facilities is possible foersons or institutions with the required initial
capital. Development of new self-storage facilifiesore difficult, however, due to zoning, envinoental and other regulatory requirements.
The self-storage industry has in the past expegigioverbuilding in response to perceived increasdsemand. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to successfully compete in existingke#s or expand into new markets.

Control of AMERCO remains in the hands of a smalbetingent.

As of December 31, 2003, Edward J. Shoenir@laa of the Board of Directors and President ef@ompany, James P. Shoen, a director
of AMERCO, and Mark V. Shoen, an executive offioethe Company, collectively own 8,689,933 shaegmp(oximately 42.4%) of the
outstanding common shares of AMERCO. Accordingljward J. Shoen, Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shdidpevn a position to continue
to influence the election of the members of therBad Directors and approval of significant trartsats. In addition, 2,372,002 shares
(approximately 11.5%) of the outstanding commonrehaf AMERCO, including shares allocated to emeésyand unallocated shares, are
held by our Employee Savings and Employee Stockédsimp Trust.

Our operations subject us to numerous environmentadulations and the possibility that environmentébility in the future could
adversely affect our operations.

Compliance with environmental requirementéeoleral, state and local governments significaatfgcts our business. Among other
things, these requirements regulate the dischdrgmterials into the water, air and land and govtbeuse and disposal of hazardous
substances. Under environmental laws, we can loestrttly liable for hazardous substances thaf@wad on real property we have owne
operated. We are aware of issues regarding hazasildastances on some of our real estate and wephtireplace a remedial plan at each
site where we believe such a plan is necessaryedgidarly make capital and operating expenditusestdy in compliance with environmen
laws. In particular, we have managed a testingrambval program since 1988 for our undergroundagi®itanks. Under this program, we
spent $43.7 million between April 1988 and Decen81%r2003. Despite these compliance efforts, risknwironmental liability is part of the
nature of our business.

Environmental laws and regulations are compthange frequently and could become more strinigethe future. We cannot assure you
that future compliance with these regulations dure environmental liabilities will not have a mi@é adverse effect on our business.
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Our business is seasonal.

Our business is seasonal and our resultpafations and cash flows fluctuate significantynfirquarter to quarter. Historically, revenues
have been stronger in the first and second fisgaltgrs due to the overall increase in moving dgtouring the spring and summer months.
The fourth fiscal quarter is generally weakest, miiere is a greater potential for adverse weatbeditions.

We obtain our rental trucks from a limited numbef emanufacturers.

In the last ten years, we purchased all ofrental trucks from Ford and General Motors. Aligb we believe that we have alternative
sources of supply for our rental trucks, termirmaid one or more of our relationships with anytedde suppliers could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations.

Our property and casualty insurance business ha$feted extensive losses.

Our property and casualty insurance busiriRepWest, has reported losses through Septemb2038,totaling approximately
$135 million since January 1, 2000. These lossep@amarily attributable to business lines thatevenprofitable as underwritten. To restore
profitability in RepWest, we are exiting all nonHlkul related lines and the exit may result in ieemn losses as these lines are eliminated.
Although we believe the changes will have a positivpact on the financial position of RepWest, wearwt assure you that we will be
successful in returning RepWest to sustained tofity. Our inability to sustain profitability cddi have a material adverse effect on our
earnings and financial position.

Our insurance businesses have suffered downgradetheir ratings from national insurance company rigig agencies.

A.M. Best has downgraded RepWest and Ox@tdpugh Oxford was subsequently upgraded in M2a¥. These downgrades have
affected their standing in the insurance indusiny eaused their premiums to decrease. Ratingstiea@mne an increasingly important factor
in establishing the competitive position of inswmrarcompanies. A.M. Best ratings reflect its opinddmn insurance company’s financial
strength, operating performance, strategic pos#iuh ability to meet its obligations to policyhalseAs of March 19, 2004, the A.M. Best
ratings are C for RepWest and B- for Oxford.

Notes receivable from SAC Holdings are a signifidgyortion of AMERCC'S total assets.

At March 31, 2004, we held approximately $30@illion of notes due from SAC Holdings. Althoutifese assets have been eliminated in
our consolidated financial statements includedhis prospectus, we have significant economic exgoguSAC Holdings. SAC Holdings is
highly leveraged with total outstanding indebtednasd other obligations of $990.1 million at Decembl, 2003. We hold various senior
junior unsecured notes of SAC Holdings. The searmecured notes of SAC Holdings that we hold raplakin right of payment with th
notes of certain senior mortgage holders, but jultidhe extent of the collateral securing the Eple mortgages and junior to the extent of
the cash flow waterfalls that favor the senior mage holders. If SAC Holdings are unable to megit thbligations to their senior lenders, it
could trigger a default on their obligations to bssuch an event of default, we could suffer aificant loss to the extent the value of the
underlying collateral on our loans to SAC Holding$adequate to repay SAC Holdings’ senior lendeis us. We cannot assure you that
SAC Holdings will not default on their loans to ithgenior lenders or that the value of SAC Holdiragsets upon liquidation would be
sufficient to repay us in full.

AMERCO is a holding company and is dependent onsitdbsidiaries for cash flon

As a holding company with no business openati AMERCOQO’s material assets consist only of thelsof its subsidiaries. AMERCO will
have to rely upon dividends and other payments ftersubsidiaries to generate the funds necessaggyt its obligations. The ability of
AMERCO'’s subsidiaries to make dividend and othgmpents to AMERCO is subject to, among other thitigs,availability of funds, the
terms of the indebtedness of AMERCO'’s subsidiaai®d applicable state laws and insurance regulations
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This prospectus includes forwarbboking statements and there are a number of rigkdauncertainties that could cause our actual resuto
differ materially form these forward-looking stateemts.

This prospectus includes forward-looking etagnts. Forward-looking statements include statésremcerning our plans, objectives,
goals, strategies, capital expenditures, financivegsds and resources, the success of our Chapamnkiuptcy reorganization, plans and
intentions regarding the payment of dividend amgas, perceptions of AMERCOQ's legal positions antitgpated outcome of pending
litigation against us and liquidity. When usedhistprospectus, the words “believe”, “expect”, ‘laipate”, “estimate”, “project”, “may”,
“will”, “intends”, “plans” and variations of such evds and similar expressions are intended to ifjefaiward-looking statements. All
forward-looking statements are based upon our nueepectations and various assumptions. Our eapens, beliefs and projections are
expressed in good faith and we believe there émaanable basis for them. However, there can lassurance that management’s

expectations, beliefs and projections will be aehie

There are a number of risks and uncertaitiiascould cause our actual results to differ mialtg from the forward-looking statements
contained in this prospectus. Important factors tbald cause our actual results to differ mathrilmbm the forward-looking statements we
make in this prospectus are set forth in this Riaktors section.

We face risks related to an SEC investigation amtgrities litigation.

The SEC has issued a formal order of invatitig to determine whether we have violated theeF@dsecurities laws. Although we have
cooperated with the SEC in this matter and intencbntinue to cooperate, the SEC may determinentbdtave violated Federal securities
laws. We cannot predict when this investigation tnél completed or its outcome. If the SEC makestardhination that we have violated
Federal securities laws, we may face sanctiongjdimgg, but not limited to, significant monetarynadties and injunctive relief.

In addition, the Company has been namedendeaht in a number of class action and relateduisvsThe findings and outcome of the
SEC investigation may affect the class-action latsghat are pending. We are generally obligedh&extent permitted by law, to indemnify
our directors and officers who are named defendargeme of these lawsuits. We are unable to estinvhat our liability in these matters
may be, and we may be required to pay judgmengsttiements and incur expenses in aggregate amthattsould have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of ogt@ns.

Our common stock may be delisted from the NASDAQcBtMarket.

On June 24, 2003, we received a letter froRSNAQ indicating that, in light of AMERCOQ’s Chapt#f filing, a NASDAQ Listing
Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) would considecls filing and associated concerns in renderingtarchination regarding AMERCO'’s
listing status. NASDAQ has requested, and we haweiged, information regarding the Chapter 11 §lend the effect of the filing on the
shareholders of AMERCO. Nasdaq has indicated beaPtnel has determined to continue the listirgMERCQO’s common stock on Nasc
provided that AMERCO complies with all requiremefascontinued listing on Nasdaq and timely fildéispgriodic reports with the SEC for
all periods ending on or before June 30, 2004, auitlthe benefit of any extensions provided purstmixchange Act Rule 12b-25. Although
we intend to take all actions available to maintain Nasdagq listing, there can be no assuranceAi&RCO will be able to do so.

RepWest has consented to an Order of Supervisisnésl by the Arizona Department of Insuranc

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@fdgupervision issued by the DOI. Pursuant te @ider and Arizona law, during the
period of supervision, RepWest may not engage flitaiceactivities without the prior approval of tB®l.

The requirements to abate the order are épViRest to eliminate the specific credit risk asatea with the exposures to AMERCO and its
affiliates and establish that it possesses surulfficient with Arizona law
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and as the Arizona Director of Insurance may regoased on type, volume or nature of its businessuant to Arizona law. If RepWest fails
to satisfy the requirements to abate DOI's concehesDOI may take further action, including, bot imited to, commencing a
conservatorship.

Risks Associated with the Notes

Our substantial level of indebtedness could advérsdfect our financial condition and prevent us dm fulfilling our obligations on the
notes.

As of March 15, 2004, we had approximatel@&gnillion of indebtedness, excluding the debt ACHoldings. In addition, subject to
restrictions in the indenture for the notes weddfering and our Exit Financing Facility and New AYRCO notes, we may incur additional
indebtedness. The high level of our indebtedneskidmave important consequences to you, includiegaollowing:

« our ability to obtain additional financing for wankj capital and capital expenditures or genergbaxate purposes may be impaired;

* we must use a substantial portion of our cash flomwm operations to pay interest and principal anrbtes and other indebtedness,
which will reduce the funds available to us foretpurposes such as capital expenditt

« our high level of indebtedness may put us at a etitive disadvantage and reduce our flexibilityplanning for, or responding to,
changing conditions in our industry, including ieased competition; ar

« we are more vulnerable to economic downturns andrad developments in our business.

We expect to obtain the money to pay our exps and to pay the principal and interest on ¥ $econd Lien Senior Secured Notes
due 2009, our Exit Financing Facility, the New AMER notes and other debt from cash flow from ouraipens.

Our annual debt service requirements foi9tb&o Second Lien Senior Secured Notes due 20Qgimamately $18 million. Because the
notes carry a fixed rate of interest, we are nbjesti to interest rate risk for these obligations.

Our annual debt service requirements foréiwelving credit portion of our Exit Financing Fhigi depends on a number of factors,
including the level of borrowings under the fagilénd interest rates. Our projected annual debicgerequirements relating to the 9.0%
Second Lien Senior Secured Notes, Exit FinancirgliBaand the New AMERCO notes is approximately’$§million based on outstanding
borrowings under these facilities at March 15, 208 each one percent increase in interest réitesiebt service requirement on the Exit
Financing Facility would increase by approximat®$y15 million per year. The scheduled maturitytf@ outstanding borrowings under the
9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes and theFihaincing Facility is in fiscal year 2009 and thatority date of the New AMERCO
Notes is in fiscal year 2011. Our ability to meet expenses thus depends on our future performariteh will be affected by financia
business, economic and other factors. We will moable to control many of these factors, such as@uic conditions in the markets where
we operate and pressure from competitors.

We cannot be certain that our cash flow will befisignt to allow us to pay principal and interesta@ur debt, including the notes, and n
our other obligations. If we do not have sufficiumids, we may be required to refinance all or padur existing debt, including the notes,
sell assets or borrow more money. We cannot gusgahtat we will be able to do so on terms accegtabls, if at all. In addition, the terms
of existing or future debt agreements, including Bxit Financing Facility and the indenture, mastriet us from pursuing any of these
alternatives.

The indenture for the notes we are offerthg,Exit Financing Facility and the New AMERCO rotmpose significant operating and
financial restrictions, which may prevent us froapitalizing on business
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opportunities and taking some corporate actionss&hestrictions limit the ability of us and oubsidiaries, among other things, to:
« incur additional indebtedness or liens;
« enter into certain sale/leaseback transactions;
« consolidate or merge;
« sell our assets;
« change our name or corporate structure;
« change the nature of our business or relocateluaf executive office;
« transfer our ownership of assets to subsidiariasate not, or do not become, guarantors undenttenture;
« pay dividends or make other distributions or repase or redeem our stock;
* make investments;
« enter into transactions with affiliates; and
* amend existing agreements.

We cannot assure you that these covenaritaatibdversely affect our ability to finance outure operations or capital needs or to pursue
available business opportunities. A breach of drithe@se covenants or our inability to maintain bguired financial ratios could result in a
default in respect of the related indebtedness défault occurs, the relevant lenders could étedeclare the indebtedness, together with
accrued interest and other fees, to be immedidigtyand payable.

For a more detailed discussion of our exisindebtedness and other obligations, see theosetitlied “Description of Other Indebtedness
and Other Obligations.” See also “Description & Exchange Notes.”

We could enter into transactions that would increathe amount of our indebtedness outstanding.

The indenture for the notes and the agreesrtbat govern our Exit Financing Facility and NeMBRCO Notes impose significant
restrictions on our ability to incur additional etstedness or liens, make investments, and selisassaong others. Nevertheless, we could, in
the future, enter into transactions such as adprisi, refinancings or other recapitalizations ighly leveraged transactions, that could
increase the amount of indebtedness outstandirg Bansactions could affect our capital structureredit ratings or otherwise affect the
holders of the notes.

The guarantees may be voided under specific legadumstances

The outstanding notes are, and the exchaoigs will be, guaranteed by certain of our exisBagsidiaries and certain future subsidiaries.
The guarantees may be subject to review underfeld8ral bankruptcy law and comparable provisionstatfe fraudulent conveyance laws
bankruptcy or reorganization case or lawsuit is we@mced by or on behalf of our or one of a guarastanpaid creditors. Under these law:

a court were to find in such a bankruptcy or renizion case or lawsuit that, at the time any gogr issued a guarantee of the notes:

« it issued the guarantee to delay, hinder or defpaadent or future creditors; or
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« it received less than reasonably equivalent vaffainconsideration for issuing the guaranteehattime it issued the guarantee and:
« it was insolvent or rendered insolvent by reasoissiding the guarantee; or

« it was engaged, or about to engage, in a busindgsansaction for which its remaining unencumbeassiets constituted unreasonably
small capital to carry on its business

« it intended to incur, or believed that it would imcdebts beyond its ability to pay as they mature;

then the court could void the obligations undergharantee, subordinate the guarantee of the twthat guarantor’s other debt or take other
action detrimental to holders of the notes andjterantees of the notes.

The measures of insolvency for purposesafdulent transfer laws vary depending upon thedftkie jurisdiction that is being applied in
any proceeding to determine whether a fraudulemisfier had occurred. Generally, however, a persandibe considered insolvent if, at the
time it incurred the debt:

« the present fair saleable value of its assets @sssthan the amount that would be required to tsgyrobable liability on its existing
debts, including contingent liabilities, as theyxtme absolute and mature;

« it could not pay its debts as they become due.

We cannot be sure as to the standard thatird would use to determine whether or not a guaramas solvent at the relevant time, or,
regardless of the standard that the court usestitbassuance of the guarantees would not be dadd¢he guarantees would not be
subordinated to the guarantors’ other debt. If suchse were to occur, the guarantee could alsalject to the claim that, since the
guarantee was incurred for our benefit, and ordyractly for the benefit of the guarantor, the ghtions of the applicable guarantor were
incurred for less than fair consideration.

Based upon financial and other informatiorrently available to us, we believe that the defidenced by the guarantees is being incurred
for proper purposes and in good faith. We beliéxg the guarantors:

« are solvent and will continue to be solvent afssuing the guarantees;
« will have sufficient capital for carrying on thediness we intend to conduct after this offeringagpleted; and
« will be able to service their debts as they come du

There is no established trading market for the exarfye notes and you may not be able to sell the siopeickly or at the price that you
paid.

We expect that there will be a limited tragimarket for the exchange notes, if any. Althoughdxchange notes will be registered, we do
not intend to list the exchange notes on any séesigxchange or to arrange for quotation on angraated dealer quotation systems. As a
result, we cannot assure you as to the liquiditsrof trading market for the exchange notes.

We also cannot assure you that you will He &dbsell your exchange notes at a particular tmthat the prices that you receive when you
sell will be favorable. We also cannot assure yotoahe level of liquidity of the trading marker the exchange notes or, in the case of any
holders of outstanding notes that do not exchange t the trading market for the notes following differ to exchange the outstanding notes
for exchange notes. Future trading prices of thistanding notes and exchange notes will dependamy factors, including:

« our operating performance and financial condition;
« our ability to complete the offer to exchange tlées for the exchange notes;
« the interest of securities dealers in making a etadnd

» the market for similar securities.
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Historically, the market for nomvestment grade debt has been subject to disngtiat have caused volatility in prices. It isgbke tha
the market for the outstanding notes and, if isstlelexchange notes will be subject to disruptidmgy disruptions may have a negative
effect on noteholders, regardless of our prospautsfinancial performance.

There may be adverse consequences to holders aftanding notes that do not tender their outstandingtes pursuant to the exchange
offer.

If you fail to properly exchange your outstarg notes for exchange notes, you will continubdtll outstanding notes subject to transfer
restrictions, and the liquidity of the trading meirifor any untendered outstanding notes may beamuiily limited.

We will only issue exchange notes in exchaogeutstanding notes that you timely and propégtydered. You should allow sufficient
time to ensure timely delivery of the outstandiges, and you should carefully follow the instranos on how to tender your outstanding
notes set forth under the “The Exchange Offer —e&dares for Tendering” and in the letter of trartshthat accompanies this prospectus.
Neither we nor the exchange agent are requiredtifyryou of any defects or irregularities relatitegyour tender of note

The holders of outstanding notes that deemohange them pursuant to this exchange offeroaiitinue to be subject to restrictions on the
transfer of the outstanding notes because therissuat the outstanding notes was not registeredrnuthe Securities Act or registered or
qualified under any state securities laws. We dacoaently anticipate that, except in certain tiali circumstances, we will register the
outstanding notes under the Securities Act. Teettient that we exchange outstanding notes a reftilts exchange offer, the ability to trade
untendered outstanding notes may be adverselytadfec

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will receive no proceeds from the exchange efakchange notes for the outstanding notes pursméimé exchange offer. We used
gross proceeds of $80 million from the sale ofdhtstanding notes to satisfy the claims of existiregitors and provide working capital in
connection with our Chapter 11 plan of reorganarati
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

We have calculated the ratio of earningsxted charges by dividing earnings by fixed chards. purposes of computing the ratio of
earnings to fixed charges, “earnings” consistsrefgx earnings from operations plus total fixedrgha and non-cash charges excluding
interest capitalized during the period and “fixédiges” consists of interest expense, preferrazk stividends capitalized interest,
amortization of debt charges and discounts, anetling of AMERCO'’s annual rental expense (which bedieve is a reasonable
approximation of the interest factor of such resjtal

Year Ended March 31,
Nine Months Ended
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 December 31, 2003

1.2Ix 1.2x  0.55x(1) 0.52x(1 ) 0.74x( 1) 1.4

(1) For the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 808,2arnings were inadequate to cover fixed clsangeapproximately $87.0 million,
$87.7 million and $59.8 million, respective

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth capitalizatias of December 31, 2003, on an actual basis amah @s adjusted basis to give effect to the
issuance of our new debt obligations (includinghlesv SAC Holdings Notes) issued on March 15, 208dnuour emergence from
bankruptcy and the satisfaction of the debt obiiyet discharged in connection therewith. You shealt the following information in
conjunction with the information contained in thedded consolidated financial statements and tleeidited condensed consolidated finan
statements, and the notes to those statementsraggpeksewhere in this prospectus.

As of December 31, 2003

Actual As Adjusted
(In millions)
Long-term debt (including current portior

Exit financing revolving credit facilit $ — $ 163.
Term A Notes — 350.(
New AMERCO note: — 148.¢
Term B Notes — 200.(
Revolving credit facility, secured by intercomparotes 153.¢ —
Senior notes, secured, Series A, due 2 95.C —
Senior notes, secured, Series B, due - 5.C —
Senior notes, unsecured, 7.85% interest rate, 0@ 175.( —
Senior notes, unsecured, 8.80% interest rate, 00& 200.( —

Medium-term notes, unsecured, 7.23% to 8.08% isteede, due throug|
2027 109.t —

Notes payable under Bond Backed Asset Trust, unsecid.14% intere:
rate, due through 20: 100.( —
DIP financing 55.1 —
BBAT termination deb 26.€ —
Other deb 37.C 116.2
Total AMERCO notes and loans paya 957.( 978.:
SAC Holding! notes payable 586.¢ 586.¢
New SAC Holdings Note — 200.(
Stockholder' equity 401.¢ 401.¢
Total capitalizatior $1,945. $2,166."
| |

* Excluding inter-company amounts owed to AMERCIC$403.5 million under the “Actual” column and $283nillion under the “As
Adjuste” column, respectively
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BUSINESS
The Company

We are the largest do-it-yourself moving atatage company in North America. Since 1945, ooving and self-storage subsidiary, U-
Haul, has developed the most recognized branckimethtal of trucks, trailers and support itemsh®do-it-yourself moving customer. We are
the leading “one-stop shop” for customers’ residdémoving and self-storage needs. As of DecemePB03, U-Haul moving equipment
was available for rent at 15,624 locations in 2@est and Canada, which we believe is more tharetthie number of locations of our national
competitors combined. Through the U-Haul networkjtdyourself movers have access to the largest € moving equipment available for
rent. We also offer our customers an extensivedimaoving and storage supplies such as boxes aag¢ow dollies. We are the second-
largest operator of self-storage facilities in Nioftmerica with over 1,000 locations and approxinya82.5 million square feet of total
rentable self-storage space as of March 31, 20@3alb own real estate and insurance businesgesthalement our U-Haul business.

We believe that our focus on do-it-yoursetfivimg and storage customers, whose moving andstmikge needs are not necessarily
correlated with general economic conditions, presids with an operating profile that is less vudbér to economic downturns. A substantial
majority of U-Haul’s rental revenues are generditeth residential do-it-yourself movers. Demanddar products and services is driven
primarily by the mobility of the population resuig from, among other things, changes in employntenising preference and marital status.
Our selfstorage business also provides us with a predetalvienue stream given that the duration of thestrgl average storage space re
is over 13 months.

As of March 31, 2003, we had over 92,000ks@3,000 trailers and 19,000 tow dollies avaéddbl rent, a majority of which are owned
by us.

Our real estate and insurance businessesguqp core do-it-yourself moving and storage fadReal Estate acquires properties for the
development of, or conversion into, U-Haul Cengerd/or self-storage facilities. RepWest providexpprty and casualty insurance to us and
insures U-Haul's customers, dealers and indeperiedtparties. The majority of our U-Haul custom@urchase RepWest products. We
believe that these business lines assist us intaiaing our competitive advantages in the do-itsgelf moving and storage businesses. In
addition, RepWest'’s business activities includeaiand assumed reinsurance underwriting. Oxfaginates and reinsures annuities, credit
life and disability, life insurance and suppleméhgalth products. Information on industry segmésiacorporated by reference to Notes 1,
21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statemiemtthe year ended March 31, 2003 and Note 6 tattaidited consolidated financial
statements for the quarter ended December 31, 2008h are contained elsewhere in this prospedts.notes discuss the general princi
of consolidation, summarized consolidated infororatnd industry segment and geographic data.

Chapter 11 Proceedings

On June 20, 2003, AMERCO filed a voluntaryitpmn for relief under Chapter 11 of the Unitecféts Bankruptcy Code. Amerco Real
Estate Company also filed a voluntary petitionrfdief under Chapter 11 on August 13, 2003. AMEREGther subsidiaries were not
included in either of the filings. The Chapter ilih§ was undertaken to facilitate a restructurdfigAMERCO'’s debt in response to liquidity
issues, which developed in the second half of 2@02March 15, 2004, we emerged from Chapter 1% (lesn nine months from our petition
date) with full payment to our creditors and withdilution to our stockholders. In connection watlr emergence from bankruptcy, we
believe our balance sheet is strengthened, haestguctured over $1.2 billion in debt and leaségaitions. See “Prospectus Summary —
Recent Developments — Emergence From Chapter litugesing.”
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General

Moving and Storage Operatiol

Moving and self-storage operations consighefrental of equipment such as trucks and tsitbe sale of moving and storage supplies
such as boxes and the rental of self-storage spad®th moving and storage customers. Operatimsa@nducted using the registered
tradename U-Haul throughout the United States aarmth@a.

Real Estate Operatior

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the @amy’s real estate assets, including U-Haul CeartdrStorage locations. Various U-Haul
and Insurance companies own the remainder of Hleestate assets. Real Estate is responsible &ms@®ing property acquisitions,
dispositions and managing environmental risks efgioperties.

Property and Casualty Insurani

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty-type insurance products for various ntgpieticipants, including independent
third parties, U-Haul’s customers, independentatsadnd the Company. In April 2003, RepWest annediticat in connection with
AMERCO'’s overall restructuring efforts, in orderreduce costs and to build upon its core strengBpWest is exiting non-U-Haul related
lines of business. This exit has resulted in neantiosses as these lines were eliminated.

Life Insurance

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditdife and disability, single premium whole lifgroup life and disability coverage, and
Medicare supplement insurance. Oxford also adna@rsshe self-insured employee health and dentabglar AMERCO.

On November 13, 2000, Oxford acquired alihef issued and outstanding shares of Christianifyidéfe Insurance Company (CFLIC) in
an exchange of cash for stock. CFLIC is a Texasdasurance company specializing in providing seqpental health insurance and is
licensed in 31 states. The acquisition was accauioteusing the purchase method of accounting aochrdingly, CFLIC's results of
operations have been included in the consolidatesh€ial statements since the date of acquisitiiord funded the acquisition from
available cash and short-term funds.

History

U-Haul was founded in 1945 under the nameHa&id Trailer Rental Company”. From 1945 to 1974H8ll rented trailers and, starting in
1959, trucks on a one-way and In-Town® basis exedlys through independent dealers. Since 1974, UtHas developed a network of
Company managed rental centers (U-Haul Centersydiir which U-Haul also rents its trucks and trailend provides related products and
services (for example, the sale and installatiohitwhes, as well as the sale of boxes and otheing@nd storage supplies). At March 31,
2003, U-Haul's distribution network included 1,360mpany operated centers and 14,274 independeletsiea

Moving and Storage Operatior

Business Strategi¢

The U-Haul business strategy remains focosedo-it-yourself moving and self-storage custom@ersiaul believes that customer access,
in terms of truck or trailer availability and praoxity of rental locations, is critical to its suceet)nder the U-Haul name, our strategy is to
offer, in an integrated manner over an extensivegeographically diverse network of 15,624 Compapgrated Centers and independent
dealers, a wide range of products and services-it-yburself moving and self-storage customers.
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Moving Operation:
U-Haul has a variety of product offerings nie trucks are designed with do-it-yourself custosnin mind. U-Haul trailers are suited to
the low profile of many newly manufactured autontedi As of March 31, 2003, the Haul rental equipment fleet consisted of approxetye

92,000 trucks, 73,000 trailers and 19,000 tow dsllAdditionally, U-Haul provides support itemsIsas furniture pads, utility dollies and
handtrucks.

Approximately 90% of U-Haul’s gross rentaleaue is generated from do-it-yourself residemtialers. Moving rentals include:

() In-Town® rentals, where the equipment is reauro the originating U-Haul location and
(if) One-way rentals, where the equipment is regdrto a U-Haul location in another city.

U-Haul’s truck and trailer rental businessd® to be seasonal, with proportionally more tratisas and revenues generated in the spring
and summer months than during the balance of the ye

U-Haul sells a wide selection of moving sugplkhat include boxes, tape and packaging magetiaHaul Centers also sell and install
hitches and towing systems, and sell propane.

U-Haul offers protection packages such as:
(i) Safemove® — which currently provides moving tmusers with a damage waiver, cargo protection aadical and life coverage;
(i) Safestor® — which currently provides sslierage rental customers with various types ofgutadn for their goods in storage; ¢
(iii) Safetow® — which currently provides towing stomers with a damage waiver, cargo protectionmaedical and life coverage.

Independent dealers receive U-Haul equipraerg consignment basis and are paid a commissigmoss revenues generated from their
rentals. U-Haul maintains contracts with its indegent dealers that may typically be terminated Wg®days written notice by either party.

Historically U-Haul has designed and manufeed its truck van boxes, trailers and various iostupport rental equipment items. Truck
chassis are manufactured by both foreign and daéerntestk manufacturers. These chassis receiveingrtst-delivery modifications and are
joined with van boxes at strategically located Cam-owned manufacturing and assembly facilities inlthmited States. From time to time,
U-Haul buys its truck bodies from a third party yicer of such items.

U-Haul services and maintains its trucks @aiflers through an extensive preventive-mainteagrogram, generally performed at
Company-owned facilities located at or near U-Haghters. Major repairs are performed either byctiessis manufacturers’ dealers or by
Company-owned repair shops.

Competition

A highly competitive industry exists withihg moving truck and trailer rental market. Therm taro distinct users of rental trucks:
commercial users and do-it-yourself users. U-Haaliges on the do-it-yourself residential user. Withis group, U-Haul believes that the
principal competitive factors are convenience otaélocations, availability of quality rental eguient and price. U-Hawd’'major competitol
in the rental market are Budget Car and Truck R&anpany and Penske Truck Leasing.

Selfstorage Busines

U-Haul entered the self-storage busines®itdland has increased its presence in the indistiygh the acquisition and conversion of
existing facilities and new construction. In addlitj U-Haul has entered into management agreementaiage self-storage properties owned
by others, including SAC Holdings. U-Haul has asered into a strategic relationship with Prividiai Storage Realty, L.P., a Texas-based
operator of self-storage properties.
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Through 1,023 owned, managed or equity ppettg self-storage locations in the United Stated Canada, U-Haul offers for rent more
than 32.5 million square feet of self-storage atdfi&81, 2003. This is an increase of 1.4 millionag feet over the prior year. U-Haul's self-
storage facility locations range in sizes up to,66@ square feet of storage space, with individt@iage units in sizes from 15 to 400 square
feet.

The primary market for storage rooms is tioeage of household goods. With the addition 0838,storage rooms during fiscal year
2003, the average occupancy rate of same stolifscoperating over one year was 82.9%, with nsbdeasonal variations.

Competition

The primary competition for a U-Haul self1stge location is other self-storage facilities with geographic area offering a comparable
level of convenience to the customer.

Employee:
As of March 31, 2003, U-Haul's non-seasonatkxforce consisted of 16,145 full and part-timeptoyees.
Real Estate Operation

Real Estate Operatior

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the @amy’s real estate assets, including U-Haul CeantdrStorage locations. Various U-Haul
and Insurance companies own the remainder of Hieegtate assets. Real Estate is responsible &ms@®ing property acquisitions,
dispositions and managing environmental risks efgtoperties.

Environmental Matter

Compliance with environmental requirementéeoleral, state and local governments significaatfgcts Real Estate’business operatiol
Among other things, these requirements regulateit@harge of materials into the water, air andi land govern the use and disposal of
hazardous substances. Real Estate is aware of issg@rding the presence of hazardous substanasmnof its properties. Real Estate
regularly makes capital and operating expendittoessay in compliance with environmental laws aad put in place a remedial plan at each
site where it believes such a plan is necessangeSi988, Real Estate has managed a testing amyakprogram for underground storage
tanks. Under this program, we have spent $43.7amithrough March 31, 2003.

Insurance Operation:

Business Strategi¢

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty type insurance products for various ntgr&eticipants, including independent
third parties, U-Haul’s customers, independentatsadnd the Company. In April 2003, RepWest annediticat in connection with
AMERCO's overall restructuring efforts, and in orde reduce costs and to build upon its core sttenndRepWest has ceased writing and is
exiting non-U-Haul related lines of business.

Oxford’s business strategy is long-term cagjtowth through direct writing and reinsuringaosfnuity, credit life and disability and
Medicare supplement products. In the past Oxfoedghaisued a growth strategy of increased diredingrvia acquisitions of insurance
companies, expanded distribution channels and ptathvelopment. The acquisitions of North Amerit@surance Company and Safe Mate
Life Insurance Company in 1997 and Christian Figldlife Insurance Company in 2000 represent a S@amt movement toward this long-
term goal. Oxford has significantly expanded prdaiferings, distribution channels and administrattapabilities through these acquisitic
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Investment:

RepWest and Oxford investments must compti tie insurance laws of the state of domicile.sehaws prescribe the type, quality and
concentration of investments that may be made. Mame in order to be considered an acceptableusndy cedents and intermediaries, a
reinsurer must offer financial security. The quatind liquidity of invested assets are importamtsigerations in determining such security.

The investment strategies of RepWest and @é@mphasize protection of principal through thechase of investment grade fixed-
income securities. Approximately 88.0% of RepWeatid 88.6% of Oxford’s fixed-income securities dehsf investment grade securities
(NAIC-2 or greater). The maturity distributions atesigned to provide sufficient liquidity to meatudre cash needs.

Reinsuranct

RepWest and Oxford assume and cede insufesroeand to other insurers and members of varieirsurance pools and associations.
Reinsurance arrangements are utilized to providatgr diversification of risk and to minimize expasto large risks. However, the original
insurer retains primary liability to the policyheldshould the assuming insurer not be able to iteebligations under the reinsurance
agreements.

Regulation

RepWest and Oxford are subject to regulatipstate insurance regulatory agencies. The ragnlektends to such matters as licensing
companies and agents, restricting the types, gualiuantity of investments, regulating capitall @arplus and actuarial reserve maintenz
setting solvency standards, filing of annual arfteoteports on financial condition, and regulatiragle practices. State laws also regulate
transactions and dividends between an insuranc@a&oyrand its parent or affiliates, and generaltyunes prior approval or notification for
any change in control of the insurance subsidiary.

The insurance and reinsurance regulatorydveonk has been subjected to increased scrutinfidoiational Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC), federal and state legislegwed insurance regulators. These regulators asgd=ying increased regulations, with an
emphasis on insurance company investment and smhiesues. It is not possible to predict the fuiumpact of changing state and federal
regulations on the operations of RepWest and Oxford

In 1998, the NAIC adopted the CodificationStétutory Accounting Principles guidance, whicplaeed the prior Accounting Practices
and Procedures manual as the NAIC’s primary guiddocstatutory accounting as of January 1, 200&. dodification provides guidance for
areas where statutory accounting has been sileintizanges current statutory accounting practicesiime areas. The DOI has adopted the
Codification guidance, effective January 1, 200%foed and RepWest have implemented the new Codiificaffective January 1, 2001. In
order to enhance the regulation of insurer solvetiey NAIC has adopted a formula and model lawrtplément risk-based capital
(RBC) requirements for insurance companies desigmadsess minimum capital requirements and te thislevel of protection that
statutory surplus provides for policyholder obligas. The RBC formula measures areas of risk faicisgrers. Pursuant to the model law,
insurers having less statutory surplus than thguired by the RBC calculation will be subject towiag degrees of regulatory action,
depending on the level of capital inadequacy.

The RBC model law provides for four levelsrefulatory action. The extent of regulatory inriton and action increases as the level of
surplus to RBC decreases. The first level, the Gomction Level (as defined by the NAIC), requisgsinsurer to submit a plan of
corrective actions to the regulator if surplussddelow 200% of the RBC amount. The Regulatorydctievel requires an insurer to subm
plan containing corrective actions and requiregéhevant insurance commissioner to perform an éxation or other analysis and issue a
corrective order if surplus falls below 150% of RBC amount. The Authorized Control Level gives thievant insurance commissioner the
option either to take the aforementioned action® eehabilitate or liquidate the insurer if suplalls below 100% of the RBC amount. The
fourth action level is the Mandatory Control Leteht requires the relevant insurance commissianeghabilitate or liquidate the insurer if
surplus falls below 70% of the RBC amount.
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Oxford is in compliance with the NAIC minimuRBC requirements. On May 20, 2003, the DOI deteeaiithat RepWest's level of RBC
allowed for regulatory control and accordingly mlddRepWest under supervision.

Competition

The highly competitive insurance industrylimes a large number of property and casualty arsteg companies and life insurance
companies. In addition, the marketplace now incduifeancial service firms offering both insurancel dinancial products. Stockholders own
some insurance companies and policyholders ownatMany competitors have been in business fongdoperiod of time or possess
substantially greater financial resources and teppdobduct portfolios than RepWest and Oxford. Repifnd Oxford compete in the
insurance business based upon price, product dasijservices rendered to producers and policytmlde

Employee:
RepWest’s non-seasonal work force consis848ffull and part-time employees.

Oxford’s non-seasonal work force consisté48 full and part-time employees.

Life Insurance

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditdife and disability, single premium whole lifgroup life and disability coverage, and
Medicare supplement insurance. Oxford also adn@rsshe self-insured group health and dental glanihe Company. Reinsurance
arrangements are entered into with unaffiliatedseiers.

Property and Casualt

RepWest's historical business activities ¢t of three basic areas: U-Haul, direct andrassureinsurance. U-Haul underwritings
include coverage for U-Haul customers, independeaters, fleet owners and employees of the Comgep\West's direct underwriting was
done through Company-employed underwriters andtzlggeneral agents. The products provided indiatidity coverage for rental
vehicles, coverage for commercial multiple perdiranercial auto, mobile homes and excess workermpemsation. As part of its
restructuring, RepWest has determined to elimittase direct lines. RepWest's assumed reinsuramberwriting was done via broker
markets and RepWest has exited this line. In aortetib decrease risk, RepWest has entered intowsgatastrophe cover policies to limit its
exposure. The liability for reported and unrepoiteses is based on both RepWest's historical mahgistry averages. Unpaid loss adjustment
expenses are based on historical ratios of losstdgnt expenses paid to losses paid. The lialfditynpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses is based on estimates of the amount aegéssettle all claims as of the statement dadeh reported and unreported losses are
included in the liability. RepWest updates theiligbestimate as additional facts regarding claiosts become available. These estimates are
subject to uncertainty and variation due to numeffactors. In estimating reserves, no attempt idana isolate inflation from the combined
effect of other factors including inflation. Unpdabkses and loss adjustment expense are not distbun
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Activity in the liability for unpaid lossesid loss adjustment expenses is summarized as fallow

2001

2000

2002
Balance at January $448,98°
Less reinsurance recoveral 128,04
Net balance at January 320,94:
Incurred related tc
Current yea 112,28
Prior years 16,39¢
Total incurrec 128,68(
Paid related tc
Current yea 66,72¢
Prior years 130,07(
Total paid 196,79¢
Net balance at December 252,82!
Plus reinsurance recoveral 146,62:
Balance at December ! $399,44°
|

As a result of changes in estimates of irb@regents in prior years, the provision for unpaisskes and loss adjustment expenses (net of

reinsurance recoveries of $90.1 million) increasg®&16.4 million in 2002.
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(In thousands)

$382,65: $334,85°
80,86¢ 58,40:
301,78 276,45
232,98« 162,26!
23,04 41,28¢
256,02t 203,55(
106,39! 61,19¢
130,47: 117,02!
236,86t 178,22:
320,94: 301,78
128,04 80,86¢
$448,98 $382,65:
| I
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The following table illustrates the changeaiipaid loss and loss adjustment expenses. Fiestdi reserves as originally reported at the
end of the stated year. Second section, readingydevcumulative amounts paid as of the end of succeg®iaes with respect to that reser
Third section, reading down, — revised estimatetheforiginal recorded reserve as of the end afesgive years. Last section — compares
the latest revised estimated reserve amount tceferve amount as originally established. Thisdastion is cumulative and should not be
summed.

Unpaid Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

December 31

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 0022

(In thousands)
Unpaid Loss and Loss Adjustmel

Expenses $238,76.  $314,48. $329,74. $341,98: $332,67« $384,81¢  $344,74¢ $334,85¢ $382,65. $448,98°  $399,44
Paid (Cumulative) as o
One year later 83,92 70,38 86,79¢ 89,041 89,33¢ 103,75: 82,93¢ 117,02! 130,47 130,07(
Two years later 123,31( 115,46° 139,24° 150,00: 161,61: 174,86° 164,31¢ 186,19: 203,60
Three years later 153,03( 146,64( 173,78 195,85 208,16¢ 216,96t 218,81¢ 232,88
Four years late 173,84: 166,06¢ 198,43« 226,81! 232,72t 246,81¢ 255,13:
Five years later 181,67° 181,17 219,42! 243,85! 250,31: 269,42!
Six years later 191,93¢ 194,65: 231,44 254,20: 263,64!
Seven years late 200,28: 203,53 237,11¢ 264,12(
Eight years later 207,71¢ 207,83« 242,45(
Nine years late 211,07¢ 211,49:
Ten years late 213,85:
Reserve Reestimated as of:
One year later 251,45( 321,05¢ 338,03: 353,50¢ 354,77¢ 357,73: 339,60: 377,09¢ 433,22 454,51(
Two years late 254,53: 323,36¢ 340,73: 369,85: 342,16 361,30¢ 371,43: 432,71 454,92¢
Three years later 253,84 309,93¢ 349,45¢ 328,44! 346,57¢ 369,59¢ 429,16( 437,71:
Four years later 231,53¢ 317,68° 302,80¢ 331,89 349,81( 398,89¢ 413,47¢
Five years late 239,88t 267,00¢ 300,18( 339,66! 376,14. 398,18
Six years later 263,84: 262,51° 307,30t 347,66: 369,32(
Seven years later 259,79¢ 267,94¢ 332,76: 344,45:
Eight years later 265,28! 303,45] 311,68:
Nine years late 265,53¢ 270,30(
Ten years later 267,02¢
Cumulative Redundancy
(Deficiency) $(28,267) $ 44,18 $ 18,05¢ $ (2,470 $(36,64¢) $(13,36f) $(68,72f $(102,859) $(72,27%) $ (5,529
Retro Premium Recoverable 2,20¢ 4,23¢ 8,231 11,294 13,90¢ 18,35( 25,56¢ 29,85z 39,731 41,20¢
Reestimated Reserve:
Amount (Cumulative $(26,05¢ $ 48,427 $26,29C $ 8,82¢ $(22,74) $ 4,98. $(43,159 $ (73,00 $(32,54f) $ 35,68
Properties

AMERCO'’s subsidiaries own property, plant @uglipment that are utilized in the manufacturpaireand rental of IHaul equipment ar
that provide office space for the Company. Suchifi@s exist throughout the United States and Glan&J-Haul also manages storage
facilities owned by others. In addition, the Comypamwns certain real estate not currently usedsimjterations. U-Haul operates 1,350Hakl
Centers (including Company-owned storage locatiarsj operates 11 manufacturing and assemblytfasiliU-Haul also operates 105 fixed
site repair facilities located at or near a U-H@ehter.

SAC Holdings own property, plant and equiptrteat are utilized in the rental of self-storagems and UHaul equipment. Such facilitir
exist throughout the United States and Canada. fadlties also secure various promissory notdd bg unrelated third parties. There is no
debt held by the Company that is secured by SAGiHg$' real estate. U-Haul manages the storagétiagiunder management agreements
whereby the management fees are consistent witlageament fees received by U-Haul for other propedigned by unrelated parties and
managed by U-Haul.
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Legal Proceeding:

On July 20, 2000, Charles Kocher (Kochegdisuit in Wetzel County, West Virginia, Civil Aati No. 00-C-51-K, entitled Charles
Kocher v. Oxford Life Insurance Co. (Oxford) seekitompensatory and punitive damages for breacbmfact, bad faith and unfair claims
settlement practices arising from an alleged failirOxford to properly and timely pay a claim undedisability and dismemberment policy.
On March 22, 2002, the jury returned a verdict®fdillion in compensatory damages and $34.0 milliopunitive damages. On
November 5, 2002, the trial court entered an Ot@eder) affirming the $39.0 million jury verdict dmlenying Oxfor’s motion for New Tria
Or, in The Alternative, Remittitur. Oxford has pezfed its appeal to the West Virginia Supreme C&mtJanuary 27, 2004, the matter was
argued before the West Virginia Supreme Court akdrt under advisement. Management does not beliavéhe Order is sustainable and
expects the Order to be overturned by the WestiMagsupreme Court, in part because the jury awasino reasonable nexus to the actual
harm suffered by Kocher. The Company has accrugd,$®0, which represents management’s best estwh#te costs associated with legal
fees to appeal and re-try the case and the companyriisured exposure to an unfavorable outcome.

On September 24, 2002, Paul F. Shoen filderaative action in the Second Judicial Districtu@ of the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Paul F. Shoen vs. SAC Holdingp@ration et al., CV02-05602, seeking damages andadxde relief on behalf of
AMERCO from SAC Holdings and certain current andrfer members of the AMERCO Board of Directors, iniidhg Edward J. Shoen,
Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shoen as defendantsR&MEs named a nominal defendant for purposeseofiétiivative action. The
complaint alleges breach of fiduciary duty, sel&lifeg, usurpation of corporate opportunities, wifohgnterference with prospective
economic advantage and unjust enrichment and skekswinding of sales of self-storage propertigsiibsidiaries of AMERCO to SAC
Holdings over the last several years. The compkeks a declaration that such transfers are woigel as unspecified damages. On
October 28, 2002, AMERCO, the Shoen directorsptreShoen directors and SAC Holdings filed Motitm®ismiss the complaint. In
addition, on October 28, 2002, Ron Belec filed avdgive action in the Second Judicial District Coof the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Ron Belec vs. William E. Cartyale, CV 02-06331 and on January 16, 2003, M.Shagament Company, Inc. filed a
derivative action in the Second Judicial Districtu@t of the State of Nevada, Washoe County, captidvi.S. Management Company, Inc. vs.
William E. Carty, et al., CV 03-00386. Two additamerivative suits were also filed against thesdig@s. These additional suits are
substantially similar to the Paul F. Shoen derixatiction. The five suits assert virtually identicaims. In fact, three of the five plaintiffs are
parties who are working closely together and cliogge the same claims multiple times. The coumsolidated all five complaints before
dismissing them on May 8, 2003. Plaintiffs havedik notice of appeal. These lawsuits falsely atldfat the AMERCO Board lacked
independence. In reaching its decision to disnhiesé claims, the court determined that the AMER®@@r® of Directors had the requisite
level of independence required in order to havedlwaims resolved by the Board.

A subsidiary of U-Haul, INW Company (“INW"pwns one property located within two different sthbzardous substance sites in the
State of Washington. The sites are referred th@$Yakima Valley Spray Site” and the “Yakima Ra#dd Area.” INW has been named as a
“potentially liable party’under state law with respect to this property aslétes to both sites. As a result of the cleasugts of approximate
$5.0 million required by the State of WashingtdwW filed for reorganization under the federal bankcy laws in May of 2001. A success
mediation with other liable parties has occurred fnure liability to INW will be in the range of7$0,000 to $1.25 million.

AMERCO is a defendant in four putative clasgon lawsuits. Article Four Trust v. AMERCO, ét, ®istrict of Nevada, United States
District Court, Case No. CV-N-03-0050-DWH-VPC. At Four Trust, a purported AMERCO shareholder, memced this action on
January 28, 2003 on behalf of all persons andiestitho purchased or acquired AMERCO securitiewden February 12, 1998 and
September 26, 2002. The Article Four Trust actibegas one claim for violation of Section 10(b)tbé Securities Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder. Mates v. AMERCO, et al. téthStates District Court, District of Nevada, Chige CV-N-03-0107. Maxine Mates,
an AMERCO shareholder, commenced this putatives@dation on behalf of all persons and entities ptnehased or acquired AMERCO
securities between February 12, 1998
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and September 26, 2002. The Mates action assamsscunder section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5, and se2figa) of the Securities Exchange
Act. Klug v. AMERCO, et al., United States Districourt of Nevada, Case No. CV-S-03-0380. Edwardgkbn AMERCO shareholder,
commenced this putative class action on behalfl glesisons and entities who purchased or acquitdiERCO securities between
February 12, 1998 and September 26, 2002. The &dtign asserts claims under section 10(b) and Rilte5 and section 20(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act. IG Holdings v. AMERCOakt United States District Court, District of Nelea Case No. CV-N-03-0199. IG
Holdings, an AMERCO bondholder, commenced this fprgaclass action on behalf of all persons andiestivho purchased, acquired, or
traded AMERCO bonds between February 12, 1998 apteSiber 26, 2002, alleging claims under sectioaridlsection 12 of the Securities
Act of 1933 and section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5, autien 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act. Eddhease four securities class actions
allege that AMERCO engaged in transactions with ®A€ties that falsely improved AMERCO'’s financ&htements, and that AMERCO
failed to disclose the transactions properly. T¢t#as are at a very early stage. The Klug act@as ot been served. In the other three ac
AMERCO does not currently have a deadline by witichust respond to the complaints. Management tasdsthat it intends to defend
these cases vigorously.

Reference is also made to the discussioneoSEC investigation included under the headingspectus Summary — Recent
Developments” in this prospectus and is incorparétereference in this discussion of Legal Proasgsli
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

In the following table, we provide you withiroselected historical consolidated financial apdrating data as of and for the periods
indicated. The information in this table shouldrbad in conjunction with the financial statememntd aotes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bults of Operations” appearing elsewhere ingtospectus. The consolidated balance
sheet data presented below as of March 31, 2002@02 and the consolidated statements of earniatgsfdr the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 have been derived fhe consolidated financial statements, which hmen audited by BDO Seidman,
LLP, our independent auditors, which report corgain explanatory paragraph regarding the Compatjfisy to continue as a going
concern, and which appear elsewhere in this praspethe amounts for 2002, 2001 and 2000 wereteestaee Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated balancet stega for the fiscal years ended March 31, 200002and 1999 and the consolidated
statements of earnings data for the fiscal yeads@march 31, 2000 and 1999 have been derived dianconsolidated financial statements,
which are not included in this prospectus. The obdated statements of earnings data for the niaeths ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 and the selected balance sheet data as ofribec&1, 2003, are derived from our unaudited cosel@ consolidated financial stateme
appearing elsewhere in this prospectus and inclad®jr management’s opinion, all adjustments, timg) only of normal recurring
adjustments necessary to present fairly the datsuith periods. The results for the nine montheddecember 31, 2003 are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for tisedl year ending March 31, 2004 or for any futwesqal.

Nine Months Ended
For the Years Ended March 31, December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2003 2002

(In thousands except share and per share data)
Statement of Operations Dal

Rental revenu $1,560,00! $1,512,25( $1,436,83: $1,334,92. $1,204,38  $1,304,47 $1,233,04.
Net sales 222,88 222,81t 212,24: 201,35! 220,99: 182,04¢ 175,70¢
Premiums 307,92! 411,171 328,10¢ 262,05 226,84 188,02: 243,13:
Net investment and interest incol 41,56¢ 47,34: 52,29 61,02: 64,96¢ 35,61+ 31,50¢
Total revenue 2,132,38 2,193,57 2,029,481 1,859,35! 1,717,18! 1,710,15 1,683,39.
Operating expenst 1,134,46! 1,146,30! 1,076,30° 951,19¢ 892,35! 909,38( 900,65!
Commission expenst 136,82 140,44. 132,86! 134,13! 130,16( 116,13: 122,44:
Cost of sale: 115,11 122,69: 126,50¢ 115,39( 112,30( 87,02: 87,48
Benefits and losse 281,86¢ 423,70¢ 331,07¢ 244 57¢ 208,28: 169,80: 200,14:

Amortization of deferred policy
acquisition cost 37,81¢ 40,67« 36,23: 34,981 31,72: 28,88¢ 27,89t
Lease expens 179,64 174,66: 175,46( 130,95: 118,74. 112,05¢ 122,62¢
Depreciation, net(1 137,44¢ 102,95 103,80° 96,09( 77,42¢ 113,35¢ 102,40:
Total costs and expens 2,023,17 2,151,44! 1,982,25I 1,707,32 1,570,98 1,536,63 1,563,64
Earnings from operatior 109,21( 42,13¢ 47,22¢ 152,02¢ 146,19¢ 173,52( 119,74«
Interest expens 121,58( 109,46! 111,87¢ 97,18’ 85,61 92,83¢ 86,30¢
Fees on early termination of BBA 26,55 — — — — — 26,55
Pretax earnings (los (38,92) (67,330 (64,659 54,84: 60,58" 80,68: 6,887
Income tax benefit (expens 13,93¢ 19,89: 22,544 (19,367 (22,745 (30,587 (6,787%)
Net earnings (loss $ (24980 $ (47,440 $ (42,110 $ 3547¢ $ 37,84: $ 50,09 $ 124
| | | | | | |
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Nine Months Ended
For the Years Ended March 31, December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2003 2002

(In thousands except share and per share data)

Less: preferred stock dividen 12,96: 12,96: 12,96: 13,64: 17,41« 9,72¢ 9,72:

Earnings (loss) available to
common shareholde (37,949 (60,407 (55,079 21,83¢ 20,42¢ 40,37: (9,599
| | | | | | |

Net earnings (loss) per comm
share (basic and diluted)( $ (1.8%) $ (2.87) $ (2.5¢) $ 9¢ 3 92 8 201 % (0.4¢)
Weighted average common shares

outstanding basic and (dilute 20,743,07 21,022,71  21,486,37° 21,934,93 21,937,68 20,082,63 20,005,50
Cash dividends declared and

accruec

Preferred stoc $ 12,96 $ 1296 $ 1296 $ 1364 $ 17,41 $ 9,72: % 9,72
Common stocl — —

As of December 31

2003

Balance Sheet Dat:
Property, plant and equipment, | $1,946,31 $1,936,07 $1,882,01 $1,704,48. $1,532,23 $1,916,681
Total asset 3,805,66! 3,732,31 3,599,65! 3,280,88 3,127,73! 3,806,45¢
Liabilities subject to compromise and

AMERCO's notes and loans payal 954,85t 1,045,80: 1,156,84 1,137,841 1,114,74 960,752
SAC Holdings’ notes and loans

payable 589,01 561,88 376,14t 230,77t 115,60¢ 586,558
Stockholder equity 327,44 381,52 446,35: 504,74! 543,73 401,83€

(1) Reflects the change in salvage value and agtignuseful lives during the fiscal year ended M&t, 2002. The net effect of these
changes was to reduce net loss for the fiscal 3@@2 by $3.1 million or $0.15 per sha

(2) Earnings and net earnings per common share emnputed after giving effect to the dividendstom Company’s Series B floating rate
stock for all years presente
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

The following discussion should be read injaaction with the Company’s consolidated finansi@tements and the related notes which
are included in this prospectus. The accompanyimgalidated financial statements have been premaredgoing concern basis, which
contemplates the continuity of operations, realirabf assets and the satisfaction of liabilitiesHie normal course of business. As a result of
AMERCO'’s Chapter 11 filing, the Company’s indepenmickeuditors qualified their opinions on the Compariarch 31, 2003 financial
statements by including an explanatory paragrapthich they expressed substantial doubt about tmagainys ability to continue as a goi
concern. The consolidated financial statementsaddnclude any adjustments that might be requifddMERCO is unable to continue as a
going concern. As discussed elsewhere, AMERCO emdeirgm Chapter 11 bankruptcy on March 15, 2004 Witl payment to our creditors
and with no dilution to our stockholders.

AMERCOS fiscal year end is March 31 and is named foctiendar year in which the fiscal year ends (f@ameple, we refer to our fisc
year ended March 31, 2003“fiscal year 2003"). Information on industry segnteis incorporated by reference to Notes 1, 212htb the
consolidated financial statements for the year drdarch 31, 2003 and Note 6 to the unaudited cdstesteld financial statements for the
quarter ended December 31, 2003, which are comtalsewhere in this prospectus. The notes distiesgeneral principles of consolidation,
summarized consolidated information and industgneent and geographic data. In consolidation, &rgegment premiums are eliminated
and the uninsured portion of the related bendbitsses and expenses are retained by the insurangeaoies. RepWest and Oxford have been
consolidated on the basis of calendar years enéedrbber 31. Accordingly, all references to the y2&02, 2001 and 2000 correspond to
AMERCO'’s fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Results of Operations — Comparison of Fiscal Year&nded March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

U-Haul Moving and Storage Operations

Rental revenue was $1,433.4 million, $1,428illion and $1,364.5 million in fiscal years 20@%02 and 2001, respectively. Rental
revenues increased from 2003 compared to fisca, 2@ to price and productivity gains. The inceefaiem fiscal year 2001 to fiscal year
2002 is due to an increase in one-way transactidgtfisan improved average dollar per transactiooa-way rentals as well as growth in
transactions in trailer rentals and support reiteahs. Storage revenue decreased all of the ye@rsodthe sale of properties to SAC Holdings.

Net sales revenues were $174.1 million, $.88llion and $194.3 million in fiscal years 20@%02 and 2001, respectively. Revenue
declines in the sale of hitches, moving suppom#€i.e. boxes, etc.) and propane for 2003 from2208s largely due to the sale of centers to
SAC.

Interest income, before consolidating entness $29.4 million, $22.7 million and $24.3 mitidn fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The increase during fiscal year 2€@3 be attributed to an increase in the averagsstment balance of SAC notes. The
decrease in fiscal year 2002 is mainly relateddeaease in average investment balance in SAG.note

Operating expenses, before intercompany edtians, were $992.2 million, $1,041.4 million &fl021.6 million in fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in dapgraxpenses for fiscal year 2003 was due to tberporation of cost reduction programs
and the sale of centers to SAC. The increase ¢alfigear 2002 is due to increased personnel codthigher repair expense. Also, the add
of storage rooms will initially cause an increas@perating expenses without corresponding incesimsearnings until the properties reach a
stabilized level of occupancy.

Commission expense was $164.5 million, $153lBon and $143.6 million for fiscal years 20@)02 and 2001 respectively. The
increase in commissions paid was due to the ovieakase in rental revenues generated by indepedéalers (including SAC).
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Cost of sales was $93.7 million, $110.4 milland $116.6 million in fiscal years 2003, 2008 2001, respectively. The decrease in fiscal
year 2003 was due to lower sales volume, bettexsmiand the sales of certain locations to SAGrduthe last quarter of fiscal year 20!
The decrease in fiscal year 2002 is due to lowlessalume and lower costs of propane and otheeriadd.

Benefits and losses were $37.6 million, $47illion and $40.5 million for fiscal years 2003)@ and 2001 respectively. This expense
represents an adjustment in the reserve for insarealaims on U-Haul’s financial statements. Thispartially due to U-Haul's “Self-
Insurance Retention Level” increasing to 95% fa@2@nd 2002 and 100% in 2003. The Self-Insuranterfden is currently $5.0 million per
event. This is a non-cash expense until claimpaie:

Lease expense before intercompany elimination Ww&8.$ million, $171.7 million and $167.3 million fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2C
respectively. The decrease in lease expense tal figar 2003 was due to a decline in rental truclder lease. The increase in fiscal year
2002 is due to an increase in the value of progetéased that was partially offset by a decraasental equipment lease expense.

Depreciation expense, net was $112.8 millg@2.4 million and $87.5 million in fiscal years®) 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase in depreciation expense, net, for fiseat Y003 was caused by an increase in the numlibercks owned. The increase in fiscal
years 2002 reflects an overall increase in deptiegi@xpense on the rental truck fleet offset gtéil year 2002 by gains on the sale of sur
assets. A change in estimated salvage value anebise in our estimate of the useful lives of cartdiour trucks further reduced depreciation
expense for fiscal year 2002. An internal analgsisales of trucks was completed for the fiscakyemding March 31, 1996 through
March 31, 2001. The study compared the truck mais, age and average residual value of unitsfeolgach fiscal year indicated. The
analysis revealed that average residual valuesofaputed) when compared to sales prices were fiettige of the values that the Company
was receiving upon disposition. Based on the aigltfse estimated residual values were decreasagpimximately 25% of historic cost. In
addition, this analysis revealed that our estimafesseful lives were not reflective of the economives of our trucks, which ultimately were
being utilized by the Company for longer periodsimfe. Thus the useful lives of certain of our ksigvere increased by approximately
3 years. The net effect of these changes was tease net losses for the fiscal year 2002 by $8libmor $0.15 per share.

Earnings from operations, before intercompaliminations, were $71.0 million, $30.4 millioncd 6.0 million in fiscal years 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. The increase in earnings fsperations in fiscal year 2003 was due to aaaluin all expense categories except
depreciation. Tighter cost controls and the reduciin expenses due to the sale to SAC were thedampntributors. The increase in fiscal
year 2002 is due to the increase in rental reveaffsst by increases in operating expen

Interest expense before intercompany elimonatwas $10.0 million, $11.7 million and $17.1lfoi in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal years 200280@ can be attributed to lower average debt baland interest rate reductions.

Pretax earnings (loss) before intercompaimgieations were $61.0 million, $18.7 million andl$(1) million for the fiscal years 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatioi

Rental revenue was $168.0 million, $112.7iamland $92.5 million in fiscal years 2003, 200812001, respectively. Increased facility
capacity through the acquisition of new locationd acreased storage rates accounted for the gerd&e occupancy of existing storage
locations has remained stable.

Net sales revenues were $48.8 million, $24ildon and $17.9 million in fiscal years 2003, Z0@nd 2001, respectively. Revenue growth
was due to the addition of new locations.

Operating expenses, before intercompany eliminafiaere $105.3 million, $68.2 million and $49.2lroi in fiscal years 2003, 2002 a
2001, respectively. Personnel expenses, liabilisyiiance, property taxes
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and utility expenses all increased proportionaitelselation to the increased revenues from the ia@ttpn of new locations.

Cost of sales was $21.4 million, $12.2 milland $9.9 million in fiscal years 2003, 2002 af@2, respectively. Higher sales volume
related to moving support items contributed toitiweeases in both fiscal years 2003 and 2002 alitigthe addition of new locations.

Depreciation expense, net was $21.4 millgih.1 million and $12.4 million in fiscal years Z)@002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase is attributed to the acquisition of negat®mns.

Earnings from operations were $68.8 millip41.7 million and $38.9 million in fiscal years Z)@002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase is due to the addition of locations.

Interest expense before intercompany elimonavas $81.2 million, $61.1 million and $53.5 naift in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The average debt level outstandimgiicoed to increase due to the acquisition of gf@naroperties in fiscal year 2002 compared
to fiscal year 2001.

Pretax losses before intercompany eliminativare $12.4 million, $19.4 million, and $14.6 moifi for the fiscal years 2003, 2002, and
2001, respectively.

Real Estate Operation

Rental revenue, before intercompany eliminatiores,ev$59.2 million, $68.2 million and $72.0 millianfiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2C
respectively. Intercompany rental revenue was $66lin. $64.3 million and $71.1 million in fiscglears 2003, 2002 and 2001, respecti
The decrease in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 iscbtatthe sale of properties to SAC Holdings.

Net investment and interest income was $dllion, $8.3 million and $11.0 million in fiscalears 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The increase in fiscal 2003 is related to increasegstments in mortgage notes. The decline in 2082 due to a reduction in mortgage nc

Operating (income) expenses, before intereamliminations, were $(5.5) million, $(4.4) noifi and $0.5 million in fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Lease expense before intercompany eliminationgefrestate operations was $14.2 million, $1112aniand $11.6 million for the fisc:
years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The isergafiscal year 2003 was due to more propertieleulease and the default lease rate
three multi-property leases. The lease expendedalfyear 2002 was virtually unchanged over thedi year 2001.

Depreciation expense, net, was $5.2 mill&{@,0) million and $5.3 million in fiscal years 20@®002 and 2001, respectively. The increase
in depreciation expense in 2003 was due to no geans the disposition of surplus real estate. Teerdase in fiscal years 2002 reflects an
increase in gains from the disposition of propeptant and equipment.

Earnings from operations, before intercompany elations, were $56.0 million, $71.9 million and $6Hillion in fiscal years 2003, 20!
and 2001, respectively. The decline in earningsifoperations in fiscal year 2003 was due to a réolu@n rental revenues and an increase in
lease expense. The increase in fiscal year 20@iisly related to lower operating costs and expgresed gains recorded on sales of surplus
properties.

Interest expense was $23.7 million, $34.3ioniland $44.3 million for fiscal years 2003, 2002 2001, respectively. Declining
intercompany loan balances and declining ratesdede overall decline in interest expense fordigears 2003 and 2002.

Pretax earnings before intercompany elimimatiwere $32.4 million, $37.6 million and $21.5liil for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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Property and Casualt

Premium revenues, before intercompany elitiona, were $152.6 million, $262.0 million and $2Rnillion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelyefaéagency premiums were $66.0 million, $107.4iomland $64.3 million for the yea
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respsctivMat decrease in 2002 from 2001 is due to theoffiof RepWest's Non-Standard
Auto business which was cancelled in 2001, as agelhcreased quota share reinsurance on the tgupkigram. The increase in 2001 from
2000 was due to trucking, commercial lines businasd the non-standard auto program, which wasatiaddan 2001. Assumed treaty
reinsurance premiums were $34.9 million, $73.0iarilland $83.2 million for the years ended Decen®ier2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in 2002 from 2001 istdilkee non-renewal and cancellation of the assumi@durance treaty business. Rental
industry revenues were $32.6 million, $47.5 millenmd $51.3 million for the years ended DecembefB8@2, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The decrease in 2002 from 2001 was due to a charmicy structure on U-Haul business effectiveribp, 2002. Under the new policy U-
Haul is now responsible for losses from $2.0 millper occurrence. The increase from 2000 was #hétref an increase in premiums of a
retrospectively rated policy on the U-Haul indudtapility policy. Net investment income was $22nlion, $20.7 million and $25.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@, 286pectively. The increase in 2002 from 200duis to increased earnings on real
estate offset by a decrease in income on fixed mtiagidue to lower average invested assets. Theedse in 2001 from 2000 is due to lower
invested asset balances, lower interest ratesebhssvthe write down of $4.1 million of fixed maity investments during 2001.

Operating expenses, before intercompany edtians, were $37.0 million, $77.2 million and $illion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively d€eesase in 2002 from 2001 is due to decreasechssion expense on decreased
premium writings. The increase in 2001 from 2008us to a change in estimate on an aggregateadsyreaty in which RepWest had
originally recorded the treaty as if it would bercouted. Estimates in 2001 have changed and thty @ not commuted. The original
amount was a reduction to commissions of $17.7anilbf which RepWest had to recognize as additiopaimission expense in 2001.
Commission expenses were $13.9 million, $51.2 amlind $33.1 million for the years ended DecemB222001 and 2000, respectively.
Lease expenses were $1.1 million, $1.7 million $ad million for the years ended December 2002124t 2000, respectively. All other
underwriting expenses were $22.0 million, $24.3iariland $21.3 million for the years ended Decen#i¥}2, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Benefits and losses incurred were $128.7onill$255.8 million and $211.3 million for the ye@nded December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The decrease in 2002 from 20€@die to decreased earned premiums in all segroéRispWest's business. The increase
in 2001 to 2000 was due to increased earned prennitimee general agency programs and reservegstreming in the assumed reinsurance
treaty segment.

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs was 81illion, $22.1 million and $16.6 million for theears ended December 31, 2002, 2
and 2000, respectively. The decrease in 2002 f@di 2s due to RepWest's decreased premium writifilge.increase in 2001 from 2000 is
due to the amortization of higher commissions aefkm the 2000 year.

Pretax losses from operations were $8.0anill$72.4 million and $32.9 million for the yearsled December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in losses in 2002 fro@1 2s due to RepWest exiting multiple unprofitalies of business as well as reduced
expenses. The increase in losses in 2001 from @@8Gdue to the increase in earned premium fromdfiibgiole lines, increased commissions
due to the commutation write-off, reserve strengiihg, and development in older years on the assureaty reinsurance business.

Life Insurance

Premium revenues, before intercompany elitiona, were $161.4 million, $159.4 million and $18 tillion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelyoi@ihcreased
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Medicare supplement premiums through direct wrgiagd the acquisition of Christian Fidelity Lifestmance Company (“CFLIC"); these
actions increased premiums by $6.3 million from2@0d $54.5 million from 2000. Premiums from Oxfsriife insurance lines increased
$2.5 million from 2001 and $3.7 million from 2000redit life and disability premiums decreased $2ifion from 2001 and $6.6 million
from 2000 due to account cancellations in spesifites and decreased penetration. Annuitizationedsed by $0.7 million from 2001 and
$2.6 million from 2000. Other health insurance prems decreased $3.2 million from 2001 and decre&6e2imillion from 2000 due to
termination of major medical programs. Net invesitiecome before intercompany eliminations was $18illion, $23.2 million, and
$19.0 million for the years ended December 31, 20021, and 2000. The change in 2002 from 2001éstd lower interest rates, larger
short-term balances and write-downs for other tieamporary declines in the investment portfolio. Tierease between 2001 and 2000 is
primarily due to write-downs for other than tempggreeclines in the investment portfolio in 2000.

Operating expenses were $40.5 million, $37ilBon and $29.4 million for the years ended Debem31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Commissions have increased $1.0anifiom 2001 and $4.9 million from 2000, primarilye to the increases in Medicare
supplement premiums. General and administrativersgs net of fees collected increased $2.1 mifimm 2001 and $6.3 million from 20C
The acquisition of CFLIC resulted in $3.3 milliohtbe increase from 2000.

Benefits incurred were $115.6 million, $12MBlion and $79.2 million for the years ended Dater 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Medicare
supplement benefits decreased $1.8 million froml3f@@marily due to decreased exposure and imprexgérience, and increased
$36.8 million from 2000 due to the acquisition ¢FLIC. Credit insurance benefits decreased $1.74amifrom 2001 and $1.2 million from
2000 due to decreased exposure. Benefits from atadth lines decreased $4.1 million from 2001 &&dmillion from 2000 due to the
termination of major medical programs. Annuity difiel benefits increased $2.3 million from 2001 &1d3 million from 2000 due to
increases in life insurance exposure.

Amortization of deferred acquisition costsA@) and the value of business acquired (VOBA) w28.% million, $18.6 million and
$19.6 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000. These castsamortized for life and health policies as trempgum is earned over the term of the
policy; and for deferred annuities, amortized ilatien to interest spreads. Amortization increa®&® million and $0.9 million from 2001
and 2000 due to the annuity and credit segments.

Pretax earnings (losses) before intercomgdimjinations were $(1.4) million, $5.6 million a83.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively d€eecase from 2001 is primarily due to other ttemmporary declines in the investment
portfolio and poor experience in the credit inswahnes. The increase from 2000 is due to realiggds in the investment portfolio.

Consolidated Group Earning

As a result of the foregoing, pretax lossesen$38.9 million, $67.3 million and $64.7 milliamnfiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. After providing for income taxes,des were $25.0 million, $47.4 million and $42.1limil in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001
respectively. On a combined basis SAC HoldingsRepWest accounted for $14.1 million, $62.7 milleomd $32.4 million of the total losses
for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

Results of Operations — Comparison of Nine Months Bded December 31, 2003 and Nine Months Ended Deceent31, 2002
U-Haul Moving and Storage
Revenues consist of rental revenues, nes sale investment earnings.

Rental revenue was $1,220.0 million and $3.8 4nillion for the nine months ended December2BD3 and 2002, respectively. The
increase from the prior year reflects increasedpenent rental revenues which can be attributechtmerease in the average dollar per
transaction, improved equipment utilization, anctéases in storage revenues due to an increase mutber of rooms rented and improved
pricing.
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Net sales revenues were $142.4 million arB7$Lmillion for the nine months ended December2BD3 and 2002, respectively. The
increase in sales reflects improved sales of p@pawd moving support items.

Cost of sales were $70.1 million and $71.5 millionthe nine months ended December 31, 2003 an#, 268pectively. The decrease \
due to a shift in the mix of products sold.

Operating expenses before intercompany etitiuns were $817.8 million and $824.3 million fbetnine months ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Decreases in advegtigtlephone, utility and other operating expersesed the decrease.

Lease expense was $110.8 million and $12@l®mfor the nine months ended December 31, 2808 2002, respectively. The decrease
is due to a decrease in the number of trucks leased

Net depreciation expense was $93.7 millioth $83.9 million for the nine months ended Decen#ier2003 and 2002, respectively.
Depreciation from rental trucks acquired off leas®jncrease in depreciation on pickups and varssijrecreased losses on disposition of fi
assets is responsible for the increase in net digpian expense.

Operating profit before intercompany eliminatiorasw$153.8 million and $63.4 million for the ninemtlts ended December 31, 2003
2002, respectively.

Amerco Real Estate (AREC

Rental revenue before intercompany elimimetiovas $50.3 million and $51.4 million for the nmenths ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Inter-company revenue was $46d7$45.1 million for the nine months ended Decem®i, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net investment and interest income was $6lobmand $8.0 million for the nine months endedd@mber 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Lease expense was $10.7 million and $7.%#®mnine months ended December 31, 2003 and 28§2ectively. The increase is a result of
the increase in lease expense for storage fasilitie

Net depreciation expense was $5.1 million $d million for the nine months ended December2BD3 and 2002, respectively.

Operating profit before intercompany elimioas was $40.5 million and $41.5 million for the@aimonths ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Property and Casualty (RepWe:

RepWest's earned premiums were $78.2 mikind $126.9 million for the nine months ended Sept30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
General agency premiums were $56.4 million and%68llion for the nine months ended September 8032and 2002, respectively. The
decrease in 2003 is due to RepWest exiting itsWdthaul related lines. Assumed treaty reinsuraneenums were $2.1 million and
$29.1 million for the nine months ended Septemife2B803 and 2002, respectively. The decrease fi@d2 B 2003 is due to the cancellation
of RepWest’s assumed treaty business. Rental indeatned premiums were $19.7 million and $29.2Zionilfor the nine months ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The @66@ase was from a change in policy structurd-etaul business effective April 1,
2003.

Net investment income was $19.2 million a2d.$ million for the nine months ended Septembe2803 and 2002, respectively. The
decrease is attributable to lower average invessadts.

Benefits and losses incurred were $89.6 amlind $111.7 million for the nine months endedi&aper 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The decrease is primarily due to decreased eamesdiygms in all segments of the RepWest's busineligh was offset partially by the
reserve strengthening on discontinued lines.

38




Table of Contents

The net amortization of deferred acquisittosts (DAC) were $11.8 million and $13.2 millionr tbe nine months ended September 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease is dRepdVest's decreased earned premiums.

Operating expenses were $17.8 million andZ&gllion for the nine months ended September2B03 and 2002, respectively. The
decrease is due to reduced general administratpenses, as a result of the discontinuance of alated U-Haul lines.

Operating loss before tax was $21.8 milliod &2.8 million for the nine months ended Septen39er2003 and 2002, respectively. The
increase in the loss is due to further loss dewabtag and reserve strengthening on cancelled lihbasiness that were written in prior years.

In April 2003, RepWest announced that in aanfion with the Compang’overall restructuring efforts, it is redirectiitg operating focu:
In particular, RepWest is exiting non-U-Haul rethtmes of business. Management estimates thabajppately 75% and 81% of earned
premium and balance sheet reserves, respectiedyerto the operations that are being discontintied process is being conducted in an
orderly fashion to help minimize related costs.

Republic Western Business Breakdown

Net Earned Premium Net Earned Premium Outstanding Qtstanding
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended Reserves at Rexrves at
Insurance Line September 30, 2003 September 30, 200 September 30, 2003 September 30, 2002
AMERCO Related Business:
U-Haul busines: $ 26¢€ $ 9,46¢ $ 70,22¢ $ 85,19]
Safestor, Safetow, Safema 11,99¢ 11,53 2,59¢ 2,69¢
Storage 4,47( 4,95 5,712 6,871
NAFCIC 3,01¢ 3,29: 3,24¢ 3,62¢
Total 19,74¢ 29,24¢ 81,78: 98,39
Non-AMERCO Related Business:
Agency 56,36¢ 68,53 277,92: 227,77t
Assumed busines 2,132 29,09: 63,01¢ 73,27¢
Total 58,49¢ 97,63( 340,94 301,05«
Total RepWest $78,24° $126,87¢ $422,72: $399,44

Life Insurance (Oxford)

Net premiums were $112.9 million and $121illion for the nine months ended September 30, 28882002, respectively. Life
insurance premium and annuitizations decreasedr®i8n from the same period in 2002. Credit irmuce premiums decreased $3.6 million
for the nine months. Other business segments ledipm decreases totaling $1.9 million.

Net investment income before intercompanyiglations was $15.4 million and $13.0 million foetnine months ended September 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. This is primarily tuéewer other than temporary decline write-downthie bond portfolio offset by reduced
investment yields and a lower invested asset base.

Benefits incurred were $80.2 million and $8#hillion for the nine months ended September B032and 2002, respectively. Medicare
supplement incurred benefits decreased $4.7 mitlimhcredit life and disability decreased $1.8imillfrom reduced populations and
improved loss experience. Other segments had belesfieases totaling $1.7 million.

Amortization of deferred acquisition cost (DAand the value of business acquired (VOBA) was@inillion and $14.7 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 ataésgly. The
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increase is primarily due to surrender activitynirthe deferred annuity segment that has occurre¢ AMERCQO'’s bankruptcy filing and
Oxford’s subsequent rating decline.

Operating expenses were $23.2 million andé8a8llion for the nine months ended September2B03, and 2002, respectively.
Commission expenses decreased $2.0 million as ales declined. Fees collected from annuity polittes surrendered increased
$3.2 million offsetting the increases in DAC ampation. General and administrative expenses nietesf collected decreased $1.2 million.

Operating profit before tax and intercompalisninations was $7.8 million and $1.4 million fine nine months ended September 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The improvement istddewer write-downs of bonds and from better leggerience in the Medicare
supplement segment.

SAC Moving and Storag

Total revenues consist of storage rentalmegs, vehicle rental commissions and net salesl Tertal revenue was $127.4 million and
$123.8 million for the nine months ended Decemlegr2B03 and 2002, respectively.

Net sales revenues were $39.6 million and1$88llion for the nine months ended December D3and 2002, respectively. Propane
and hitch sales accounted for the increase.

Operating expenses before intercompany editiins were $81.5 million and $74.9 million for thiee months ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Increased expenses wereshé of increased payroll, advertising, propéaty expenses, and liability insurance.

Cost of sales increased to $16.9 million fi®b6.0 million for the nine months ended Decemter2®03 and 2002, respectively. This
increase was due to increased sales volume.

Net depreciation expense was $16.0 millioth $14.5 million for the nine months ended Decen8ier2003 and 2002, respectively. The
increase is due to an increased loss on disposeisets.

Operating profits were $52.6 million and $illion for the nine months ended December 3D328nd 2002, respectively.

Consolidated Grouj

Interest expense was $92.8 million and $&6ilBon for the nine months ended December 31, 2808 2002, respectively. AMERCO'’s
interest expense was $60.4 and $54.1 million femtine months ended December 31, 2003 and 204#&atdgely. AMERCO's interest
expense increased despite lower overall averageodiétianding due to an increase in the averageotakebt resulting from default interest.
Interest expense of SAC Holdings on third partytdeds $32.5 million and $32.2 million for the nimonths ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Pretax earnings were $80.7 million and $6illan for the nine months ended December 31, 2808 2002, respectively. After providing
for income taxes, net earnings were $50.1 millind $0.1 million for the nine months ended Decen@igr2003 and 2002, respectively.

Disclosures About Contractual Obligations and Commeeial Commitments

The following table of contractual commitm&and contingencies was prepared based on ouandisy obligations and commitments at
December 31, 2003, as adjusted to give effectaastbuance of our new debt obligations (includhmgew SAC Holdings Notes) issued on
March 15, 2004 upon our emergence from bankruptcythe satisfaction of the debt obligations disgkdrin connection therewith. In light
of our Chapter 11 reorganization, we believe thierimation is more useful to investors than infotioraabout our capital structure and
obligations as they existed prior to our emergdrm® Chapter 11. We have elected to show our contehobligations and commercial
commitments for the periods beginning with thetstéour fiscal year on April 1, 2004 rather thandd January 1, 2004 so that the disclosure
will conform to prior and
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future disclosures and because we believe therdifée of three months is not material. None ofligted debt or contractual obligations have
scheduled maturities due during the quarter endativi31, 2004.

Payments Due by Period
(as of December 31, 2003, as adjusted)

Prior to 04/01/05 04/01/07 April 1, 2009
Financial Obligations Total 03/31/05 03/31/07 03/819 and Thereafter

(In thousands)

Exit Financing Facility (Revolver Portiol $ 194,80( — — — 194,80(
Exit Financing Facility (Term Loan Portio 350,00t 3,50( 7,00C 339,50( —
9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Nc 200,00( — — 200,00( —
New AMERCO Note: 148,64¢ — — — 148,64¢
AMERCQ's operating lease 604,90: 377,67: 169,20’ 53,96¢ 4,06(
Private Mini Support Agreeme 70,00( — — — 70,00(
New SAC Holdings Notes 200,00t — — — 200,00(
SAC Holding? notes and loans* 790,07¢ 155,08¢ 14,80: 18,10( 602,08
Elimination of SAC Holding' obligations to AMERCC (203,52) — — (203,52)
Total contractual obligatior $2,354,90! 536,26: 191,01( 611,56 1,016,07:
| | | | |

* New SAC Holdings Notes issued to AMERCO creditorsdnnection with AMERC's approved Chapter 11 plan of reorganizal

** These notes and loans represent obligatiorS8AE Holdings issued to AMERCO and other third paetyders prior to or outside of
AMERCQ's Chapter 11 plan of reorganizatir

AMERCO uses certain equipment and occupigsaioefacilities under operating lease commitmewith terms expiring through 2079. In
the event of a shortfall in proceeds from the sélthe underlying assets, AMERCO has guaranteetbappately $162.0 million of residual
values at December 31, 2003, for these assete anith of the respective lease terms. See detkiteddo operating lease commitments in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial stateme

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our successful emergence Chapter 11 hasdatwis with a strengthened balance sheet and wew®el capital structure that will allow
us to achieve our operational plans and goals emdde us with sufficient liquidity. The majorityf the obligations that we incurred in
connection with our emergence from Chapter 11 neaditithe end of fiscal 2009 while the New AMERCQOé¢odo not mature until fiscal
2011. As a result, we believe that our near tequidiity (one to three years) is strong, which wllbw us the ability to focus on our
operations and business to improve our liquiditthie long term. As of December 31, 2003, AMERCO badhand cash and cash equivalents
of approximately $136.9 million, of which approxitaly $4.8 million was held by our insurance sulggigis. We believe that if we are
successful in improving our operations and furgtezngthening our liquidity, we will improve ourcass to the capital markets in the long
term. There is no assurance, however, that futash 8ows will be sufficient to meet our outstarglobligations or our future capital needs.
The terms of our new indebtedness place stringeam¢ial and operating covenants on AMERCO andutssidiaries, which could constrain
our ability to take certain actions with respecttte operation of our business. In addition, ifweare to fail to comply with these financial
covenants or otherwise breach other covenantsicedtén the agreements governing our indebted@essbstantial portion of our
indebtedness could be declared in default and @@tel. The terms of our new indebtedness alsoegvestrict our ability to incur
additional indebtedness and other obligations, hiits our ability to obtain other financial ragces.

Following is a discussion of the liquiditychoapital resources and needs of our operating esegmiT his discussion is based on our new
capital structure upon our emergence from bankyptcMarch 15, 2004. We
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also refer you to the discussion of our existimgeintedness located under the captions “Descripfi@ther Indebtedness and Other
Obligations” and “Description of the Exchange Ndtes

U-Haul Moving and Storage Capital Expenditure

To meet the needs of its customers, U-Hawdtmaintain a large inventory of fixed asset reitéahs. Historically capital expenditures
have primarily reflected new rental truck acquisi8 and storage expansion. The capital requiréghththese expenditures has historically
been obtained through internally generated funol® foperations, indebtedness and lease financinggGorward, we anticipate that a
substantial portion of our internally generateddsimill be used to satisfy existing indebtednegs@ur ability to incur additional
indebtedness over the next five or so years wideerally limited. As a result, we expect to fioamur rental truck acquisitions through le
financing

During each of the fiscal years ending Ma&3&h2005, 2006 and 2007, U-Haul estimates thatsgrapital expenditures will average
approximately $150 million to maintain its fleetatrrent levels. The Exit Financing Facility an@%. Second Lien Senior Secured Notes due
2009 limit the amount of capital expenditures we geke in 2005, 2006, and 2007 to $185 million,3&4llion and $195 million,
respectively. Management estimates that U-Haulfwiltl its fleet requirements from leasing and frtva proceeds from the sale of trucks.
We intend to focus our growth on expanding our peelent dealer network, which does not requirebatantial amount of capital resources.
We believe that AMERCOQ'’s emergence from Chaptewilllimprove our access to leasing markets, whighamticipate will result in more
favorable lease terms and additional financing cesir

Amerco Real Estat:

Real Estate has traditionally financed thguésition of self-storage properties though lease @ebt financing. During the next five or so
years, Real Este's ability to acquire and construct additional faieis using debt financing may be severely limited

Property and Casualty (RepWe:

As of December 31, 2003, RepWest had no rmtésans due in less than one year and its acsqaytable and accrued expenses were
approximately $1.2 million. RepWest's financial etss(cash, receivables, inventories, short-terrastments and fixed maturities) at
December 31, 2003 were approximately $546.4 milltate insurance regulations restrict the amotidividends that can be paid to
stockholders of insurance companies. As a resaf\fRest’s funds are generally not available to Batige claims of AMERCO or its
subsidiaries.

In connection with AMERCOQO'’s emergence froma@ter 11, RepWest's liquidity and financial positiwere strengthened as a result of a
cash payment from AMERCO totaling $2.7 million mtisfaction of an intercompany obligation. We bedi¢hat RepWest has sufficient
liquidity and financial resources to meet its claiand other obligations for the foreseeable futwithout additional funding from AMERCO.
As discussed elsewhere in this prospectus, alth®egiWest was not a party to our bankruptcy filihggmains under supervision by the
Arizona Department of Insurance and as a restudt,séverely restricted in the actions that it rtege without obtaining prior approval from
the Arizona Department of Insurance.

Life Insurance (Oxford)

As of December 31, 2003, Oxford had no natesloans payable due in less than one year aaddtsunts payable and accrued expenses
total approximately $2.6 million. Oxford’s finantiassets (cash, receivables, inventories, shart-tevestments, other investments, and fixed
maturities at December 31, 2003 were approxim&i@h2.4 million. State insurance regulations resthie amount of dividends that can be
paid to stockholders of insurance companies. Assalt, Oxford’s funds are generally not availablsatisfy the claims of AMERCO or its
subsidiaries.
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In addition to cash flows from operating dim&ncing activities, a substantial amount of lgjfiinds is available though Oxford’s short-
term portfolio. In connection with AMERCO’s emergenfrom Chapter 11, Oxford’s liquidity and finarlgisition were significantly
strengthened as a result of AMERCO’s repaymenhadhtercompany loan (including principal and ins#jedue to Oxford in the amount of
$18.3 million, which provided Oxford with additiongash liquidity. In addition, A.M. Best Co. recBnincreased its financial strength ratings
of Oxford and its insurance subsidiaries to B-ffiom C+ (weak), in large part as a result of AMER's repayment of the $18.3 million
intercompany loan and AMERCO'’s emergence from Girapt bankruptcy. We believe that Oxford has sigfitliquidity and financial
resources to meet its claims and other obligationthe foreseeable future, without additional fungdfrom AMERCO.

Oxford was not a party to our Chapter 11 bapicy filing and it is in compliance with NAIC nimum risk-based capitalization
requirements.

SAC Moving and Storag

SAC Holdings operations are funded by varimastgage loans and unsecured notes, with intemesd ranging from 7.5% to 9.0%. SAC
Holdings does not utilize revolving lines of cretitfinance operations or acquisitions. Certai®AL Holdings agreements contain restric
covenants and restrictions on incurring additicnddsidiary indebtedness. At December 31, 2003, BAldings was in compliance with all
of these covenants.

At December 31, 2003, SAC Holdings’ notes kxahs payable due in less than one year totabappately $155.1 million, excluding
amounts owed to AMERCO, and its accounts payaldeaaorued expenses total approximately $46.2 mil®AC Holdings’ financial assets
(cash, receivables, inventories and short termsitnvents) at December 31, 2003 were approximatelly $dlion. Because AMERCO does
not have any equity ownership in SAC Holdings (othan investments made by RepWest and OxfordSA@ Holdings-controlled limited
partnership which holds Canadian self-storage ptigsg, these assets are not available to meethigations of AMERCO.

At March 15, 2004, total outstanding noted kErans payable for SAC Holdings and consolidatdsbiliaries before inter-company
eliminations were approximately $988.4 million. bis amount, approximately $203.8 million was owedMERCO. SAC Holdings’
creditors have no recourse to AMERCO. AMERCO isliadtle for the debts of SAC Holdings.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

U-Haul Moving and Storage Operation

Cash provided by operating activities was.$88illion, $96.2 million and $106.9 million in fial years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in 2003 was due tolanden intercompany payables that was partialfgetf by an increase in depreciation of
rental equipment. The decrease in fiscal year 202 2001 is due to an increase in earnings argkbffy an increase in other investments.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatiol

Cash provided (used) by operating activitias $13.5 million, ($1.3) million and $15.1 milliam fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

At March 31, 2003, total outstanding notes and games payable before intercompany eliminations36#® million were $983.2 millio
compared to $961.5 million at March 31, 2002.

Real Estate Operation

Cash provided (used) by operating activities $(87.1) million, $(144.1) million and $68.7 haih in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal years 2002280@ was due to a decrease in the intercompargbpawith AMERCO.
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Property and Casualt

Cash provided (used) by operating activities wa@% () million, $(61.5) million and $15.2 millionfahe years ended December 31, 2
2001 and 2000, respectively. The change in 2008 601 is due to increased receivables. The chang@01 from 2000 change is due to
decreased unearned premiums, increased receivahtbéan increase in federal income tax recoverable.

RepWest's cash and cash equivalents and-srantinvestment portfolio were $35.1 million, $38nillion and $17.0 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelys Baliance reflects funds in transition from mayupitoceeds to long-term investments.
This level of liquid assets, combined with anticgzhoperating cash flow, is adequate to meet peerioekds. Capital and operating budgets
allow RepWest to schedule cash needs in accordsittténvestment and underwriting proceeds.

Life Insurance

Oxford’s primary sources of cash are premiumeeipts from interest-sensitive products anéstment income. The primary uses of cash
are operating costs and benefit payments to padicigns. Matching the investment portfolio to theltflow demands of the types of
insurance being written is an important consideratBenefit and claim statistics are continuallynitared to provide projections of future
cash requirements.

Cash provided (used) by operating activitbas $(18.0) million, $(5.2) million and $3.5 millidor the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in ¢asis from operating activities in 2001 and 200&tes$ to federal income taxes paid,
general and administrative expenses and paid lgesience. Cash flows provided by financing adtgitwere $67.3 million, $58.1 million
and $13.7 million for the years ended Decembef802, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Cash flows foeferred annuity sales increase
investment contract deposits, which are a compouoigiimiancing activities. The increase in investineontract deposits over 2001 and 20(
due to growth in new deposits offset by withdravaaig terminations of existing deposits.

In addition to cash flows from operating dim&ncing activities, a substantial amount of Idjéiinds is available through Oxford’s short-
term portfolio. At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2G0®rt-term investments amounted to $80.4 millis8.5 million and $44.9 million,
respectively. Management believes that the ovemltces of liquidity will continue to meet foresbksacash needs.

During fiscal 2002, Oxford realized a writeveh of investments due to other than temporaryideglapproximating $2.3 million. During
fiscal 2003, Oxford realized a write-down of invasints due to other than temporary declines of aqpiately $7.9 million.

Consolidated Grouj

Cash provided (used) by operating activitiese $74.5 million, ($19.6) million and $172.6 nat for fiscal year 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Stockholders’ Equity
U-Haul's Moving and Storage Operations

U-Haul's stockholders’ equity was $499.4 ioifl, $458.6 million and $449.6 million as of Mar8h, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Earnings or losses from operating activities wasddwuse for the change in each of the years.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatiot
SAC Holdings’ stockholders’ deficit was $45nlllion, $37.7 million and $23.5 million as of Mar 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively
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AMERCO'S Real Estate Operatior

Real Estate stockholders’ equity was $21510om, $195.5 million and $88.4 million as of Mdr@1, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The increase in fiscal year 2003 and 2002 is dulecre@ased earnings and the sale of storage preperring fiscal year 2002.

Property and Casualt

RepWest's stockholderequity was $199.1 million, $205.3 million and $IBmillion at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 200€peetively
The decrease in 2002 from 2001 is due to the dpgrhtsses in 2002. The increase in 2001 from 2088 due to a $60.2 million capital
contribution from the RepWest's parent AMERCO, effey operating losses in 2001. RepWest does motlelst or equity issues to increase
capital and therefore has no exposure to capitékehaonditions. RepWest did not pay dividendgsgarent during 2002, 2001 or 2000.

Applicable laws and regulations of the Statérizona require RepWest and Oxford to maintainimum capital and surplus determined
in accordance with statutory accounting practidé& amount of dividends that can be paid to shddeh® by insurance companies domiciled
in the State of Arizona is limited. Any dividendémcess of the limit requires prior regulatory agwad. At December 31, 2002, RepWest has
$6.5 million of statutory surplus available fortdisution. However, as discussed in Item 1, subsatjto December 31, 2002, RepWest
consented to an Order of Supervision which, amdhgrahings, prohibits any dividend payments to ARED without prior approval of the
DOl.

Life Insurance

Oxford’s stockholdes equity was $111.1 million, $117.7 million and $illion as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 20€€pectively
The decrease from 2001 to 2002 is from investnes#ds, the increase from 2000 to 2001 is a rekakraings, changes in market value of
the available for sale investment portfolio andl&.8 million contribution from AMERCO. Oxford didbhpay dividends in 2002, 2001 or
2000. At December 31, 2002, Oxford cannot distelary of its statutory surplus as dividends withegulatory approval.

Consolidated Grouj

The Consolidated group’s stockholder equias\$327.5 million, $381.5 million and $446.4 miflias of the end of fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Quarterly Results

The quarterly results shown below are derivedh unaudited financial statements for the elegearters beginning April 1, 2001 and
ending December 31, 2003. The Company believesathatcessary adjustments have been includectianiounts stated below to present
fairly, and in accordance with generally acceptecbanting principles, such results. U-Haul moving atorage operations are seasonal and
proportionally more of the Company'’s revenues asidetarnings from its U-Haul moving and storage afiens are generated in the first and
second quarters of each fiscal year (April throBgiptember). The operating results for the periodsgmted are not necessarily indicative of
results for any future period.

Quarter Ended

Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30,
2003 2003 2003

(In thousands, except for share and per
share data)

Total revenue $502,58: $627,45° 580,11¢
Earnings/ (loss) from operatio (1,030 98,99( 75,56(
Net earnings (loss (21,667 44,02¢ 27,73¢
Earnings (loss) per common Share basic and di (1.29) 1.9¢ 1.24
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Quarter Ended

Mar 31, Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30,
2003 2002 2002 2002

(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

Total revenue $448,99° 467,22: 636,87: 579,29:
Earnings/ (loss) from operatio (10,539 (6,722 62,86¢ 63,597
Net earnings (loss (25,110 (64,697) 22,12¢ 23,77¢
Earnings (loss) per common Share basic and di (1.36) (2.45) 0.91 1.0C

Quarter Ended

Mar 31, Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30,
2002 2001 2001 2001

(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

Total revenue $461,88: 480,63( 655,15( 595,91°
Earnings from (loss) from operatio (19,879 (31,657 61,51( 32,16:
Net earnings (loss (39,410 (36,06)) 20,757 (7,279)
Earnings (loss) per common Share basic and di (2.05) (1.8%) .83 0.1¢

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens’ discussion and analysis of financial conditiod egsults of operations are based upon the comgetidinancial statemen
which have been prepared in accordance with act@uptinciples generally accepted in the United&taf America. The preparation of our
financial statements requires the use of estimmidgudgments that affect the reported amountss#ta, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingent assets abdities. On an ongoing basis, estimates are revetl, including those related to areas that
require a significant level of judgment or are othise subject to an inherent degree of uncertaifitgse areas include allowances for
doubtful accounts, depreciation of revenue earagtgcles and buildings, self-insured liabilitiesygairments of assets, insurance reserves,
premiums and acquisition cost amortization, incéaxes and commitments and contingencies. Our estgt@ae based on historical
experience, observance of trends in particularsaiaéormation and/or valuations available fromsidé sources and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable Whdeircumstances and which form the basis for ngakidgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not tgagiparent from other sources. Actual amounts difigr from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions. Such differences mayadterial.

Accounting policies are considered criticélen they are significant and involve difficult, gedtive or complex judgments or estimates.
We consider the following to be critical accountjppaicies:

Principles of Consolidation— The financial statements presented in this o include the accounts of AMERCO and its wholly
owned subsidiaries and SAC Holdings and their slidases. All material intercompany accounts andsextions have been eliminated in
consolidation. AMERCO has made significant loanSAC Holdings and is entitled to participate in SAGIdings’ excess cash flow (after
senior debt service). All of the equity interestS#C Holdings is owned by Mark V. Shoen, a sig@ifitshareholder and executive officer of
AMERCO. AMERCO does not have an equity ownershiprist in SAC Holdings, except for investments maygl®epWest and Oxford in a
SAC Holdings-controlled limited partnership whicbldls Canadian self-storage properties. SAC Holdargmot legal subsidiaries of
AMERCO. AMERCO is not liable for the debts of SA®IHings and there are no default provisions in AMERindebtedness that cross-
default to SAC Holdings’ obligations.

Revenue Earning Vehicles and Buildings Depreciation is recognized in amounts expeata@sult in the recovery of estimated residual
values upon disposal (i.e., no gains or lossegjetarmining the depreciation rate, we review histd disposal experience and holding
periods. Due to longer holding periods on trucks toe resulting increased possibility of changeth@éeconomic environment and market
conditions, these estimates are subject to a grdatgee of risk.
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Long-lived Assets and Intangible AssetsWe review carrying value whenever events ongitstances indicate the carrying values may
not be recoverable through projected undiscountdd cash flows. The events could include sigaiftaunderperformance relative to
expected, historical or projected future operategplts, significant changes in the manner of utiilegassets, overall business strategy,
significant negative industry or economic trendd an unexpected non-compliance with significant @gjpeements.

Investments— For investments accounted for under SFAS 115, erdeéning if and when a decline in market valueokebmortized cos
is other than temporary, quoted market prices,adl@plotes or discounted cash flows are reviewede@han-temporary declines in value are
recognized in the current period operating regualthe extent of the decline.

Insurance Revenue and Expense RecognitioPremiums are recognized as revenue as earnethevierms of the respective policies.
Benefits and expenses are matched with recognizsdipms to result in revenue and expense recognitier the life of the contracts. This
match is accomplished by recording a provisiorfditure policy benefits and unpaid claims and clamfjustment expenses and by amortizing
deferred policy acquisition costs. Charges rel&deskrvices to be performed are deferred untileghrithe amounts received in excess of
premiums and fees are included in other policyholdeds in the consolidated balance sheets.

Unearned premiums represent the portion @hprms written which relate to the unexpired tefrpdlicies. Liabilities for health and
disability and other policy claims and benefits @lalg represent estimates of payments to be madesorance claims for reported losses and
estimates of losses incurred but not yet repoftbdse estimates are based on past claims expeaadagurrent claim trends as well as social
and economic conditions such as changes in legali#ts and inflation. Due to the nature of undedyiisks and the high degree of
uncertainty associated with the determination efliability for future policy benefits and claintsie amounts to be ultimately paid to settle
liabilities cannot be precisely determined and marny significantly from the estimated liability.

Acquisition costs related to insurance cantrdlave been deferred to accomplish matching sigiture premium revenue. The costs are
charged to current earnings to the extent it isreihed that future premiums are not adequatevercamounts deferred.

U-Haul Insurance Expense— Expense is recognized annually based on repotéétis and an estimate of future claims. A resé&ve
booked for unpaid losses. U-Haul's self-insure@mébn is paid out over time as claims are settielieving the reserve for unpaid losses.

IRS Examination

In connection with the resolution of litigation Witertain members of the Shoen family and theipe@tions, AMERCO had deducted
income tax purposes approximately $372.0 milliothef payments made to plaintiffs in a lawsuit.éeponse to these deductions, the IRS
proposed adjustments to the Company’s 1997 and tE9@turns. In April 2004, the Company enterdd msettlement with the IRS, under
the terms of which it will be entitled to a netusél of $6.5 million.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standa&8ISAS) No. 143 (SFAS 143), Accounting for Asset Ratient Obligations, requires
recognition of the fair value of liabilities assatgd with the retirement of long-lived assets whdeagal obligation to incur such costs arises as
a result of the acquisition, construction, develepirand/or the normal operation of a long-livedeasdpon recognition of the liability, a
corresponding asset is recorded at present vatlilaasreted over the life of the asset and depestiater the remaining life of the long-lived
asset. SFAS 143 defines a legal obligation as luatteat party is required to settle as a result abasting or enacted law, statute, ordinance, or
written or oral contract or by legal
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construction of a contract under the doctrine ohpissory estoppel. SFAS 143 is effective for fis@drs beginning after September 15, 2
We adopted this statement effective April 1, 2008] it did not affect our consolidated financiasipon or results of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB adopted SFAS No. 18FAS 145), Rescission of FASB Statement No. 4p@Reng Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt), No. 44 (Accounting fordngible Assets of Motor Carriers), and No. 64, {{iggishments of Debt Made to Satisfy
Sinking-Fund Requirements), Amendment of FASB Statet No. 13 (Accounting for Leases) and Technigaté€xtions. This statement
eliminates the requirement that gains and lossetebhextinguishment must be classified as extraarg items in the income statement.
Instead, such gains and losses will be classifiegkéraordinary items only if they are deemed taitnesual and infrequent, in accordance
the current GAAP criteria for extraordinary clagsition. In addition, SFAS 145 eliminates an indst@icy in lease accounting by requiring
that modification of capital leases that resultdolassification as operating leases be accounterbhsistent with sale-leaseback accounting
rules. The statement also contains other non-suifdatacorrections to authoritative accounting btierre. The changes related to debt
extinguishment are effective for fiscal years bagig after May 15, 2002. We previously reclassifdicextraordinary loss on debt
extinguishment to interest expense. The changaterkto lease accounting will be effective for s@tions occurring after May 15, 2002. We
adopted the lease accounting provisions effectiag W6, 2002 and it did not affect our consoliddtrdncial position or results of operatiol

In September 2002, the FASB issued SFAS M6, (SFAS 146) Accounting for Costs Associated Wit or Disposal Activities, which
addresses accounting for restructuring and sirndats. SFAS 146 supersedes previous accountingmyed principally Emerging Issues T
Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3. SFAS 146 requires tiediability for costs associated with an exitdisposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred. Under EITF No. 94-3, a lidiby for an exit cost was recognized at the data cbmpany’s commitment to an exit plan.
SFAS 146 also establishes that the liability shanitially be measured and recorded at fair valecordingly, SFAS 146 may affect the
timing of recognizing future restructuring costsaas| as the amount recognized. The provisionisf $tatement are effective for exit or
disposal activities that are initiated after Decenibl, 2002. We adopted the Statement effectiveaisril, 2003 and it did not affect our
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Imgtation No. 45 (FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting Bisclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Irehiess of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statesrido. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission
of FASB Interpretation No. 34, Disclosure of Indit&uarantees of Indebtedness of Others. FIN 4¥ielthe requirements for a guaransor’
accounting for and disclosure of certain guaraniesesed and outstanding. It also requires a guaramtrecognize, at the inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of thdightion undertaken in issuing the guarantee. Titisrpretation also incorporates without
reconsideration the guidance in FASB Interpretahlon 34, which was superseded. As a result of FBN\tlde Company has recorded a
$125 million liability at March 31, 2003 and Deceani31, 2003, which is management'’s estimate ofigidity associated with the guarantee
of the indebtedness of an affiliate of Private Mdtbrage Realty, L. P. which was entered into ibor&ary 2003.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS NB8.(B#AS 148), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compeinsat— Transition and
Disclosure”, which amends Statement of Financiatdmting Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123), “AccounforgStock-Based Compensation”.
SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transitiwra voluntary change to the fair value basechoeibf accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amtraldisclosure requirement of SFAS 123 to requioge prominent and more frequent
disclosures in financial statements of the effettstock-based compensation. The transition guied@me annual disclosure provisions of
SFAS 148 are effective for fiscal years endingraftecember 15, 2002. The interim disclosure prowisiare effective for financial reports
containing condensed financial statements for iimtg@eriods beginning after December 15, 2002. Wefzaopted this statement and it had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated balancetsireresults of operations.
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In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1EEAS 149) “Amendment of Statement 133 on Deriaatistruments and Hedging
Activities.” This Statement amends and clarifies #itcounting for derivative instruments, includgggtain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts and for hedging activities ufBEAS 133. In particular, SFAS 149 (1) clarifieslanwhat circumstances a contract with an
initial net investment meets the characteristia derivative as discussed in SFAS 133, (2) clarifiben a derivative contains a financing
component, (3) amends the definition of an undedyerivative to conform it to the language useBINM 45, and (4) amends certain other
existing pronouncements. SFAS 149 is generallycttfe for contracts entered into or modified aftane 30, 2003. The Company does not
believe the adoption of SFAS 149 will have a matempact on the Company'’s financial position, tesaf operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150SH50), Accounting for Certain Financial Instrurtsewith Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity. This Statement establisbesdards for classifying and measuring as ligslicertain financial instruments that
embody obligations of the issuer and have chariatiter of both liabilities and equity. SFAS No. lisGeffective at the beginning of the first
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003; idatg all financial instruments created or modifafter May 31, 2003. SFAS 150 currently
has no impact on the Company.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretaiio. 46 (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Irdet Entities, an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51. FIN 46 regsitieat variable interest entities be consolidated bompany if that company absorbs a
majority of the entity’s expected losses, recew@sajority of its expected residual returns, othbas a result of holding a variable interest. In
December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, which cédle certain amendments to the standard. The poosief FIN 46, as revised, are
effective for the first interim or annual perioddimg after March 15, 2004 when certain conditioresraet by a variable interest entity. At this
time an evaluation is being conducted to determihether the adoption of FIN 46 will require that eansolidate certain of SAC Holdings’
investments, including its investment in PrivatenMi
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

In the normal course of business, AMERCOxosed to fluctuations in interest rates. AMERCQhages such exposure through the use
of a variety of derivative financial instrumentsevhdeemed prudent. AMERCO does not enter into égeat financial transactions or use
derivative financial instruments for trading purpssThe exposure to market risk for changes imésteates relates primarily to debt
obligations. AMERCO's objective is to mitigate timepact of changes in interest rates on its varigdte debt. Historically, AMERCO has
used interest rate swap agreements to provide dbchimg the gain or loss recognition on the hedgisgrument with the recognition of the
changes in the cash flows associated with the ltedgset or liability attributable to the hedgeé ns the earnings effect of the hedged
forecasted transaction. At March 31, 2003, no @derate swap contracts existed. At March 31, 20@2Company had interest rate swap
contracts to pay variable rates of interest aBtimeonth LIBOR and receive fixed rates of interestefage rate of 8.6%) on $45 million
notional amount of indebtedness. This resultegpraeximately $238 million of the Company’s undenlgidebt being subject to variable
interest rates. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidaitegincial Statements. A fluctuation in the intérases of 100 basis points would change
AMERCO's interest expense by approximately $2.3iomil

SAC Holdings debt is primarily fixed rateuEtuations in interest rates for new operationdcchave an impact on operations. SAC
Holdings does not enter into leveraged financehsactions or use derivative financial instrumémt$rading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company’s earnings are affected by flatttuns in the value of foreign currency exchanges.aApproximately 2.0% of the
Companys revenue is generated in Canada. The result @¥@achange in the value of the U.S. dollar relatovéhe Canadian dollar would r
be material. The Company does not typically hedgefareign currency risk since the exposure isaootsidered material.

SAC Holdings earnings are affected by flutiares in the value of foreign currency exchangesaf\pproximately 6.4% of SAC Holdings
revenue is generated in Canada. SAC Holdings datetypically hedge any foreign currency risk sitice exposure is not considered
material.
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MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers of AMERCO
AMERCO'’s Directors and Executive Officers:are
Name Age* Office
Edward J. Shoe 54 Chairman of the Board, President, and Dire
William E. Carty 76 Director
John M. Dodd: 66 Director
Charles J. Baye 63 Director
John P. Broga 59 Director
James J. Groge 49 Director
M. Frank Lyons 67 Director
James P. Shoe 43 Director
Gary B. Hortor 59 Treasurer of AMERCO and Asst. Treasurer -Haul
Gary V. Klinefelter 55 Secretary & General Counsel of AMERCO ar-Haul
Rocky D. Wardrig 45 Assistant Treasurer of AMERC
Mark V. Shoer 52 President of -Haul Phoenix Operatior
John C. Taylo 45 Director and Executive V.P. of-Haul
Ronald C. Fran| 62 Executive V.P. of l-Haul Field Operation
Mark A. Haydukovict 46 President of Oxford Life Insurance Compsz
Carlos Vizcarre 56 President of Amerco Real Estate Comp
Richard M. Amorosc 44 President of Republic Western Insurance Comj

* Ages are as of June 30, 2C

Class | (Term Expires at 2007 Meeting)

John P. Brogarhas served as a Director of AMERCO since AugusBl®8tl has served as the Chairman of Muench-KreCaedle

Company since 1980. He has been involved with warammpanies including a seven year associatidnAl#mo Rent-A-Car that ended in
1986. He is a member of the American Institute eftiied Public Accountants and served as Chairofahe Board of Trustees, College of

the Holy Cross, from 1988 to 1996.

James J. Grogahas served as a Director of AMERCO since AugusB818#] is the CEO of Loreto Bay Company. He wasiéeas of
G.W. Holdings, a diversified investment compangnir2001 to 2002. Throughout 1999 and 2000, he daasd resident and CEO of Sterling
Financial Corporation, a Toronto Stock Exchange wamy focused on real estate investments. He waSehmr Executive Vice President of

UDC Homes, a homebuilder, from 1996 to 1998. Heeseon the Board of Directors of several charitabtgnizations.
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Class Il (Term Expires at 2004 Meetin(

Edward J. Shoehas served as a Director and Chairman of the BaladdMERCO since 1986, as President since 1987 ,Riseztor of U-
Haul since 1990, and as the President of U-Hagksi®91. Mr. Shoen has been associated with thep@oyrsince 1971.

M. Frank Lyonswas elected to the Board of AMERCO on February0®22o fill the vacancy created by the resignatbRichard J.
Herrera. Mr. Lyons served in various positions wiite Company from 1959 until 1991, including 25ngeas the president of Warrington
Manufacturing. From 1991 until his retirement irDRthe was president of Evergreen Realty, Inc.

Class Il (Term Expires at 2005 Meeting)

John M. Dodd#$as served as a Director of AMERCO since 1987 ainectdr of U-Haul since 1990. Mr. Dodds has beesvaisited with
the Company since 1963. He served in regional fiplerations until 1986 and served in national fagdeérations until 1994. Mr. Dodds retir
from the Company in 1994.

James P. Shodms served as a director of AMERCO since 1986 aasl\Wice President of AMERCO from 1989 to Novemh@d®@
Mr. Shoen has been associated with the Compang 8@i£6. He served from 1990 to November 2000 asiEixe Vice President of U-Haul
and is employed by U-Haul Business Consultantapaidiary of U-Haul.

Class IV (Term Expires at 2006 Meeting)

William E. Cartyhas served as a Director of AMERCO since 1987 aralirector of U-aul since 1986. He has been associated wit
Company since 1946. He has served in various eixeqoubsitions in all areas of the Company. Mr. €aetired from the Company in 1987.

Charles J. Bayehas served as a Director of AMERCO since 1990 asdbleen associated with the Company since 196fabiserved in
various executive positions and served as Presafelinerco Real Estate Company until his retiremer@®ctober 2000.

Other Executive Officer:

Gary B. Hortonhas served as Treasurer of AMERCO since 1982 anistast Treasurer of U-Haul since 1990. He has lbssaciated
with the Company since 1969.

Gary V. Klinefelter Secretary of AMERCO since 1988 and Secretary ofdudi$ince 1990, is licensed as an attorney in Aidzand has
served as General Counsel of AMERCO and U-Hauksilune 1988. He has been associated with the Corspare 1978.

Rocky D. WardripAssistant Treasurer of AMERCO since 1990, has lassnciated with the Company since 1978 in variapscities
within accounting and treasury operations.

Mark V. Shoetas served as a Director of AMERCO from 1990 ureibruary 1997. He has served as a Director of U-ffiaon 1990
until November 1997 and as President, Phoenix @ipas from 1994 to present.

John C. TaylorDirector of U-Haul since 1990, has been associatéddthe Company since 1981. He is presently arcitwee Vice
President of U-Haul.

Ronald C. Frankas been associated with the Company since 1958. ptesently Executive Vice President of U-Hauwl&iOperations.
Mark A. Haydukoviclnas served as President of Oxford since June E96ih 1980 to 1997 he served as Vice President &rdx

Carlos Vizcarrahas served as President of Amerco Real Estate Gongirace September 2000. He began his previousigrosis Vice
President/ Storage Product Group for U-Haul in 1988
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Richard M. Amorosbas served as President of RepWest since Auguét Bledwas Assistant General Counsel of U-Haul fi@83 until
February 2000. He served as Assistant General @ah®N Semiconductor Corporation from FebruanAtmust 2000.

Edward J., Mark V., and James P. Shoen athdns. William E. Carty is the uncle of Edwarédd Mark V. Shoen. M. Frank Lyons was
married to William E. Carty’s sister and the auhEdward J. and Mark V. Shoen until her death i82.9

Executive Compensation

The following Summary Compensation Table shétive annual compensation for fiscal years 20032 2hd 2001 paid to (1) the
Companys chief executive officer; and (2) the four mogty compensated executive officers of the Compather than the chief executi
officer.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation

All Other

Salary Bonus Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year ($)(1) %) $)(2)
Edward J. Shoe 200¢ 467,30° 3,00( 1,987
Chairman of the Board and President of AMER 200¢ 503,70¢ — 334
and L-Haul 200z 503,70¢ — 1,311
Mark V. Shoer 200¢ 623,07¢ 3,00( 1,987
President of -Haul Phoenix Operatior 200z 617,30¢ — 334
200z 623,07 — 1,311
Ronald C. Franl 200¢ 240,85: 198,80! 1,987
Executive V.P. -Haul Field Operation 200¢ 237,99! 15,70¢ 334
200z 188,47: — 1,311
Gary B. Hortor 200¢ 242,30¢ 46,38( 1,987
Treasurer of AMERCO and Assistant Treasi 2002 242,30¢ 40,00( 334
of U-Haul 200z 233,65! 40,00( 1,311
Gary V. Klinefelter 2004 285,58 3,00(¢ 1,98
Secretary and General Counsel of AMERCO a-Haul 200z 251,73t 55,00( 334
200z 222,54’ 67,00( 1,311

(1) Includes annual fees paid to Directors of AMERC@ &-Haul.

(2) Represents the value of Common Stock allocatedruthdeAMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Sharing antplbyee Stock Ownersr
Plan.

The annual fee for all services as a direatgkMERCO prior to June 4, 2003 was $26,400. BEffecon that date, the annual fee was
increased to $50,000. This amount is paid in emaithly installments. Audit Committee members reeein additional $50,000 annual fee.
Executive Finance Committee and Compensation Camenihembers each receive an additional $20,000ehferi Independent Governal
Committee members receive an annual fee of $50,000.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
Reference is made in the disclosure undecdpéon in this prospectus “Business — Legal Pedoggs.”
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, tileiing table lists, as of February 13, 2004 {18 beneficial ownership of AMERCO's
equity securities of each director and director ime@ of AMERCO, of each executive officer namethiss prospectus in the section titled
“Executive Compensation”, and of all directors axécutive officers of AMERCO as a group; (2) thedfecial ownership of Common Stock
of those persons who beneficially own more thaa fiercent (5%) of AMERCO’s Common Stock; and (&) ltleneficial ownership of each
director of AMERCO, of each executive officer naniedhis prospectus in the section titled “Execeat@ompensation”, and of all directors
and executive officers of the Company as a grotifhepercentage of net payments received by sardops during the 2003 fiscal year in
respect of fleet-owner contracts issued by U-Haul.

Shares of Common Percentage of Percentage of Net
Name and Address of Stock Beneficially Common Stock Fleet Owner
Beneficial Owner Owned Class Contract Payments
Edward J. Shoen(: 3,487,70(2) 16.¢ .001

Chairman of the Board,
President and Director
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500
Mark V. Shoen(1 3,252,23(2) 15.¢ N/A
President, U-Haul
Phoenix Operations
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«

James P. Shoen( 1,949,99(2) 95 N/A
Director
1325 Airmotive Way
Reno, NV 8950:

Sophia M. Shoe 1,388,66i(2) 6.7 N/A

5104 N. 32nd Street
Phoenix, AZ 8501¢
Heartland Advisors, Inc 1,009,00(3) 4.¢ N/A
789 North Water Street
Milwaukee, WI 5320:

Paul F. Shoe 806,13:(2) 3.6 N/A
P.O. Box 524
Glenbrook, NV 8941:

The ESOP Trust(Z 2,339,40: 11.z N/A

2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500
John M. Dodd: 0 0 N/A
Director
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
William E. Carty(1) 0 0 N/A
Director
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500
Charles J. Baye 2,18¢ ** .001
Director
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
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Shares of Common Percentage of Percentage of Net
Name and Address of Stock Beneficially Common Stock Fleet Owner
Beneficial Owner Owned Class Contract Payments

John P. Broga 6,00( ** N/A

Director and Director Nominee
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500

James J. Groge 2,60t ** N/A

Director and Director Nominee
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«

M. Frank Lyons 30C ** N/A

Director
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500

Gary V. Klinefelter 3,51z ** N/A

Secretary and General Counsel
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«

Gary B. Hortor 2,651 ** N/A

Treasurer of AMERCO and
Assistant Treasurer of U-Haul
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500«

Ronald C. Franl 2,597 L .00z

Executive V.P. Field

Operations of U-Haul
2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, AZ 8500

Officers and Directors as a group (12 person: 8,709,78! 42.2 .004

** The percentage of the referenced class benefi@alhyed is less than one perce

(1)

()

Edward J. Shoen, Mark V. Shoen, James P. ShoenVdham E. Carty beneficially own 16,300 shares2@o), 16,700 shares (0.27¢
31,611 shares (0.51%), and 12,000 shares (0.19%W&RCO’s Series A 8 1/2% Preferred Stock, respetti The executive officers
and directors as a group beneficially own 77,6kdreh (1.27%) of AMERC’s Series A 8 1/2% Preferred Sto

The complete name of the ESOP Trust is theEESfst Fund for the AMERCO Employee Savings anglegee Stock Ownership
Trust. The ESOP Trustee, which consists of thrdiduals without a past or present employmentanysor business relationship with
the Company, is appointed by the Company’s Boardiagdctors. Under the ESOP, each participant (chqarticipant’s beneficiary) in
the ESOP directs the ESOP Trustee with respebetodting of all Common Stock allocated to theipgpant’s account. All shares in
the ESOP Trust not allocated to participants ated/by the ESOP Trustee. As of December 31, 200Bed?,339,401 shares of
Common Stock held by the ESOP Trust, 1,612,63%shaere allocated to participants and 726,762 shareained unallocated. The
number of shares reported as beneficially owneBdward J. Shoen, Mark V. Shoen, James P. ShoehFP&hoen, and Sophia M.
Shoen include Common Stock held directly by thoskviduals and 3,694, 3,690, 3,648, 779 and 196eshaf Common Stock,
respectively, allocated by the ESOP Trust to thodviduals. Those shares are also included imtimaber of shares held by the ESOP
Trust.
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(3) The ownership information set forth hereitésed on material contained in a Schedule 13Gd drbruary 12, 2004, filed with the
SEC by William Nasgovitz and Heartland Advisors;.IAccording to the Schedule 13G, Heartland Adwsorc. and William
Nassovitz each have shared voting and shared dlispgsower over 960,800 and 1,009,000 sharesgeagly.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, tlageeno arrangements giving any stockholder th# tacquire the beneficial ownership of
any shares owned by any other stockholder.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

AMERCO has engaged in related party trangastiand has continuing related party interests) edrtain major stockholders, directors
and officers of the consolidated group as discldsddw and in Notes 11 and 19 of Notes to Constddi&inancial Statements for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, whizlke@rtained in this prospectus. Management belignaghe transactions descrit
below and in the related notes were consummatedrors equivalent to those that would prevail in’arfangth transactions.

Single Transactions

On January 11, 2002, we sold 37 self-stopagperties to a subsidiary of SAC Holdings for $aiillion in cash and notes. The purchase
price was negotiated with SAC Holdings by the Assis Treasurer of U-Haul, based on an analysib@het operating income of the
properties.

On March 28, 2002, we sold 62 sstifrage properties to a subsidiary of SAC Holdifog$146.9 million in notes. The purchase price
negotiated with SAC Holdings by the Assistant Teeas of U-Haul, based on an analysis of the netaipg income of the properties. On
March 28, 2002, the purchaser paid down the notéss amount of $75.9 million from cash proceedsioled from a third-party financing.

On December 23, 2002, Mark V. Shoen, Presidéfdaul Phoenix Operations and a significant kihmtder of AMERCO, purchased a
condominium in Phoenix, Arizona from Oxford Lifesiwrance Company. The purchase price was $279,3%8nwvas in excess of the
appraised value.

Continuing Interests

During fiscal 2003 and 2002, U-Haul purcha$2d. million, and $3.2 million, respectively, afifting from Form Builders, Inc. Mark V.
Shoen, his daughter and Edward J. Shoen’s someajog stockholders of Form Builders, Inc. Edwar&kboen is Chairman of the Board of
Directors and President of AMERCO and is a sigaificstockholder of AMERCO. Mark V. Shoen is Prestdé)-Haul Phoenix Operations
and is a significant stockholder of AMERCO. The Quamy ceased doing business with Form Builders,dndpril 18, 2003.

Samual J. Shoen, the son of Edward J. Sli®employed by U-Haul as project group supervibbit.Shoen was paid an aggregate salary
and bonus of $64,800, $79,200 and $79,900 fordrigces during the calendar years 2001, 2002 and,2@spectively.

During fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, a sulsidof the Company held various senior and junitgacured notes of SAC Holdings.
Substantially all of the equity interest of SAC Hiolgs is owned by Mark V. Shoen, a
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significant shareholder and executive officer of BRICO. The Company does not have an equity owneistapest in SAC Holdings, except
for minority investments made by RepWest and Oxford SAC Holdings-controlled limited partnershipieh holds Canadian self-storage
properties. The senior unsecured notes of SAC Hg#dihat the Company holdsnk equal in right of payment with the notes atai@ seniol
mortgage holders, but junior to the extent of thkateral securing the applicable mortgages anibjun the extent of the cash flow waterfe
that favor the senior mortgage holders. The Compeogived cash interest payments of $17.7 mil&28§.6 million, and $24.5 million from
SAC Holdings during fiscal year 2004, 2003, and20@spectively. The notes receivable balance audétg at March 31, 2004 was, in the
aggregate, $203.8 million. The largest aggregateuatnoutstanding during the fiscal year ended M&th2004 was $403.5 million. At
March 31, 2004, SAC Holdings’ notes and loans pkeytibthird parties totaled $784.4 million. Intdres the senior and junior notes accrues
at rates ranging from 6.5% to 13%. As discusseglnisre in this prospectus, in connection with anegence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy
on March 15, 2004, $200 million SAC Holdings nabtetd by us were restructured and issued directbutocreditors. See “Description of
Other Indebtedness and Other Obligations — New &latdings Notes.”

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of senior notes of SAC Holdings that tbenany holds at a fixed rate and is paid on
a monthly basis.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of junior notes of SAC Holdings that trepany holds at a stated rate of basic
interest. A fixed portion of that basic interespad on a monthly basis.

Additional interest is paid on the same paymeng @iaised on the difference between the amount dcdinémg basic interest and an amo
equal to a specified percentage of the net cashbkfore interest expense generated by the undgrpioperty minus the sum of the princi
and interest due on the senior notes of SAC Ho&lretpting to that property and a multiple of thed portion of basic interest paid on that
monthly payment date. This amount is referred tthascash flow-based calculation.”

To the extent that this cash flow-based datmn exceeds the amount of remaining basic istepontingent interest equal to that excess
and the amount of remaining basic interest are paithe same monthly date as the fixed portionagidinterest. To the extent that the cash
flow-based calculation is less than the amouneofaining basic interest, the additional interegapée on the applicable monthly date is
limited to the amount of that cash flow-based dalibon. In such a case, the excess of the remalmasit interest over the cash flow-based
calculation is deferred and all amounts so defebeat the stated rate of basic interest until nitgtof the junior note. In addition, subject to
certain contingencies, the junior notes providé tha holder of the note is entitled to receive %Phe appreciation realized upon, among
other things, the sale of such property by SAC khgls. To date, no such properties have been so®y Holdings.

The Company currently manages the self-seopagperties owned by SAC Holdings pursuant taadsrd form of management
agreement with each SAC Holdings subsidiary, umdech the Company receives a management fee eg@dbtof the gross receipts. The
Company received management fees of $12.9 mil#iag,3 million, and $8.3 million during fiscal ye2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.
This management fee is consistent with the feemved for other properties the Company managethfat parties.

RepWest and Oxford currently hold a 46% ladipartnership interest in Securespace LimitechPestiip (“Securespace”), a Nevada
limited partnership. A SAC Holdings subsidiary ss\as the general partner of Securespace and oV¥bdrgerest. Another SAC Holdings
subsidiary owns the remaining 53% limited partnigrghterest in Securespace. Securespace was fdsn8aAC Holdings to be the owner of
various Canadian self-storage properties.

During fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 tben@any leased space for marketing company officgsicle repair shops and hitch
installation centers in 35 locations owned by stibsies of SAC Holdings. Total lease payments pamsto such leases were $2.6 million,
$2.1 million, and $410,000 during fiscal year 20R@03, and 2002, respectively. The terms of thedgare similar to the terms of leases for
other properties owned by unrelated parties thatemrsed to the Company.
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At March 31, 2004, subsidiaries of SAC Holgiracted as U-Haul independent dealers. The finhand other terms of the dealership
contracts with subsidiaries of SAC Holdings aressabtially identical to the terms of those with @empany’s other independent dealers.
During fiscal 2004, fiscal 2003, and fiscal 200% Company paid subsidiaries of SAC Holdings $28ildon, $27.7 million, and
$13.7 million, respectively, in commissions purduarsuch dealership contracts.

The transactions discussed above involvin@ $ldings have all been eliminated from the Comyfsnonsolidated financial statements.
Although these transactions have been eliminatefirfancial statement reporting purposes, excepirfimority investments made by
RepWest and Oxford in Securespace, the Compangdtdsad any equity ownership interest in SAC Haldin

SAC Holdings were established in order tousregself-storage properties which are being mathdyethe Company pursuant to
management agreements. The sale of self-storagenies by the Company to SAC Holdings has in t& provided significant cash flows
to the Company and the Company’s outstanding ltm8AC Holdings entitle the Company to participat&AC Holdings’excess cash flov
(after senior debt service). However, in connectigth SAC Holdings’ issuance of the New SAC Holdingotes to AMERCOQ'’s creditors in
AMERCO's Chapter 11 proceeding, certain SAC Holdingtes payable to the Company were paid in felldby extinguishing the “cash
flow-based calculation.”

Management believes that its sales of selagie properties to SAC Holdings over the pastrs¢years provided a unique structure for
the Company to earn rental revenues from the SAIJiRtgs self-storage properties that the Companyagas and participate in SAC
Holdings’ excess cash flows as described above.

Although the Board of Directors of the appiage subsidiary which was a party to each tramsaetith SAC Holdings approved such
transaction at the time it was completed, the Campmbd not seek approval by AMERCO's Board of Dtogs for such transactions.
However, AMERCOQ's Board of Directors, including timelependent members, was made aware of and relgeévendic updates regarding
such transactions from time to time. All futurelrestate transactions with SAC Holdings that inedllite Company or any of its subsidiaries
will have the prior approval of AMERCOQO'’s Board ofrBctors, even if it is not legally required, indlng a majority of the independent
members of AMERCO'’s Board of Directors.

In connection with both the single transatdiand the continuing interests described abowardety parts, tools and printing services, the
Internal Audit Department of U-Haul periodicallyste pricing against competitive third party bidsfrness.

In connection with both the single transatdiand the continuing interests described aboveagement believes that the foregoing
transactions were consummated on terms equivalgéhbse that prevail in arm’s-length transactions.
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DESCRIPTION OF OTHER INDEBTEDNESS AND OTHER OBLIGAT IONS
The following is a summary of certain of @nd our subsidiaries’ indebtedness and the indebssdof SAC Holdings.
Exit Financing Facility

General.Upon our emergence from bankruptcy, AMERCO, U-HAMIERCO Real Estate Company and certain of ourigidrges
entered into a loan and security agreement withdNrglrgo Foothill, Inc. (the “Exit Financing Fatill). The Exit Financing Facility consists
of two components:

(1) $200 million revolving credit facility (the “R®lver”), including a $50 million letter of crediub-facility; and
(2) $350 million amortizing term loan (the “TermMotes”).

Available Credit.The amounts available for borrowing under the Restohre determined based on a borrowing base farmhich is
based upon a percentage of the value of our eligédl estate collateral. The amount of advanasath can request cannot exceed at an
time outstanding an amount equal to the lesser of:

(1) $200 million (unless reduced by the lenderitnagions where we repay the Revolver as a resdéles of our assets) less the
aggregate amount of all outstanding letters ofigred

(2) the “borrowing base” less (x) the aggregate amhof all outstanding letters of credit and (y& thutstanding balance of the
Term A Notes

The borrowing base is defined as 60% of thetmecent fair market valuation of the real propepllateral securing the Exit Financing
Facility. The borrowing base at any time is reduftahe following:

* required reserves relating to our credit card, tdedoid and other bank clearing system reserveshwelate to our cash accounts secu
the Exit Financing Facility

* environmental remediation reserves relating taréad property collateral;
« title reserves with respect to title defects ancegxions for the real property collateral;

« other reserves for taxes, assessments, insuraecgyons and other items that the lender determiregdiconstitute a priority lien with
respect to the real property collate

As of March 15, 2004, the gross value of aalfateral that was eligible for inclusion in therlowing base was sufficient to enable us to
borrow the entire amount of the Revolver ($200ioml). At March 15, 2004, outstanding advances utiteExit Financing Facility totaled
$515 million, consisting of $165 million outstandinnder the Revolver and $350 million outstandindar the Term A Notes.

Swing Loans and Overadvancésie Revolver contemplates that the lender maytsidiscretion, make swing loans to us. Each swoag
is deemed to be an advance under the Exit Finaf@edity and shall be subject to all the terms aadditions applicable to other advances,
except that swing loans are not eligible for thB@R interest rate option (discussed below). In tholdi the lender may, in its discretion,
knowingly continue to advance funds to us in amstinat exceed the borrowing base. These overadvamnedimited such that after giving
effect to the advances, the sum of outstanding atsainder the Revolver (including outstanding tstt&f credit), does not exceed the
borrowing base by an amount equal to the lesseq) &% of the borrowing base and (y) $10 millionddn any event does not exceed the
maximum available credit under the revolver ($200ion).

Maturity and Paymentd he Exit Financing Facility matures on February 2009. Monthly principal payments of $291,667 aguired
for the Term A Notes commencing on April 1, 2004thvthe balance due at maturity. No principal pagteere due for the Revolver before
maturity.

If we terminate the Exit Financing Facilibr, make prepayments on the Term A Notes, prior é&od¥d 15, 2007, we are subject to a
prepayment penalty as follows: before March 1552@000%; after
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March 15, 2005 and before March 15, 2006, 1.50%;adter March 15, 2006 and before March 15, 20000%. The prepayment penalty is
determined based upon on the average daily ouis@gbdlance of the Revolver and the average dailsitte of undrawn letters of credit.

Ranking.Borrowings under the Exit Financing Facility repgasour senior secured obligations and rpak passun right of payment to
the 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes. Borgsvimder the Exit Financing Facility rank senioright of payment to all other
indebtedness of AMERCO and its legal subsidiagesdpt for indebtedness of Oxford and RepWest).

GuaranteesThe Exit Financing Facility is guaranteed by subs#dly all direct and indirect subsidiaries of tBempany except for (i) the
subsidiaries that are actual borrowers under theeagent, (ii) our insurance subsidiaries Oxford BegWest and their respective
subsidiaries, (iii) Storage Realty, L.L.C., a Tekasted liability company, (iv) INW, a Washingtaorporation, and (v) certain dormant
subsidiaries. As discussed elsewhere in this poigpeSAC Holdings are not legal subsidiaries of BRCO and do not guarantee any
borrowings under the Exit Financing Facility.

Collateral. All amounts outstanding under the Revolver and TArNotes are secured by a first priority secunitierest in substantially
of the assets of the borrowers and the guarargrcgpt for the following assets:

« synthetic leases and synthetic lease collateral;

* notes receivable from SAC Holdings existing on date of emergence from Chapter 11;

« real property having an approximate book value7¥ $nillion under contract for sale on the clositade of the Exit Financing Facility.
« real estate subject to synthetic leases at theodater emergence from bankruptcy;

« the capital stock of Oxford and RepWest owned byERCO;

« real property secured by a lien in favor of Oxford;

« surplus property;

* proceeds in excess of $50 million associated wighsettlement, judgment or recovery related tditgation against
PricewaterhouseCoope

« vehicles that are subject to an operating leassmgement; and
* certain cash accounts for the benefit of thirdipart

Interest.As of March 15, 2004, $349 million of the Term Adrs bear interest at LIBOR plus 4.00% and $1 milbear interest at the
base rate plus 1.50%. Monthly interest paymentslaeecommencing April 1, 2004.

Interest on the Revolver is payable montblyifase rate option advances. Interest on LIBO&aption advances is generally payable
every three months and/ or the last day of theésteperiod selected. Advances outstanding un@eR#évolver bear interest under the base
rate option or the LIBOR option, which we sele@scribed as follows.

Base Rate Optiolhe base rate option is defined as the base rasetlpd applicable margin. The base rate meangitine pate as
announced by Wells Fargo Bank. The applicable masgbased on our EBITDA for the prior 12 monthsakews:

EBITDA Margin
less than $275 millio 1.5(%
greater than $275 million but less than $300 nmil 1.25%
greater than $300 millio 1.0(%
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At March 15, 2004, the base rate was 4% and ouTBBIfor the prior 12 months was less than $275iomll The applicable margin
is adjusted quarterly at the end of each fiscatigudased on our EBITDA for the trailing twelve ntlos.

LIBOR Rate OptionThe LIBOR rate option is defined as the LIBOR raligs the applicable margin. The LIBOR rate meaerséte
per annum at which dollar deposits are offered bjombanks in the London interbank market (aftersideration of a customary reserve
percentage, if any), provided that the rate shalken be less than 1%. We select the interest pésiogthich each LIBOR rate option
advance is to be calculated with such period b&jgy 3 or 6 months. We may not have more thah OR rate option advances
outstanding at any one time and each LIBOR advangs be of at least $1 million and integral mutgpbf $500,000 in excess thereof.
In addition, we can prepay any outstanding LIBO i@ption advances under the Revolver, but we neirstburse the lenders for any
funding losses they suffer as a result of suchgnegent. The applicable margin is based on our ERIT® the prior 12 months as

follows:
EBITDA Margin
less than $275 millio 4.0(%
greater than $275 million but less than $300 mil 3.7%%
greater than $300 millio 3.5(%

At March 15, 2004 our EBITDA was less tharr$2nillion. The applicable margin is adjusted qedytat the end of each fiscal quarter
based on our EBITDA for the trailing twelve montisan event of default occurs, we may no longéectehe LIBOR rate option and any
then outstanding LIBOR rate option advances (indg@mounts outstanding under the Term A Notes)osaoonverted to the base rate

option, at the option of the lender.

Default Interestln the event of any event of default, interest atstanding advances and outstanding letters oftakéitiaccrue at a rate
of 2% in excess of the then applicable rate othein effect.

Letter of Credit Fees; Facility Fee®/e are charged a letter of credit fee (plus isseaharges) at a rate based on our EBITDA for the
prior 12 months, as follows:

Applicable

EBITDA Margin
less than $275 millio 4.0(%
greater than $275 million but less than $300 nmil 3.75%
greater than $300 millio 3.5(%

The letter of credit fee accrues on the undrawnuwarof all outstanding letters of credit at the laggble margin set forth above. In addition,
we are charged a fee of 0.50% of the unused poofitime Revolver, including the letter of credibsfacility.
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CovenantsUnder the Exit Financing Facility, we are requitedcomply with a number of affirmative and negatbowvenants. These
covenants apply to the borrowers. These covenaotsde that:

« On a quarterly basis, we cannot allow our EBITDAns capital expenditures (as defined), each medsura fiscal quarter-end basis
for the applicable period set forth below, to b&sléhan the amounts set forth bel

Applicable Amount Applicable Date
$15 million For the three month period ending June 30, 2
$65 million For the six month period ending September 30, 2
$65 million For the nine month period ending December 31, 2
$60 million For the twelve month period ending March 31, 2(
$48 million For the twelve month period ending June 30, 2|
$25 million For the twelve month period ending September 305%
$25 million For the twelve month period ending December 3152
$30 million For the twelve month period ending March 31, 2(
$80 million For the twelve month period ending June 30, 2
$115 million For the twelve month period ending September 306¢
$110 million For the twelve month period ending December 316280d
$105 million For the twelve month period ending March 31, 2(

For each fiscal quarter after March 31, 2Q08&,above covenant will be established using &neesmethodology as utilized for 2004, 2005
and 2006, based on financial projections we sutorthie lenders. The lender will present the neweoawts to us for approval, which we sl
not unreasonably withhold. In the event we do ppirave the lender’s calculations of the new covérthae holders of 51% of the
commitments for the Term A Notes will establishstbovenant.

» We are restricted in the amount of capital expemest that we can make in any fiscal year as folidissal 2005, $185 million; fiscal
2006, $245 million; and fiscal 2007, $195 millidfor each fiscal quarter after March 31, 2007, tbigenant will be established using
the same methodology as utilized for 2005, 2006200¥, based on financial projections we submih&lenders. The lender will
present the new covenants to us for approval, wihielshall not unreasonably withhold. In the eveatde not approve the lender’s
calculations of the new covenants, the holderslét Bf the commitments for the Term A Notes willadgish this covenan

* We cannot incur any additional indebtedness, exioept
« indebtedness existing under the Exit FinancinglEgci
« indebtedness existing on March 15, 2004;

« purchase money indebtedness and capitalized I&digations (excluding synthetic lease obligatioimsdn aggregate amount not to
exceed $30 million
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- capital leases, to the extent such capital leasss aur of the treatment of our synthetic leaged(ding refinancings) as capital
leases in accordance with GAAP (¢— Synthetic Lease Arrangeme”);

« indebtedness under the New AMERCO Notes and tt#é $8cond Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2009;
* permitted guarantees;
* indebtedness comprising investments specificaltynfteed under the Exit Financing Facility;

« |etters of credit issued outside the Exit Finandtagility and secured by cash collateral in an eggte amount not to exceed
$3 million at any time; an

« subject to certain conditions, refinancings, rerswar extensions of permitted indebtedness.

* We cannot create, incur, assume or permit to exigtlien on or against any of our assets, excepafoong others, the following
permitted liens

« the interest of lessors under permitted operatiagds and synthetic leases;
« liens related to permitted purchase money indelegsland capital leases;

« liens relating to the New AMERCO Notes;

« liens relating to the 9.0% Second Lien Senior Setuotes due 2009;

« liens on real property in favor of Oxford,;

« liens on collateral securing synthetic leases; and

« other customary liens that arise in the ordinanyrse of business.

« We cannot enter into any merger, consolidationiga&uization, or recapitalization (subject to exgmm) and we cannot liquidate, wind
up or dissolve any of our subsidiaries that is mdwer under the Exit Financing Facility, unless #issets of the dissolved entity are
transferred to another subsidiary that is a borraweler the Exit Financing Facility and certainestbonditions are me

« We cannot convey, sell, lease, assign, transfettmrwise dispose of any of our assets, excepteidain permitted dispositions,
including:

« sales of worn out, damaged or obsolete property;
« sales of assets that are not part of the collatieaalsecures the Exit Financing Facility;

« sales of rental vehicles in the ordinary coursewffleet rotation program, so long as the agge=gat book value of rental vehicles
subject to liens under the Exit Financing Faciibes not decrease by more than (x) $40 millionnduainy of (i) the first quarter of
fiscal 2005, (ii) the first two quarters of fis005, (iii) the first three quarters of fiscal 2005(iv) each 12-month period thereafter,
in each case to be tested at the end of each goaity $160 million in the aggregate after Mafddh 2004,

« sales in the ordinary course of business of remthicles subject to operating leases;
« sales or other dispositions contemplated undeapproved Chapter 11 of reorganization; and

« sales of real property collateral in an aggregateunt not to exceed $10 million during any fiscahy or $35 million in total after
March 15, 2004, subject to certain conditic

* We cannot guarantee the obligations of our inswaobsidiaries or any third party, except for:

 guarantees of AMERCO existing on March 15, 2004;



* guarantees of AMERCO that are part of our Chapterebrganization plan;
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« guarantees of AMERCO with respect to the Privateildupport party agreements (see “— Private Mior&je Credit Facility”);
« guarantees with respect to rental vehicle operatiages;
* guarantee obligations pursuant to any permittedbtetiness; and

 guarantees pursuant to any permitted refinancerggwal or extension of any permitted indebtedness.

* We cannot prepay, redeem, defease, purchase awigbeacquire any of our indebtedness or any irethtess of a subsidiary that is a
borrower under the Exit Financing Facility, exce

« indebtedness relating to our debtor-in-possessieditfacility;
« obligations in accordance with the Exit Financiragity;

« as required by our Chapter 11 confirmation order;

« in connection with a permitted refinancing;

* prepayments of indebtedness under the New AMERC@3\érom the proceeds from the monetization @ ebbssets excluded
from the collateral securing the Exit Financing iliag

« that so long as no event of default exists undeigkit Financing Facility, we can prepay indebtexinender the 9.0% Second Lien
Senior Secured Notes due 2009 or the New AMERC@$Nsb long as (a) the aggregate amount of prepagrmaeder our synthetic
leases plus the aggregate amount of dividendsipadears in such fiscal year shall not, in thgragate, exceed the “ECF Carry
Forward Amount” (summarized below), if any thereiistence, and (b) on the date of such prepaymengre in compliance with
the“Excess Availability Te” (summarized below

« prepayments of indebtedness under our syntheseseapon the sale of any real property collate@lisng such synthetic lease
pursuant to an arr-length sale to a bona fide r-affiliate purchaser, up to the amount of the spleseeds

« that so long as no event of default exists undeigkit Financing Facility, we can prepay indebtexinequired pursuant to the
provisions of our synthetic leases so long ash@yggregate amount of such prepayments in argl fisar, together with the
aggregate amount of permitted prepayments in sachlfyear by us with respect to the 9.0% Secoed Senior Secured Notes due
2011 and the amount of dividends paid in arreasugh fiscal year, shall not, in the aggregateceddhe “ECF Carry Forward
Amount” (summarized below) and (b) on the dateusthsprepayment we are in compliance with the “Egdegilability
Tes” (summarized below); ar

« scheduled payments of principal and interest dukeuaur synthetic leases.
For purposes of this covenant:
ECF Carry Forward Amounteans:

through September 30, 2004, $3.335 million;

as of October 1, 2004 though March 31, 2005, 50%uofexcess cash flow (EBITDA minus cash intergpease and dividend
and other distributions, plus permitted capitalenditures and repayments of certain indebtednessdh case as defined and sut
to exceptions) for the period commencing April @02 and ending September 30, 2004

as of March 31, 2005 and at all times thereafter50% of our excess cash flow for the fiscal yevating March 31, 2005, plus
our excess cash flow for each fiscal year thergafiewus (b) the sum of (i) the aggregate amoumivifiends paid in arrears on
account of our preferred stock on or after Janda®004, (ii ) the aggregate amount of permittezbpyments of indebtedness under
the New AMERCO Notes and the 9.0% Second Lien $&soured Notes due 2009 and (iii)
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aggregate amount of permitted prepayments of timeipal amount of indebtedness under our synthetises.

Excess Availability Tesheans:

at the time of payment of any indebtedness undeN#w AMERCO Notes or 9.0% Second Lien Senior Stitotes due 2009
or at the time of declaration or payment of anydénd or dividend in arrears, (a) our “Excess Aafaility” (as summarized below)
plus cash securing the Exit Financing Facility ed=(i) $35 million plus (ii) the amount of suctbtipayment or dividend payment
as of the date of such payment and as of the nedtor each of the preceding consecutive 12 fismaiths immediately preceding
such payment date and (b) after giving effect thquayment, our “Excess Availabilityplus cash securing the Exit Financing Fac
is projected to exceed $35 million for the monthd efieach of the 12 fiscal months immediately sedagy such payment da

Excess Availability means:

the amount, as of the date of any determinationaktp the difference between the lesser of (i)dbeowing base, or
(i) $550 million (subject to adjustment in certaiuations) and the amount outstanding under #ieMnancing Facility

* We cannot cause any change of control of AMERCO;

« All real property collateral and rental vehiclelatéral securing the Exit Financing Facility mustdwned by a subsidiary that
is a borrower under the Exit Financing Facil

« We cannot make any distribution or declare or paydividends except that we are permitted to (ikenater-company
dividends and distributions within Exit Financingddity borrower group; (ii) pay dividends on oueferred stock accrued
after March 15, 2004 (including the payment of dernds for the period ending February 29, 20043niaggregate amount |
to exceed $13 million in any fiscal year, so losgage are in compliance with the “Excess Availapiliest” (as summarized
above) and (iii) pay dividends on our preferrectktaccrued prior to or for the period ended Noven®e 2003, so long as
(x) the aggregate amount of such dividends do xo¢ed the lesser of (1) $19.6 million or (Il) toget with the amount of any
permitted prepayments during such fiscal year utite®.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notes due 200@repayments
during such fiscal year of indebtedness relatinguosynthetic lease agreements, the “ECF Carrw&at Amount” (as
summarized above) and (y) at the time of any sagtmgnt, we are in compliance with the “Excess Adllity Test” (as
summarized above

« We cannot make any investments, or incur any ligdslfor or in connection with any investmentscept for defined
“permitted investmenr”, which include:

» advances made in connection with the purchaseadsgor services in the ordinary course of business;

« investments by any party to the Exit Financing lgdn another party to the Exit Financing Fagilit

« investments in SAC Holdings notes to the extenstamiding on March 15, 2004 (and any accrued irténeseon);
« payments on behalf of SAC Holdings pursuant toroanagement agreements with those entities;

« investments in Private Mini Storage Realty, L.PPM Preferred Properties, L.P. or any of theirliatis solely to the extent
required pursuant to the Private Mini Storage supparty agreements (see “— Private Mini Storaged@r-acility”)
(subject to additional conditions
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« permitted guarantees;
< payments in the ordinary course of business to Uldaalers; and

« other investments in an aggregate amount not teeek&5 million per year.

« Unless otherwise set forth in our Chapter 11 remizggion plan and except to reimburse SAC Holdifogsts transaction cos
incurred with respect to the New SAC Holdings Nptes cannot enter into transactions with affiliaiesluding SAC
Holdings, Self-Storage International Holding Coigayn, Private Mini Storage Realty, L.P. or PM [ereéd Properties, L.P.
unless the transactions are in the ordinary coofrb@isiness and are no less favorable to us thaidw® obtained in an arm’s
length transaction with a n-affiliate.

» Except for permitted dispositions, we cannot eimtter any sales and leaseback transaction.
New AMERCO Notes

General.Upon our emergence from bankruptcy, AMERCO issuatcs subordinated notes in the aggregate prineipedunt of
$148,646,137 (the “New AMERCO Notes”).

Maturity. The New AMERCO Notes mature on March 15, 2011. Niocipal payments are due prior to maturity.

RedemptionWe must redeem New AMERCO Notes at a redemptiaemi 100% of the aggregate outstanding principaunt plus
unpaid interest from (i) the net available procefeds the sale of some or all of the collateralsar the New AMERCO Notes and (ii) 75%

of any of the net recovery above $50 million rasglfrom our litigation against PricewaterhouseGerspafter reduction for attorneys’ fees
and costs and taxes payable by us with respecictorecovery.

We have the option to redeem at any time\iés@ AMERCO Notes in whole or in part at the reddmpprices (expressed as a percentage

of principal amount) set forth below, plus accrirg@rest to the applicable redemption date, if emaed during the 12ronth period beginnir
on March 15 of the years indicated below:

Calendar Year Percentage
2004 102.(%
2005 101.5%
2006 101.(%
2007 and thereaftt 100.(%

If we experience a change of control, eadddraof New AMERCO Notes will have the right to g us to repurchase that holdeNew
AMERCO Notes at an amount equal to 101% of theciad amount of the New AMERCO Notes plus accrued @npaid interest.

Ranking; SubordinatiorPayment of principal of and interest on of the NEMERCO Notes is subordinated in right of paymenthie
prior payment in full or discharge of our seniodébtedness. For this purpose, senior indebtedneasswur obligations under the Exit
Financing Facility and our outstanding 9.0% Secoiett Senior Secured Notes due 2009. We may not raajkelirect or indirect payments
with respect to the New AMERCO Notes, whether pansio the terms of the New AMERCO Notes or theeirtdre governing the New
AMERCO Notes, upon acceleration or otherwise, thattime of such payment there exists (i) a deéfauhe payment of all or any portion of
the obligations under our senior indebtedness)oarfy other default under any document or instming®@verning or evidencing our senior
indebtedness, and the trustee for the New AMERC@%Nbas received a written notice of such defaoihfan authorized representative of
the holders of the senior indebtedness, and ieretthse, the default has not been cured or waivediiing. Notwithstanding the previous

sentence, in the event of a non-payment defauttridbesl in (ii) of the previous sentence, if thedesk of our senior indebtedness have not
declared the
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senior indebtedness to be immediately due and payabhave rescinded a declaration of accelerptigihin 180 days after the notice of
such default, then payment of principal of andneséon the New AMERCO Notes may resume. The ingtergoverning the New AMERCO
Notes provides that only one such 180 day periog commence within any 360 consecutive d:

GuaranteesThe New AMERCO Notes are guaranteed by almostfaii@subsidiaries of AMERCO except for Oxford, Régst, Storage
Realty, L.L.C., a Texas limited liability compariiyW Company, a Washington Corporation, and centiminmant subsidiaries. As discussed
elsewhere in this prospectus, SAC Holdings ardeual subsidiaries of AMERCO and do not guarartieeNew AMERCO Notes.

Collateral. The New AMERCO Notes are secured by the followioliateral:
« the capital stock of Oxford;

« certain real property having an approximate bodkevaf $7.7 million, which was under contract fateson the closing date of the New
AMERCO Notes;

* 75% of the net proceeds in excess of $50 millimoeisited with the settlement, judgment or recovelgted to our litigation against
PricewaterhouseCoopers (after deduction of att@ fees and costs and taxes payable with respecttomoceeds]

* payments under notes receivable from SAC Holdihgsing an outstanding principal balance at March?084 of approximately
$203.8 million; anc

« certain surplus property.

Interest.The New AMERCO Notes bear interest at 12.0%. lsteigepayable quarterly. In the event of defaulgiest will accrue at an
additional 2%.

CovenantsThe indenture for the New AMERCO Notes requiresousomply with a number of customary affirmativedaregative
covenants, including the following:

* We are limited in the amount of dividends and otguity distributions or redemptions, investmemtd eedemptions or repayments of
subordinated indebtedness that we can make (testfiayments). We cannot make any restricted palyiihgna default shall have
occurred or shall occur as a result thereof, (8)aannot incur $1.00 of additional indebtednessymaumt to the “Coverage Ratio
Exception” (summarized below) at the time of sualimpent and after giving pro forma effect to suchirpant as if such payment was
made at the beginning of the applicable four-quarégiod or (iii) the amount of such restricted peant, together with all restricted
payments made after March 15, 2004 exceeds the&time “restricted payments basket”. The restriggagments basket includes,
among other things, 50% of net income (after dadnaif preferred stock dividends) from April 1, 2Dthough the end of the fiscal
quarter preceding the date of such payment and Q@B net cash proceeds received by us fromineztpiity issuance:

« In addition, we may pay dividends on our capitatktaccruing after March 15, 2004 in an aggregateuat not to exceed $13 million
in any fiscal year. We also may pay dividends onaapital stock for accrued for periods prior tortal5, 2004 so long as the
aggregate amount of such dividends in arrears tdexeeed $19.6 million or the “ECF Carry Forward édumt”, as defined in the Exit
Financing Facility (se“Description of Certain Indebtedness and Other @bbigs— Exit Financing Facilit— Covenant”).

« We cannot incur any additional indebtedness; pexljidhowever, we may incur additional indebtednieaftér giving effect thereto on
the date of incurrence, our consolidated interegerage ratio would be at least 2.25 to 1.00 (tbeverage Ratio Exception”). The
interest coverage ratio means the ratio of “casi’fiduring the four most recent consecutive fudkfil quarters ending on or prior to the
date of measurement to interest expense for thatfoarter period. “Cash flow” means the sum ofinebme (after deduction of
preferred stock dividends), plus income tax expeas®rtization expense, depreciation expense gstexxpense, all other non-cash
cash charges reducing net income,
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restructuring charges (subject to certain limitasiy in each case subject to, and as definedennttenture for the New AMERCO
Notes.

In addition to the Coverage Ratio Exceptibie, following items, among others, of indebtedragsspermitted:
« indebtedness relating to the Exit Financing Fagilit
« indebtedness outstanding as of March 15, 2004, dirad the 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Note20wé ;

« purchase money indebtedness and capitalized I&digations (excluding synthetic lease obligatioimsan aggregate amount not to
exceed $40 million

« capitalized leases, to the extent such capitaleasks arise our of the treatment of our synthegises (including refinancings) as
capitalized leases in accordance with GAAP (seeSynthetic Lease Arrangements”) or are enteredfortthe purpose of acquiring
vehicles in the ordinary course of busine

* indebtedness with respect to letters of creditddduy a party other than lender parties to the Eridncing Facility and secured by
cash collateral in an aggregate amount not to ex$8anmillion at any time

« permitted guarantees;
« other indebtedness not in excess of $7.5 million.

« refinancing indebtedness relating to indebtednessried pursuant to the Coverage Ratio Excepti@Ekit Financing Facility,
indebtedness outstanding as of March 15, 2004)divag) the 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Note@li#, permitted purchase
money indebtedness and capitalized leases

« arising from our investments in Private Mini StogaRealty, L.P. or PM Preferred Properties, L.Faror of their affiliates or SAC
Holdings under the Private Mini Storage Credit Fgcsupport agreements (see Description of Othdebtedness and Other
Obligations— Private Mini Storage Credit Agreeme”).

« Subject to exceptions, we cannot consummate aeyo$aur assets unless no default exits immedigtédy to and after giving effect to
such asset sale, we receive consideration atdgast to the fair value of the asset sold and énctise of the sale of collateral securing
the New AMERCO Notes (except in the case of the shtertain property that is collateral, we mestgive consideration at least equal
to 80% of the appraised value of such property)héncase of a sale of assets that are collatB?alaf the consideration we receive is in
the form of cash or cash equivalents (except ferstide of Oxford capital stock). With respect te $lale of assets that constitute
collateral for the New AMERCO Notes, we must redédéewv AMERCO Notes when the aggregate net proceeds $uch sales,
together with the aggregate net proceeds from ahyatovery resulting from the PWC litigation, eede $5 million. With respect to t
sale of assets that do not constitute collaterathfie New AMERCO Notes, we must use the net prazéedn such sale to repay senior
indebtedness, repay indebtedness securing suclassdt and/or invest the proceeds in the purcHasssets to be used in our business.
If we do not use the proceeds for such purposesacid amounts in the aggregate exceed $10 milkermay be required to make an
offer to redeem New AMERCO Notes at 100% of thaegpal amount redeemed or purchase cpari passtindebtednes:

We cannot allow any liens, other than certain ptediliens, against any of the collateral that seethe New AMERCO Notes. In
addition, we cannot allow any liens, other thartaiarpermitted liens, against any of our assetsdbanot constitute collateral for the
New AMERCO Notes unless in the case pari passwbligation, effective provision is made to secire New AMERCO Notes with
a lien at least equally and ratably with or primsstich obligation with a lien on the same colldtaral the case of any lien securing an
obligation that is subordinated in right of paymtmthe New
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AMERCO Notes, effective provision is made to seachreNew AMERCO Notes with a lien on the same tett that is prior to the
lien securing the subordinated obligati

« We cannot enter into any sale and leaseback tramsamless the indebtedness attributed to sucisaction would otherwise be
permitted under the indenture for the New AMERCQdsand the lien to secure such indebtedness beultturred without being
required to equally and ratably secure the New AMERNotes. In addition, the gross proceeds from ststsaction must be at least
equal to the fair market value of the asset sultgettie sale and leaseback transactions and ticeguls of the sale must be applied in
accordance with the covenants governing salesset&sinder the indenture for the New AMERCO Nc

« We cannot consolidate or merge or sell all or sardslly all of our assets or adopt a plan of liation unless (a) (i) we are the
surviving company or (i) the entity formed by suminsolidation or merger or to which such saleldl&made is a corporation
organized under the laws of any State of the Uriittedes or the District of Columbia and the sucmeassumes our obligations under
the New AMERCO Notes, (b) immediately prior to aftér giving effect to such transaction and thegattions incurred in connection
therewith no default occurs, and (c) immediateteradiving effect to such transaction and the inence of any indebtedness related
thereto, on a pro forma basis, the consolidatedvoeth of the surviving entity would be at leastiahjto our consolidated net worth

immediately prior to such transaction and the sting entity would not be able to incur $1.00 of giddal indebtedness pursuant to the
Coverage Ratio Exceptio

New SAC Holdings Senior Notes

General.In connection with AMERCQ's Chapter 11 bankruptegtructuring, SAC Holdings affiliates agreed taes$o unsecured
creditors of AMERCO $200 million aggregate prindipmount of senior notes (the “New SAC Holdings &&3). The issuance of the New
SAC Holdings Notes is the result of AMERCrestructuring and has the effect of eliminatipgraximately $200 million of notes receival
from SAC Holdings that were previously held by AMER.

Maturity; RedemptionThe New SAC Holdings Notes mature on March 15, 20latprincipal payments are due prior to maturity.

The New SAC Holdings Notes may not be redeepr®r to March 15, 2007. Thereafter, SAC Holdingsy redeem the New SAC
Holdings Notes for cash, in whole or in part, & Helow redemption prices (expressed as percentddles principal amount) if redeemed

during the twelve month period beginning on Maréhfdr the years indicated below, in each case bmgatith accrued and unpaid interest
thereon to the date of redemption:

Calendar Year Percentage
2007 104.(%
2008 103.(%
2009 101.5%
2010 and thereaftt 100.(%

The New SAC Holdings Notes are mandatorifeemable from the net cash proceeds (after payofieenior mortgage indebtedness) of
any sale of, refinancing or other form of monei@atransaction involving any real property of SAGIdings (except for certain excluded
entities), at redemption prices equal to the thmglieable optional redemption prices set forthhia immediately above table, except that the
redemption price at any time prior to March 15, @@1the case of the sale, refinancing or otheretiration of real property owned by Three
SAC Self Storage Corporation (a subsidiary of SA@dihg Corporation) will be 101% of principal, pluspaid interest to the redemption
date. The indenture for the New SAC Holdings N@ewides that no mandatory redemption is requirad the aggregate proceeds received
from the sale or monetization of real property obg SAC Holdings equal or exceed $5 million. Imiéidn, any redemption proceeds
received by SAC Holdings shall not be applied terwm the New SAC Holdings Notes
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until March 15, 2007, provided that such amountshva held by the trustee of the New SAC Holdingsté$. However, before March 15,
2007, SAC Holdings may use any such proceeds t@mtirs to all holders of the New SAC Holdings &oto purchase such notes in
accordance with certain procedures described iinttenture for the New SAC Holdings Notes.

In the event of a change of control of SAQdity Corporation or SAC Holding Il Corporation,afsholder of the New SAC Holdings
Notes will have the right to require SAC Holdingspurchase for cash that hol's notes at an amount equal to 101% of the prin@psount
of the SAC Holding Senior Notes to be purchased plicrued and unpaid interest.

Ranking.The New SAC Holdings Notes are to be senior inrfisido all future indebtedness of SAC Holdingscept for, among others,
indebtedness of SAC Holdings existing on March2l4, purchase money indebtedness in an aggregatena not to exceed $2 million,
permitted refinancing indebtedness, and subordinatebtedness not in excess of $8 million. At Niat&, 2004, third party mortgage
indebtedness senior to the New SAC Holdings Natiedad approximately $584.6 million and was secumgdeal property owned by SAC
Holdings having a book value of $787.5 million.

GuaranteesSAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Il Corpaoat are jointly and severally liable for the New GAdoldings Notes.
Neither AMERCO not any of its legal subsidiaries lgaaranteed or is otherwise liable for the deb&ALC Holdings, including the New S/
Holdings Notes.

Collateral. The New SAC Holdings Notes are the unsecured didige of SAC Holdings.

Participation and Subordination Agreeme@mn March 15, 2004, SAC Holding Company, SAC Il HoglCompany, AMERCO, U-Haul,
and Law Debenture Company of New York, as trusgatgred into a subordination agreement under thestef which $200 million
aggregate principal amount of SAC Holding Seniotdsavere either reduced to zero, cancelled andueisto the creditors of AMERCO, or
restated in full. Pursuant to this agreement weedjto subordinate our rights and obligations wéfpect to existing SAC Holdings Notes
and loans payable that we hold.

Interest.The New SAC Holdings Notes bear interest at 8.5%erést is payable quarterly.

CovenantsThe indenture for the New SAC Holdings Notes regmiBAC Holdings to comply with a number of custonaffirmative and
negative covenants. Such covenants limit SAC Hglgliability to, among other things:

* merge or sell all or substantially all of its asset

* SAC Holdings cannot incur any additional indebtesdnether than defined permitted indebtedness, wihathdes, among others,
indebtedness existing on March 15, 2004, indebtsibhetween SAC Holdings’ subsidiary entities (scije conditions), purchase
money indebtedness not to exceed $2 million, péethitefinancing indebtedness, indebtedness refatdt capitalization of interest,
permitted guarantees, and subordinated indebtedioéss excess of $8 million. In the case of anteasion, refinancing, renewal,
replacement, defeasance or refunding relating tmiped refinancing indebtedness that resultssalasidiary of SAC Holdings to
receive excess refinancing proceeds, SAC Holdingst mause the excess refinancing proceeds to tiibdisd to SAC Holding
Corporation or SAC Holding Il Corporation to enaBlAC Holdings to comply with their mandatory redeimp obligations

* Subject to exceptions, SAC Holdings cannot issyedisqualified stock, which is stock that maturessamandatorily redeemable at the
option of the holder on a date before June 14, 2

* SAC Holdings’ sale of assets is restricted suchdhg sales must be at least equal to the fair etadue of the assets sold and at least
67% of the consideration received must be in tien fof cash or cash equivalents. In addition, thieanailable proceeds from such sales
must be used to satisfy SAC Holdings’ mandatorgnegtion obligations. See “— Maturity; Redemptiomhese asset sale restrictions
do not apply to certain excluded entities, consistf Securespace Limited Partnership, Four SAGSefage Corporation, Five SAC
Self-Storage Corporation, and their respec
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subsidiaries, including Nineteen SAC Self-Storagre@rporation, Nineteen SAC Self-Storage LimitedirRaship and Private Mini
Storage Realty, L.F

« SAC Holdings cannot permit any of its subsidiat@sreate or cause to exist any encumbrance aiatést on the ability of any
subsidiary to (i) pay dividends or make other disttions on any capital stock of such subsidiarpay principal of or interest on any
indebtedness or other obligations of SAC Holdifgsmake loans or advances to SAC Holding Corporabr SAC Holding Il
Corporation or any of their subsidiaries or (if@rsfer any of its properties to SAC Holding Cogimm or SAC Holding Il Corporation.
However, these restrictions do not apply to, amathgrs, restrictions or encumbrances existing bgar of applicable law, customary
non-assignment provisions in lease agreementseghiteto in the ordinary course of business, peeditefinancing indebtedness
(subject to limitations) and liens permitted by thdenture for the New SAC Holdings Not

« Subject to exceptions designed to allow SAC Holditgycontinue existing relationships and engageeritain transactions consistent
with past activities, affiliate transactions betweé®AC Holdings or its subsidiaries and affiliaté S&C Holdings (as defined in the
indenture) must be on terms that are not less &olerthan would be obtained in an ’s length transactiol

« SAC Holdings cannot create or otherwise permitdsteany liens against its assets, except for gegchiiens, which include, among
others, liens securing SAC Holdings’ real propéntyebtedness and any related refinancing, extenstoewal, replacement,
defeasance, or refunding thereof, customary liecsirwing or existing in the ordinary course of Imesis (such as easements, leases,
imposed for taxes and assessments not due, perfoennds, workers’ compensation, and mechanies)liéiens securing
indebtedness existing on March 15, 2004, and Begsiring permitted purchase money indebtedi

« SAC Holdings cannot declare or pay any dividenchake any other payment or distribution relatinggequity interests, purchase,
redeem or otherwise retire any equity interestkenzay payment with respect to, or purchase, reddefaase or otherwise acquire or
retire any indebtedness that is subordinated tdNthve SAC Holdings Notes, make any investmentscquie any business or assets
from, or equity interests of, or be a party to asyuisition of, any person, in each case, ur

* no default exists or would occur as a result thiemod

« such payment, together with the aggregate amoueait ofher similarly restricted payments made affiarch 15, 2004 does not
exceed SAC Holdings’ “Residual Cash Flow” (as dedibelow) for the period commencing on March 1®4£though the date of
such paymen

Residual Cash Flowneans: for any period, (i) the aggregate reventi8\€ Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Il Corption plus
the amount by which the aggregate gross receif\@f Holdings’ subsidiaries exceed the aggregateaimg expenses of SAC Holdings’
subsidiaries minus (ii) the sum of (x) all prindipaterest and premium of the New SAC Holdings ééotequired to be paid during such
period plus (y) the interest payments to the Comparder the SAC Holdings junior notes payable (SeeSAC Holdings Notes Payable”),
plus (z) the amounts paid during such period pursteaa promissory note from SAC Holding Corporatio Oxford, dated May 7, 1999
(which loan has an aggregate principal balanceanding at March 15, 2004 of $5.0 million).

Notwithstanding the previous paragraph, thiefing payments, among others, are permitted uttdeindenture for the New SAC
Holdings Notes:

« investments outstanding on March 15, 2004;
* purchases of inventory to be sold or used in tkignary course of business;
« the payment by any SAC Holdings’ subsidiary toltioéders of its equity interests on a pro rata hasis

« payments made with respect to subordinated indabssdpermitted to be made under the SAC Partioipaind Subordination
Agreement; an
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« any acquisition of property solely in exchangetfa issuance of equity interests (other than eduigrests which mature or are
otherwise redeemable and are otherwise prohibitelénthe terms of the indenture for the New SACdims Notes)

SAC Holdings Notes Payable

General. SAC Holdings’ notes payable to third party lendems secured by deeds of trusts on collateralizedi 4nd buildings. These
notes are in addition to SAC Holdings Notes desttiabove and existed prior to AMERCO's Chapter ddkbuptcy filing. We are not a
guarantor of the debt of SAC Holdings or any oirtkabsidiaries and we are not liable for the dehtSAC Holdings. Principal and interest
payments on notes payable to third party lenderslae monthly. As of December 31, 2003 SAC Holdingses bore interest rates ranging
from 7.50% to 8.82% and the notes are due betw@@s and 2032. Certain notes payable contain pranssivhereby the loans may not be
prepaid at any time prior to the maturity date withpayment to the lender of a yield maintenaneenum (as defined in the loan
agreements). The loans on a portfolio of sixteaperties are cross-collateralized and cross-defduit December 31, 2003, SAC Holdings’
notes and loans payable to third parties, netsafalint, totaled $586.6 million.

We hold various junior unsecured notes of SAdldings. At March 15, 2004, these notes total320nillion in aggregate principal
amount. Interest on the junior notes of SAC Holdihegld by us accrues at 9%.

Interest on SAC Senior Notésterest accrues on the outstanding principal lwaari senior notes of SAC Holdings at a fixed &atd is
paid on a monthly basis.

Interest on SAC Junior Notdsterest accrues on the outstanding principal lwaan junior notes of SAC Holdings that we holdattatec
rate of basic interest. A fixed portion of that ioasterest is paid on a monthly basis. Additiom&érest is paid on the same payment date
based on the difference between the amount of réngabasic interest and an amount equal to a spdgkrcentage of

the net cash flow before interest expensegted by the underlying property
minus

thesum ofthe principal and interest due on the senior notéAC Holdings related to that propeetgda multiple of the fixed portion of
basic interest paid on that monthly payment date.

We refer to the latter amount as the “castvibased calculation.”

To the extent that this cash flow-based datmn exceeds the amount of remaining basic istemntingent interest equal to that excess
and the amount of remaining basic interest are paithe same monthly date as the fixed portionagidinterest. To the extent that the cash
flow-based calculation is less than the amouneofaining basic interest, the additional interegapée on the applicable monthly date is
limited to the amount of that cash flow-based dalibon. In such a case, the excess of the remalmasic interest over the cash flow-based
calculation is deferred and all amounts so defebesat the stated rate of basic interest until nitgtof the junior note.

The consolidated financial statements inclingeresults of SAC Holdings. As a result of thegalidation of SAC Holdings, these loans
held by AMERCO are eliminated in consolidation @imals not reflected in the consolidated financiatesnents.

Private Mini Storage Credit Facility

Private Mini Storage Realty, L.P. (“Privateril) is a Texas-based operator of self-storagealdacilities. Prior to June 30, 2003, Oxford
and U-Haul held a 79.5% and 0.5% interest, respaygtiin Private Mini. In June 2003, Oxford sold ihterest in Private Mini to SAC
Holding Corporation.

In 1997, Private Mini secured a $225 milleemior facility (the “Private Mini Facility”). Thamount of this facility was subsequently
reduced to $125 million. In connection with thisifdly, AMERCO entered into a support agreement rgbg it assumed responsibility for
fulfilling certain obligations under the Private MiFacility upon default or noncompliance with tthebt covenants of that facility (the “1997
Support Agreement”). The 1997 Support Agreementaioad cross-default provisions to AMERCO's othebd
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agreements and, as a result of AMERCOQ’s Chaptéitindg, AMERCO defaulted on the 1997 Support Agres In addition, Private Mini
defaulted on the Private Mini Facility by virtue mbn-payment of the outstanding balance at maturitipecember 2002, the lenders under
the Private Mini Facility exercised their optionremjuire AMERCO to purchase all commitment underRhivate Mini Facility.

In February 2003, an entity affiliated withiviate Mini closed on a $255 million financing (ttéew Private Mini Facility”) and
$70 million of these proceeds were used to pay diner$125 million Private Mini Facility. In connéat with the New Private Mini Facility,
AMERCO entered into a support agreement whereagrited to assume responsibility for $70 milliorobfigations in connection with this
borrowing in the event of certain events of deféhie “2003 Support Agreement”).

In February 2003, AMERCO executed a Non-Exatien Agreement whereby it affirmed its obligatimnpay $55.5 million pursuant to
the 1997 Support Agreement. This amount was treseth allowed unsecured claim and dischargedninesion with AMERCO'’s
emergence from Chapter 11 in March 2004.

AMERCO remains responsible for its obligation imnection with the 2003 Support Agreement and hearded a liability of $70 millio
with a corresponding increase to its receivablenfRrivate Mini.

U-Haul TRAC Lease Obligations

U-Haul acquires its rental fleet equipmernitarily through Terminal Adjustment Clause LeasdR@AC Leases”). TRAC Leases are
entered into with various third parties for the @is@ion of new rental fleet vehicles and are dinoed to qualify as operating leases. Genel
U-Haul acquires new rental fleet vehicles from Fordseneral Motors Corporation and transfers owriprsf the vehicles to the third party
owner/lessor. LHaul has an option to purchase the vehicle atnkeoéits lease for a defined residual value. Qastgxperience has been 1
the fair market value of the vehicles at the entheflease is higher than the residual buyout atn@uoeh, thus, we usually exercise our option
to acquire the rented vehicles at the end of thsdeln addition, AMERCO has guaranteed a subatantmber of the TRAC Leases.
Information about our future obligations under thasd other operating leases is include in thisgeotus under the heading “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations — Disclosures About Contr@dfbligations and Commercial
Commitments.”

Synthetic Lease Arrangements

At the time of our emergence from bankrupfsmerco Real Estate restructured approximately $2d8llion of our obligations under
synthetic lease arrangements (the “Synthetic L&psks part of this restructuring we paid down ampmately $31 million of obligations
under the Synthetic Leases and entered into nese legreements with the lessors. Our obligationsuthe new Synthetic Leases are
approximately $218.5 million. The new lease agragmare for a term of three years, and include émer year renewal options.

The purpose of these leases was to finamcputchase of self-storage properties and constaligstorage facilities on existing properti
AMERCO continues to guarantee each of these raatett Synthetic Leases. Title to the real propsutyject to these leases is in the name of
off balance sheet special purpose entities. Thetes are lessors who then lease the propediesé¢ or more subsidiaries of AMERCO.

Our approved Chapter 11 plan of reorganizationeraptates that our obligations under the Synthegi@ses will be satisfied when the |
property subject to the leases is sold to a thardyp We anticipate that such a transaction wiltlmsed into escrow by March 31, 2004. As a
result of such transaction, the Company expectsother approximately the next 24 months it willleémbursed for capital improvements we
made to the leased properties. In addition, asgdhis transaction U-Haul will enter into arrangents to manage these properties that will
allow us to continue to operate them as part otthéaul moving and self-storage system.

Although treated as an operating lease by RKD on a stand alone basis, in consolidation, ptigsepurchased by SAC Holdings from
AMERCO are reflected as financings of SAC Holdiingghe consolidated financial statements.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE EXCHANGE NOTES

The exchange notes will be issued by AMER@@& pant to an indenture entered into among AMER&XOssuer, the guarantors and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee. The followingnsnarizes the material terms and provisions oktt@hange notes and the indenture. The
terms of the outstanding notes include those siatétk indenture and those made part of the ingterity reference to the Trust Indenture
Act. The Security Documents referred to below uridersubheading “— Security” describe the termthefsecurity interests that secure the
notes. The following description does not purpoté¢ complete and is subject to the detailed piavisof the indenture. We urge you to read
the indenture and the Intercreditor Agreement dedecurity Documents because they, not this gegorj define your rights as holders of
the exchange notes. You may request copies of Hgreements at our address set forth under thengeg&vailable Information.”

The 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Note®608 are limited to $200 million in aggregate pijial amount. The notes mature on
February 27, 2009. The notes bear cash interastate of 9% per annum, payable quarterly in astdssed on 90 day quarters and 360 day
years. After default, the outstanding principaldoaie of the notes will bear interest at a rate leguz 0% greater than the otherwise applic
interest rate. In addition, under the terms ofitigenture we have 150 days after the issue dateeafutstanding notes to register our vehicles
and obtain new certificates of title naming Weltggo Foothill as first priority lienholder and ttrestee as second priority lienholder. If at
least 90% of the certificates of title are not stglied in accordance with the terms of the indentithin 150 days after the issue date of the
outstanding notes, the interest rate on the noiléawtomatically increase by 0.25% retroactivette issue date and will increase an additi
0.25% each succeeding 91st day thereafter up taxammm of 1.0% until such time as at least 90%hefcertificates of title are so registered.

Certain terms used in this description afendd under the subheading “— Certain Definitions.'this description, the word “Company”
refers only to AMERCO and not to any of its subeiis.

On March 15, 2004, in connection with our eg@@ce from Chapter 11 bankruptcy we issued $20dmin aggregate principal amount
of notes in two series, (1) $120 million Series&es, which were issued to then existing credporsuant to an exemption from registration
under section 1145 of the United States Bankru@imge (the “exempt notes” or the “Series A Notesi) §2) $80 million in aggregate
principal amount of notes, which were issued to mexestors (the “initial purchasers”) in a privgg@cement exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act (the “outstagdintes” or the “Series B Notes”). This prospe¢trsd the related registration statement)
relates to our offer to exchange $80 million aggtegrincipal amount of 9.0% Second Lien SeniougatNotes due 2009 that have been
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 fak@ &amount of the Series B Notes. As used in tBisstription of the Exchange Notes”, the
terms “Notes” and “notes” mean the Series A Notebthe Series B Notes, in each case except assskpprovided or as the context
otherwise requires.

Principal, Maturity and Interest

We will issue the exchange notes initialljfhwa maximum aggregate principal amount of $80iomllWe will issue the exchange notes in
denominations of $1. The notes will mature on Fabyr27, 2009. The exchange notes will be treatedsisgle class for all purposes of the
indenture, including waivers, amendments, redemptand offers to purchase.

Interest on the exchange notes will accramfthe date of their issuance at the rate of 9.8f@pnum and will be payable quarterly in
arrears on each March 15, June 15, September 1Beraiber 15, commencing on June 15, 2004. Wenaike each interest payment to
holders of record of the exchange notes on the uiettedy preceding March 1, June 1, September 1Dsmwmber 1. We will pay interest on
overdue principal at 2.0% per annum in excesseathove rate and will pay interest on overdue linséats of interest at such higher rate to
the extent lawful.
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Interest on the exchange notes will accramfthe date of original issuance. Interest wilcbenputed on the basis of a 360-day year
comprised of four 90-day quarters. Additional letrmay accrue on the notes in certain circumssapgesuant to the Registration Rights
Agreement and the indenture.

Optional Redemption
Except as set forth below, we are not beledtto redeem the notes prior to March 16, 2005.

On and after March 16, 2005, we are entidiedur option on one or more occasions to redeéor alportion of the notes upon not less
than 30 nor more than 60 days notice, at the retlemprices (expressed in percentages of prin@paunt on the redemption date), plus
accrued interest to the redemption date (subjettteaight of holders of record on the relevanbrdadate to receive interest due on the
relevant interest payment date) set forth belongdeemed during the 12-month period beginning Ma&Dbf the years indicated:

Redemption

Calendar Year Price
2005 105.5(%
2006 104.5%
2007 101.00%0
2008 and thereaftt 100.0(%

Selection and Notice of Redemption

If we are redeeming less than all the notesg time, the trustee will select notes in colupdie with the requirements of the principal
national securities exchange, if any, or if theesaire not listed, on a pro rata basis, by loyauzh other method as the trustee in its sole
discretion shall deem to be fair and appropriate.

We will redeem notes of $1. We will causeicex of redemption to be mailed by first-class maaikeast 30 but not more than 60 days
before the redemption date to each holder of rtotbe redeemed at its registered address.

If any note is to be redeemed in part ortlg, iotice of redemption that relates to that natiestate the portion of the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed. Upon written request oCithimpany, the trustee will issue a note in a ppacamount equal to the unredeemed
portion of the original note in the name of thedeslupon cancellation of the original note. Notaked for redemption become due on the
date fixed for redemption. On and after the redéonpiate, interest ceases to accrue on notes top®of them called for redemption.

Mandatory Redemption; Offers to Purchase; Open Marlet Purchases
Neither we nor the guarantors are requiraddake any mandatory redemption or sinking fund payswith respect to the notes.
Security

The notes are secured by a security int¢sesond only to the first priority security inteiggranted to Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to
the New Credit Agreement and the other Loan Docusnas defined in the New Credit Agreement) on thiatral.

From and after the date of the indentureh édmte Party will grant to the trustee a continusegurity interest (second only to the first
priority security interests granted to Bank Lend&igent pursuant to the New Credit Agreement) irodits right, title, and interest in all of
its currently existing and hereafter acquired @giag assets (other than Excluded Assets), inctu&iarsonal Property Collateral, in order to
secure prompt repayment of any and all of the akibgps hereunder in accordance with the terms andigons of the Note Documents ant
order to secure prompt performance by the Notdad3aof each of their covenants and duties undeNtite Documents. The Trustee’s Liens
in and to such assets, including,
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without limitation, the Personal Property Collateshall attach to all such assets without furtietron the part of the trustee or the Note
Parties.

The Company, the guarantors and the trustee éntered into one or more security agreemelaidge agreements, mortgages, deeds of
trust and collateral assignments (collectively, @®ecurity Documents’) defining the terms of the security interests #eture the notes.
These security interests secure the payment aforpemnce when due of all of the obligations of @@mpany and the guarantors under the
notes, the indenture, the guarantees and the 8ePatuments, as provided in the Security Documents

On March 1, 2004, the trustee and the Bamidees’ Collateral Agent, entered into the InterdmedAgreement. Each holder agreed to be
bound by the terms of the Intercreditor Agreem&ht Note Parties consented to and acknowledgelhtiereditor Agreement.

Subject to the terms of the Intercreditor dgment, we are entitled to release assets incindbée Collateral from the Liens securing the
notes under any one or more of the following cirstances:

(a) upon Legal Defeasance or Covenant Defeasanae{med below);
(b) any property being sold or disposed of if @ask is required or desirable in connection thehewi

(c) constituting property in which no Note Partyr®ad any interest at the time the Trustee’s Lien gragted or at any time
thereafter, o

(d) constituting property leased to a Note Partyeaura lease that has expired or is terminatediarsaction permitted under the
indenture;

(e) as otherwise permitted or required under thegeof the Intercreditor Agreement.
Guarantees

The guarantors have jointly and severallyrgnteed the principal, interest, premium, Additionéerest and fees, if any, on the notes will
be promptly paid in full when due and all otherigations of the Company under the notes, the Sigddicuments or other Note Documents
and in case of any extension of time of paymemenewal of any notes will be promptly paid in fulhen due. This guarantee is irrevocable
and unconditional and each guarantor guaranteésubh obligations will be paid strictly in acconta with the terms of the indenture.

Each guarantor that makes a payment undBlotis Guarantee will be entitled upon payment Ihdfiall guaranteed obligations under the
indenture to a contribution from each other guamaint an amount equal to such other guaranfmosrata portion of such payment.

Pursuant to the indenture, a guarantor magaalate with or merge with or into (whether ot soch Guarantor is the surviving Person)
another Person, whether or not affiliated with sGetarantor, and may consolidate with, merge withntar, or transfer all or substantially all
its assets to any other Person to the extent deschelow under the subheading “— Certain Covenantderger and Consolidation”;
provided, howeve, that such successor Person shall succeed toeasabistituted for the Guarantor with the same e#edf it had been
named as a guarantor.

Ranking

The 9.0% Second Lien Senior Secured Notdspari passun right of payment to our Exit Financing Facili§orrowings under the Exit
Financing Facility rank senior in right of paymeatall other indebtedness of AMERCO and its legdisidiaries (except for indebtedness of
Oxford and RepWest).
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Certain Covenants

The indenture contains covenants includinggrag others, the following:

Limitation on Indebtednes:

The Note Parties will not incur, directlyiadirectly, any Indebtedness, other than the folfgnndebtedness:
(a) Indebtedness evidenced by the indenture andatfes, the Note Guarantees and the Guaranty Agreem

(b) Indebtedness of the Company and any other Ratgy incurred under the New Credit Agreement dhaoltlaer obligations in
respect thereof in an aggregate amount at anydintstanding not to exceed $575 million, less mamggtermanent prepayments and
permanent reductions plus: (i) advances made pursodhe New Credit Agreement to pay expensebefdnders thereunder (including
expenses accruing after the commencement of aojvbrscy or Liquidation Proceeding (as defined ia Mew Credit Agreement),
whether or not a claim for post-filing or pgsttition expenses is allowed in such proceedinig)advances made to protect or preserve
“Collateral” under the New Credit Agreement and ¢tieer Loan Documents (as defined in the New Crggitement), (iii) advances
made to pay interest (including interest accruindar the terms of the New Credit Agreement andésteaccruing after the
commencement of any Insolvency or Liquidation Pealieg (as defined in the New Credit Agreement), tivbieor not a claim for post-
filing or post-petition interest is allowed in sugloceeding), and (iv) advances made pursuanetdldw Credit Agreement to pay fees
under the New Credit Agreement (including fees @iogr after the commencement of any Insolvency quldation Proceeding (as
defined in the New Credit Agreement), whether dranolaim for posfiling or pos-petition fees are allowed in such proceedil

(c) Indebtedness in existence as of the Issue &atebligations to make payments required undeR#wrganization Plan;

(d) (i) Purchase Money Indebtedness and Capitaliezade Obligations (other than Capital Leasesetyhe set forth in clause (ii))
incurred after the Issue Date in an aggregate atmmmirio exceed $30 million; and (ii) Capital Less® the extent such Capital Leases
arise out of the treatment of any of the Synthietiases (including any refinancings, in whole opant, thereof) as Capital Leases in
accordance with the requirements of GA/

(e) Indebtedness under the New AMERCO Notes t@xtent outstanding on the Issue Date;

(f) guarantee obligations of the Company (i) erigtas of Issue Date, (ii) guarantee obligationthefCompany in connection with
the Reorganization Plan, (iii) guarantee obligatiohthe Company with respect to the Support Pagtegements, (iv) guarantee
obligations with respect to TRAC Lease Transactiarthe ordinary course of business, to the exdanh obligations are and are
consistent with past practices, (v) guarantee ahbgs of a Note Party pursuant to any refinanaiegewal or extension of Indebtedness,
and (vi) guarantee obligations of a Note Party wétbpect to the obligations of any other Note Piatyrred in the ordinary course of
business, to the extent such guaranteed obligegiparmitted to be uncured by such guaranteed Ratty hereunder and is consistent
with past practice

(9) Indebtedness comprising Permitted Investments;

(h) Indebtedness with respect to letters of criedited by a party other than the Issuing Lendedéfised in the New Credit
Agreement) and secured by cash collateral in anegggée amount not to exceed $3 million at any tiame

(i) refinancings, renewals, or extensions of Inddbess permitted under clauses (c) and (d) abodec@ntinuance or renewal of any
Permitted Liens associated therewith) (specificakgluding the New AMERCO Notes), so long as:i{@ terms and conditions of such
refinancings, renewals,
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extensions do not materially impair the prospettepayment of the obligations by the Borrowersraterially impair the Borrower’s
creditworthiness, (ii) such refinancings, renewatsextensions do not result in an increase irptircipal amount (other than capitalized
fees and, with respect to any refinancing of thetBstic Leases, to the extent they are treatecapgal Leases in accordance with GA,
any increases directly attributable to improvememt®r to the Real Property covered by such Syittheiases) of, or interest rate bey«
a prevailing market rate with respect to, the Inddbess so refinanced, renewed, or extendeds\ii refinancings, renewals, or
extensions do not result in a shortening of theaye weighted maturity of the Indebtedness soaafiad, renewed, or extended, (other
than such changes in the average weighted matfrihe Synthetic Leases, to the extent they astdreas Capital Leases in accordance
with GAAP, resulting from the refinancing, in whade in part, of the Synthetic Leases pursuant¢ditP Carey Transaction or other
refinancing transaction in form and substance neglsly satisfactory to the Trustee or as permitethie Bank Lenders’ Agent), nor are
they on terms or conditions, that, taken as a wtayke materially more burdensome or restrictivéheoapplicable Borrower, and (iv) if t
Indebtedness that is refinanced, renewed, or egtbnés subordinated in right of payment to thegattions, then the terms and
conditions of the refinancing, renewal, or extendiedebtedness must include subordination termscanditions that are at least as
favorable to the holders of the notes as thosevtked applicable to the refinanced, renewed, areled Indebtednes

Limitation on Liens

The Note Parties will not directly or inditgg incur or permit to exist any Lien of any nauwwhatsoever on any of its assets (including
capital Stock of a Restricted Subsidiary), whethened at the Issue Date or thereafter acquire@rattan Permitted Liens.

Limitation on Sale/ Leaseback Transactiol

The Note Parties will not enter into any $akaseback Transaction (except for Permitted Gigjpms as defined below) with respect to
any property.

Merger and Consolidatior

(a) The Note Parties will not enter into angrger, consolidation, reorganization, or recajaiion, or reclassify its Stock (other than in
connection with the Reorganization Plan), excegt, tho long as no default or event of default tvests or would be caused thereby and the
trustee receives written notice of any such meagjézast 30 days prior to the effectiveness thefgaivided that the trustee shall have no «
to act upon receipt of such notice except as espyrgsovided in accordance with the terms of thaeimure). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
in a merger that involves a Note Party, any Subsydihat is not a Note Party may merge into angio8ubsidiary that is not a Note Party,
any Note Party (other than the Company, U-Haul BEE) may merge into any other Note Party (othen the Company, WHaul or AREC)
provided, however, the Person surviving such meshal be a Note Party, and the trustee shall hesgived, upon the effectiveness of such
merger, such documents as the trustee reasonajlgses to continue or insure the priority and ptide of the Trustee’s Liens on the
Collateral or the obligations of any such Note Yartder any of the Note Documents. Notwithstandiegforegoing, a Subsidiary that is not
an Insurance Subsidiary shall not merge with asyidance Subsidiary.

(b) The Note Parties will not liquidate, wing, or dissolve any Borrower or any of the Borrga&ubsidiaries (or suffer any liquidation
or dissolution), except that the Company may ligted dissolve or wind up any Subsidiary (other th&EC and U-Haul or any Insurance
Subsidiary) so long as (i) no default or event@fadlt then exists hereunder or would be cause@blyeand the trustee receives written notice
of any such action at least 30 days prior to tiectif’eness thereof (provided that the trusteel sizale no duty to act upon receipt of such
notice except as expressly provided in clausel{@lpw), (ii) the assets of such Subsidiary aredi@rred to another Subsidiary of the
Company or, if such Subsidiary is a Note Partygriother Note Party and such assets remain subjagbérfected Lien (second in priority
only to the first priority security interests gradtto Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to the New Grédreement the other
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Loan Documents (as defined in the New Credit Agremiinand subject to Permitted Liens) under a Nateuinent after such transfer, and
(iii) the trustee shall have received such NoteuDoents as the trustee reasonably requests to gerdininsure the priority and perfection of
the Trustee’s Liens on the Collateral or the oltiayes of any such Subsidiary under any of the Nlteuments. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a dissolving or liquidating Subsidiaimat is not an Insurance Subsidiary shall not tema$sets to any Insurance Subsidiary.

Disposal of Asset

Other than Permitted Dispositions, The NaeiBs will not convey, sell, lease, license, assitansfer, or otherwise dispose of, in one
transaction or a series of transactions, any oa#isets of any Borrower or any Guarantor. To therda sale or other disposition is permitted
by clause (k) of the definition of Permitted Disjtims and if an authorized officer of Company de$ in writing to the trustee that (a) the
sale is permitted under this paragraph, (b) theidlehidentified (by vehicle identification numbenake and model) in such certification are
to be sold in connection with a TRAC Lease Trarisacind (c) such Vehicles are to be sold on a @ateh such date,"&ale Date” ) no late
than 130 days from the date of such certificatibmstees Lien on such Vehicles shall be deemed to besettane business day prior to s
sale; provided, however, that in the event one @renof such Vehicles are not sold in connectiom&iTRAC Lease Transaction within five
business days of the Sale Date indicated in sutliication, the Vehicles that are not so sold shatome subject to a Lien (second in pric
only to the first priority security interests gradtto the Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to the Nead Agreement and the other
Loan Documents (as defined in the New Credit Agreat)) in favor of the trustee on the fifth businday following such Sale Date and the
Company shall, or shall cause the other Borroweuarantors, as applicable, to comply immediatéth the requirements of the indenture
with respect to such Vehicles. The Note Partiedl slog without the prior written consent of theltiers as required under the indenture,
transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of any of tlehigles or the Certificates of Title except in agrgtion with a Permitted Disposition
hereunder, or relocate the Certificates of Title.

Change Name

The Note Parties will not change the Compsumy’any Guarantor’'s name, federal employer ideatibn number, organizational ID
number assigned to any Note Party by the appliagd¥ernment unit or agency of jurisdiction of fotina of that party, corporate structure,
or identity, or add any new fictitious name, omnarporate or reorganize itself under the lawsngyf@ther jurisdiction other than the
jurisdiction of incorporation of such Person; pded, however, that any Borrower or any Guarantor a@nge its name upon at le
30 days’ prior written notice by the Company to Thrastee of such change and so long as, at thedirsech written notification, the
Company and/or such Guarantor provides or authettze filing of any Uniform Commercial Code finangistatements or fixture filings
necessary to perfect and continue perfected thetfels Liens.

Guarantee

The Note Parties will not guarantee or otherwiseob®e in any way liable with respect to the obligasi of any third Person (including t
Insurance Subsidiaries) except by endorsementtiiiments or items of payment for deposit to thmant of Company or Guarantors or
which are transmitted or turned over to the trusteeept for (a) guarantee obligations of the Camgpexisting as of Issue Date, (b) guarantee
obligations of the Company in connection with theoRyanization Plan, (c) guarantee obligations ef@ompany with respect to the Support
Party Agreements, (d) guarantee obligations witipeet to TRAC Lease Transactions in the ordinagysmof business, to the extent the
obligations thereunder are permitted under the satding “— Limitation on Indebtednesahd are consistent with past practices, (e) guee
obligations of a Note Party pursuant to any refaiiag, renewal or extension of (h) Indebtedness vétipect to letters of credit issued by a
party other than the Issuing Lender (as definatiénNew Credit Agreement) and secured by cashteadlain an aggregate amount not to
exceed $3 million at any time, and (f) guaranteligabions of a Note Party with respect to the ofigns of any other Note Party incurred in
the ordinary
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course of business, to the extent such guarantdaghtion is permitted to be incurred by such gngead Note Party hereunder and is
consistent with past practices.

Nature of Busines:

The Note Parties will not make any changeéprincipal nature of any Note Party’s business.

Prepayments and Amendmer

(a) The Note Parties will not prepay, rededefease, purchase, or otherwise acquire any ladebss of any Note Party, other than (i) the
obligations relating to the Company’s debtor-ing®Ession loan and security agreement; (ii) as reduiy the Confirmation Order;
(iii) Obligations (as defined in the New Credit Agment) under the New Credit Agreement in accomarith the terms thereof;
(iv) obligations in accordance with the indenturg;in connection with a refinancing permitted bguese (i) under the subheading “—
Limitation on Indebtedness”; (vi) prepaymentstaf tndebtedness under the New AMERCO Notes sodsmp event of default has
occurred and is continuing or would result thenefy¢A) from the Net Proceeds from the monetizatosale of the Excluded Assets or (B
all other circumstances, so long as (1) the aggeesyaount of such prepayments in any fiscal yegether with the aggregate amount of
dividends paid in arrears in such fiscal year lyBorrowers pursuant to clause (c) under the sutihgd— Distributions”, shall not, in the
aggregate, exceed the ECF Carry Forward Amouahyf then in existence, and (2) on the date of puepayment Borrowers are in
compliance with the Excess Availability Test; ((1i) prepayments of the Indebtedness under the 8fatheases with insurance proceeds or
condemnation proceeds received by a Note Partgrinection with any loss or condemnation of the Bgtit Lease Collateral,
(2) prepayments of the Indebtedness under the 8fotheases upon the sale of any parcel of the Rexderty subject to the Synthetic Lee
pursuant to an arms-length sale to a bona fidehager that is not an Affiliate of the Company (Wisetor not an Affiliate leases back or
retains the right to manage, occupy or conductimss at the affected Synthetic Lease Propertyp tipe amount of the net sale proceeds, or
(3) so long as no Event of Default exists, any ogrepayments of principal Indebtedness requirgdyant to the provisions of the Synthetic
Leases, so long as (I) the aggregate amount ofagayments in any fiscal year, together withapgregate amount of prepayments in such
fiscal year by Borrowers pursuant to clause (vigpve plus the aggregate amount of dividendsipadrears in such fiscal year by
Borrowers pursuant to clause (c) under the subhgdéi- Distributions” below, shall not, in the aggege, exceed the ECF Carry Forward
Amount, if any, then in existence, and (Il) on tiae of such prepayment Borrowers are in compliavitethe Excess Availability Test,
(vii) in addition to the principal payments undbe Synthetic Leases to be made on the Effective Bacontemplated by the Reorganization
Plan, the actual the scheduled payments of prihaipdinterest due under the Synthetic Leasesnatds of which are set forth on the
schedules of the New Credit Agreement (including financings, in whole or in part, thereof); o1 (other Indebtedness with the conser
the Required Lenders; or

(b) The Note Parties will not except in coctien with a refinancing permitted by clause (identhe subheading “— Limitation on
Indebtedness”, directly or indirectly, amend, mpgdélter, increase, or change any of the term®noditions of any agreement, instrument,
document, indenture, or other writing evidencingoncerning Indebtedness permitted under the tefrtte indenture (other than such
amendments required under the terms of the indentur

(c) The Note Parties will not amend, modifyotherwise change its Governing Documents, incggdwithout limitation, by the filing or
modification of any certificate of designation,ary agreement or arrangement entered into by lit kegpect to any of its capital Stock
(including any shareholders’ agreement), or emti&r any new agreement with respect to any of ipitabStock, except as appropriate to
accomplish a transaction permitted pursuant undestibheading “— Restrictions on Fundamental Crainge (i) amend, modify or
otherwise change any Material Contract (other tndfaterial Contract, the amendment of which is gogd by clause (b) above) except any
such amendments, modifications or changes or acty Isew agreements or arrangements pursuant tpahagraph (c) that, either
individually or in the aggregate, could not readinde expected to have a Material Adverse Chamigéii) amend,
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modify or otherwise change any Affiliate Contractamy contract with SAC Holding, SSI, PMSR or PMferred except in compliance with
the restrictions under the subheading “— Transastiith Affiliates”.

Change of Control

The Note Parties will not cause, permit,uffes, directly or indirectly, any Change of Corfrather than in connection with the
consummation of the Reorganization Plan on theckffe Date.

Ownership of Certain Assets

The Note Parties will not cause, permit,uffes any Subsidiary, other than Borrowers and UdH{&anada), to own any parcel of Real
Property Collateral or any Vehicle included in ©ellateral unless (a) Company provides the trustige 10 days’ prior written notice of such
intended ownership, (b) such Subsidiary becomesadator under the indenture and delivers to th&¢e any additional documents
requested by the trustee in their Permitted Digmmetand (c) the Company takes or causes to ba taksuch action necessary to perfect the
trustee’s Lien on such Collateral (second in ptyoonly to the first priority security interestsaguted to the Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to
the New Credit Agreement and the other Loan Docusn@s defined in the New Credit Agreement)) amdGompany delivers to the trustee
an opinion of counsel stating that all action hasrbtaken to perfect such Lien.

Distributions

The Note Parties will not make any distributiordeclare or pay any dividends (in cash or other @rypother than common Stock) on
purchase, acquire, redeem, or retire any of ang Ratty’s Stock, of any class, whether now or Heeautstanding, except, so long as no
event of default has occurred and is continuingtieder or would result therefrom, distributiongleclarations and payments of dividends:
(a) by a Note Party to another Note Party, (b)rengreferred stock of the Company, based on theialcof dividends subsequent to the Issue
Date (including, without limitation, the paymentdifidends in an aggregate amount not to exceegB$3nillion paid on account of
dividends on the preferred stock of the Companyuwsttfor the period ended February 29, 2004), inggregate amount not to exceed
$13 million in any fiscal year, so long as at timeet of payment of any such dividend, Borrowersiareompliance with the Excess
Availability Test, and (c) on the preferred stod¢klee Company based on the accrual of dividends poithe Issue Date (including, without
limitation, the payment of dividends in an aggregamnount not to exceed $3.335 million paid on antofidividends on the preferred stock
of the Company accrued prior to or for the perindexl November 30, 2003), so long as (i) the aggeemaount of such dividends in arrears
shall not exceed the lesser of (x) $19.6 milliordpa the aggregate on or after the Issue Datg)aiogether with the aggregate amount of any
prepayments paid by Borrowers in such fiscal yeasyant to clause (a)(vi)(2) under the subheadirgPrepayments and Amendmentslys
the aggregate amount of any prepayments paid byo®ers in such fiscal year pursuant to clause i@y under the subheading “—

Prepayments and Amendments”, the ECF Carry Fon&ardunt, if any, then in existence, and (ii) at timee of payment of any such
dividend in arrears, Borrowers are in compliancthwhe Excess Availability Test.

Accounting Methods

The Note Parties will not modify or changeitHiscal year from a year ending March 31 ortlmeéthod of accounting (other than as may
be required to conform to GAAP) or enter into, nfigdor terminate any agreement currently existiorgat any time hereafter entered into
with any third party accounting firm or service éau for the preparation or storage of the Noteid&rccounting records without said
accounting firm or service bureau agreeing to mtevrustee information regarding the CollateraBorrowers’ and their Subsidiaries’
financial condition.
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Formation of Subsidiaries; Investment

(a) Except for Permitted Investments, TheeNearties will not directly or indirectly, make acquire any Investment, or incur any
liabilities (including contingent obligations) for in connection with any Investment; provided, leeer, that the Company and its
Subsidiaries shall not (i) have Permitted Investim¢other than in the Cash Management Accountdd€fised in the New Credit Agreemen
in Deposit Accounts or Securities Accounts in exa&s$3 million in the aggregate outstanding at ang time (excluding Deposit Accounts
or Securities Accounts containing only the caslceeals received from the WP Carey Transaction é@itent such proceeds will be fully
utilized in such transaction), and any proceeds ftiee monetization of Excluded Assets, and any Biggacounts maintained by U-Haul
solely in its capacity as manager of propertiesedvoy SAC Holding or SSI under a Management Agregmevided U-Haul has no rights
to or interest in the funds deposited therein) ssitbe Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as egiple, and the applicable securities
intermediary or bank have entered into Control &gnents or similar arrangements governing such Redrinvestments as to perfect (and
further establish) the Trustee’s secondary Liersuich Permitted Investments, or (ii) forgive or weaihe repayment or retirement or amend
the terms of any Investment in existence on or #fte Issue Date in SAC Holding or any such Persade by the Company or any
Subsidiary that is required to be repaid or retligdhe terms of such Investment as in effect oaftar the Issue Date (other than in
accordance with the terms thereof as in effecherdite the Investment is made).

(b) The Note Parties will not form any newbSidiary or acquire any direct or indirect Subsgigiafter the Issue Date, unless (i) such
Subsidiary is a whollyawned Subsidiary of a Note Party, and such NotéyRhall (A) cause such new Subsidiary to enter snsupplement
indenture and provide to the trustee a Note Guaeaand a joinder to the Guaranty Agreement, thedBitar Security Agreement, the
Copyright Security Agreement, and the Patent ardi@mark Security Agreement, together with suchratbeurity documents (including
mortgages and mortgage policies with respect toRegl Property of such new Subsidiary), as wegsopriate Uniform Commercial Code
financing statements (and with respect to all priypgubject to a Mortgage, fixture filings) all iarm and substance satisfactory to the Tru
(including being sufficient to grant the trustekian (second in priority only to the first priorigecurity interests granted to Bank Lenders’
Agent pursuant to the New Credit Agreement therdtlean Documents (as defined in the New Credit &grent) and subject to Permitted
Liens) in and to the assets of such newly formeacouired Subsidiary), and (B) provide to the #esi pledge agreement and appropriate
certificates and powers or Uniform Commercial Céidancing statements, hypothecating all of thedioe beneficial ownership interest in
such new Subsidiary, in form and substance subisligrgimilar to the Stock Pledge Agreement anceottorresponding Security Documents,
and provide to the trustee one or more opinionsahsel satisfactory to the trustee, with respethé execution and delivery of the
applicable documentation referred to above andiogithat all action has been taken to perfect thistEe’s Lien in and to the assets of such
Subsidiary and all direct or beneficial ownershiferests in such new Subsidiary, and (ii) the éiseceives 30 days’ prior written notice of
such formation or acquisition.

Transactions with Affiliates

Except (a) as otherwise set forth in the Baoization Plan, (b) for the Company’s reimbursent@nor payment on behalf of, SAC
Holding, of (i) reasonable attorneys’ fees incurbgdSAC Holding in connection with the preparatioegotiation and implementation of the
SAC Participation and Subordination Agreement,to@xceed an aggregate amount of $500,000, (iijpadyall reasonable direct out of
pocket expenses (including reasonable attornegs’ #&ad accountants’ fees and trustee’s fees, bluding the payment of principal,
premium, if any, and interest in respect of the SAdlding Senior Bond and any other amount payapl8AC Holding pursuant to the terms
of the SAC Note Indenture) incurred by SAC Holdingonnection with its reporting or other compliarabligations under the SAC
Notes Indenture in an aggregate amount not to eiggenillion in any 1-month period, and (iii) the Company’s obligatiamgler the
Agreement to Indemnify, or (c) as consented toheyttustee and the Required Holders, directly diréttly enter into or permit to exist any
transaction with any Affiliate of any Borrower, SA@Iding, SSI, PMSR or PM Preferred except for $astions that are in the ordinary
course of the Borrowers’ business,
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upon fair and reasonable terms that are no lessdhle to the Borrowers than would be obtainedhimm@n’s length transaction with a non-
Affiliate. Borrowers shall not, and shall not petrany their Subsidiaries to, transfer any cashssets to the Insurance Subsidiaries, the
Dormant Subsidiaries or INW under any circumstanageatsoever or guarantee or otherwise incur anghitetiness on behalf of such
Insurance Subsidiaries, Dormant Subsidiaries or INW

Suspensior

Except as permitted under the subheading ‘estiittions on Fundamental Changes”, the Note éxawtill not suspend or go out of a
substantial portion of its business.

Use of Proceed

Use the proceeds from the sale of the Nateariy purpose other than (a) on the Issue Datgaydransactional fees, costs, and expenses
incurred in connection with this Agreement, theentNote Documents, and the transactions contentpleireby and thereby, (b) to fund the
Reorganization Plan and (c) thereafter, for worldagital and other general corporate purposeseoBtitrrowers, in each case consistent with
the terms and conditions hereof, for its lawful @edmitted purposes.

Change in Location of Chief Executive Office; Equipent with Bailees

The Note Parties will not relocate its cteg&cutive office to a new location without the Camy providing 30 days’ prior written
notification thereof to the trustee and so longaashe time of such written notification, the dpable Note Party provides or authorizes the
filing of any Uniform Commercial Code financing s&ments or fixture filings necessary to perfect aodtinue perfected the Trustee’s Liens
and also provide to the trustee a Collateral Acéeggement, in a form substantially similar to tb@3ollateral Access Agreements with
respect to such new location. The Equipment ofNibe Parties shall not at any time now or heredigestored with a bailee, warehouseman,
or similar party (other than a U-Haul Dealer) with®@ank Lenders’ Agent’s prior written consent gmmbr written notification to the trustee.

Securities Account:

The Note Parties will not establish or maintain &&gurities Account unless the trustee shall haweived a Control Agreement in resy
of such Securities Account. No Note Party shatidfar assets out of any Securities Account; praljilewever, that, so long as no event of
default has occurred and is continuing or wouldilteterefrom, such Note Party may use such agaetsthe proceeds thereof) to the extent
not prohibited by the indenture.

Financial Covenants

(a) EBITDA/ Capital ExpenditureShe Note Parties will not allow Consolidated EBITD#Anus Capital Expenditures, each as measured
on a fiscal quarter-end basis for the applicabl@opgeset forth below,
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to be less than the required amount set forthérfahowing table as of the applicable date sethfopposite thereto:

Applicable Amount Applicable Date
$15 million For the :-month period ending June 30, 2C
$65 million For the -month period ending September 30, 2
$65 million For the -month period ending December 31, 2(
$60 million For the 1-month period ending March 31, 20
$48 million For the 1-month period ending June 30, 2C
$25 million For the 1-month period ending September 30, 2!
$25 million For the 1-month period ending December 31, 2(
$30 million For the 1-month period ending March 31, 20
$80 million For the 1-month period ending June 30, 2C
$115 millior For the 1-month period ending September 30, 2!
$110 millior For the 1-month period ending December 31, 2(
$105 millior For the 1-month period ending March 31, 20

provided, howeve, that based upon Borrowers’ Projections (as ddfinghe New Credit Agreement) delivered to thetire pursuant to the
terms of the New Credit Agreement, the Requireddiees shall establish quarterly EBITDA minus Capifabenditure covenants for each
fiscal quarter after March 2007, using the samehodilogy as utilized for 2004, 2005 and 2006, d&eddovenants shall be presented to the
Company for its approval, which approval shall betunreasonably withheld. In the event the Compukn®s not approve the proposed
covenants, Required Lenders shall establish suabnemts, in their Permitted Discretion, based upomowers’Projections (as defined in t
New Credit Agreement) for the applicable fiscalry:

(b) Capital ExpendituresThe Note Parties will not make Capital Expenditureany fiscal year in excess of the amount sehfor the
following table for the applicable period:

Fiscal Year 2005 Fiscal Year 2006 Fiscal Year 2007

$185 million $245 million $195 million

provided, howeve, that based upon Borrowers’ Projections (as ddfinghe New Credit Agreement) delivered to thetire pursuant to the
terms of the New Credit Agreement, the Requireddiees shall establish quarterly Capital Expenditaeenants for each fiscal year after
2007, using the same methodology as utilized f@52@006 and 2007, and the covenants shall bengszgs®o the Company for its approval,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withhildhe event the Company does not approve the pazboovenants, Required Lenders
shall establish such covenants, in their Permiftisdretion, based upon Borrowers’ Projections @#ed in the New Credit Agreement) for
the applicable fiscal year.

Employee Benefit:

The Note Parties will not directly or inditc

(a) engage in any prohibited transaction whicle&sonably likely to result in a civil penalty orcése tax described in Sections 502(i)
of ERISA or 4975 of the internal revenue code fbiiah a statutory or class exemption is not ava@laivla private exemption has not b
previously obtained from the Department of Lat

(b) with respect to any Benefit Plan, permit tostxn accumulated funding deficiency (as defineSantions 302 of ERISA and 412
of the internal revenue code) for a period longant30 days, whether or not waivi

(c) fail to pay timely required contributions ormaral installments due with respect to any waivedifng deficiency to any Benefit
Plan;
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(d) terminate any Benefit Plan where such eventldvoesult in any liability of any Borrower, any Ssifiary of any Borrower or any
ERISA Affiliate under Title IV of ERISA

(e) fail to make any required contribution or payti® any multiemployer plan;

() fail to pay any required installment or any @tlpayment required under Section 412 of the ialexvenue code on or before the
due date for such installment or other paym

(g) amend a Benefit Plan resulting in an increassurrent liability for the plan year such that @&yrrower, any Subsidiary of any
Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is required to piide security to such Plan under Section 401(a)¢2®e internal revenue code;

(h) withdraw from any multiemployer plan where swdgthdrawal is reasonably likely to result in amghiility of any such entity
under Title IV of ERISA;

that, individually or in the aggregate, result®irreasonably would be expected to result in arckgainst or liability of any Borrower, any
Subsidiary of any Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate €xcess of $25,000.

Sales and Leasebacl

Except for Permitted Dispositions, The Note Pani@snot enter into any arrangement, directly ndirectly, with any third party wherel
any Note Party shall sell or transfer any propesg) or personal, whether now owned or hereafteuiaed, and whereby such Note Party
shall then or thereafter rent or lease as lesseeaf property or any part thereof or other proptrat such Note Party intends to use for
substantially the same purpose or purposes agtipeny sold or transferred.

Speculative Transaction

The Note Parties will not engage in any taatisn involving commodity options or futures cautis or any similar speculative
transactions except for Hedge Agreements thatsed solely as part of normal business operatioasras& management strategy and/or
hedge against charges resulting from market operain accordance with the Company’s customaryciggiand not as a means to speculate
for investment purposes or trends and shifts iarfaial or commodities markets.

Amendment to Certain Agreemen

Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary stgglenter into or consent to any amendment, supgieéor other modification of the
indenture or the Security Documents (except as ppecunder the indenture), and (b) amend, ressajgplement, modify, waive or otherw
change or consent or agree to any amendment, roaiiliin, waiver or other change to, any of the teofithe New Credit Agreement in any
manner prohibited by the Intercreditor Agreement.

Defaults

Events of Defaulli

Each of the following is an event of default:

(a) failure by the Company to pay interest on afthe notes when it becomes due and payable antbtitsnuance of any such
failure for 5 days

(b) failure by the Company to pay the principahai of the notes when it becomes due and payablether at stated maturity, upon
redemption, upon purchase, upon acceleration @netke;

(c) subject in certain restrictions described i ittdenture, failure to perform, keep, or obsemain terms, provisions, covenants,
or agreements contained in the indent

(d) subject in certain restrictions described i itidenture, failure by a Note Party to perfornggkeor observe any other term,
provision, covenant, or agreement contained irinttienture or in any ¢
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the other Note Documents (giving effect to any grperiods, cure periods, or required notices, yf aspressly provided for in such
Note Documents)

(f) if any material portion of any Note Party’s assis attached, seized, subjected to a writ dregis warrant, levied upon, or comes
into the possession of any third pers

(g) if any Note Party is enjoined, restrained,roany way prevented by court order from contindimgonduct all or any material p:
of its business affair:

(h) if a notice of Lien, levy, or assessment, imndiixally or in the aggregate in an amount of $500,00greater, is filed of record with
respect to any Note Party’s assets by the UnitateSor Canada, or any department, agency, oumsftality thereof, or by any state,
province, territory, county, municipal, or governmted agency, or if any taxes or debts owing attimg hereafter to any one or more of
such entities becomes a Lien, whether choate @nothe, upon any Borrower’s or any of its Subsigsirassets and the same is not paid
on the payment date there

(i) if a judgment or other claim becomes a Lierencumbrance upon any material portion of any Nei#yf properties or assets;

() if there is a default in any material agreemenivhich any Note Party is a party including, weith limitation, any Material
Contract, Affiliate Contract or any material comtravith any of SAC Holding, SSI, PMSR or PM Preésti(other than the New
AMERCO Notes and the Synthetic Leases) or any dtidgbtedness in excess of $1 million, and suchudefa) occurs at the final
maturity of the obligations thereunder, or (b) fesin the acceleration of the maturity of the aggdble Note Party’s obligations
thereunder

(k) except as otherwise set forth in the Reorgditimalan or as otherwise permitted by the indentiirany Note Party makes any
payment on account of Indebtedness that has begractually subordinated in right of payment to paeyment of the Obligations of the
Note Parties under the Notes and the other NoteiDeats;

(1) if the obligation of any Guarantor under theaBanty Agreement or the Note Guarantee is limitei@ioninated by operation of
law or by such Guarantor thereunc

(m) if the indenture or any other Note Document fhaports to create a Lien, shall, for any rea$aihpr cease to create a valid and
perfected, except to the extent permitted by thasehereof or thereof, Lien on or security inteesich, second in priority only to the
first priority security interests granted to Bang&riders’ Agent pursuant to the New Credit Agreenaatthe other Loan Documents (as
defined in the New Credit Agreement)) in the Cealtat covered hereby or therel

(n) if any provision of any Note Document shalbay time for any reason be declared to be nulhand, or the validity or
enforceability thereof shall be contested by anyeNrarty, or a proceeding shall be commenced byNag Party, or by any
governmental authority having jurisdiction over aigte Party, seeking to establish the invalidityipenforceability thereof, or any Note
Party shall deny that any Note Party has any ligtokr obligation purported to be created under Bioye Document

(o) if suit or action is commenced against thetdesnd/or any note holder and, as to any suittisrabrought by any person other
than the Note Parties or an officer or employethefNote Parties, is continued without dismissaB days after service thereof on the
trustee, that asserts, by or on behalf of the IRaities, any claim or legal or equitable remedycisieeks subordination of the claim or
Lien of the trustee and/or any note holder hereundander any other Note Docume

(p) if any Note Party shall file any applicationsapport of, or shall otherwise fail to contesgood faith, a suit or action of the type
set forth in clause (0) above filed by any perstireothan a Borrower or an officer or employee ofidwers;

(q) if an insolvency proceeding is commenced bggainst any Note Party, or any of its Subsidiafaglser than INW), and any of t
following events occur: (a) the applicable NotetiPar the Subsidiary consents to the institutiothaf insolvency proceeding against it,
(b) the petitior
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commencing the insolvency proceeding is not tinoelgtroverted, (c) the petition commencing the inenty proceeding is not dismiss
within 45 calendar days of the date of the filihgreof, (d) an interim trustee is appointed to gaéesession of all or any substantial
portion of the properties or assets of, or to ogeadl or any substantial portion of the busindssoy Note Party or any of its
Subsidiaries, or (e) an order for relief shall hheen entered therein;

(r) (i) if any event of default occurs under anywNAMERCO Note Document or any of the Synthetic lesagii) if any holder of
New AMERCO Notes contests that the Obligations tneder constitut“Senior Indebtednessinder the New AMERCO Notes Indentt
(iii) any event of default occurs under the Newdirégreement or any other Loan Document (as ddfinghe New Credit Agreemen

(s) failure by the Note Parties to register suligliy all of the Certificates of Title pursuant tioe terms of the indenture within
180 days after the Issue Da

(t) failure by the Note Parties to deliver the Myages, related fixture filings and Mortgage Pofigieirsuant to the terms of the
indenture, within 60 days after the Issue Date

(u) if any material misstatement or material misesgntation exists now or hereafter in any warramyresentation, statement, or
Record made to the Holders by any Borrower, itss@liries, or any officer, employee, agent, oraiwe of any Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries

Acceleration

If an event of default (other than an evdrdedault specified in clause (q) above with respgeche Company) shall have occurred and be
continuing, then the trustee or the holders oéast 25% in aggregate principal amount of the nibis outstanding, may declare all amounts
owing under the notes to be due and payable imredgidy notice in writing to the Company (and be tirustee if given by holders). Upon
such declaration of acceleration, the aggregateipal of and accrued and unpaid interest on thstauding notes shall immediately become
due and payable; provided, however, that after sgckleration, but before a judgment or decreecbasecceleration, the Required holders
may rescind and annul such acceleration, by notie&iting to the Company and the trustee, if aiémsts of default, other than the
nonpayment of accelerated principal and interestelbeen cured or waived as provided in the indentiian event of default specified in
clause (q) above occurs with respect to the Compalhgutstanding notes shall become due and payaithout any further action or notice.

In the case of an Event of Default occurtiygreason of any willful action (or inaction) tak@r not taken) by or on behalf of the
Company with the intention of avoiding paymenttof premium that the Company would have had to fpdaeiCompany then had elected to
redeem the Notes, an equivalent premium shalllzdsome and be immediately due and payable, toxtieatgpermitted by law, upon the
acceleration of the Notes. If an Event of Defaglturs prior to March 16, 2005 by reason of anyfulilhction (or inaction) taken (or not
taken) by or on behalf of the Company with therititen of avoiding the prohibition on redemptiontbé& Notes prior to March 16, 2005, then,
upon acceleration of the notes, an additional puemshall also become and be immediately due andijp@yto the extent permitted by law
an amount equal to 9%.

Other Remedie

(a) If an event of default occurs and is ouornhg, the trustee may pursue any available remedypllect the payment of principal,
premium, fees and Additional Interest, if any, amérest on the notes or to enforce the performamnemy provision of the notes or the
indenture or the Security Documents.

(b) The trustee may maintain a proceeding everdibés not possess any of the notes or does ndtigeany of them in the proceeding
delay or omission by the trustee or any holder wd& in exercising any right or remedy accruingrugn event of default shall not impair the
right or remedy or constitute a waiver of or acquence in the event of default. All remedies arauative to the extent permitted by law.;
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and shall be in addition to every other remedy gikereunder or under the Security Documents otiegiat law or in equity or by statute on
or after the date hereof.

Subject to the provisions of the indentuitatiieg to the duties of the trustee, a holder obge may institute a proceeding with respect to
the indenture, any of the Security Documents, ttesior for any remedy hereunder or thereunderi@inly

A holder of a note may institute a proceeding withpect to the indenture, any of the Security Damis) the notes or for any
remedy hereunder or thereunder onl

(i) the holder of a note gives to the trustee wmithotice of a continuing event of default;

(i) the holders of at least 25% in aggregate ppialcamount of the then outstanding notes makeittenmrequest to the trustee to
pursue the remed

(iiif) such holder of a note or holders of notesofind, if requested, provide to the trustee indnsatisfactory to the trustee
against any loss, liability or expense which migétincurred in compliance with such request ordfioa:;

(iv) the trustee does not comply with the requdgtiw 60 days after receipt of the request; and
(v) during such 60-day period the Required Holdkrsiot give the trustee a direction inconsisteith whe request.

The Required Holders may direct the time,hudtand place of conducting any proceeding for@sielg any remedy available to the
trustee or exercising any trust or power confemed. However, the trustee may refuse to follow direction that conflicts with law or the
indenture, the Intercreditor Agreement, any or SigclDocument, that the trustee determines mayrhily prejudicial to the rights of other
holders of notes or that may involve the trustepersonal liability.

If a default or event of default occurs asdantinuing and if it is actually known to a respible officer of the trustee, the trustee shall
mail to holders of notes a notice of the defauktwent of default within 30 days after it becomewially known to such responsible officer of
the trustee. Except in the case of a default ontesedefault (a) in payment of principal of, premm, fees, Additional Interest, if any, or
interest on any note or (b) in compliance with phevisions under the subheading “— Certain CovenantlLimitation on Indebtedness”
above, the trustee may withhold the notice if amtbeg as a committee of its responsible officargaod faith determines that withholding
the notice is in the interests of the holders efribtes. The trustee shall not be required tortakiee or be deemed to have notice or
knowledge of any default or event of default hedarnexpect failure by the Company to make any gamto the trustee required to be
made hereunder) unless a responsible officer dfrtfs¢ee is specifically notified in writing of dudefault or event of default by the Company
or by a holder in accordance with the Notice priovis of the indenture and, in the absence of sotihe) the trustee may conclusively ass
that no default or event of default has occurretliarcontinuing.

Amendments and Waivers

Subject to certain exceptions, the indentilme Security Documents and the Intercreditor Agrexet may be amended with the consent of
the Required Holders, however, without the conséetach holder of an outstanding note affectedetiygran amendment or waiver may not,
among other things:

(a) change the maturity of any note;

(b) reduce the amount, extend the due date orwitbeaffect the terms of any scheduled paymenterhpum, fees or Additional
Interest on, if any, or interest on or principakioé notes

(c) change the date on which any notes are sutgjgetiemption or otherwise alter the provisiondwiéspect to the redemption of
notes or waive a redemption payment with respeahjoNote;

(d) make any note payable in money or currencyrdtien that stated in the notes;

89




Table of Contents

(e) modify or change any provision of the indentorrés related definitions to affect the rankirfgtee notes or any Note Guarantee
in a manner that adversely affects the holc

(f) reduce the percentage of holders necessargrtsent to an amendment or waiver to the indentutiesonotes;
(9) impair the rights of holders to receive paymsesftprincipal of or interest on the notes;

(h) release any Guarantor from any of its obligagiander its Note Guarantee or the indenture, dhizgr as permitted by the
indenture;

(i) make any change in these amendment and waregigons;

(j) release Collateral other than in accordancé tie procedures set forth in the Security Docusjemtamend, waive or otherwise
modify any provisions in the Note Documents withpect to the release of Collatel

(k) except as permitted by the indenture and theei®g Documents, create any Lien on the Collateaaking prior to, or on parity
with, the security interest created by the indemaund the Security Documents or deprive any haltléve benefit of the Lien of the
indenture and the Security Documents

() waive a default or event of default in the pamhof principal of or premium or Additional Intsteif any, interest on, or
redemption payment with respect to, any note (attem a default in the payment of an amount duerasult of an acceleration if the
holders rescind such acceleration pursuant toettmest of the indenture

Notwithstanding the preceding, without thegent of any holder of the notes, the Companygttzeantors and trustee may amend the
indenture, the Intercreditor Agreement or the Séclocuments:

(a) to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency;
(b) to provide for uncertificated notes in additiomnor in place of certificated notes;

(c) to release any Guarantor from any of its oltiages under its Note Guarantee or the indenturéh@cextent permitted by the
indenture);

(d) to make any change that does not materiallgdly affect the legal rights hereunder of anygléobf the notes; or

(e) to comply with requirements of the SEC in ordeeffect or maintain the qualification of the @rdure under the Trust Indenture
Act.

The consent of the holders of the notes is notsszey under the indenture to approve the partiéatan of any proposed amendment.
sufficient if such consent approves the substaftieegproposed amendment.

After an amendment under the indenture besaffective, we shall mail to the holders of naéfected thereby a notice briefly
describing the amendment, supplement or waiver.a¥ew the failure to give such notice to all hotdef the notes, or any defect therein,
not impair or affect the validity of the amendment.

Transfer

The exchange notes will be issued in registéorm and will be transferable only upon the snder of the notes being transferred for
registration of transfer. We may require paymerda stim sufficient to cover any tax, assessmenthar @overnmental charge payable in
connection with certain transfers and exchanges.

Defeasance

At any time we may elect to terminate all obligations under the notes and the indentureppéieal to all outstanding notes upon
compliance with the conditions terms of the indeatu

90






Table of Contents

Subject to the satisfaction of the certainditions set forth in the indenture, we may be degmho have been discharged from our
obligations with respect to all outstanding noted all obligations of the guarantors dischargedhwéispect to the Note Guarant¢dsgal
Defeasanc”) . Legal Defeasance means that we and the guaraftalidoe deemed to have paid and discharged tire émdebtedness
represented by the outstanding notes and the NateaBtees, respectively, which shall thereafteddwamed to be “outstanding” only for the
limited purposes more fully described in the indeat We will be deemed to have satisfied all oheobbligations under such notes and the
indenture, except for certain provisions which Esafvive until otherwise terminated or dischargasimore fully described in the indenture.

Subject to the satisfaction of the certainditions set forth in the indenture, we may beasésl from our obligations under certain of the
affirmative and negative covenants, as more fullgadibed in the indenture afitCovenant Defeasance”)and the notes shall thereafter be
deemed not “outstanding” for the purposes of angatiion, waiver, consent or declaration or actaflars (and the consequences of any
thereof) in connection with such covenants, butl sleamtinue to be deemed “outstandirfgt all other purposes hereunder (it being unded
that such notes shall not be deemed outstandingctmunting purposes). For this purpose, Covenafed3ance means that, with respect to
the outstanding notes, the Company may omit to ¢pmijth and shall have no liability in respect afyaterm, condition or limitation set forth
in any such covenant, whether directly or indingdbly reason of any reference elsewhere hereinyteach covenant or by reason of any
reference in any such covenant to any other prawvikerein or in any other document and such omigsi@aomply shall not constitute a
default or an event of default as described innbdenture and under the subheading “— Default” ab®otwithstanding the foregoing, in the
event of a Covenant Default, the remainder of tidenture, the Security Documents and such notdlsbghanaffected thereby. In addition,
upon the Company'’s exercise of Covenant Defeasanbgect to the satisfaction of the conditionsfesgh in the indenture, shall not
constitute events of default.

Delivery and Form

General

On the Issue Date, the purchasers of thes@dsotes shall be issued as Definitive Notes (@lass B Definitive Notes”), in such names
and denominations as the Company shall instructrtistee.

Transfer and Exchange of Definitive Notes for Beneifal Interests in Global Note:

(a) The holders will take physical delivenydefinitive form of notes that they own, consedlyerthe ability to transfer beneficial interests
in such notes may be limited to that extent. AnldbBoof a Class B Definitive Note may exchange suate for a beneficial interest in a
Class B Global Note or to transfer such Class Britafe Note to a Person who takes delivery theiadhe form of a beneficial interest in a
global note substantially in the form set fortlthie indenture, and that is deposited with or oralfedf and registered in the name of The
Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), representing Hagies of Class B Notes (each a “Class B Globa¢Nadt/pon receipt by the Registrar
documentation satisfactory to it, including, witlhdimitation, any legal opinions or certificatiorthe trustee shall cancel the Class B
Definitive Note, and increase or cause to be ire@ddhe aggregate principal amount of the ClassoBabNote.

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions efititdenture and Registration Rights Agreement,ldeh@f a Class B Definitive Note may
exchange such note for a beneficial interest ier@eS A Note or transfer such Class B DefinitivetdNim a Person who takes delivery thereof
in the form of a beneficial interest in a Seriebléte.

Registered Exchange Offer; Registration Rights

We and the guarantors have agreed pursuéme tRegistration Rights Agreement that we wilhjsat to certain exceptions,

(1) within 60 days after the Issue Date or by Mdy 2004, file a registration statement (tBchange Offer Registration
Statemer” ) with the SEC with respect to a registered offee
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“Registered Exchange Offen’'to exchange the original notes for exchange netbsh exchange notes have terms substantialhytiickd
in all material respects to the original notes éptdhat the exchange notes will not contain temitis respect to transfer restriction

(2) use our reasonable best efforts to cause thidfge Offer Registration Statement to be decleffedtive under the Securities /
within 150 days after the Issue Date, or by Audizst2004;

(3) as soon as practicable after the effectivenefise Exchange Offer Registration Statement {Eféectiveness Date”) offer the
exchange notes in exchange for surrender of tiggnatinotes; ani

(4) keep the Registered Exchange Offer open fotesstthan 30 days (or longer if required by ajgiie law) after the date notice of
the Registered Exchange Offer is mailed to the Elslaf the original note

For each old note tendered to us pursuathet@Registered Exchange Offer, we will issue toHbéler of such old note a exchange note
having a principal amount equal to that of theedered old note. Interest on each exchange nétaosiue from the last interest payment
date on which interest was paid on the old noteesglered in exchange therefor, or, if no interestleen paid on such old note, from the
of its original issue.

Under existing SEC interpretations, the ergeanotes will be freely transferable by Holdetseothan our affiliates after the Registered
Exchange Offer without further registration undesg Securities Act if the Holder of the exchangeeaotpresents to us in the Registered
Exchange Offer that it is acquiring the exchangesn the ordinary course of its business, thiaast no arrangement or understanding with
any person to participate in the distribution & #xchange notes and that it is not an affiliatthefCompany, as such terms are interpreted by
the SECprovided, howeverthat broker-dealer§Participating Broker-Dealers”)receiving exchange notes in the Registered Exchxige
will have a prospectus delivery requirement witbpect to resales of such exchange notes. The SE@Mken the position that Participating
Broker-Dealers may fulfill their prospectus deliyeequirements with respect to exchange notes r(¢tfae a resale of an unsold allotment
from the original sale of the original notes) witie prospectus contained in the Exchange OfferdRagjion Statement.

Under the Registration Rights Agreement,Goenpany is required to allow Participating Brokezdlers and other persons, if any, with
similar prospectus delivery requirements to useptiespectus contained in the Exchange Offer Registr Statement in connection with the
resale of such original notes for 180 days follayihe effective date of such Exchange Offer Regfistn Statement (or such shorter period
during which Participating Broker-Dealers are regdiby law to deliver such prospectus).

A Holder of original notes (other than cantapecified Holders) who wishes to exchange suigfinal notes for exchange notes in the
Registered Exchange Offer will be required to reprg that any exchange notes to be received bijl ibevacquired in the ordinary course of
its business and that at the time of the commenceaofg¢he Registered Exchange Offer it has no @earent or understanding with any
person to participate in the distribution (withiretmeaning of the Securities Act) of the exchangesand that it is not an “affiliate” of the
Company, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities @ if it is an affiliate, that it will comply ith the registration and prospectus delivery
requirements of the Securities Act to the extepliagble.

In the event that:
(1) applicable interpretations of the staff of 8 C do not permit us to effect such a Registerazh&ixge Offer; or
(2) for any other reason we do not consummate dggdiered Exchange Offer within 220 days of thaddBate; or

(3) an Initial Purchaser shall notify us followingnsummation of the Registered Exchange Offerdhiginal notes held by it are not
eligible to be exchanged for exchange notes irRibgistered Exchange Offer;
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(4) certain Holders are prohibited by law or SE@qyofrom participating in the Registered Exchar@jger or may not resell the
exchange notes acquired by them in the Registexedaage Offer to the public without delivering agpectus

then, we will, subject to certain exceptions,

(1) promptly file a shelf registration statemeite(tShelf Registration Statemenj"with the SEC covering resales of the original
notes or the exchange notes, as the case mi

(2) (A) in the case of clause (1) above, use casanable best efforts to cause the Shelf Regmtr&iatement to be declared
effective under the Securities Act on or priorhie 1.80th day after the Issue Date and (B) in tise chclause (2), (3) or (4) above, use
reasonable best efforts to cause the Shelf Retjistratatement to be declared effective under gmufties Act on or prior to the 90th
day after the date on which the Shelf RegistraBtatement is required to be filed; ¢

(3) keep the Shelf Registration Statement effeatividd the earliest of (A) the time when the origimotes covered by the Shelf
Registration Statement can be sold pursuant to Ridewithout any limitations under clauses (c), (B)and (h) of Rule 144, (B) two
years from the Issue Date and (C) the date on wdllaiotes registered thereunder are disposed @féordance therewit

We will, in the event a Shelf Registratiomt8ment is filed, among other things, provide tchedolder for whom such Shelf Registration
Statement was filed copies of the prospectus wisiehpart of the Shelf Registration Statement,yetch such Holder when the Shelf
Registration Statement has become effective areldaktain other actions as are required to pemmésiricted resales of the original notes or
the exchange notes, as the case may be. A Holliegsich original notes or exchange notes purstmthe Shelf Registration Statement
generally would be required to be named as a gedlturity holder in the related prospectus ardetiver a prospectus to purchasers, will be
subject to certain of the civil liability provisisrunder the Securities Act in connection with ss@les and will be bound by the provisions of
the Registration Rights Agreement that are appléctibsuch Holder (including certain indemnificatiobligations).

We may require each Holder requesting todmaed as a selling security holder to furnish tsuch information regarding the Holder and
the distribution of the original notes or exchangées by the Holder as we may from time to timeoeably require for the inclusion of the
Holder in the Shelf Registration Statement, inabgdiequiring the Holder to properly complete andaie such selling security holder notice
and guestionnaires, and any amendments or suppigtheneto, as we may reasonably deem necessappopriate. We may refuse to ne
any Holder as a selling security holder that failprovide us with such information.

We and the Guarantors, jointly and severalill,pay additional cash interest on the originates and exchange notes, subject to certain
exceptions,

(2) if the Company fails to file an Exchange Off&gistration Statement with the SEC on or priadh&®90th day after the Issue D:

(2) if the Exchange Offer Registration Statememasdeclared effective by the SEC on or prioti® 180th day after the Issue Date
or, if obligated to file a Shelf Registration Statnt pursuant to clause 2(A) above, a Shelf Registr Statement is not declared effec
by the SEC on or prior to the 180th day after gsié Date

(3) if the Exchange Offer is not consummated oheajore the 40th day after the Exchange Offer Resgish Statement is declared
effective;

(4) if obligated to file the Shelf Registration ®tment pursuant to clause 2(B) above, the Compitsytd file the Shelf Registration
Statement with the SEC on or prior to the 30th @ag“Shelf Filing Date” ) after the date on which the obligation to filSlaelf
Registration Statement arist

(5) if obligated to file a Shelf Registration Staent pursuant to clause 2(B) above, the Shelf Ratjizn Statement is not declared
effective on or prior to the 90th day after the IERding Date; or
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(6) after the Exchange Offer Registration Statenoetihe Shelf Registration Statement, as the cagebm, is declared effective, sL
Registration Statement thereafter ceases to betigeor usable (subject to certain exceptiongjonnection with resales of original notes
or exchanges of original notes in accordance withduring the periods specified in the Registraiights Agreement (each such event
referred to in the preceding clauses (1) througha* Registration Defau” );

from and including the date on which any such Reafion Default shall occur to but excluding theedan which all Registration Defaults
have been cured.

The rate of the additional interest will h@%%6 per annum for the first 90-day period immealiafollowing the occurrence of a
Registration Default, and such rate will increageab additional 0.50% per annum with respect theabsequent 90-day period until all
Registration Defaults have been cured, up to ammaixi additional interest rate of 2.0% per annum.Willepay such additional interest on
regular interest payment dates. Such additionafést will be in addition to any other interestgialg from time to time with respect to the
original notes and the exchange notes.

All references in the indenture, in any caftéo any interest or other amount payable onithn vespect to the original notes shall be
deemed to include any additional interest purstmtite Registration Rights Agreement.

If we effect the Registered Exchange Offex,will be entitled to close the Registered Excha@ffer 30 days after the commencement
thereof provided that we have accepted all noteetbfore validly tendered in accordance with #vens of the Registered Exchange Offer.

Concerning the Trustee

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is the trustee undherindenture. We have appointed Wells Fargo Bank, Bs Registrar and Paying Agent with
regard to the notes and as Depositary Custodidnredpect to the Global Notes.

The indenture contains certain limitationstloa rights of the trustee, should it become aitoedf the Company, to obtain payment of
claims in certain cases, or to realize on certadpe@rty received in respect of any such claim aaréty or otherwise. The trustee will be
permitted to engage in other transactigrsyided, howeverif it acquires any conflicting interest it musther eliminate such conflict within
90 days, apply to the SEC for permission to comtiouresign.

The holders of a majority in principal amount o thutstanding notes will have the right to diréet time, method and place of conduc
any proceeding for exercising any remedy availabkhe trustee, subject to certain exceptionsn léeent of default has occurred and is
continuing, the trustee shall exercise such ofitffies and powers vested in it by this Agreemeumnt tie Security Documents, and use the
same degree of care and skill in its exercise,@sident person would exercise or use under tlearistances in the conduct of such persons
own affairs. The trustee shall be under no oblayato exercise any of its rights and powers unkiisrAgreement or any Security Documer
the request or direction of any Holders, unlesfidwatder shall have offered to the trustee secarity/or indemnity satisfactory to it against
the cost, loss, liability or expense that mighirmirred by it in compliance with such request ioection.

No Personal Liability of Directors, Officers, Employees and Stockholders

No past, present or future director, offi@amployee, incorporator or stockholder of the Conypar any guarantor, as such, shall have any
liability for any obligations of the Company or agyarantor under the notes, the note Guarantés#gineement or for any claim based on,
in respect of, or by reason of, such obligationtheir creation. Each holder by accepting a noteegaand releases all such liability. The
waiver and release are part of the consideratiois$mance of the notes and the Note GuarantedwitNstanding the foregoing nothing in
this provision shall be construed as a waiver lmase of any claims under the federal securiti@s.la
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Governing Law

The indenture, the Security Documents andhtiies are governed by, and construed in accordaititethe laws of the State of
New York.

Certain Definitions
“Additional Interest” has the meaning set forth in the Registration Rigtgreement.

“Affiliate” means, as applied to any person, any other perkondirectly or indirectly, controls, is controlléy, or is under common
control with, such person. For purposes of thisnitédn, “control” means the possession, directhirairectly, of the power to direct the
management and policies of a person, whether thrtheownership of Stock, by contract, or otherwmevided, however, that, for purpos
of under the subheading “— Transactions with Adfiéis” above: (a) any person which owns directlindirectly 10% or more of the
securities having ordinary voting power for thecéitn of directors or other members of the govegrbody of a person or 10% or more of the
partnership or other ownership interests of a pe(sther than as a limited partner of such persba)l be deemed to control such person,

(b) each director (or comparable manager) of agpesball be deemed to be an Affiliate of such pgrand (c) each partnership or joint
venture in which a person is a partner or jointtuggr shall be deemed to be an Affiliate of suctspe. SAC Holding is not be deemed an
Affiliate of the Borrowers for purposes of the imtigre.

“Affiliate Contracts” means any agreement to which any Note Party istg, ma the one hand, and any Affiliate of suché&Barty is a
party, on the other hand, as such agreements ateda as of the Issue Date.

“AREC” means Amerco Real Estate Company, a Nevada coiqrorat

“Availability” means, as of any date of determination, if such @ah Business Day, and determined at the clobasifiess on the
immediately preceding Business Day, if such datgetérmination is not a Business Day, the amouattttie Borrowers are entitled to borrow
as Advances (as defined in the New Credit Agreenarder the terms of the New Credit Agreement (afieing effect to all then
outstanding Obligations (as defined in the New @r&dreement) (other than Bank Product Obligatiasdefined in the New Credit
Agreement) and all sublimits and reserves appleablder the New Credit Agreement).

“Bank Lenders”"means the “Lenders” as defined in the New Credite&gent.

“Bank Lenders’ Agentmeans Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc., a California amgtion, solely in its capacity as administratigeat and Bank
Lenders’ Collateral Agent under the New Credit Agnent, and any successor thereto.

“Bank Lenders’ Collateral Agentimeans the Bank Lenders’ Agent, in its capacityaiaieral agent for the benefit of the Bank Lenders
under the Intercreditor Agreement, or any succetssyeto.

“Benefit Plan” means a “defined benefit plardq defined in Section 3(35) of ERISA) for which @&wyrrower or any Subsidiary or ERI¢
Affiliate of any Note Party has been an “employ&@s defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA) within thespé years.

“Borrowers” means the “Borrowers” under the New Credit Agreetmiecluding as of the Issue Date the Company, Axmé&teal Estate
Company, a Nevada corporation, Amerco Real Estategany of Alabama, Inc., an Alabama corporationefego Real Estate Company of
Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation, Five PAC Companyevada corporation, Fourteen PAC Company, a degarporation, One PAC
Company, a Nevada corporation, Seven PAC CompaNgyvada corporation, Sixteen PAC Company, a Neeadaoration, Ten PAC
Company, a Nevada corporation, U-Haul Co. of AlaskaAlaska corporation, U-Haul Co. of Arizona, a&rizona corporation, U-Haul Co.
of Florida, a Florida corporation, U-Haul of Hawdiic., a Hawaii corporation, U-Haul Internationialc., a Nevada corporation, and Yonkers
Property Corporation, a New York corporation. (S8atrowers are referred to hereinafter each indialty as a “Borrower”.)

“Capital Expenditures”’means, with respect to any person for any periamksgexpenditures that are capital expenditureesmined in
accordance with GAAP for such period, whether sigbenditures are
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paid in cash or financed; minus lease funding kexkpursuant to operating and Capital Lease comenitsifor such period; minus Net
Dispositions for such period; provided, howevert Respositions from the WP Carey Transaction reegigfter the Issue Date but prior to
March 31, 2004, shall be deemed received durirogffigear 2005.

“Capital Lease” means a lease that is required to be capitalizefin@ncial reporting purposes in accordance withAB.

“Capitalized Lease Obligation'means that portion of the obligations under a @hp#ase that is required to be capitalized in etaoce
with GAAP.

“Cash Equivalents’'means (a) marketable direct obligations issuechoonditionally guaranteed by the United Statessuéd by any
agency thereof and backed by the full faith anditi@ the United States, in each case maturingiwit year from the date of acquisition
thereof, (b) marketable direct obligations issugauy state of the United States or any politicdldivision of any such state or any public
instrumentality thereof maturing within 1 year frahe date of acquisition thereof and, at the tifhaogjuisition, having one of the two high
ratings obtainable from either Standard & Poor’sirRpGroup(“S&P” ) or Moody'’s Investors Service, In¢Moody’s” ), (c) commercial
paper maturing no more than 270 days from the afatecation thereof and, at the time of acquisitimeving a rating of at least Afrom S&F
or at least P-1 from Moody’s, (d) certificates efpdsit or bankers’ acceptances maturing withindr y®m the date of acquisition thereof
issued by any bank organized under the laws oflitiited States or any state thereof having at tie afeacquisition thereof combined capital
and surplus of not less than $250 million, (e) dethBeposit Accounts maintained with any bank orgedhiunder the laws of the United
States or any state thereof so long as the amaaintamed with any individual bank is less tharequal to $100,000 and is insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and (f) $hwments in money market funds substantially alwbbse assets are invested in the type
assets described in clauses (a) through (e) above.

“Certificate(s) of Title” means a certificate evidencing the title to a Viehic

“Change of Control’means (a) any “person” or “group” (within the meanbf Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange,Axther than
Permitted Holders, becomes the beneficial ownedéfised in Rules 13d-3 and 13d4nder the Exchange Act), directly or indirectl{30%,
or more, of the Stock of the Company having thhtrig vote for the election of members of the Baafr®irectors, or (b) a majority of the
members of the Board of Directors do not consti@datinuing Directors, or (¢c) any Borrower ceaseswn, directly or indirectly, and
control 100% of the outstanding capital Stock of ahits Subsidiaries as of the Issue Date unlesslisposition, liquidation or merger of
such Subsidiary was permitted pursuant to the texdfnttse indenture as described under the subheédiniglerger and Consolidation” above,
or (d) (i) all or substantially all of the assetdlee Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries éisield in the New AMERCO Note Indenture)
are sold or otherwise transferred to any persoaerdtitan a Wholly-Owned Restricted Subsidiary (didd in the New AMERCO
Note Indenture) that is a Note Party or (ii) then@any consolidates or merges with or into anotleesgn or any person consolidate:
merges with or into the Company, in either caseeuthis clause (d), in one transaction or a serfigslated transactions in which immedia
after the consummation thereof persons owning gattock representing in the aggregate a majorith@total voting power of the voting
stock of the Company immediately prior to such comsiation do not own voting stock representing aomiigj of the total voting power of
the voting stock of the Company or the survivingransferee person; or (e) the Company shall aa@tdn of liquidation or plan of
dissolution or any such plan shall be approvedeystockholders of the Company.

“Chattel Paper” means any person’s now owned or hereafter acqtight] title and interest in respect of “chatteppd’ as such term is
defined in the New York Uniform Commercial Codeslirding, without limitation, any tangible or eleatric chattel paper.

“Class B Purchase Agreemenifieans the Note Purchase Agreement, dated as ohMag004, by and among the Company, the
guarantors and the purchasers of the Class B Nadesjch agreement may be amended, modified olesnppted from time to time.
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“Collateral” means all of each Note Party’s now owned or hegeaftquired right, title, and interest in and toteaf the following:

(a) accounts,
(b) books,
(c) Chattel Paper,
(d) Commercial Tort Claims,
(e) Deposit Accounts,
(f) Equipment,
(9) General Intangibles,
(h) Inventory,
(i) Investment Property,
()) Negotiable Collateral,
(k) Real Property Collateral,
() Supporting Obligations,

(m) money, cash, Cash Equivalents, or other as$esch such Note Party that now or hereafter domoethe possession, custody
control of any Bank Lender, the Bank Len¢ Agent, the trustee or any holder and are heldHerenefit of the holder

(n) the proceeds and products, whether tangibiletangible, of any of the foregoing, including peeds of insurance covering any
all of the foregoing, and any and all accounts Ksp&hattel Paper, Deposit Accounts, EquipmenteGen
Intangibles, Inventory, Investment Property, Negjole Collateral, Real Property, Supporting Obligagi, money, deposit accounts, or
other tangible or intangible property resultingnfrthe sale, exchange, collection, or other disfositf any of the foregoing, or any
portion thereof or interest therein, and the prdsdbereof, an

(o) to the extent not included in the foregoind pther personal property of the Note Parties gf kind or description (including,
without limitation, with respect to either Canadi@narantor (as defined in the indenture), all “paed property” &s defined in the PPS,
of such party and a“proceed” (as defined in the PPSA) therec

provided, however, that the Excluded Assets shalbe included in the Collateral.

“Collateral Access Agreementtheans a landlord waiver, bailee waiver, mortgaga®ev, or acknowledgement of any lessor,
warehouseman, processor, mortgagee, assignedesrRerson in possession of, having a Lien upohawing rights or interests in the
Equipment or Inventory, in each case in the samma ind substance as delivered to the Bank Lendgest under the New Credit
Agreement, with such modifications as are necegsangflect that the TrustegLiens in the Collateral are security interestspsd in priority
only to the first priority security interests gradtto Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to the New Grédreement and the other Loan
Documents (as defined in the New Credit Agreement).

“Commercial Tort Claims"means any person’s now owned or hereafter acqrighg title and interest with respect to any “coamgial
tort claim” as such term is defined in the New Ybhkiform Commercial Code, including, without limiitan, the PWC Litigation.

“Confirmation Order” means the order entered in the Chapter 11 Caselmudry 20, 2004, confirming the ReorganizatiomPla

“Consolidated Cash Interest Expenseieans, for any period, the Consolidated InterepeBge of the Company paid in cash for such
period (including, without limitation, the Unuseihke Fees (as defined in the New Credit Agreemémt)jnterest component of any deferred
payment obligations, the interest component
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of all payments associated with Capitalized Lealskg@tions, commissions, discounts and other feescharges incurred in respect of a
Letter of Credit (as defined in the New Credit Agmeent) or bankers’ acceptance financing and nahpags pursuant to Hedge Agreements),
provided that Consolidated Cash Interest Expenak eskclude interest expense accrued or capitalizethg such period.

“Consolidated Charges’means, for any period, any extraordinary and/ormauirring Consolidated charges of the Company,
representing restructuring charges, payments toutsring financial advisors and legal counseh4gash impairment of asset charges and
other non-cash write-offs that were deducted iiviaug at Consolidated Net Income; provided, howeya) the aggregate amount of
Consolidated Charges calculated for the 3-montltogemnding March 31, 2004 shall not exceed $75onijl(b) the aggregate amount of
Consolidated Charges calculated for the 3-montltogemding June 30, 2004 shall not exceed $3.8amjl{c) the aggregate amount of
Consolidated Charges calculated for the 6-montltogemding September 30, 2004 shall not exceed@ilidn, (d) the aggregate amount of
Consolidated Charges calculated for the 9-montlogemding December 31, 2004 shall not exceed $1illi®n, and (e) the aggregate
amount of Consolidated Charges calculated for greninth period ending March 31, 2005 and as o&titbof each fiscal quarter thereafter
shall not exceed $15 million.

“Consolidated EBITDA’"means, for any period, the sum, without duplicataf(i) Consolidated Net Income for such periptlis
(il) Consolidated Interest Expense for such perpdds (iii) provision for Consolidated taxes of the Compgdased on income or profits for
such period (to the extent such income or profgsenncluded in computing the Consolidated Net inedor such periodplus
(iv) Consolidated depreciation, amortization anaeothon-cash expense of the Compatys (v) Consolidated Charges in each case that
deducted in determining the Consolidated Net Incéamsuch periodminus(vi) pre-tax net income of the Insurance Subsid&plus
(vii) losses of the Insurance Subsidiarieénus(viii) gains from sales of any Real Propenpjs (ix) losses from sales of any Real Property
minus(x) to the extent the Synthetic Leases (including @financings, in whole or in part thereof), ayaf them, are treated as Capital
Leases in accordance with the requirements of GAB&amounts of principal and interest due and paier such Synthetic Leases for such
period, as such principal amounts are set fortBaredule 7.8(a) of the New Credit Agreement ab@idsue Date.

“Consolidated Interest Expensetieans, for any period, the Consolidated intergsérse of the Company for such period, whether paid,
accrued or capitalized (including, without limitati amortization of original issue discount, nogtcanterest payments, the Unused Line Fees
(as defined in the New Credit Agreement), the egecomponent of any deferred payment obligatithresinterest component of all payments
associated with Capitalized Lease Obligations, casions, discounts and other fees and chargesrattur respect of a Letter of Credit (as
defined in the New Credit Agreement) or bankergemtance financing and net payments pursuant tgélAdreements).

“Consolidated Net Incometneans, for any period, the net income of the Compansuch period, determined in accordance withABA
provided that such net income is calculated pursitetine income statement presentation set forthérdefinition of “Consolidated”.

“Control Agreement”’means a control agreement executed and deliverdtiebgompany or one of its Subsidiaries, the tejsaad the
applicable securities intermediary with resped ®ecurities Account or a bank with respect to pd3& Account, in the same form and
substance delivered to the Bank Lenders’ Agent utideNew Credit Agreement, with such modificati@ssare necessary to reflect that the
Trustee’s Liens in the Collateral subject theretsecurity interests, second in priority onlyhe first priority security interests granted to
Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to the New Credit &gnent and the other Loan Documents (as defindakitNew Credit Agreement).

“Default” means any event, condition, or default that, wighdiving of notice, the passage of time or bothuld be an Event of Default.
“Definitive Note” means a certificated note registered in the nantieedifiolder thereof and issued in accordance Wwétirtdenture.
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“Deposit Accounts’means any person’s now owned or hereafter acqrighy title and interest with respect to any “dsippaccount” as
such term is defined in the New York Uniform Comuoiar Code, including, without limitation, any chéay or other demand deposit account
maintained by any Borrower.

“Dormant Subsidiaries’means, collectively, EJOS, Inc., an Arizona corpora Japal, Inc., a Nevada corporation, M.V.Sc, la Nevada
corporation, Pafran, Inc., a Nevada corporatiomh®utar, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and Picacho Reastments Co, a Nevada corporat

“ECF Carry Forward Amount’means, at any time of determination, (a)(i) aseflssue Date through September 30, 2004,
$3.335 million, (ii) as of October 1, 2004 throudlarch 30, 2005, 50% of Borrowergxcess Cash Flow (whether positive or negativejHe
period commencing on April 1, 2004 and ending opt&maber 30, 2004, based on unaudited financiamsnts provided to the trustee
pursuant to the terms of the indenture, or (iipdMarch 31, 2005 and at all times thereafter, Gd%Borrowers’ Excess Cash Flow for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2005 (whether positiv@eegative), based on the audited financial stategs provided to the trustee pursuant to
the terms of the indenturplusBorrowers’ Excess Cash Flow for each fiscal yeardhfter (to the extent positive) for which auditie@ncial
statements have been provided to the trustee mirguthe terms of the indenturajnus(b) the sum of (i) the aggregate amount of dividend
paid in arrears on account of the preferred stéckedCompany on or after January 1, 2004 made Bomowers’Excess Cash Flow pursu
to the terms of the indenture as described undesel (¢) under the subheading “— Distributions™eh@nd (ii) the aggregate amount of
prepayments of the principal amount of the Indefisd under the New AMERCO Notes and the notes faheBorrowers’ Excess Cash
Flow after the Issue Date pursuant to the ternte®fndenture as described under clause (a)(wiy{der the subheading “— Prepayments and
Amendments” above, and (iii) the aggregate amofipteapayments of the principal amount of the Inddbess under the Synthetic Leases
made from Borrower’s Excess Cash Flow after thedd3ate pursuant to the terms of the indentureeasribed under clause (a)(vii)(3) under
the subheading “— Prepayments and Amendments” alimeach case on a cumulative basis.

“Equipment” means any Person’s now owned or hereafter acquigkd title, and interest with respect to equiptemachinery, machine
tools, motors, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, higles, tools, parts, goods (other than consumedgidarm products, or Inventory), wherever
located, including all attachments, accessorieessions, replacements, substitutions, additionsjraprovements to any of the foregoing.

“ERISA Affiliate” means (a) any Person subject to ERISA whose emgdogee treated as employed by the same employee as
employees of a Borrower or a Subsidiary of a Boeounder IRC Section 414(b), (b) any trade or bessrsubject to ERISA whose
employees are treated as employed by the same penple the employees of a Borrower or a Subsidi6Borrower under IRC Section 414
(c), (c) solely for purposes of Section 302 of EREBd Section 412 of the IRC, any organization sabjo ERISA that is a member of an
affiliated service group of which a Borrower or abSidiary of Borrower is a member under IRC Sec#itd(m), or (d) solely for purposes of
Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the IRG, Barson subject to ERISA that is a party to aarayement with a Borrower or a
Subsidiary of a Borrower and whose employees agecgiated with the employees of a Borrower or a isiidry of a Borrower under IRC
Section 414(0).

“Excess Availability Testmeans, at the time of payment of any Indebtednedserthe New AMERCO Notes or notes pursuant to the
terms of the indenture as described under cla)é&)(8) under subheading “— Prepayments and Amegntsi’ above or at the time of
declaration or payment of any dividend or dividémarrears pursuant to the terms of the indentsr@eacribed under clause (b) or clause (c)
under the subheading “— Prepayments and Amendmahts/e, respectively, (a) Borrowers’ Excess Avdlitgbplus Qualified Cash (as
reported to the Bank Lenders’ Agent by Borrowersspant to the terms of the New Credit Agreemenieeds (i) $35 milliorplus(ii) the
amount of such dividend or debt payment as of #@ite df such payment and as of the month end fdr efihe preceding consecutive 12
fiscal months immediately preceding such paymetd,gmd (b) after giving effect to such paymentirBeers’ Excess Availabilitplus
Qualified Cash, as reflected in the Projectiongd@&fied in the New Credit Agreement)
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most recently delivered to the trustee pursuatiieéderms of the indenture, is projected to exé&3&simillion for the month end of each of the
12 fiscal months immediately succeeding such paymete.

“Excluded Assets’means (a) the Synthetic Leases and the Synthedisel €ollateral, (b) the Junior Notes and the isteaecrued thereon
and proceeds received from the monetization ofajuxiotes, (c) all Real Property set forth on Schediil of the New Credit Agreement
under contract of sale as of the Issue Date anckpas received from any such sale, (d) all Regdétty subject to a first priority Lien of
Oxford as of the Issue Date, as set forth on Sdedehl of the New Credit Agreement, (e) all Realparty designated as “Surplus Real
Property” as of the Issue Date, as set forth ore@ale E-1 of the New Credit Agreement and any pdseeceived from any sale of such
Real Property, (f) the Company’s Stock of the lasige Subsidiaries and the proceeds received frermtnetization of such Stock,

(9) proceeds in excess of $50 million from anyleetent, judgment or other recovery from the PW@gktion, (h) Vehicles (including any

tow dolly or auto transport) that, as of the IsBae are or thereafter become, and remain suljeatTRAC Lease Transaction, and proceeds
from the sale of such Vehicles to the extent nceNRdrty has any rights to or interest in such @dsgexcept to the extent such Vehicles
become subject to the Trustee’s Liens pursuartiteddrms of the indenture as described under thieesuding “— Disposal of Assets” above,
(i) Vehicles (including any tow dolly or auto trgoust) that become and remain subject to the PMC@taged Lease and proceeds from the
sale of such Vehicles to the extent no Note Paatydny rights to or interest in such proceeds(frnlde cash collateral accounts set forth on
Schedule 2.7(e) to the New Credit Agreement. Wapect to the Excluded Assets set forth in clagsal{ove, it is hereby acknowledged i
agreed that attorneys’ fees and costs, court cegtert witness fees and expenses and other sicoitas and expenses paid or payable by the
Company with respect to the PWC Litigation or anyrent or future taxes paid or payable by the Cargpeith respect to settlement
payments or damage awards (after taking into adcmnavailable tax credits or deductions and aysharing arrangements) with respe«
the PWC Litigation shall not be deducted from dreswise offset against the Trustee’s Collateral.

“General Intangibles”means any Person’s now owned or hereafter acquglkd title, and interest with respect to genéngdngibles (as
that term is defined in the New York Uniform Comigial Code), including payment intangibles, contrégits, rights to payment, rights
arising under common law, statutes, or regulatioheses or things in action, goodwill, patentgjéraames, trademarks, servicemarks,
copyrights, blueprints, drawings, purchase ordarstomer lists, monies due or recoverable fromiparfsinds, route lists, rights to payment
and other rights under any royalty or licensingeagnents, infringement claims, computer progranisrrimation contained on computer disks
or tapes, software, literature, reports, catalpgssion plan refunds, pension plan refund clainsyriance premium rebates, tax refunds, and
tax refund claims, and any and all Supporting Gitlans in respect thereof, and any other persaioglgoty other than goods, money,
Accounts, Chattel Paper, Commercial Tort Claimgy@#& Accounts, Investment Property, and Negoti&lu#ateral.

“Global Notes” means, individually and collectively, each of tHas3 A Global Notes and Class B Global Notes issnedcordance
with the indenture.

“Guarantor Security Agreementheans, collectively, one or more security agreemdmnytpothecations or other similar agreements
executed and delivered by guarantors and the &uistehe same form and substance as such seagrisgments, hypothecations or similar
agreements delivered by the guarantors to the Banklers’Agent under the New Credit Agreement, with such ifications as are necess:
to reflect the fact that the Trustee’s Liens in @wlateral subject thereto are security interestspnd in priority only to the first priority
security interests granted to Bank Lendéygént pursuant to the New Credit Agreement andther Loan Documents (as defined in the |
Credit Agreement).

“Guaranty Agreement’means the guaranty executed and delivered by gioaseand the trustee, in the same form and sulesi@aio/erec
by the guarantors to the Bank Lenders’ Agent uticieNew Credit Agreement, with such modificatiossage necessary to reflect that the
trustee’s security interests are second in prianitly to the first priority security interests gtad to Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant to the New
Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents ééinetl in the New Credit Agreement).
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“Indebtedness”means (@) all obligations for borrowed money, (bdhligations evidenced by bonds, debentures,syateother similar
instruments and all reimbursement or other oblagyetiin respect of letters of credit, bankers acsegs, interest rate swaps, or other financial
products, (c) all obligations as a lessee undeit@ldpases, (d) all obligations or liabilities athers secured by a Lien on any asset of a
Person or its Subsidiaries, irrespective of whesiueh obligation or liability is assumed, (e) dlligations to pay the deferred purchase price
of assets (other than trade payables incurredeittinary course of business and repayable inrdanoe with customary trade practices),
and (f) any obligation guaranteeing or intendeduarantee (whether directly or indirectly guaradtemndorsed, co-made, discounted, or sold
with recourse) any obligation of any other Perdwt tonstitutes Indebtedness under any of claadebrough (e) above.

“Insurance Subsidiaries'means, collectively, Oxford and RepWest.

“Intercreditor Agreement’means that certain Intercreditor Agreement, ayehe&late herewith, between the trustee and the Band#ers’
Collateral Agent, as amended, modified, supplentergtended or restated from time to time.

“Inventory” means any Person’s now owned or hereafter acqughkd title, and interest with respect to invegtdncluding goods held
for sale or lease or to be furnished under a contfservice, goods that are leased by such Pastessor, goods that are furnished by such
Person under a contract of service, and raw méevi@rk in process, or materials used or consumedch Person’s business, including,
without limitation, supplies and embedded software.

“Investment Property’means any Person’s now owned or hereafter acqughed title, and interest with respect to “investmt property”
as that term is defined in the New York Uniform Guoercial Code, and any and all Supporting Obligatiionrespect thereof.

“INW” means INW Company, a Washington corporation
“Issue Date” means the date on which the Notes are originadlyed. For the avoidance of doubt, such date is IMHEs¢ 2004.

“Lien” means any interest in an asset securing an olaigatved to, or a claim by, any Person other tharothiner of the asset,
irrespective of whether (a) such interest shalbésed on the common law, statute, or contracgybh interest shall be recorded or perfected,
and (c) such interest shall be contingent uporotoeirrence of some future event or events or tistance of some future circumstance or
circumstances. Without limiting the generality bé foregoing, the term “Lien” includes the lien¢ggty interest or hypothec arising from a
mortgage, deed of trust, encumbrance, pledge, hgpation, assignment, deposit arrangement, seagigement, conditional sale or trust
receipt, or from a lease, consignment, or bailnfi@nsecurity purposes and also including resernatiexceptions, encroachments, easements
rights-of-way, covenants, conditions, restrictidesses, and other title exceptions and encumbsaaféecting Real Property.

“Material Adverse Change'means (a) a material adverse change in the busimespects, operations, results of operationgtass
liabilities or condition (financial or otherwisej the Borrowers and their Subsidiaries (other ttheninsurance Subsidiaries) taken as a whole,
(b) a material impairment of the ability of a Nétarty to perform its obligations under the Note rments to which it is a party or of the
ability of the trustee or the holders to enforce dibligations arising under the indenture or realipon the Collateral, or (c) a material
impairment of the enforceability or priority of tAHeustee’s Liens with respect to the Collaterahassult of an action or failure to act on the
part of a Borrower or a Subsidiary of a Borrowehéw than the Insurance Subsidiaries). For thedavwie of doubt, changes affecting SAC
Holding shall not constitute ‘&laterial Adverse Change”.

“Negotiable Collateral” means any Person’s now owned and hereafter acqugtedtitle, and interest with respect to lettefredit,
letter of credit rights, instruments, promissorye® drafts, and documents, and any and all Supgddbligations in respect thereof.
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“New AMERCO Note Accountstieans, collectively, the Restated SAC Notes Es&ogount, the 3.08(b) Account and any other Deg
Account that holds or otherwise constitutes théatetal securing the obligations under the New AMERNote Documents.

“New AMERCO Note Documentstieans, collectively, the New AMERCO Note Indentdiihe, New AMERCO Notes and such other
documents executed by the Company in connectign\thith.

“New AMERCO Note Indenturetheans the Indenture with respect to the issuanbleaf AMERCO Notes, dated as of March 15, 2004,
among the Company, the guarantors listed on theagige pages thereto, and The Bank of New Yorkussee, governing the New
AMERCO Notes.

“New AMERCO Note Lendergheans those Persons that are “Holders” under tie AMERCO Note Indenture.

“New AMERCO Notes'means the 12% Senior Secured Subordinated Note2@iein the principal amount of $148,646,137 igsue
pursuant to the New AMERCO Note Indenture.

“New Credit Agreementimeans the Loan and Security Agreement dated asaoftML, 2004 by and among Wells Fargo Foothill,,las
lead arranger, administrative agent, and collatagaht, the Bank Lenders and the Borrowers, asheaybsequently amended, restated,
refinanced, refunded, extended or replaced frore tiotime whether by the same or any other agemtldr or group of lenders.

“Note Documents’means the indenture, the notes, the Cash Managekges¢ments (as defined in the New Credit Agreemém
Collateral Access Agreements, the Confirmation @rtfee Control Agreements, the Copyright Securigréement, the Guarantor Security
Agreement, the Guaranty Agreement, the Note Guegeanthe Environmental Indemnity Agreements, thetdmes, the Patent and
Trademark Security Agreement, the Quebec Secudtyuments, the Agency Letter, the Stock Pledge Agese, any other Security
Document and any other agreement entered into,anomthe future, by any Note Party and acceptethbytrustee or any Holder in
connection with the indenture or any other SeciDibgument.

“Note Guarantee”means, collectively, the guarantee by each guarafthe Company’s obligations under the indenttite,Notes and
the other Note Documents in favor of the trusteetlie benefit of the Holders.

“Note Party” means the Company or any guarantor, ‘&ate Parties” means the Company and all guarantors.

“Permitted Discretion” means a determination made in good faith and irexieecise of reasonable (from the perspectivesafcarred
asset-based lender) business judgment.

“Permitted Dispositions”’means (a) sales or other dispositions by the Barswr their Subsidiaries of Equipment that is ttisally
worn, damaged, or obsolete in the ordinary coufdmisiness, as determined by the Borrowers or Bwlisidiaries, as the case may be, (b
use or transfer of money or Cash Equivalents byddeers or their Subsidiaries in a manner that ispnohibited by the terms of the indent:
or the other Note Documents, (c) the licensing byr@wers or their Subsidiaries, on a non-exclubasis, of patents, trademarks, copyrights,
and other intellectual property rights in the oedincourse of business, (d) conveyances, assigsieases, transfers, sales or dispositions of
any Excluded Asset, (e) leases and licenses obtmiige units to customers in the ordinary coafdmusiness, (f) the granting of billboard
and cell tower leases on any Real Property, (gytheting of space leases in the ordinary courdmisiness that do not constitute Major
Space Leases, unless otherwise consented to BatileLenders’ Agent, (h) dispositions of Real Proyper any part thereof required in
connection with condemnations or takings, or digfss in lieu thereof, where the compensation maicaccount thereof is immediately
remitted to the Bank Lenders’ Agent, (i) so longhasevent of default has occurred and is continuiigpositions of box-trucks, cargo vans
and pickup trucks in the ordinary course of the @any’s and U-Haul’s fleet rotation program, so l@sgthe aggregate net book value of
box-trucks, cargo vans and pickup trucks subjedttstee’s Liens does not decrease by more th&4Q)million in any of (A) the first fiscal
quarter after the Issue Date (to be tested aseoéiid of such period), (B) the first two fiscal dees after the Issue Date (to be tested as of the
end of such period), (C) the first three fiscal feis after the Issue Date (to be tested as
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of the end of such period), or (D) each 12-montfiggethereafter (to be tested as of the end of &achl quarter), or (i) $160 million in the
aggregate after the Issue Date, (j) the grantingesmitted Easements, (k) so long as no eventfafitdhas occurred and is then continuing,
the sale in the ordinary course of business of &ekiacquired within the previous 130 days in cotioa with a TRAC Lease Transaction to
the extent the obligations thereunder are permiitethe indenture, (I) the sale, disposition odaepment of Vehicles exchanged in
connection with the PMCC Like Kind Exchange Leds®), sales or other dispositions set forth in theriganization Plan and approved in the
Confirmation Order, (n) the sale of that certaintipm of the parcel of Real Property Collateraldted at 471 South Road, Poughkeepsie,
New York that is subject to the lease purchaseoapiercised prior to the Issue Date, (0) so Iswg@aEvent of Default shall be caus
thereby, other dispositions of Real Property Cetiatwith a Fair Market Valuation in an aggregateant not to exceed either (i) $10 million
during any fiscal year or (ii) $35 million in totafter the Issue Date; provided, however, the sagher disposition of any parcel of Real
Property Collateral (x) shall result in a Note Ragceiving proceeds in an amount of not less 8@# of the Fair Market Valuation of such
Real Property Collateral, and (y) with an appraiBat Market Valuation exceeding $7 million shadkwonstitute a Permitted Disposition,
and (p) leases and licenses of any portion of & Rroperty subject to the Synthetic Leases tartisnn the ordinary course of business.

“Permitted Investmentstmeans (a) Investments in cash and Cash Equival@)tsivestments in negotiable instruments foresdibn,
(c) advances made in connection with purchasesadgjor services in the ordinary course of busjn@$dnvestments by any Note Party in
any other Note Party; provided, to the extent dngkstment is in the form of Indebtedness, sucleltedness shall be unsecured and
contractually subordinated to the Obligations amhn any such relevant Note Party ceasing to bealywowned Subsidiary of the Compa
or such Indebtedness being owed to any Person thiuera Note Party, such Note Party shall be deeémbdve incurred Indebtedness not
permitted by this clause (d), (e) Investments bi&iH and Nationwide Commercial Co. evidenced byJilmaor Notes not to exceed the
principal amount outstanding thereunder as of $kad Date (except for increases in principal regufiolely from the accrual of interest
thereon), (f) payments by U-Haul and its Subsiémnf expenses on behalf of SAC Holdings pursumatite Management Agreements
provided that all such expenses are promptly reisguiiby the appropriate other parties to the Mamagé Agreements, (g) Investments in
PMSR, PM Preferred or any of its or their Affiliatewned by the Company or any of its SubsidiarieéSAC Holding solely to the extent
required pursuant to the Company’s obligations utitke Support Party Agreements, so long as (iherdate of such Investment, Borrowers’
Excess Availability plus Qualified Cash (as repdrby Borrowers pursuant to the terms of the NewdEr#egreement) exceeds
(A) $35 million plus(B) the amount of such Investment, as of the daseich payment and as of the end of the monthdoh ef the
preceding consecutive 12 fiscal months immedigtedégeding such payment date, (ii) after giving &ffe such Investment, Borrowers’
Excess Availability plus Qualified Cash, as refégttn the Projections (as defined in the New CrAdittement) most recently delivered to
trustee pursuant to the terms of the indentunerdgected to exceed $35 million as of the month femeach of the 12 fiscal months
immediately succeeding the date of such Investiizerdgach of the 12 fiscal months, and (iii) no eveindefault has occurred and is
continuing or would result therefrom, (h) guarastbg the Company of the obligations of its Subsidgthat are Note Parties to the extent
such obligations are otherwise permitted hereuaddrare consistent with past practices, (i) paymbytU-Haul and its Subsidiaries in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with prastices of certain ordinary course operatingemses on behalf of any U-Haul Dealer
pursuant to a Dealership Contract, provided thabplicable U-Haul Dealer reimburses U-Haul asditbsidiaries for all such expenses in
accordance with the provisions of the Dealershiptat, (j) Hedge Agreements, as permitted hereyrtkleother Investments in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $5 million per yaat () Investments pursuant to that certain pssony note dated February 12, 1997 from
PMSR in favor of U-Haul in the original principain@unt of $10 million, with such Indebtedness of FMiBereunder assumed by PMSI
Investors, LLC on or about November 30, 1999.

“Permitted Liens”means (a) Liens held by the trustee for the benéftie holders, (b) Liens for unpaid taxes thpafe not yet
delinquent, or (ii) are the subject of a Permif@dtest, (c) Liens set forth on Schedule P-1 td\ee Credit Agreement, (d) (i) Liens on the
Synthetic Lease Collateral arising under the Sytitheases and the interests of lessors under tipgiaases, and (ii) the interests of the
lessor and
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indenture trustee under the PMCC Leveraged Lea(pufchase money Liens or the interests of lessdeased assets under Capital Leases
to the extent that such Liens or interests securelRse Money Indebtedness permitted hereundes@lmhg as such Lien attaches only tc
asset purchased or acquired and the proceeds th@yddens arising by operation of law in favofwarehousemen, landlords, carriers,
mechanics, materialmen, laborers, or suppliersiried in the ordinary course of business and nobimection with the borrowing of money,
and which Liens either (i) are for sums not yetrdplent or (ii) are the subject of Permitted Priste) Liens arising from deposits made in
connection with obtaining worker’'s compensatiorotirer unemployment insurance, (h) Liens or deposisecure performance of bids,
tenders, or leases incurred in the ordinary coof$gisiness and not in connection with the borrgnehmoney, (i) Liens granted as security
for surety or appeal bonds in connection with abitej such bonds in the ordinary course of busin@skiens with respect to the Real
Property Collateral that are exceptions to the caments for title insurance issued in connectiothwie Mortgages, as accepted by the
trustee, (k) with respect to any Real Propertynifieed Easements, (I) Liens arising from judgmemtd attachments in connection with court
proceedings provided that the attachment or enfioecs of such Liens would not result in an everdefault hereunder and such Liens are
subject to a Permitted Protest and no materiala@thl is subject to a material risk of loss ofditure and the claims in respect of such Liens
are fully covered by insurance (subject to ordiremg customary deductibles) and a stay of execpigmding appeal or proceeding for revi

is in effect, (m) Liens granted to the New AMERC®Ot&l Lenders pursuant to the New AMERCO Note Documen the property described
in clauses (b), (c), (e), (f) and (g) of the defomn of “Excluded Assets” set forth above, (n) Lseggranted to the Bank Lenders’ Agent pursuant
to the New Credit Agreement, and the other Loanubwents (as defined in the New Credit Agreemenj)Liens on Real Property in favor
Oxford as of the Issue Date, as set forth on Sdedghl to the New Credit Agreement, (p) subjedht provisions of the New Credit
Agreement, Liens on the cash collateral accoustseaforth on applicable schedule of the New Grkdieement, and (q) Liens arising from
the refinancing of the “obligations” (as definedlie New Credit Agreement), which do not resulihi@a creation of additional first priority
Liens in excess of the first priority Liens in eeisce on the Issue Date.

“Personal Property Collateral’means all Collateral other than Real Property.
“PM Preferred” means PM Preferred Properties, L.P., a Texas lihpatnership.
“PMSR” means Private Mini Storage Realty, L.P., a Texagdd partnership.

“PMSR Agreementimeans that certain PMSR Agreement dated as offteetize Date among the Company, PMSR, JPMorgars€ha
Bank, as agent, and the Lenders party thereof.

“PPSA” means the Personal Property Security Act, as gceffom time to time in any applicable Canadiaovprce or territory.

“Purchase Money Indebtednesaieans Indebtedness (other than the obligationimgnumder the indenture, but including Capitalized
Lease Obligations), incurred at the time of, ohwit20 days after, the acquisition of any fixedeas$or the purpose of financing all or any
part of the acquisition cost thereof.

“PWC Litigation” means that certain claim filed by the Company agjdnicewaterhouseCoopers on or about June 5,i8088 Superio
Court of Arizona, Maricopa County, No. CV2003-0120and all related disputes between the CompanyardwaterhouseCoopers.

“Real Property” means any estates or interests in real propertyavened or hereafter acquired by any Note Partythadmprovements
thereto.

“Real Property Collateral”’means the parcel or parcels of Real Property ifietiton Schedule R-1 to the New Credit Agreemenitamy
Real Property hereafter acquired by a Note Partyltioh the trustee has, or any Note Party is regujm accordance with the indenture or
any other Note Document) to grant, a Lien.

“Registration Rights Agreementheans the Registration Rights Agreement, dated Barch 1, 2004, by and among the Company, the
guarantors and the purchasers of the Class B raessjch agreement may be amended, modified otesngpted from time to time.

104




Table of Contents

“Reorganization Plan"means that certain First Amended Joint Plan of atration dated November 26, 2003, filed undemp@all o
the United States Bankruptcy Code by the CompardyAREC, together with any amendments or modificatithereto.

“Required Holders"means at any time of determination:

(a) if at such time Class B Notes are then outstapdhen (i) the holders of at least 75% of thgragate principal amount of the tt
outstanding Class B Notes, and (ii) holders of gonitst in aggregate principal amount of the Clasbldtes then outstanding; a

(b) if at such time there are no Class B Notestanting, the holders of a majority in aggregatag@pal amount of the notes then
outstanding

“Required Lenders'has the meaning ascribed thereto in the New Chagiikement.
“Shelf Registration Statementheans a Shelf Registration Statement as defindtiRegistration Rights Agreement.

“SSI” means Self-Storage International Holding CorporatioNevada corporation, and any Subsidiary theveloéther now existing or
hereafter formed.

“Stock” means all shares, options, warrants, interesticipations, or other equivalents (regardless af ldesignated) of or in a Person,
whether voting or nonvoting, including common stagieferred stock, or any other “equity securitg® 6uch term is defined in Rule 3al11-1
of the General Rules and Regulations promulgateithéySEC under the Exchange Act).

“Subsidiary” of a Person means a corporation, partnership darliaibility company, or other entity in which tHagrson directly or
indirectly owns or controls the shares of Stockihgwrdinary voting power to elect a majority oéthoard of directors (or appoint other
comparable managers) of such corporation, partiedghited liability company, or other entity; prised, however, PMSR, PM Preferred,
SAC Holding and SSI shall not be deemed to be Sidgs of any Note Party herein.

“Support Party Agreementtneans, collectively, (i) that certain Support Pagreement dated as of February 28, 2003 by andgrtiee
Company and PM Preferred in favor of GMAC Commeéidialding Corp., as administrative agent, as amdrmethe First Amendment to
Support Party Agreement dated as of June 13, 20QB(ii) that certain PMSR Agreement to be datedfdle Effective Date, by and among
the Company, PMSR, JP Morgan Chase Bank, as adminie agent, and lenders signatory thereto, ahease as amended prior to the I
Date and after the Issue Date as permitted hepeavifled, in each case, such amendment does mease the obligations of any Note Party
thereunder).

“Supporting Obligation”means any Person’s now owned or hereafter acqugkd title and interest with respect to any “sagmng
obligation” as that term is defined in the New Ydtkiform Commercial Code.

“Synthetic Lease Collateraltneans (a) the Real Property and Real Propertyeisiteteased under the Synthetic Leases and altistes,
buildings and other immovable improvements locateduch Real Property (th8ynthetic Lease Properties); (b) all equipment, machinel
apparatus, fittings, furniture, fixtures and otpevperty of every kind and nature whatsoever noWweseafter affixed to any portion of the
Synthetic Lease Properties or which is used fostbeage of property of storage customers of amti®jic Leases under any Assigned
Storage Agreements (defined below) (excluding Mekig and which are now owned or hereafter acquiseany lessor under any Synthetic
Lease or in which any such lessor has or shall havieterest, and all appurtenances and additlereto and substitutions therefor; (c) all
storage rental agreements, leases and licensesesfibct to the Synthetic Lease Properties noveiimafter entered into and all
amendments, supplements and modifications thecette¢tively, the‘Assigned Storage Agreements”(d) all rents, maintenance fees,
advance fees and deposits, security deposits @&paioramounts, income, receipts, issues, profdgevenues arising from the Synthetic
Lease Properties, (e) to the extent arising fromigked Storage Agreements or other rights to payfoestorage space at the Synthetic
Lease Properties by storage customers, “genegigitiles” (including “payment intangibles”) and tacints” (as
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such terms are defined in the Code), and othetsighpayment for storage space at the Synthetisé. @roperties by storage customers,

(f) license and concession fees, proceeds and b#mfits to which any Synthetic Lessee or any tagea Synthetic Lessee may now or
hereafter be entitled with respect to the Assightmtage Agreements; (g) all books, records, writjriata bases, and information relating to,
used or useful in connection with, evidencing, edying, incorporating or referring to, any of thedgoing; (h) any award or compensation
or insurance payment or other proceeds to whichSymghetic Lessee may become entitled by reasdn wmiterest in the Synthetic Lease
Properties; and (i) all products, offspring, reigspes, profits, returns, income and Proceedddfised in the Code) of and from any and all
of the foregoing.

“Synthetic Lease Propertiedias the meaning set forth in the definition of “Batic Lease Collateral”.

“Synthetic Leasestneans, collectively, (i) the Amended and Restatedtstr Lease dated as of March 15, 2004 between ARElessee,
and BMO Global Capital Solutions, Inc., as lesaoig any other documents, agreements, mortgagess dé&ust and other instruments
executed in connection therewith, (ii) that certdgtond Amended and Restated Master Lease and Edgkktortgage dated as of March 15,
2004 among U-Haul and AREC, as lessees, the valtiessors identified therein, lessor, and BMO Gldbapital Solutions, Inc. as Agent
Lessor for the Lessors, and any documents, agrédepreartgages, deeds of trust, and other instrusrextgcuted in connection therewith, and
(iii) that certain Canadian U-Haul Master Lease=dads of April 5, 2001 between Computershare T@ashpany of Canada, as successor to
Montreal Trust Company of Canada, and U-Haul (Cajahd any documents, agreements, mortgages, dewdst, and other instruments
executed in connection therewith, each as may bgeguently amended, restated or refinanced toxtie@tepermitted hereunder.

“Synthetic Lease’means any of AREC, U-Haul andaul (Canada) and any of their respective successanterest as lessees under
Synthetic Leases that may succeed to such intéreatzordance with this Agreement and the appléc&8ynthetic Leases.

“TRAC Lease Transactionfneans any operating or capital lease (as deternmingctordance with GAAP) entered into by any Nedagty
pursuant to a “Terminal Rental Adjustment Claugeiske (including, without limitation, the PMCC LiKénd Exchange Lease) whereby
(@) (i) the ownership of a Vehicle that is ownedsigh Note Party is transferred to a lessor witldf days of the acquisition of such Vehicle
or (ii) the ownership of a Vehicle is transferredatlessor by someone other than a Note Party(tgritle Vehicle so transferred is leased k
to the Note Party by such lessor.

“Trustee’s Liens"means the Liens granted by the Company and theugtoas to the trustee, for the benefit of the halds the notes,
under the indenture, the Security Documents andttier Note Documents.

“U-Haul” means U-Haul International, Inc., a Nevada corpomnat

“Vehicle” or “Vehicles” means any vehicle (including any motor vehicleilér or other asset of any Note Party represenyeal
certificate of title.

“WP Carey Transaction’'means the transaction, in form and substance rabkosatisfactory to Required Lenders, whereby Wét&g)e
(DE) Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited parshép, or other Affiliate of W.P. Carey & Co., LL@jill acquire the Real Property that is
subject to the Synthetic Leases (excluding Regb&tty located in Canada) and such Synthetic Lests@sbe paid in full and terminated, all
as more fully set forth on Schedule W-1 to the N&wwdit Agreement.
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THE EXCHANGE OFFER
Purposes and Effects

We issued the outstanding notes on Marcl2084 in a private offering exempt from the registrarequirements of the Securities Act of
1933. In connection with the sale of the outstagdiates, we and the initial purchasers enteredtiaegistration rights agreement pursuant
to which we agreed to file with the SEC a registrastatement with respect to an offer to exchanges for the outstanding notes within
60 days after the outstanding notes were issueatidition, we agreed to use our reasonable best®tb cause the registration statement to
become effective under the Securities Act withi@ #ays after the outstanding notes were issuedceisgue the exchange notes pursuant to
the exchange offer. A copy of the registration tsgligreement has been filed as an exhibit to gistration statement of which this
prospectus is a part.

The exchange offer is being made pursuatitaaegistration rights agreement. Holders of autding notes who do not tender their
outstanding notes or whose outstanding notes adeted but not accepted would have to rely on etiempfrom registration requirements
under the securities laws, including the Securities if they wish to sell their outstanding notes.

Based on interpretations by the staff of $fC set forth in no-action letters issued to pessomwelated to us, we believe the exchange
notes issued pursuant to the exchange offer inaamgenfor outstanding notes may be offered for salie, and otherwise transferred by any
holder (other than a person that is an “affilia®édurs within the meaning of Rule 405 under theuBigies Act and except as set forth in the
next paragraph) without registration or the delvef a prospectus under the Securities Act, praVvithe holder acquires the exchange not
the ordinary course of the holder’s business aadtider is not participating and does not intengdarticipate, and has no arrangement or
understanding with any person to participate, exdtstribution of the exchange notes.

If a person were to participate in the exgjeoffer for the purpose of distributing securities manner not permitted by the SEC’s
interpretation, (1) the position of the staff oétS8EC enunciated in the no-action letters wouldoecapplicable to the person and (2) the
person would be required to comply with the regtstn and prospectus delivery requirements of #auBties Act in connection with a sale
of the exchange notes with any such resale transaeffected by it covered by an effective registra statement containing the selling
securityholder information required by Item 507568 of the SEC’s Regulation S-K.

Each broker-dealer that receives exchangesrfot its own account in exchange for outstandiotgs which the broker-dealer acquired as
a result of marketnaking activities or other trading activities, masknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus é@meection with any sale |
those exchange notes.

The exchange offer is not being made to withwe accept surrenders for exchange from, hddédrexchange notes with addresses in any
jurisdiction in which the exchange offer or theuigsce of exchange notes pursuant to it would \@agiplicable securities or blue sky la
Prior to the exchange offer, however, we will régior qualify, or cooperate with the holders & thutstanding notes and their respective
counsel in connection with the registration or dication of, the exchange notes for offer and salder the securities or blue sky laws of
such jurisdictions as are necessary to permit gqansation of the exchange offer and do anything eisieh is necessary or advisable to
enable the offer and issuance of the exchange imothese jurisdictions.

Terms of the Exchange Offer

Upon the terms and subject to the conditsmidorth in this prospectus and in the accompanlatier of transmittal, we will issue
exchange notes in exchange for all outstandingsnetéch are validly tendered prior to 5:00 p.m.yWN¢éork time, on the expiration date (as
defined below) and not withdrawn. The principal amioof the exchange notes issued in the exchangbemhe same as the principal amc
of the outstanding notes for which they are exckdnglolders may tender some or all of their outlitegnotes in response to the exchange
offer.
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However, outstanding notes may be tendergdiomultiples of $1. See “Description of the Exeige Notes.”

The form and terms of the exchange noteshaillhe same in all material respects as the fowhterms of the outstanding notes, except
that (1) the exchange notes will be registered utideSecurities Act and hence will not bear legaredjarding restrictions on transfer and
(2) because the exchange notes will be registbaders of exchange notes will not be, and uporctimsummation of the exchange offer,
except under limited circumstances, holders oftantting notes will no longer be, entitled to rightsler the registration rights agreement
intended for holders of unregistered securities.

Outstanding notes which are not tendere@Xcehange or are tendered but not accepted in tieage offer will remain outstanding and
be entitled to the benefits of the indenture, bilitwot be entitled to any registration rights untlee registration rights agreement.

We will be deemed to accept all the outstagdiotes which are validly tendered and not witharavhen we give oral or written notice to
that effect to the exchange agent. The exchang® agkact as agent for the tendering holderstha purpose of receiving exchange notes
from us.

If any tendered outstanding notes are nat@ated for exchange because of an invalid tendetharwise, certificates for those outstanding
notes will be returned, without expense, to theléeimg holder promptly after the expiration date.

Holders who tender outstanding notes in respdo the exchange offer will not be requireday prokerage commissions or fees or,
except as described in the instructions in thedetf transmittal, transfer taxes. We will payaihrges and expenses, other than certain taxes
described below, in connection with the exchanderoBee “— Fees and Expenses.”

Expiration Date; Extension; Termination; Amendments

The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.New York time, , 2004, the “@gpion date” unless we extend it by notice to the
exchange agent. The expiration date will be at [R@dusiness days (or longer if required by ajalie law) after the date notice of the
Exchange Offer is mailed to the holders in accocdamith Rule 14e-1(a) under the Exchange Act.

Interest on Exchange Notes

Interest on the exchange notes will accramfthe date of their issuance at the rate of 9.8#@pnum and will be payable quarterly in
arrears on each March 15, June 15, September 1Beraiber 15, commencing on June 15, 2004. Wenaie each interest payment to
holders of record of the exchange notes on the uiettedy preceding March 1, June 1, September 1Dsmwmber 1. We will pay interest on
overdue principal at 2.0% per annum in excess@athove rate and will pay interest on overdue linséats of interest at such higher rate to
the extent lawful.

Termination of Certain Rights

The registration rights agreement provides, tith certain exceptions, if: (1) the exchanfferaregistration statement has not been filed
with the SEC on or prior to the 60th calendar dalpfving the date of original issue of the outstagdhotes; (2) the exchange offer
registration statement has not been declared efech or prior to the 150th calendar day followthg date of original issue of the
outstanding notes, (3) the exchange offer is nosemmated on or prior to the 180th day following tlate of original issue of the outstanc
notes, or (4) the Shelf Registration Statementireduo be filed but is not declared effective arpdor to the 150th day following the date of
the Shelf Filing Event (as defined below), orhit day is not a Business Day, the next day theBssiness Day, or is declared effective by
such date but thereafter ceases to be effectiusalrle, except if the Shelf Registration ceasés teffective or usable as specifically
permitted by the terms and conditions of the Regfisin Rights Agreement (each event referred wanses (1) through (4) above being a
“registration default”), the interest rate bornethg outstanding notes will be increased by 0.28%apnum for the first 90 day period upon
the occurrence of a registration default.
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This rate will continue to increase by 0.50% eadbssquent 90 day period that the liquidated dam@gedefined below) continue to accrue
under any such circumstance. However, the maxinutah increase in the interest rate will in no evexiteed two percent (2%) per year. We
refer to this increase in the interest rate omibtes as “liquidated damages.” Such interest isipi@yin addition to any other interest payable
from time to time with respect to the outstandiloges and the exchange notes in cash on each inpengaent date to the holders of record
for such interest payment date. After the cureegfatration defaults or after the date upon whighriotes become freely transferable by the
holders, the accrual of liquidated damages wilpsiad the interest rate will revert to the origirse.

In the event that:
< any changes in law or the applicable interpretatiofithe staff of the Commission do not permitigsiers to effect the Exchange Ofi
« for any reason the Exchange Offer is not consuninaithin 180 days of the Issue Date;

« any Holder, other than an Initial Purchaser, ishjjsibed by law or the applicable interpretationgh staff of the Commission from
participating in the Exchange Offer;

« any Holder who participates in the Exchange Offees not receive Exchange Notes on the date @xtigange that may be sold
without restriction under state and federal seimsritaws (other than due solely to the status offi $tolder as an affiliate of any Issuer
within the meaning of the Securities Ac

then, the Issuer and the guarantors shall as plpmppracticable, but in no event later than 1&@gsdafter the occurrence of any of the above
shelf registration statement triggering eventslieatShelf Filing Event”), file with the SEC a shetgistration statement covering resales of
the outstanding notes by holders who satisfy aedanditions relating to the provision of infornwatiin connection with the shelf registration
statement.

Procedures for Tendering

Delivery to the holders of and payment far Motes shall be made at a Closing (the “Clositgte held at such time and on such date as
agreed to by the parties (the “Closing Date”) atltication agreed to by the parties. The Closintg@ad the location of delivery of and the
form of payment for the Notes may be varied by agrent between holders and Issuer.

Issuer shall deliver to holders one or mamificates representing the Notes, each in défimifiorm, registered in such names and
denominations as holders may request, against paymgeholders of the aggregate purchase price fibrelg immediately available federal
funds bank wire transfer to such bank accountsgelsshall designate to holders at least two basidays prior to the Closing.

The certificates representing the Notes findiave form shall be made available to holdersiftspection at the offices of Snell & Wilmer
L.L.P., 400 East Van Buren, Phoenix, Arizona 850f¥4such other place as shall be reasonably addepgtaPurchasers) not later than
10:00 a.m. one business day immediately precetie@tosing Date.

Conditions of the Exchange Offer

Notwithstanding any other term of the exchenffer, we will not be required to accept for exafe, or exchange securities for, any
outstanding notes, if:

(a) the holders have not delivered payment to Isfwghe Notes pursuant to Note Purchase Agreement

(b) any of the representations and warrantiesehtiiders in Note Purchase Agreement are untrugorrect in any respects at and
as of the Closing Date;
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(c) any injunction, restraining order or order ofyaature by a Governmental Authority has beereidsas of the Closing Date that
would prevent or interfere with the issuance and shthe Notes; or any stop order suspending ttadification or exemption from
qualification of any of the Notes in any jurisdariihas been issued or a proceeding for that pullpesbeen commenced or be pendin
threatened as of the Closing De

Fees and Expenses

All fees and expenses incident to the perforoe of or compliance with the Registration Righdseement by the Issuers (other than any
underwriting discounts or commissions) shall benbdry the Issuers, whether or not the Exchanger @igistration Statement or any Shelf
Registration is filed or becomes effective or theeliange Offer is consummated, including, withoonitation:

(a) all registration and filing fees (including,thout limitation, fees and expenses of complianitk state securities or Blue Sky
laws, including, without limitation, fees and disbements of counsel in connection with Blue Skylifjaations of the Notes and
determination of the eligibility of the Notes faniestment under the laws of such jurisdictions whbe holders of Notes are located, in
the case of an Exchange Offer, or as providedearRégistration Rights Agreement, in the case diglf Registration)

(b) printing expenses, including, without limitaticexpenses of printing certificates for Notes rcltange Notes and of printing
prospectuses if the printing of prospectuses igestgd by the managing underwriter or underwrii€es)y, or by the Holders of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Ndateduded in any Registration Stateme

(c) messenger, telephone and delivery expenses;

(d) fees and disbursements of counsel for the fssarad, in the case of a Shelf Registration, regslerfees and disbursements of one
special counsel for all of the sellers of the Np#esl disbursements of all independent certifidolipiccountants (including, without
limitation, the expenses of any special audit “cold comfor” letters required by or incident to such performan

(e) Securities Act liability insurance, if the Coamy desires such insurance, (vii) fees and expeasfsbother Persons retained by
any of the Issuer:

(f) internal expenses of the Issuers (includinghait limitation, all salaries and expenses ofagffs and employees of the Issuers
performing legal or accounting dutie

(9) the expense of any annual audit;

(h) the fees and expenses incurred in connectitmtivé listing of the securities to be registerachny securities exchange, and the
obtaining of a rating of the securities, in eackegaf applicable; an

(i) the expenses relating to printing, word progegsaind distributing all Registration Statementgjerwriting agreements, indentures
and any other documents necessary in order to gowith this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregpor anything to the contrary,
each holder shall pay all underwriting discountd eammissions of any underwriters with respectiy ldotes sold by or on behalf of

Consequences of Failure to Exchange Outstanding Nt

If a holder does not exchange outstanding notesXonange notes in response to the exchange thfeoutstanding notes will continue
be subject to the restrictions on transfer desdribéhe legend on the certificate evidencing thtstanding notes, and will not have the bel
of any agreement by us to register outstandingsnaeler the Securities Act. In general, notes nmyoa offered or sold, unless the sale is
registered under the Securities Act, or unles®ffer and sale are exempt from, or not subjectit® Securities Act or any applicable state
securities laws.
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Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

Eligible holders of outstanding notes whohwig tender their outstanding notes and (i) whagstanding notes are not immediately
available or (ii) who cannot deliver their outstarginotes or any other documents required by tterlef transmittal to the exchange agent
prior to the expiration date, may tender their tartding notes according to the guaranteed delipevgedures described in the letter of
transmittal. Acceptance of the Outstanding Notek@pon satisfaction or waiver of all Delivery oktlExchange Notes conditions to the
exchange offer, we will accept any and all outsitagdotes that are properly tendered in responsiestexchange offer prior to 5:00 p.m.,
New York time, on the expiration da

Participation in the exchange offer is volugtand holders should carefully consider whetbexdcept the exchange offer and tender their
outstanding notes. Holders of outstanding notesiayed to consult their financial and tax advisarmaking their own decisions on what
action to take.

Accounting Treatment

The exchange notes will be recorded in oupanting records at the same carrying value asti&tanding notes on the date of the
exchange. Accordingly, we will not recognize anyngar loss for accounting purposes as a resuh®®txchange offer. We will amortize the
expenses of the exchange offer over the term oftibbange notes.

Exchange Agent

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. has been appointegxatange agent for the exchange offer. All corradpace in connection with the exchange
offer and the letter of transmittal should be addeel to the exchange agent, as follows:

By Facsimile; By Registered or Certified Mai
(Eligible Institutions Only Overnight Courier or Hand Delivery
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
(612) 667-4927 608 Second Avenue South
Confirm by telephone: (800) 344-5128 Corporate Trust Operations, 12th Floor

Minneapolis, MN 5540:.

Requests for additional copies of this prasigeor the letter of transmittal or accompanyinguiments should be directed to the exchange
agent. Delivery of the letter of transmittal or aegpanying documents to a different address or tnéssson instructions to a different
facsimile does not constitute a valid delivery ot!s letter of transmittal or other documents.
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UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion addresses materiatad States federal income tax considerationsiegige to the holder that exchanges
outstanding notes for exchange notes. This disonssibased on the provisions of the Internal Regdbode of 1986, as amended (the
“Code"), the applicable treasury regulations progatied or proposed under the Code, judicial authant current administrative rulings and
practice. All of these authorities may change withaotice, possibly on a retroactive basis. Thimmary deals only with holders that have
held the outstanding notes and will hold the exgeamotes as capital assets within the meaning cfd®el221 of the Code. It does not
address tax considerations applicable to investatsmay be subject to special tax rules, suctaakdand other financial institutions; tax-
exempt organizations; insurance companies; pahiper,sexpatriates, traders or dealers in secuitiesirrencies; custodians, nominees or
similar financial intermediaries holding outstarglior exchange notes for others; or persons tha hald outstanding or will hold exchange
notes as a position in a hedging transaction, dkeaat conversion transaction for tax purposesess@ns subject to the alternative minimum
tax. This summary does not discuss the tax consegseof any conversion of currency into or outhaf United States dollar as such a
conversion relates to the purchase, ownershipspodition of the exchange notes.

AMERCO HAS NEITHER RECEIVED AN OPINION FROM TAX COU NSEL NOR ANY RULING FROM THE INTERNAL
REVENUE SERVICE (IRS) WITH RESPECT TO THE STATEMENT S MADE AND THE CONCLUSIONS REACHED IN THE
FOLLOWING SUMMARY. THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT T HE IRS WILL AGREE WITH SUCH STATEMENTS
AND CONCLUSIONS.

HOLDERS OF THE OUTSTANDING NOTES SHOULD CONSULT THE IR OWN TAX ADVISORS WITH RESPECT TO THE
APPLICATION OF THE UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX LAWS TO THEIR PARTICULAR SITUATIONS AS WELL
AS ANY TAX CONSEQUENCES ARISING UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY STATE, LOCAL OR FOREIGN TAXING
JURISDICTION OR UNDER ANY APPLICABLE TAX TREATY AS TO HOW THEIR PARTICULAR TAX SITUATION MIGHT
BE AFFECTED BY THE EXCHANGE OF THE OUTSTANDING NOTE S FOR THE EXCHANGE NOTES AND THE HOLDING
AND DISPOSITION OF THEIR EXCHANGE NOTES.

United States Holders

For purposes of this discussion, a United Statédehds the beneficial owner of an exchange not, lor United States federal income
purposes, is:

« an individual citizen or resident of the Unitedt8&

« a corporation or other entity taxable as a corpamatreated or organized under the laws of theddinBtates or any state thereof or the
District of Columbia;

* an estate, the income of which is subject to Un8&ates federal income taxation regardless obitisce; or

« a trust, if (i) one or more United States pers@ssdefined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code) lthgeauthority to control all
substantial decisions of the trust and a courtiwithie United States is able to exercise primapesuision over the administration of 1
trust or (i) it has a valid election in effecthe treated as a United States Per

A nonWUnited States holder is a beneficial owner of athexge note who is a nonresident alien or a cotipordrust or estate that is no
United States holder. If a partnership holds ndtestax treatment of a partner will generally depen the status of the partner and on the
activities of the partnership. Partners of parthigs holding outstanding notes should consult tteeiradvisors.

Exchange of Note!

The exchange of outstanding notes for excharoges pursuant to the exchange offer will nostitrie a material modification of the debt
instruments represented by the outstanding notddriited States federal
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income tax purposes and thus will not constitutexahange or a taxable event for United StateseneldConsequently, United States holders
will treat the exchange notes as a continuatioth@fndebtedness represented by the outstandieg aotl United States holders will not
recognize gain or loss upon the receipt of exchaioges in exchange for outstanding notes in thaaxge offer, United States holders’ bases
in the exchange notes received in the exchange wifiebe the same as their bases in the correspgrolitstanding notes immediately before
the exchange, and United States holders’ holdimipgén the exchange notes will include their holglperiod in the outstanding notes.

Payment of Interes

Stated interest on an exchange note genevdllpe includible in the income of a United Staiteolder as ordinary income at the time such
interest is received or accrued, in accordance tiiggtholder's method of accounting for United Stdezleral income tax purposes.

Market Discount

United States holders should be aware tlatdkale of an exchange note may be affected byainket discount rules of the Code. Under
these rules, a subsequent purchaser of an exchatgacquiring the note at a market discount gdigevauld be required to include as
ordinary income a portion of the gain realized ugmndisposition or retirement of the note to tkieet of the market discount that has
accrued while the debt instrument was held by tirelmser. A purchaser at a market discount incltiiepurchase of an exchange note after
its original issuance at a price less than the'sstated redemption price at maturity. The amadfimharket discount, if any, will generally
equal the excess of:

« the sum of the issue price of the note and theeggge amount of the original issue discount indledin the gross income of all United
States holders, ov:

« the purchase price.

Gain recognized on the disposition, including aeragtion, by a United States holder of an exchamge that has accrued market discc
will be treated as ordinary income, and not cajtah, to the extent of the accrued market discduuttonly if the amount of market discount
exceeds a statutorily-defined de minimis amoundésrthe de minimis exception, there is no markstalint on a note if the excess of the
stated redemption price at maturity of the noter élve holder’s tax basis in the note is less th@b% of the stated redemption price at
maturity multiplied by the number of complete yeafter the acquisition date to the nateate of maturity. Unless the holder elects otis
as described below, the accrued market discountdimthe amount calculated by multiplying the nedrdiscount by a fraction:

« the numerator of which is the number of days tHegation has been held by the holder; and
« the denominator of which is the number of daysrdfte holder’s acquisition of the obligation upatad including its maturity date.

A United States holder of an exchange noteiiaed at market discount will be deemed to haetized an amount equal to the fair market
value of the note if the holder disposes of thenwispecified transactions other than a sale,an@d or involuntary conversion, even though
the transaction is otherwise non-taxable (for eXangift). The United States holder will be regdito recognize as ordinary income any
accrued market discount to the extent of the deegaéd A holder of an exchange note acquired aaeket discount also may be required to
defer the deduction of all or a portion of the iet# on any indebtedness incurred or maintaingaitohase or carry the note until it is
disposed of in a taxable transaction.

A United States holder of an exchange notgiaed at market discount may elect to includentaeket discount in income as it accrues.
This election would apply to all market discountigétions acquired by the electing United Statedsiénoon or after the first day of the first
taxable year to which the election applies. Thetada may be revoked only with the consent of fR&.1If a United States holder of a note
elects to include market discount in income culyetite rules discussed above with respect to argimcome recognition resulting from
sales and certain other dispositions and to defefiaterest deductions would not apply.

113




Table of Contents

Amortizable Bond Premiun

An exchange note purchased for more thapriiteipal amount generally will be considered tedndeen purchased at a premium. The
bond premium is generally equal to the excess)yif af the tax basis of the note over the amoupabpke at maturity of the note or, if a
smaller premium would result, on an earlier catedaf the note. A note holder may elect to amorttiebond premium on a constant yield
basis, in which case amortizable bond premiumlisated to payments of interest and treated agfaetdo interest income. A holder that
elects to amortize premium must reduce the holdak$asis in the note by the amount of the agdeedductions, or interest offsets,
allowable for the amortization of premium. If aeetion to amortize bond premium is not made, a hotder must include the full amount of
each interest payment in income in accordance témote holder’s regular method of tax accountamgl the note holder will generally
receive a tax benefit from the bond premium onlgrupomputing the note holder’s gain or loss up@nstéle or other disposition or payment
of the principal amount of the note.

Sale, Exchange, Redemption or Other Taxable Disgiosi of Notes

Upon the sale, exchange, redemption or dtheble disposition of an exchange note, a UnitateS holder generally will recognize
capital gain or loss equal to the difference betwee

« the amount of cash proceeds and the fair markeevafl any property received on the sale, exchamegemption or other taxable
disposition, except to the extent such amounttithatable to accrued interest income, which istd& as ordinary income (as described
above unde“Payment of Intere”); and

« such holder’s adjusted tax basis in the exchangg no

A United States holder’s adjusted tax basian exchange note generally will equal the cosh@®xchange note to such holder, less any
amortized bond premium and any principal paymesteived by such holder plus any market discountipusly included in income. Such
capital gain or loss will be long-term if the UrdtStates holder’s holding period is more than 12tm®and will be short-term if the holding
period is 12 months or less. Long-term capital gag@tognized by individuals are generally taxea miaximum federal tax rate of 15%, and
short-term capital gains are generally taxed ataimum federal tax rate of 35%.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, information reporting requirensewill apply to certain noncorporate United Stdteklers with respect to payments of
principal, premium and interest on an exchange, rzoté to payments of the proceeds of the salenote The receipt of such payments may
be subject to “backup withholding” at a 28% ratacBup withholding generally applies only if the dhet:

« fails to furnish his or her Social Security or atkexpayer identification number within a reasoediihe after the request for it;
« furnishes an incorrect taxpayer identification nemb
« is notified by the IRS that he or she has failecefwort properly interest, dividends or originalue discount; or

« fails, under specified circumstances, to providewified statement, signed under penalties ofupgrihat the taxpayer identification
number provided is the correct number and thatrlehe is not subject to backup withholdi

Any amounts withheld under the backup witklived rules from a payment to a United States hoidiibe allowed as a credit against
such holder’s United States federal income taxraag entitle the holder to a refund, provided thattequired information is furnished to the
IRS.
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Non-United States Holders

Exchange of Note!

The exchange of outstanding notes for exchamages pursuant to the exchange offer will nostitrte a material modification of the
terms of the outstanding notes and thus will noistitute a taxable event for non-United StatesdrsldConsequently, non-United States
holders will not recognize gain upon the receipgx¢hange notes in exchange for outstanding notdeiexchange offer, non-United States
holders’ bases in the exchange notes receiveciexbhange offer will be the same as their bast®igorresponding outstanding notes
immediately before the exchange, and non-UniteteStaolders’ holding period in the exchange noti#lsiwelude their holding period in the
outstanding notes.

Payment of Interes

Generally, interest income of a non-Unitedt&t holder that is not effectively connected aittinited States trade or business will be
subject to a withholding tax at a 30% rate or awedr rate that may be prescribed by an incomeréatyt between the United States and the
holder’s country of residence. However, interestl ga an exchange note to a non-United States halldieh qualifies for the portfolio
interest exemption will not be subject to Unitedt8s federal income tax or withholding tax if sirtlerest income is not effectively connec
with a United States trade or business of the noited States holder, and the non-United Stateseold

« does not actually or constructively own 10% or mafréhe combined voting power of all classes otktof AMERCO entitled to
vote, anc

« is not a controlled foreign corporation related\dERCO, actually or constructively through stockrmwship under section 864(d)(4)
of the Code

and either:

« provides to AMERCO or its agent an appropriate WeBles Form or a suitable substitute form signetbupenalties of perjury that
includes its name and address and certifies dwetbdlder’'s non-United States status, and AMERCEsdmt have actual knowledge
or reason to know that the holder is a United Stperson, o

* AMERCO does not have actual knowledge or reasd&maov that the holder is a United States personAiERCO receives (i) a
withholding certificate from an intermediary payseach as a withholding foreign partnership, quadifintermediary or U.S. branch
of a non-United States bank or of a non-UnitedeStaisurance company), and such intermediary abtgpropriate certification
with respect to the holder’s non-United Statesustand, if required, provides a copy of such dedtifon to AMERCO or (ii) if the
payee is a securities clearing organization, bardtlter financial institution that holds securitfes its customers in the ordinary
course, a statement signed under penalties ofrgetjat the institution has received a withholdaegtificate from the beneficial
owner (or that it has received a similar statenfiemh another financial institution), listing thema and address of the beneficial
owner ancattaching a copy of the beneficial ow’'s withholding certificate

A non-United States holder which does notifutor the “portfolio interest exemption” may nextheless be entitled to an exemption
from, or reduction on the rate of, the United Statéthholding tax on the interest and discountifts holder:

e resides in a jurisdiction which has a favorableme tax treaty with the United States,
« satisfies the conditions for the application oftstreaty, and

« provides to AMERCO or its agent the appropriatenr@¥-8 or a suitable substitute form.

Except to the extent that an applicable ye#terwise provides, a ndonited States holder generally will be taxed in shene manner a:
United States holder with respect to interest dadadint if the interest
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and discount is effectively connected with a Uni&tdtes trade or business of the non-United Statieler. Effectively connected interest and
discount received by a corporate non-United Stadéder may also, under certain circumstances, bgsuto an additional branch profits tax
at a 30% rate or, if applicable, a lower treate r&ven though such effectively connected inteardtdiscount is subject to income tax, and
may be subject to the branch profits tax, it issudiject to withholding if the non-United Statesdeo delivers an appropriate and properly
executed W-8 series Form to AMERCO or its agent.

Sale, Exchange, Redemption or Other Taxable Dispiosis of Notes

A non-United States holder of an exchange moli generally not be subject to United Statethtwolding tax on any gain realized on the
sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable di8posiof the exchange note, other than gain attlide to accrued interest or discount. Such
gain also will generally not be subject to Unitedt8s federal income tax unless:

* the gain is effectively connected with a Unitedt&arade or business of the ndnited States holder (in which case such gain geiye
would be taxable in the same manner as effectivehnected interest (as described above)

« in the case of a non-United States holder who imdiridual, the holder is present in the Unitedt8s for a period or periods
aggregating at least 183 days (as such days an@lai®ld in accordance with the Code) during theeriirtaxable year of the disposition
and certain other conditions are met (in which sz gain, net of certain U.S. source losses,meagubject to tax at a 30% ral

The amount of gain realized upon the salehamge, or redemption of an exchange note maydecmounts attributable to accrued
interest and the discount. Gain attributable towent interest and discount will be taxable, ifljtas described above under “— Non-United
States Holders — Payment of Interest.”

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, payments of principal or intef@stluding discount) made by AMERCO and other payto a non-United States holder will
not be subject to backup withholding and informatieporting, provided that the non-United Statdslérocertifies its non-United States
holder status under penalties of perjury or otheevéistablishes an exemption. In general, paymeheqgiroceeds from the sale of exchange
notes effected at a United States office of a brakeubject to both United States backup withhmadand information reporting. However, a
holder will not be subject to backup withholdingdanformation reporting on such a sale provided:tha

« the broker does not have actual knowledge or remsknow that the holder is a United States peesuhthe holder has furnished to the
broker:

 an appropriate W-8 series Form or an acceptablstisute form upon which the holder certifies, undenalties of perjury, that the
holder is a no-United States person,

« other documentation upon which it may rely to tithat payment as made to a non-United States persmtordance with
U.S. Treasury regulations,

« the holder otherwise establishes an exemption.

In general, payment of the proceeds fronstie of exchange notes effected at a foreign officGebroker will not be subject to
information reporting or backup withholding. Howeypayments of the proceeds from the sale of exghaotes effected at a foreign office
of a broker will be subject to information repogjrbut not backup withholding, if the sale is eféstat a foreign office of a broker that is:

» a United States person,
« a controlled foreign corporation for United Stati@s purposes,

« a foreign person 50% or more of whose gross indsmeéfectively connected with the conduct of a l@diStates trade or business for a
specified thre-year period, o
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« a foreign partnership, if at any time during its year:

« one or more of its partners are United States persgho in the aggregate hold more than 50% ofrtt@me or capital interest in the
partnership, o

« such foreign partnership is engaged in the condiuatUnited States trade or business unless tHeebdwes not have actual
knowledge or reason to know that the holder is addrStates person and the documentation requirsndescribed above (relating
to a sale of notes effected at a United Stateseofif a broker) are met or the holder otherwisalishes an exemptio

Recently enacted Treasury regulations corainmber of other provisions affecting United &tawithholding taxes and reporting
requirements including special rules for paymerasiento nonqualified intermediaries, flow-throughitéas and United States branches.
Prospective investors should consult their tax sahg regarding the effect of these regulations.

United States Federal Estate Tax

Your estate will not be subject to Unitedt&safederal estate tax on exchange notes of asdmieeficially owned by you at the time of
your death, provided that (1) you do not own 10%nore of the total combined voting power of allssas of our voting stock (within tl
meaning of the Code and the United States Tred&egylations) and (2) interest on that exchange wotdd not have been, if received at the
time of your death, effectively connected with tomduct by you of a trade or business in the Urfitdes.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Each broker-dealer that receives exchangesrfot its own account pursuant to the exchange afiist acknowledge that it will deliver a
prospectus in connection with any resale of sudhamge notes. The prospectus, as it may be amendegplemented from time to time,
may be used by a broker-dealer in connection veitbssof exchange notes received in exchange fetanding notes which were acquired as
a result of market-making activities or other traglactivities.

We will not receive any proceeds from angs#lexchange notes by broker-dealers. Exchangss meteived by broker-dealers for their
own account pursuant to the exchange offer maylaefsom time to time in one or more transactiamshie over-the-counter market, in
negotiated transactions, through the writing ofam on the exchange notes or a combination okthusthods of resale, at prices which may
or may not be based upon market prices prevailiigeatime of the sale. Any such sale may be ma@ettly to purchasers or to or through
brokers or dealers who may receive compensatitimeifiorm of commissions or concessions from théngebroker-dealer and/or the
purchasers of the exchange notes. Any broker-ddaésells exchange notes that were receivedfoy its own account pursuant to the
exchange offer and any broker or dealer that ppaties in a distribution of such exchange notes bwagieemed to be an “underwriter” within
the meaning of the Securities Act and any profitrfrsale of the exchange notes and any commissiactnoessions received by any such
persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensathe letter of transmittal states that a brakeader will not, by delivering a
prospectus, be deemed to admit that it is an “wmdier” within the meaning of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to pay all expenses incident texbkange offer other than commissions or concessibany brokers or dealers and
indemnify the holders of the outstanding notestaedexchange notes (including any broker-dealeyainat certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the Securities Act.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the exchange notes and tieted guarantees has been passed upon for AMERCDéddy & Wilmer L.L.P., Phoenix,
Arizona.
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EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of AMERand its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 a? 28nd for each of the years in the
three-year period ended March 31, 2003, have begimded herein and in the registration statemenrgliance upon the report of BDO
Seidman, LLP, independent accountants upon theatttof said firm as experts in accounting anditing.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

AMERCO and the Guarantors have filed with $eeurities and Exchange Commission a registrata@ement on Form &-{together witl
all amendments and exhibits thereto, the “regisinattatement”) under the Securities Act for thgisiation of the exchange notes offered
hereby. As permitted by the rules and regulatidrtt® Commission, this prospectus does not coraliof the information set forth in the
registration statement and the exhibits and sclesdtiereto. For further information with respecfMERCO, the Guarantors and the
exchange notes offered hereby, reference is maitie teegistration statement and to the exhibitssomgdules filed therewith. Statements
contained in this prospectus concerning the costeinany contract or other document are not neagssamplete. With respect to each such
contract or other document filed with the Commissis an exhibit to the registration statementresiee is made to the exhibit for a more
complete description of the matter involved.

We are subject to the informational requirata®f the Exchange Act, and file reports, proxatesnents and other information with the
SEC. These reports, proxy statements and othemmafiiton may be read and copied at the Public Refer&oom maintained by the SEC at
450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20549. Y oaynobtain information on the operation of the PuBleference Room by calling the
SEC at 1-800-SE©®330. The SEC also maintains an Internet sitedbiatains reports, proxy and information statemantsother informatio
regarding registrants like us that file electrofficaith the SEC (at http://www.sec.gov). We alsake available on our website
(www.amerco.com), free of charge, our annual reppont Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q amaent reports on Form 8-K, as
soon as practical after we file these reports WithSEC. AMERCO’s common stock is listed on theddasNational Market (Symbol:
UHAL).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of AMERCO

We have audited the accompanying consolidad¢ahce sheets of AMERCO and its subsidiaries, Slafding Corporation and its
subsidiaries, and SAC Holding Corporation Il arsdsitibsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) asMdrch 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operations,ggsaim stockholders’ equity, comprehensive incolmgg)), and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2003h&@ve also audited the schedules in the accompainyiley. These consolidated financial
statements and schedules are the responsibilttyead€ompany’s management. Our responsibility esxjgress an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and schedule=dbas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditagdards generally accepted in the United Stdtdsnerica. Those standards reqt
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the financial statisnaed schedules are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the consolidated financial
statements and schedules. An audit also includessing the accounting principles used and sigmifiestimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation offthancial statements and schedules. We believeotiraaudits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatsments referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of
AMERCO and its subsidiaries, SAC Holding Corporatand its subsidiaries, and SAC Holding Corporatiand its subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of thegratpons and their cash flows for each of the tlyeses in the period ended March 31,
2003, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of America.oAls our opinion, the schedules present
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

The accompanying consolidated financial stetgs and schedules have been prepared assumi@griygany will continue as a going
concern, which contemplates the continuity of tleen@any’s operations and realization of its assetspayments of its liabilities in the
ordinary course of business. As more fully desdriieNote 1 to the consolidated financial staterseo June 20, 2003, AMERCO, the
parent corporation, filed a voluntary petition feprganization under Chapter 11 of the United StBenkruptcy Code. Amerco Real Estate
Company filed a voluntary petition for relief undenapter 11 on August 13, 2003. The uncertaintiesrient in the bankruptcy process raise
substantial doubt about AMERCOQO'’s ability to contnas a going concern. AMERCO is currently operat®fusiness as a debtor-in-
possession under the jurisdiction of the bankruptayrt, and continuation of the Company as a goorgcern is contingent upon, among o
things, the confirmation of a plan of reorganizatithe Company’s ability to comply with all debtvemants under the existing debtor-in-
possession financing arrangement, and obtainiragnéiimg sources to meet its future obligations.ré@ganization plan is not approved, it is
possible some assets of the Company may be liqadddanagement’s plans in regards to these maiteralso described in Note 1. The
consolidated financial statements and scheduleotimclude any adjustments to reflect future éfem the recoverability and classification
of assets or the amount and classification oflité#s that might result from the outcome of theseertainties.

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanyimgalidated financial statements, the Company hetatel the consolidated balance sheet as
of March 31, 2002, and the related consolidatestants of operations, changes in stockholderstgqomprehensive income/(loss), and
cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2002 &0d. 2

Our audits were conducted for the purpodemning an opinion on the consolidated financiaksients and schedules taken as a whole.
The consolidating balance sheets, statements chtiges schedules, statements of cash flows scegdahd the summary of earnings of
independent trailer fleets information includedpages F-63 through €5 are presented for purposes of additional arsbfsihe consolidate
financial statements rather than to present thanfiral position, results of operations, and caswsl of the individual companies or the
earnings of the independent fleets. Accordingly deenot express an opinion on
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the financial position, results of operations, aadh flows of the individual companies, or on thenegs of the independent trailer fleets.
However, such information has been subjected tatiuiting procedures applied in the audit of thesolidated financial statements and
schedules and, in our opinion, is fairly statedlirmaterial respects in relation to the consokddinancial statements and schedules take!
whole.

/s/ BDO SEIDMAN, LLP

Los Angeles, California
August 18, 2003, except for
Notes 23 and 24 which a
as of March 30, 2004
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 66,83 $  41,44¢
Trade receivables, n 263,73 274,87(
Notes and mortgage receivables, 2,86¢ 7,27¢
Inventories, ne 53,27( 65,77¢
Prepaid expenst 21,84¢ 15,27¢
Investments, fixed maturitie 860,60( 988,39
Investments, othe 389,25: 240,91.
Deferred policy acquisition costs, r 105,10( 97,91¢
Deferred income taxe 32,24: 6,04t
Other asset 63,60( 58,31¢
1,859,34 1,796,24.
Property, plant and equipment, at ct
Land 157,98° 160,89!
Buildings and improvemen 747,85: 725,21
Furniture and equipme 291,38: 288,71:
Rental trucks 1,140,29. 1,071,60-
Rental trailers and other rental equipm 149,70° 162,76¢
SAC Holdings property plant and equipm 757,29: 727,63(
3,244,511 3,136,82:
Less accumulated depreciati (1,298,19) (1,200,74)
Total property, plant and equipme 1,946,31 1,936,07!
Total asset $ 3,805,66! $3,732,31
.| .|
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 387,01 $ 233,87:
AMERCQ'S notes and loans payal 954,85t 1,045,80.
SAC Holdings’ notes and loans payable, non-recotarse
AMERCO 589,01¢ 561,88
Policy benefits and losses, claims and loss exsepegable 836,63: 819,58:
Liabilities from investment contrac 639,99¢ 572,79:
Other policyholder funds and liabilities 30,30¢ 73,597
Deferred incomt 40,387 43,25¢
Total liabilities 3,478,211 3,350,79:
| |

Stockholder’ equity:
Serial preferred stock, with or without par value,
50,000,000 shares authoriz—

Series A preferred stock, with no par value, 6,000,share
authorized; 6,100,000 shares issued and outstaaging
March 31, 2003 and 20(

Series B preferred stock, with no par value, 100 $itares
authorized; none issued and outstanding as of Mait¢ch
2003 and 200:

Serial common stock, with or without par value,
150,000,000 shares authoriz—
Series A common stock of $0.25 par value,



10,000,000 shares authorized; 5,662,496 sharesdgsiof
March 31, 2003 and 20(

Common stock of $0.25 par value, 150,000,000 shares
authorized; 35,664,367 and 35,919,281 issued as of
March 31, 2003 and 20(

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income/(l

Retained earninc

Cost of common shares in treasury, net (20,96 %6613
20,850,763 shares as of March 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively’

Unearned employee stock ownership plan st

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

1,441 1,441
9,12z 9,12:
238,98 239,49;
(55,76%) (40,58()
568,22. 606,17
(421,37 (419,97()
(13,177 (14,15:)
327,44 381,52

$ 3,805,66! $3,732,31
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except share and
per share data)

Revenue:
Rental Revenu $ 1,560,00! 1,512,25 1,436,83.
Net sales 222,88 222,81t 212,24:
Premiums 307,92! 411,171 328,10¢
Net investment and interest incol 41,56¢ 47,34 52,291
Total revenue 2,132,38 2,193,57 2,029,48
Costs and expens
Operating expenst 1,134,46 1,146,30! 1,076,30
Commission expenst 136,82 140,44: 132,86!
Cost of sale: 115,11! 122,69« 126,50¢
Benefits and losse 281,86¢ 423,70! 331,07¢
Amortization of deferred acquisition co: 37,81¢ 40,67 36,23:
Lease expens 179,64. 174,66 175,46(
Depreciation, ne 137,44t 102,95 103,80°
Total costs and expens 2,023,17 2,151,44! 1,982,25!
Earnings from operatior 109,21( 42,13« 47,224
Interest expens 148,13: 109,46! 111,87¢
Pretax earnings/(los (38,92) (67,33) (64,659
Income tax benefit/(expens 13,93t 19,89 22,54¢
Net earnings/(loss $ (24,98¢) (47,440 (42,110
Less: Preferred stock dividen (12,967 (12,969 (12,969
Net earnings/(loss) available to common sharehs $ (37,949 (60,407 (55,079
| | |
Basic and diluted loss per common sh. $ (1.89) (2.87) (2.5€)
| | |
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic and dilutes 20,743,07 21,022,71 21,486,37
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS AND CHANGES OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Years Ended March 31,

2003

2002

2001

Series A common stock of $0.25 par val
10,000,000 shares authorized; 5,662,496 sharesiss2003,
2002 and 200

(In thousands)

Beginning and end of ye $ 1,44 1,441 1,441
Common stock of $0.25 par valt

150,000,000 shares authorized; 35,664,367, 35,919¢hd
35,919,281 shares issued in 2003, 2002 and
Beginning and end of ye. 9,127 9,127 9,127

Additional paic-in capital:
Beginning of yea 239,49: 239,40: 239,30°
Issuance of common shares under leveraged empityele
ownership plar (509) 89 96
End of yeal 238,98 239,49: 239,40:
Accumulated other comprehensive incol

Beginning of yea (40,58() (45,19 (44,879
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 (25,03) (7,259
Fair market value of cash flow hed (6,31¢) 8,94z (1,186
Unrealized gain (loss) on investme (12,649 20,70¢ 8,121

End of yeal (55,76%) (40,580 (45,197

Retained earning:

Beginning of yea 606,17: 666,57 721,64
Net earnings/(loss (24,98¢) (47,440 (42,110
Preferred stock dividend

Series A ($2.13 per share for 2003, 2002 and 2 (22,969 (12,969 (12,969

End of yeal 568,22: 606,17 666,57:

Less treasury stoc

Beginning of yea (419,970 (409,816 (400,199
Net increast (1,409¢) (10,159 (9,617)

End of yeal (421,379 (419,97() (409,816

Less Unearned employee stock ownership plan st

Beginning of yea (14,157 (15,179 (16,36¢)
Purchase of shari (72 (46)
Shares allocated to participal 97t 1,09: 1,23¢

End of yeal (23,179 (14,157 (15,179

Total stockholder equity $ 327,44 381,52 446,35:
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCO ME/(LOSS)

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)
Comprehensive income/(los:

Net earnings/(loss $(24,98¢) (47,440 (42,110

Other comprehensive income/(loss) net of
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 (25,03) (7,257%)
Fair market value of cash flow hed¢ (6,31¢) 8,94: (1,186
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, (12,649 20,70¢ 8,121
Total comprehensive income/(los $(40,177) (42,829 (42,42%)
I I I

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities: Net earnifigss)

Depreciation and amortizatic

Provision for losses on accounts receiv:

Net gain on sale of real and personal prop
Loss on sale of investmer

Changes in policy liabilities and accru
Additions to deferred policy acquisition co

Net change in other operating assets and lialsi

Net cash provided(used)by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie

Purchases of investmen
Property, plant and equipme
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Other asset investme
Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Proceeds from sales of investmel
Property, plant and equipme
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Changes in other investmel

Net cash (used) by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in shc-term borrowings
Proceeds from note
Debt issuance cos
Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership P
Purchase of shari

Payments on loa
Principal payments on not
Treasury stock acquisitions, r
Preferred stock dividends pe
Investment contract depos
Investment contract withdrawe

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Years Ended March 31,

2003

Restated
2002

Restated
2001

$ (24,986
185,83
3,90:
(10,51%)
9,497
(78,312
(42,667
31,77

74,53(

(243,16
(278,35)

(1,410
(21,75¢)

96,88¢
364,11
2,88¢
22,04:
18,17:
4,481

(36,10%)

21,90
349,83
(3,010)

97t
(442,11
(1,40¢)
(6,480)
165,28:
(98,02:)

(13,040

25,38¢
41,44¢

$ 66,83¢

(In thousands)
(47,440
149,05¢

5,68z
(3,526
5,92
(6,561)
(39,257
(83,519

(19,63:)

(381,48)
(257,559
(41¢)
(2,072)
(2,259)
4,271
(1,35)

229,37!
233,71t

4,40(
3,70(
18,69(
2,891

(148,08)

(9,277)
247,89:
(390)

(72)
1,09:
(107,18)
(10,152
(12,969
150,43:
(99,84%)

159,53t

(8,187)
49,62¢

41,44¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statemet

(42,110
148,02
4,311
(13,30%)
6,73¢
62,67
(42,53%)
48,82¢

172,63

(617,272
(122,86:)
(31,779

(5,919
(26)
(22,56%)

354,24(
152,76:
6,19¢
372

17,22«

(269,62

156,07(
94,07
(694)

(46)
1,23¢
(143,59
(9,617
(12,962
86,65
(72,959

98,17¢

1,18:
48,44¢

49,62¢






Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation (“AMERCQ"), ietholding company for U-Haul International, IntJ{Haul”), which conducts
moving and storage operations; Amerco Real Estategany (“AREC”), which conducts real estate operaj Republic Western Insurance
Company (“RepWest"), which conducts property ansbedty insurance operations; and Oxford Life IneaeaCompany (“Oxford”), which
conducts life insurance operations. Unless theestmmtherwise requires, the term “Company” refer&MERCO and all of its legal
subsidiaries. All references to a fiscal year recdeAMERCO'’s fiscal year ended March 31 of thatryea

SAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Il poration and their consolidated subsidiaries émtively referred to as SAC Holdings)
are majority owned by Mark V. Shoen. Mark V. Shaethe beneficial owner of 16.3% of AMERCO’s comnsgiack and is an executive
officer of U-Haul.

Going Concern Basit

On June 20, 2003 (the “Petition Date”), AMER(@led a voluntary petition for relief under Chaptl1 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United StatemBuptcy Court, District of Nevada (the “Bankruptcourt”) (Case No. 0352103).
AMERCO will continue to manage its properties apeémte its businesses as “debtor-in-possessiorérithd jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy
Court and in accordance with the applicable prowisiof the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as delptgreissession, AMERCO is authorized
under Chapter 11 to continue to operate as an ngdmisiness, but may not engage in transactiorssdeuthe ordinary course of business
without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Co@pecific information pertaining to the bankrupfitiyng may be obtained from the website
WwWw.amerco.com.

The accompanying consolidated financial statets have been prepared assuming the Compangontihue as a going concern, which
contemplates the continuity of the Company’s openatand realization of its assets and paymernits d&bilities in the ordinary course of
business. The uncertainties inherent in the barkyygrocess raise substantial doubt about AMERGDIbty to continue as a going concern.
AMERCO is currently operating its business as aafein-possession under the jurisdiction of thekvaptcy court, and continuation of the
Company as a going concern is contingent upon, grotrer things, the confirmation of a plan of reorigation, the Company’s ability to
comply with all debt covenants under the existiagtdr-in-possession financing arrangement, andrabtafinancing sources to meet its
future obligations. If a reorganization plan is approved, it is possible some assets of the Coynpay be liquidated. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustmenteflect future effects on the recoverabilitfdaiassification of assets or the amount and
classification of liabilities that might result frothe outcome of these uncertainties.

The Chapter 11 filing was undertaken to et a restructuring of AMERCO's debt in respoteséquidity issues which developed
during the second half of 2002. In February 20B2,EGompany’s prior independent auditor adviseddbmapany that its financial statements
would have to be consolidated for reporting purposgith those of SAC Holdings. This consolidationgdahe resulting lack of clarity
regarding AMERCOQ's operating results and financ@hdition, contributed substantially and directlyatseries of significant developments
adversely impacting the Company’s access to cafite consolidation of SAC Holdings resulted in atenial decrease in the Company’s
reported net earnings and net worth and a correfpgiincrease in its consolidated leverage rattmnsolidating SAC Holdings also requit
a costly and timeonsuming restatement of prior period results ldhto the untimely filing of quarterly and annwaports with the Securiti
and Exchange Commission.
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As the situation was occurring, AMERCO wasmpting to negotiate the replacement of its $4@0om credit facility with JP Morgan
Chase. On June 28, 2002, AMERCO entered into acneghit facility with JP Morgan Chase, which redu¢eddERCO'’s line of credit to
$205 million. The terms of the new JP Morgan CHas#ity required that AMERCO raise $150 millionrttugh a capital markets transaction
prior to October 15, 2002.

Additionally AMERCO had payments for princi@ad related swap arrangements under AMERCO’£54d1997-C Bond Backed Asset
Trust (“BBAT”) maturing October 15, 2002. In resperto these requirements, AMERCO undertook a $Zll®mbond offering. The bond
offering was ultimately unsuccessful, exemplifyiflfIERCO’s significantly reduced access to the cdmitarkets to meet its financial needs
due to, among other things, the confusion and agveerception resulting from the SAC Holdings ctidation. On October 15, 2002,
AMERCO defaulted on the repayment of the BBATSs,alHed to cross-defaults and an acceleration oftamtially all of the other
outstanding instruments in the Company’s debt &irec

Since that time, AMERCO has continuously riieged with its creditor groups to attempt to reaatonsensual restructuring arrangement
that would provide for the repayment of all cretitand the maintenance of AMERCO's existing equitywever, while substantial progress
has been made in negotiations with certain keyitmedonstituencies, the complexity of AMERCOQO's @tapstructure and the diversity of
interests of the creditor groups has made an dajeitand consensual restructuring, outside of fomaalganization proceedings, exceedingly
difficult. Accordingly, AMERCO filed its Chapter lroceeding to provide the structure and framewofinalize and implement a
restructuring of all of its debt.

We have secured from Wells Fargo FoothilB&Gmillion debtor-in-possession financing facilftiie “DIP Facility”), and a commitment
for a $650 million bankruptcy emergence facilitheBe financing arrangements provide the basic fatiodupon which AMERCO plans to
build its reorganization plan. On August 13, 20881erco Real Estate Company (“Real Estate”) wasl fitko Chapter 11 proceedings in
order to facilitate granting security to the lerglgroup in real estate assets. Real Estate adenimiali of the Company’s real property and
owns approximately 90 percent of the Company’s estdte assets.

The exit or emergence financing facility vl used to fund cash payments to AMERCO'’s cregliteith the balance of the creditor
claims being paid through the issuance of newruesitred debt securities at market interest radeswithstanding AMERCO's default on the
BBATSs in October 2002, and the resulting cross-dié$aunder AMERCO's other debt facilities, untietRetition Date AMERCO has
remained current in interest payments on all ofiést obligations, in many cases at default inteegss.

In order to exit Chapter 11 successfully, AREO will need to propose, and obtain confirmatigrthe Bankruptcy Court of, a plan of
reorganization that satisfies the requirementh@fBankruptcy Code. A plan of reorganization waalsolve, among other things,
AMERCO'’s pre-petition obligations and set forth tegised capital structure. The timing of filingpkn of reorganization by AMERCO wiill
depend on the timing and outcome of humerous athgoing matters in the Chapter 11 case. AlthougrER@O expects to file a “full-
value” plan of reorganization that provides creditawith a combination of cash and new debt seesritqual to the full amount of their
allowed claims as well as AMERCOQO'’s emergence franKkouptcy as a going concern, there can be noasstiat this time that a plan of
reorganization will be confirmed by the Bankrup@gurt or that any such plan will be implementedcsssfully.

Under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code filiveg of a bankruptcy petition automatically stkagnost actions against a debtor, including
most actions to collect pre-petition indebtednes® @xercise control over the property of the debtestate. Absent an order of the
Bankruptcy Court, substantially all pre-petitioatilities are subject to settlement under the pfareorganization.
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Under Section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code, AMERCQ mssume, assume and assign, or reject certaint@xgcontracts and unexpir
leases, subject to the approval of the BankruptmyrCand certain other conditions. In general,atij@ of an unexpired lease or executory
contract is treated as a poetition breach of the lease or contract in quastiubject to certain exceptions, this rejectidieves AMERCO o
performing its future obligations under that leaseontract but entitles the lessor or contracinterparty to a pre-petition general unsecured
claim for damages caused by the deemed breach.

Counterparties to these rejected contracksasies may file proofs of claim against AMERCGstage for such damages. Generally, the
assumption of an executory contract or unexpireddeequires a debtor to cure most existing defaultler such executory contract or
unexpired lease.

The United States Trustee for the DistricNefvada (the “U.S. Trustee”) has appointed an iafftcommittee of unsecured creditors (the
“Creditors’ Committee”) and an Equity Committee.eT@reditors’ Committee and Equity Committee andrthespective legal representatives
have a right to be heard on certain matters thaiechefore the Bankruptcy Court. There can be narasse that the Creditors’ Committee
and Equity Committee will support AMERCO'’s positioar AMERCO'’s ultimate plan of reorganization, opeeposed, and disagreements
between AMERCO and the Creditors’ Committee andifgdCommittee could protract the Chapter 11 casalcnegatively impact
AMERCO'’s ability to operate during the Chapter Bke, and could prevent AMERCO'’s emergence from @ndgd. At this time, it is not
possible to predict accurately the effect of thethr 11 reorganization process on the Companymbss or when AMERCO may emerge
from Chapter 11. The Company'’s future results ddpenthe timely and successful confirmation andlémgntation of a plan of
reorganization. The rights and claims of varioweditors and security holders will be determinedh®yplan as well. Although AMERCO
expects to file and consummate a “full value” ptdmeorganization that provides creditors with anbination of cash and new debt securities
equal to the full amount of their allowed claim&laiso preserves the value of AMERCO’s common aeteped stock, no assurance can be
given as to what values, if any, will be ascribedhe bankruptcy proceedings to each of these itoasties. Accordingly, the Company ur
that appropriate caution be exercised with resgeekisting and future investments in any of suetusities and claims.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been madbeé®002 and 2001 financial statements to confortheé®003 presentation.

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements inclildeaccounts of AMERCO and its wholly-owned sulasids and SAC Holdings and their
subsidiaries. All material intercompany accounts tansactions have been eliminated in consolidatixcept for minority investments me
by RepWest and Oxford in a SAC Holdings-controliedted partnership, which holds Canadian self-at@r properties, the Company has not
had any equity ownership interest in SAC Holdings.

RepWest, which consists of Republic Westasutance Company and its wholly-owned subsidiarstiNamerican Fire & Casualty
Insurance Company (“NAFCIC"), and Oxford, which sats of Oxford Life Insurance company and its wholwned subsidiaries North
American Insurance Company (“NAI") and Christiamélity Life Insurance Company (“CFLIC"), have bemmsolidated on the basis of
calendar years ended December 31. Accordinglyedtences to the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 camdsp AMERCO's fiscal years 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.
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The operating results and financial positbMERCOQO’s consolidated insurance operations a&temnined as of December 31 of each
year. There were no effects related to interveewents between January 1 and March 31 of 2003,, 20001 that would materially affe
the consolidated financial position or results pétions for the financial statements presentegime

See Note 22 for additional information regagdhe insurance subsidiaries and for financitdrimation regarding the industry segments.

Description of Operating Segme!

U-Haul moving and seHtorage operations consist of the rental of traid trailers, sales of moving supplies, salesailetr hitches, sale
of propane, and the rental of self-storage spax#setdo-it-yourself mover. Operations are condiicteder the registered tradename U-i&aul
throughout the United States and Canada.

SAC moving and self-storage operations condithe rental of self-storage spaces, sales aofimgossupplies, sales of trailer hitches, and
sales of propane. In addition, SAC functions agxdependent dealer and earns commissions frometitalrof U-Haul trucks and trailers.
Operations are conducted under the registeredrteane U-Haul® throughout the United States and Canad

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the @amy’s real estate assets, includingddul Center and Storage locations. The remainc
the real estate assets are owned by various U-¢tuitiles. Real Estate is responsible for oversepingerty acquisitions, dispositions and
managing environmental risks of the properties.

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty insurance products for various markeigipants, including independent third
parties, U-Haul's customers, and the Company.

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditdife and disability, life insurance, and supplental health products. Oxford also
administers the self-insured employee health amtbtiplans for the Company.

Foreign Currency

The consolidated financial statements incligeaccounts of U-Haul Co. (Canada) Ltd., a suésicdf U-Haul. The assets and liabilities,
denominated in foreign currency, are translated thtS. dollars at the exchange rate as of the balaheet date. Revenue and expense
amounts are translated at average monthly exchae® The related translation gains or lossegaheded in the Consolidated Statement
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and ConsolidatedeBtients of Comprehensive Income/(Loss).

Accounting Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with generally accepted accounting prithegprequires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints in the financial statements and accompgmaites. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalent
The Company and SAC Holdings consider ligoigstments with an original maturity of three munor less to be cash equivalents.
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Revenue Recognition Policie

Rental revenue is recognized over the pdriocks and equipment are rented. Sales are recatjaizthe time title passes and the customel
accepts delivery. Premium revenues are recognizedtbe policy periods. Interest and investmentine are recognized as earned.

Receivable:

Accounts receivable include trade accourtfcustomers and dealers. RepWest and Oxford aduesinclude premiums and agents’
balances due, net of commissions payable and amoectverable from reinsurers on ceded businesuits receivable are reduced by
amounts considered by management to be uncolledidsed on historical collection loss experienakaareview of the current status of
existing receivables.

Notes and mortgage receivables include addnterest and are reduced by discounts and ameoantsdered by management to be
uncollectible.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cagharket. Cost is primarily determined using thEQI(last-in, first-out) method.

Investments

Fixed maturities consist of bonds and redddenpreferred stocks. Fair values for investmergsbased on quoted market prices, dealer
guotes or discounted cash flows. Fixed maturitresctassified as follows:

* Held-to-maturity — recorded at cost adjusted fer dimortization of premiums or accretion of disceunt

« Available-for-sale —recorded at fair value with unrealized gains oséssreported on a net basis in Other Comprehehsivene unles
such changes are deemed to be other than tempGairys and losses on the sale of these securnitegported as a component of
revenues using the specific identification mett

Mortgage loans & notes on real estate — phithbalances, net of allowance for possible loaséisany unamortized premium or
discount.

Real estate — at cost less accumulated deficet
Policy loans — at their unpaid balance.

Short-term investments consist of other séearscheduled to mature within one year of theguisition date and are carried at cost. See
Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial States

Investment income is recognized as follows:
« Interest on bonds and mortgage loans & notes —grézed when earned.
« Dividends on common and redeemable preferred steckscognized on ex-dividend dates.

« Realized gains and losses on the sale of invesgmentecognized at the trade date and includedviermees using the specific
identification method
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Cosi
Commissions and other costs, which vary waitt are primarily related to the production of niesurance business have been deferred.
For Oxford, costs are amortized in relatiomevenue such that costs are realized as a copsentage of revenue.

For RepWest, costs are amortized over tteaglcontract periods which generally do not excaedlyear.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are carriezbat and are depreciated on the straight-line anelerated methods over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Building and non-rental eq@iptihave estimated lives ranging from three tg-fifte years, while rental equipment have
estimated lives ranging from two to twenty yeargitienance is charged to operating expenses asedcwhile renewals and betterments
are capitalized. Major overhaul costs are amortest the estimated period benefited. Gains angkbsn dispositions are netted against
depreciation expense when realized. Interest @osisred as part of the initial construction ofetssare capitalized. Interest of $732 thous
$2.0 million and $2.5 million was capitalized dgifiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During fiscal year 2002, based on an in-depénket analysis, U-Haul decreased the estimaledgavalue and increased the useful lives
of certain rental trucks. The effect of the chargguced net losses for fiscal year 2002 by $3.1ani($0.15 per share) net of taxes. The in-
house analysis of sales of trucks was completeth&fiscal years ending March 31, 1996 throughdii&@1, 2001. The study compared the
truck model, size, age and average salvage valugritsf sold for each fiscal year indicated. Thelgsiarevealed that average residual values
(as computed) when compared to sales prices wenefhective of the values that the Company wagirgeg upon disposition. Based on the
analysis, the estimated salvage values were dett¢asipproximately 25% of historic cost. In aduitithis analysis revealed that our
estimates of useful lives were not reflective & #tonomic lives of our trucks, which ultimatelyrevdeing utilized by the Company for
longer periods of time. Thus the useful lives fertain of our trucks were increased by approxinya@efears. The adjustment reflects
management’s best estimate, based on informatiaitele, of the estimated salvage value and usigg of these rental trucks.

The Company reviews property, plant and egeipt for impairment whenever events or changeg@umstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recabie through expected undiscounted future opeyatash flows.

The carrying value of the Company'’s real testhat is no longer necessary for use in its atimperations, and available for sale/lease, at
March 31, 2003 and 2002, was approximately $13I0omiand $18.4 million respectively. Such propestavailable for sale are carried at
cost, less accumulated depreciation, which istlems fair market value and is included in investtagather.

Environmental Costs

Liabilities for future remediation costs aeeorded when environmental assessments and rdraéfdiss, if applicable, are probable and
the costs can be reasonably estimated. The liakslibased on the Company’s best estimate of uodiged future costs. Certain
environmental costs related to the removal of ugidemd storage tanks or related contamination apéalized and depreciated over the
estimated useful
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lives of the related properties. The capitalizesteamprove the safety or efficiency of the propas compared to when the property was
originally acquired or are incurred in preparing firoperty for sale.

Financial Instruments

Historically AMERCO has entered into interegte swap agreements to reduce its floating isteste exposure and does not use the
agreements for trading purposes. Although AMERCE&Xjsosed to credit loss for the interest rate difiiéial in the event the counterparties to
the agreements do not perform, it does not anteipanperformance by the counterparties.

For the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002806d, AMERCO recognized $0 thousand, $16 thousaddba6 thousand as interest
income, respectively, representing the ineffectagmnof the cash flow hedging activity.

The Company has mortgage receivables, whotenpially expose the Company to credit risk. Thetfplio of notes is principally
collateralized by mini-warehouse storage facilitesl other residential and commercial propertié® Tompany has not experienced losses
related to the notes from individual notes or goapnotes in any particular industry or geogragn&a. The estimated fair values were
determined using the discounted cash flow methsisiguinterest rates currently offered for similaaus to borrowers with similar credit
ratings.

Fair Value Summary of Note and Mortgage Receivab

Note and mortgage receivables are carri€éd4tl million and $14.6 million in 2003 and 2004y fvalue of these receivables
approximates carrying value.

Other financial instruments that are subfedair value disclosure requirements are carnmethe financial statements at amounts that
approximate fair value, unless elsewhere discloSed.below, as well as Notes 5 and 6 of Notes ts@mated Financial Statements.

The Company’s financial instruments thatexposed to concentrations of credit risk consisharily of temporary cash investments,
trade receivables and notes receivable. The Complanegs its temporary cash investments with fir@riostitutions and limits the amount of
credit exposure to any one financial institutiown€entrations of credit risk with respect to tragleeivables and reinsurance recoverable are
limited due to the large number of customers anmtsueers and their dispersion across many differehistries and geographic areas.

Policy Benefits and Losses, Claims and Loss ExparBayable

Liabilities for policy benefits payable omdiitional life and certain annuity policies areaddished in amounts adequate to meet estimated
future obligations on policies in force. These lliiles are computed using mortality and withdrawasumptions, which are based upon
recognized actuarial tables and contain marginadeerse deviation. At December 31, 2002, inteagstimptions used to compute policy
benefits payable range from 2.5% to 9.25%.

The liability for annuity contracts, whicheasiccounted for as investment contract depositsists of contract account balances that
accrue to the benefit of the policyholders, exatgdsurrender charges. Carrying value of investroentract deposits were $640.0 million ¢
$572.8 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, retspsly.
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Liabilities for health and disability and ettpolicy claims and benefits payable represeineasts of payments to be made on insurance
claims for reported losses and estimates of ldssesred but not yet reported. These estimatebased on past claims experience and
consider current claim trends.

RepWest'’s liability for reported and unregartosses is based on RepWest's historical expmriand industry averages. The liability for
unpaid loss adjustment expenses is based on bitoatios of loss adjustment expenses paid t@fpaid. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers on unpaid losses are estimated in aenaonsistent with the claim liability associateitimthe reinsured policy. Adjustments to
liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses dsageamounts recoverable from reinsurers on unjpaises are charged or credited to exp:
in periods in which they are made.

Income Taxes

AMERCO files a consolidated federal incomerturn with its subsidiaries, except for NAlI a@8LIC, which file on a stand alone basis.
SAC Holdings files a consolidated return with itdsidiaries. SAC Holdings Il files a consolidateturn with its subsidiaries. For tax
purposes AMERCO and SAC returns are not consolidatth one another. The provision for income tavefkects deferred income taxes
resulting from changes in temporary differencesveen the tax basis of assets and liabilities aaul teported amounts in the financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109.

Advertising Cost:

The Company expenses advertising costs as incuktertising expense of $39.9 million, $37.8 mifliand $37.9 million was chargec
operations for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 20Gheetively.

New Accounting Standard

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statementrwdrigial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, Actiogrfor Asset Retirement
Obligations, requires recognition of the fair vabfdiabilities associated with the retirement ofgj-lived assets when a legal obligation to
incur such costs arises as a result of the aciuisitonstruction, development and/or the normalration of a long-lived asset. Upon
recognition of the liability, a corresponding ambisadded to the cost of the related asset ancediaped over its remaining life. SFAS 143
defines a legal obligation as one that a partgdgired to settle as a result of an existing octthlaw, statute, ordinance, or written or oral
contract or by legal construction of a contractemttie doctrine of promissory estoppel. SFAS 14Sfisctive for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. We have adopted this statementigé&e&pril 1, 2003 and we do not expect it to haveaterial effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operation or casiwi.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No, Z&tounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lebhiyed Assets. SFAS 144 requires
that long-lived assets held for sale be measurdtedbwer of carrying amount or fair value lesstdo sell, whether reported in continuing
operations or in discontinued operations. Therefdiseontinued operations will no longer be meadatenet realizable value or include
amounts for operating losses that have not yetroeduSFAS 144 is effective for financial statensessued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001 and, generally, is to be appliedpectively. We have adopted this statement@feeépril 1, 2002 and it did not affect
our consolidated financial position or results pémtions.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Rgscission of No. 4, (Reporting Gains and Lossas fExtinguishment of Debt), No. 44
(Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carrigido. 64, (Extinguishments of Debt Made to SatiSfigking-Fund Requirements),
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13
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(Accounting for Leases) and Technical Correctiditds statement eliminates the current requirenteattdgains and losses on debt
extinguishment must be classified as extraordiitargs in the income statement. Instead, such gaiddosses will be classified as
extraordinary items only if they are deemed to beswal and infrequent, in accordance with the clil®AAP criteria for extraordinary
classification. In addition, SFAS 145 eliminatesimeonsistency in lease accounting by requiring thadification of capital leases that result
in reclassification as operating leases be accduoteconsistent with sale-leaseback accountingsturhe statement also contains other
nonsubstantive corrections to authoritative acdogriiterature. The changes related to debt exisiguent were effective for fiscal years
beginning after May 15, 2002, and the changesegltit lease accounting were effective for traneastbccurring after May 15, 2002. We
reclassified debt extinguishments expense netxektigreviously reported as extraordinary, to ggeexpense. The effect was to increase
interest expense by $3.3 million and the benefiifoome taxes by $1.2 million for the fiscal y@&01.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruteemd Hedging Activities.” This
Statement amends and clarifies the accountingddvative instruments, including certain derivatimstruments embedded in other contracts
and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133.drtipular, SFAS No. 149 (1) clarifies under whatumstances a contract with an initial
investment meets the characteristic of a derivadisrdiscussed in SFAS No. 133, (2) clarifies whderavative contains a financing
component, (3) amends the definition of an undedyderivative to conform it to the language useBASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaemticluding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedné&tioers, and (4) amends certain
other existing pronouncements. SFAS No. 149 is gdigesffective for contracts entered into or maatif after June 30, 2003. The Company
does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 149 alle a material impact on the Company'’s finanaisifon, results of operations or cash
flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150z¢dunting for Certain Financial Instruments witha@dcteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” This Statement establishes standardslémsifying and measuring as liabilities certairafigial instruments that embody obligations
of the issuer and have characteristics of bothliies and equity. SFAS No. 150 is effective a theginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. SFAS No. 150 curérats no impact on the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1A6¢cbunting for Costs Associated with Exit or DispbActivities” (SFAS 146), which
addresses accounting for restructuring and sirndats. SFAS No. 146 supersedes previous accougidgnce, principally Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3. SFAS No. 146 ireguthat the liability for costs associated withexit or disposal activity be recognized
when the liability is incurred. Under EITF No. 94&liability for an exit cost was recognized a thate of a company’s commitment to an
exit plan. SFAS 146 also establishes that thelifglshould initially be measured and recordedadt ¥alue. Accordingly, SFAS 146 may
affect the timing of recognizing future restruchgricosts as well as the amount recognized. Thegioog of this Statement are effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated afieecember 31, 2002. We have adopted this statesfieative January 1, 2003, and it did not
effect our consolidated financial position or réswlf operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Imgtation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting for Diselos Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Irehiess of Others, an interpretation of FASB Stateésrido. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission
of FASB Interpretation No. 34, Disclosure of Indit&uarantees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 49N 45 clarifies the requirements for a
guarantors accounting for and disclosure of certain guaemigsued and outstanding. It also requires a gtaart recognize, at the incept
of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value bétobligation undertaken in issuing the guararféés Interpretation also incorporates without
reconsideration the guidance in FASB
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Interpretation No. 34, which is being superseddu: Company entered into a support party agreerne®70 million of indebtedness of an
affiliate. Under the terms of FIN 45, the Compaagagnized a liability in the amount of $70 milliomhich management estimated to be the
fair value of the guarantee.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 14ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Titams and Disclosure”, which
amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Baseth@ensation” (“SFAS 148")SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transitiore
voluntary change to the fair value based methaatobunting for stock-based employee compensatioaddition, SFAS 148 amends the
disclosure requirement of SFAS No. 123 to requiceanprominent and more frequent disclosures imfifed statements of the effects of
stock-based compensation. The transition guidandeaanual disclosure provisions of SFAS 148 arectiffe for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002. The interim disclosure provsiare effective for financial reports containingndensed financial statements for interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The Gamploes not have any stock based compensatios ahehthe adoption of SFAS 14¢
not expected to have a material impact on the Cagip@onsolidated balance sheet or results of dipers

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Inttgiron No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Intergstities, an interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletins (“ARB”) No. 51, Consolidated &ficial Statements (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 applied imnaediy to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003, and in the fitetiim period beginning after June 15, 2003 forafale interest entities created prior to
January 31, 2003. However, the FASB delayed impigation, so that FIN 46 now will be applied in tigarter ended December 31, 200z
variable interest entities that are special-purgogéies and in the quarter ended March 31, 2004ther variable interest entities. The
interpretation explains how to identify variablédrest entities and how an enterprise assessegeitssts in a variable interest entity to decide
whether to consolidate that entity. The interpietatequires existing unconsolidated variable egéentities to be consolidated by their
primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effeely disperse risks among parties involved. Vdadbhterest entities that effectively disperse
risks will not be consolidated unless a singleyhdlds an interest or combination of interests &ffectively recombines risks that were
previously dispersed. AMERCO has determined that $®ldings qualifies as a Variable Interest Endibyd will continue to be consolidated.
AMERCO is assessing whether Private Mini Storagaltgel..P., an entity in which AMERCO has a nowortrolling interest (see Note 5), i
Variable Interest Entity.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are comnaeed on the weighted average number of sharesioditsg for the year and quarterly
periods, excluding shares of the employee stockeostiip plan that have not been committed to besele. Preferred dividends include
undeclared (i.e. contractual) or unpaid dividend8MERCO. Net income is reduced for preferred dends for the purpose of the
calculation. For the purpose of calculating earsipgr share, the Company aggregates both the $e@iesnmon and the Common Stock.

Comprehensive Income/(Los

Comprehensive income/(loss) consists of mere, foreign currency translation adjustmentealized gains and losses on investments
and fair market value of cash flow hedges, nehefrelated tax effects.

2. Restatements and Reclassifications

The Company has identified various adjustsiémits previously issued consolidated finandiatesnents. The following table highlights
the effects of the restatement adjustments onréngqusly reported
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consolidated statement of operations for fiscal22&dd 2001, and 2001 beginning retained earninijsiofes and schedules have been

restated as appropriate.

Net Net April, 2000
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss) Retained
Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001 Earnings
(In thousands)
As previously reporte $ 2,721 1,017 738,80!
Adjustments to net income/(los:
Insurance reserves( (55,570 (56,255 (13,320
Investments in Private Mini(t (9,729 (8,399 (8,132
Capitalized G&A costs(c (900 — (31,749
Accrued property taxes( — — (3,600
Fixed assets(e 3,84¢ (4,829 —
Cash surrender valuel (3,949 63€ 3,301
Impairment of real estate investments (2,36¢€) — —
Other(h) (860) 80C (5,156
Pretax adjustmen (69,527) (68,040 (58,65()
Income tax benefit(i 19,36! 24,91¢ 41,49:
As restated $(47,44() (42,110 721,64
I I |

2002 net income, 2001 net income, and begipretained earnings were adjusted by $50.2 mjl$a&3.1 million, and $17.2 million,

respectively, after tax as a result of the follogviestatement adjustments:

(a) To accrue for fully-developed actuarial estiesabf the Company’s insurance reserves.

(b) To recognize equity-method losses relatindiéo@ompany’s investments in Private Mini StoragaliyeL.P.

(c) To write-down unamortized capitalized G&A costsnventory.

(d) To adjust property tax under-accruals.

(e) To correct net depreciation expense and gaiddasses on the disposition of fixed assets.

(f) To record changes in the cash surrender vdllieeansurance in the proper periods.

(9) To record impairment of real estate in the praperiod.
(h) Other miscellaneous adjustments.
(i) To record the income tax effects of the restapt adjustments.
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3. Trade Receivables, Notes and Mortgage ReceivabléNet

A summary of trade receivables follows:

March 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
Trade accounts receivak $ 14,08: 24,77¢
Premiums and ager balances, net of commissions paye 40,40: 54,63(
Reinsurance recoverak 165,46 155,17¢
Accrued investment incon 10,40¢ 11,827
Independent dealer receival 1,34¢ 1,71¢
Other receivable 34,31¢ 29,36¢

266,02( 277,49t
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (2,289 (2,629

$263,73' 274,87(

A small portion of the independent dealeereables set forth in the table above originatemftransactions with related parties. See also
Note 19.

A summary of notes and mortgage receivalubdgws:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Notes, mortgage receivables and other, net of disk $2,93¢ 7,34¢
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (70 (70
$2,86¢ 7,27¢

| |

4. Inventories, Net

A summary of inventory components follows:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Truck and trailer parts and accesso $33,25¢ 43,07t
Hitches and towing componer 10,38¢ 12,03
Moving supplies and promotional iter 9,62 10,66¢

$53,27( 65,77¢

Inventories are stated net of reserve fooldssence of $4.9 million and $2.7 million at Magh 2003 and 2002, respectively.

LIFO inventories, which represent approxinha89% and 96% of total inventories at March 3102@nd 2002, respectively, would have
been $4.9 million greater at March 31, 2003 and22@@he consolidated group had used the FIFGQt-in, first-out) method
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5. Investments, Fixed Maturities & Other

A comparison of amortized cost to estimatedkmat value for fixed maturities is as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)
DECEMBER 31, 200:
CONSOLIDATED HELEC-TO-MATURITY
U.S. treasury securities and government obligai $ 50C 17C — 67C
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie
Corporate securitie
Mortgage-backed securitie 15,68: 583 — 16,26¢
Redeemable preferred stoc

16,18: 75: — 16,93¢
DECEMBER 31, 200:
CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
U.S. treasury securities and government obligai $ 31,69 3,40¢ (49 35,05
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie 10,18: 201 (13 10,37(
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 3,97¢ 232 4,20¢
Corporate securitie 574,33: 25,99¢ (25,397 574,93¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 95,89: 2,20¢ (4,31€) 93,78
Redeemable preferred stoc 126,30: 1,55¢ (2,967) 124,89
Redeemable common stoc 1,101 304 (23%) 1,17C
843,48. 33,90: (32,96 844,41
Total $859,66! 34,65t (32,96 861,35!
L] | L] L]
DECEMBER 31, 200:
CONSOLIDATED HELC-TO-MATURITY
U.S. treasury securities and government obligal $ 3,28¢ 21¢ — 3,50¢
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie 15,15¢ 554 (35) 15,67
Corporate securitie 42,62¢ 1,21¢ (97) 43,74°
Mortgage-backed securitie 20,64¢ 70& @ 21,35:
Redeemable preferred stoc 112,35( 502 (2,127) 110,73(
194,06 3,19¢ (2,25%) 195,01:
| I | |
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Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
DECEMBER 31, 200:
CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
U.S. treasury securities and government obligat $ 40,65¢ 2,22 (128) 42,75
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie 20,00: 843 3 20,84:
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 10,03t 344 2 10,371
Corporate securitie 651,12! 24,63¢ (14,797 660,96¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 26,52( 2,12¢ (865) 27,78
Redeemable preferred stoc 29,97¢ 314 (422) 29,86¢
Redeemable common stoc 2,43¢ — (692) 1,74
780,74° 30,481 (16,909 794,33(
Total $974,81: 33,68¢ (19,159 989,34
| | I |

Fixed maturities estimated market valuesbased on publicly quoted market prices at the addseding on December 31, 2002 or

December 31, 2001, as appropriate.
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The amortized cost and estimated market vailukebt securities by contractual maturity arevamdelow. Expected maturities will differ
from contractual maturities as borrowers may haeeright to call or prepay obligations with or waitlt call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value

(In thousands)

CONSOLIDATED HELE-TO-MATURITY

Due in one year or le: $ 19 20 20,65: 21,15
Due after one year through five ye 204 252 19,457 20,15¢
Due after five years through ten ye 20E 287 1,35¢ 1,461
After ten years 72 111 4,447 4,481
50C 67C 45,91« 47,25t
Mortgage-backed securitie 15,68: 16,26¢ 35,80: 37,02¢
Redeemable preferred stc — 112,35( 110,73(
$ 16,18: 16,93¢ 194,06° 195,01:

CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Due in one year or le: $ 53,24( 53,98¢ 52,29( 53,30¢
Due after one year through five ye. 210,76" 215,99¢ 259,65¢ 266,00:
Due after five years through ten ye 181,42! 176,64! 251,41 254,00:
After ten years 164,57! 167,57: 138,45: 140,78:
610,00! 614,19° 701,81t 714,09¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 106,07! 104,15: 46,52 48,62
Redeemable preferred stc 126,30: 124,89° 29,97¢ 29,86¢
Redeemable common sto 1,101 1,17(C 2,43¢ 1,742
843,48 844,41 780,74° 794,33(
Total $859,66! 861,35! 974,81- 989,34:
| | | |

Proceeds from sales of investments in dehirig@s for the years ended December 31, 20021 20@ 2000 were $248.0 million,
$175.9 million and $52.8 million respectively. Gsagains of $6.0 million, $3.8 million and $733 tsand and gross losses of $2.4 million,
$256 thousand and $646 thousand were realizedose tales for the years ended December 31, 2002,&@ 2000, respectively. The
Company realized a writdewn of investments due to other than temporarjireapproximating $9.8 million, $6.7 million, a6.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@, 286pectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001 fixed matugitnelude bonds with an amortized cost of $11.Tioniland $18.5 million respectively, on
deposit with insurance regulatory authorities teetrstatutory requirements.
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Investments, other consists of the following:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Shor-term investment $111,37° 65,93
Mortgage loan: 67,51 85,45¢
Real estat 75,01« 74,82¢
Policy loans 5,78¢ 6,20¢
Receivable from Private Mit 125,00( —
Other 4,564 8,48¢

$389,25: 240,91.

A summary of net investment and interest inedollows:

Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

Fixed maturities $ 60,85 67,94¢ 57,37¢
Real estat 2,43¢ (1,519 12
Policy loans 36¢ 1,092 25C
Mortgage loan: 8,007 8,79¢ 7,262
Shor-term, amounts held by ceding reinsurers, net anerabvestment (2,17¢) (1,57 4,19¢
Investment incom 69,49: 74,74( 69,10:
Less investment expens (32,389 (30,919 (21,979
Net investment incom 37,10¢ 43,82¢ 47,12¢
Interest incom 4,46¢ 3,511 5,16¢
Net investment and interest incol $ 41,56¢ 47,34 52,29

| | |

Short-term investments consist primarilyigéél maturities of three months to one year fromuagition date. Mortgage loans,
representing first lien mortgages held by the ianue subsidiaries, are carried at unpaid balatessallowance for possible losses and any
unamortized premium or discount. Equity investmemtd real estate obtained through foreclosuresatttifor sale are carried at the lowe!
cost or fair value. Policy loans are carried airthapaid balance. Investment expenses includes dostirred in the management of the
investment portfolio and interest credited on atyhpolicies.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, mortgage lbait as investments with a carrying value of $6@ilion, and $85.5 million,
respectively, were outstanding. The estimatedviaine of the mortgage loans at December 31, 20626601 aggregated $68.0 million and
$86.4 million, respectively. The estimated fairued were determined using the discounted cashrflethod, using interest rates currently
offered for similar loans to borrowers with simitznedit ratings. Investments in mortgage loanduthed as a component of investments, are
reported net of allowance for possible losses @7#housand and $323 thousand in 2002 and 20Qdgcteely.
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In February 1997, AMERCO, through its inswasubsidiaries, invested in the equity of Privdiei Storage Realty, L.P. (Private Mini),
a Texas-based self-storage operator. RepWest at/848.5 million and has a direct 30.6% interesgtamindirect 13.2% interest. Oxford
invested $11 million and has a direct 24.9% inteaesl an indirect 10.8% interest. U-Haul is a 50#ter of Storage Realty L.L.C., which
serves as the general partner and has a direatt&¥e$t in Private Mini. AMERCO does not maintapemating control of Private Mini and
the minority holders have substantial participatigiits. During 1997, Private Mini secured a lifedit in the amount of $225.0 million
with a financing institution, which was subsequgmélduced in accordance with its terms to $125l0aniin December 2001. Under the
terms of this credit facility, AMERCO entered ird@support party agreement with Private Mini wherepgn default or noncompliance with
debt covenants by Private Mini, AMERCO assumesaesipility in fulfilling all obligations related tthis credit facility.

At March 31, 2003 AMERCO had become contirlydiable for the $55.0 million under the termstbé support agreement. This resulted
in increasing other liabilities by $55.0 milliondour investment in a receivable from Private Mini$55.0 million. Under the terms of
FIN 45, the Company recognized a liability in tmeaunt of $70.0 million, which is management’s estienon the liability associated with the
guarantee. This resulted in increasing other ligdsl by $70.0 million and our investment in Privadini by $70.0 million.

On June 30, 2003, RepWest and Oxford exchangedrtdsgiective interests in Private Mini for certedal property owned by certain S/
Holding’s entities. The exchanges were non-monedad/were recorded on the basis of the book valtite assets exchanged. For the year
ended December 31, 2002 Private Mini had revenagpfoximately $39.0 million and a net loss of $4ilion.

6. Notes and Loans Payabl

At March 31, 2003 the Company was in defanoler substantially all of its borrowings due te toss default provisions in the
agreements. As a result of this default, all ameimthe following charts are currently due andatdg other than borrowings against the cash
surrender values of life insurance policies.
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AMERCO'’s notes and loans payable consisheffbllowing:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Shor-term borrowings, 2.85% interest r: $ — 12,50(
Notes payable to banks under revolving lines oflityensecurec

7.00% interest rate 205,00( 283,00(
Notes payable to insurance companies, 9.0% to 1 100,00( —
Medium-term notes payable, unsecured, 7.23% td?8 @8rest rates,

due through 202 109,50( 109,50(
Notes payable under Bond Backed Asset Trust, unsegcid.14%

interest rate, due through 20 100,00( 100,00(
Notes payable to public, unsecured, 7.85% inteetst due

through 200: 175,00( 175,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 7.20% interest rate, duad 2002 — 150,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 8.80% interest rate, coeigiin 200¢ 200,00( 200,00(
BBAT option terminatior 26,55( 775
Loan against cash surrender value of insuranceyp 18,22¢ —
Debt related to SWAP terminatic 5,59( —
Other notes payable, secured and unsecured, 7®2%25% interest

rate, due through 20( 194 234

940,06: 1,031,00!
Financed lease obligatiol 14,79: 14,79:

$954,85¢ 1,045,80.

Other notes payable are secured by land aitdifgs at various locations with a net carryirejue of $6.0 million and $5.5 million at
March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At March 31, 2003, AMERCO had a revolvingditdoan (long-term) available from participatingriks under an agreement, which
provided for a credit line of $205 million throughne 30, 2005. Depending on the form of borrowiegted, interest will be based on the
London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR), prime ratee federal funds effective rate, or rates deteehiby a competitive bid. LIBOR loans
include a spread based upon the senior debt rifedBRCO. Facility fees paid are based upon the amof credit line. As of March 31,
2003, loans outstanding under the revolving crauttotaled $205 million.

At March 31, 2003, AMERCO had no short-teronrbwings, from its total uncommitted lines of citeaf $59.7 million.
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Revolving Credit Activity Short-Term Borrowing
Year Ended Year Ended
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except interest rates)

Weighted average interest rate during the 4.6% 3.53% 6.36% N/A  3.59% 6.67%
Interest rate at year el 7.0% 2.44% 5.68% N/A  2.63% 5.96%
Maximum amount outstanding during the y $400,00( 283,00( 258,00( N/A 33,55 41,50(
Average amount outstanding during the y $248,84° 224,66° 86,00( N/A  23,53: 18,45¢
Facility fees $ 1,53i 507 507 N/A N/A N/A

AMERCO has entered into interest rate swapeagents to potentially mitigate the impact of aemin interest rates on its floating rate
debt. These agreements effectively change AMER@@esest rate exposure on $45.0 million of floatrate notes to a weighted average
fixed rate of 8.63%. The SWAPS mature at the tihgerelated notes mature. Incremental interest esgoagsociated with SWAP activity was
$1.5 million, $2.4 million and $1.0 million durirgp03, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of March 31, 2003, the Company no longes imterest rate swap agreements. All interestswasg agreements at March 31, 2002
expired during the year ended March 31, 2003, exfoepwo (2), which were converted to debt in #mount of $5.6 million.

During fiscal year 2002, AMERCO paid down $Bmillion of 7.44% to 7.52% Medium Term Notes.

During fiscal year 2001, AMERCO extinguist®&tD0.0 million of BBATs with interest of 6.89% otiglly due in fiscal year 2011, and
$25.0 million of 6.71% Medium-Term notes originatlye in fiscal year 2009. This resulted in an eydishment loss of $2.1 million, net of
tax of $1.2 million ($0.10 per share).

Certain of AMERCO's credit agreements contaitrictive financial and other covenants, inahgdiamong others, covenants with respect
to incurring additional indebtedness, maintainiega&in financial ratios and placing certain addiéibliens on its properties and assets.

Interest paid in cash amounted to $76.6 om)l$77.9 million and $92.6 million for fiscal ysa2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

SAC Holdings’ notes and loans payable, nauese to AMERCO consist of the following:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Notes payable, secured, bearing interest ratesmgfigm 7.50% tc
8.82%, due between 2004 and 2| $590,81: 563,92!
Less discounts on notes paya $ (1,799 (2,035

$589,01¢ 561,88

Secured notes payable are secured by deedsstsf on the collateralized land and buildinggmdipal and interest payments on notes
payable to third-party lenders are due monthlyt&emotes payable contain provisions whereby ¢tla@d may not be prepaid at any time
prior to the maturity date without payment to theder of a Yield Maintenance Premium, as defingtiénoan agreements. The loans on a
portfolio of sixteen properties are cross-colldieeal and cross-defaulted.
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The annual maturities of SAC Holdings’ loregrh debt for the next five years adjusted for sqbeat activity are presented in the table
below:

Year Ended

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

(In thousands, except interest rates)
Notes payable, secur 79,97: 88,23¢ 8,21z 8,91¢ 10,32 393,35¢

Interest paid in cash amounted to $20.1 oml$33.8 million and $23.7 million for fiscal yse2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
7.  Stockholders Equity

AMERCO has authorized capital stock consistings,000,000 shares of common stock, 150,000,00@sludrSerial common stock a
50,000,000 shares of Serial preferred stock. Trerd@of Directors may authorize the Serial commaoulsto be issued in such series and on
such terms as the Board shall determine. Seriépesl stock issuance may be with or without pduea

AMERCO has issued 6,100,000 shares of 8 bi@#tulative, no par, non-voting Series A preferretls (“Series A”). The Series A is not
convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares gf@her class or classes of stock of AMERCO. Dindieare payable quarterly in arrears and
have priority as to dividends over AMERCO’s comnsback. On or after December 1, 2000, AMERCO, abjitson, may redeem all or part
of the Series A, for cash at $25.00 per share gtasued and unpaid dividends to the redemption @ate to the Chapter 11 filing, AMERCO
does not expect to make any dividend payments @ #nies A for the duration of such proceedingsofdarch 31, 2003, AMERCO has
accrued unpaid dividends of $6.5 million.

8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss

A summary of accumulated comprehensive inéfiogs) components follows:

Unrealized Fair Market Accumulated
Foreign Gain/(Loss) Value of Other
Currency on Cash Flow Comprehensive
Translation Investments Hedge Income

(In thousands)

Balance at March 31, 20( $(35,45() (7,127) (2,629 (45,199
Foreign currency translatic (25,03) — — (25,03))
Fair market value of cash flow hed — — 8,94: 8,94:
Unrealized gain on investmer — 20,70¢ — 20,70¢
Balance at March 31, 20( $(60,487) 13,58 6,31¢ (40,580
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 — — 3,781
Fair market value of cash flow hed — — (6,319 (6,319
Unrealized (loss) on investmet — (12,64%) — (12,64%)
Balance at March 31, 20( $(56,700) 93t — (55,76%

I | ] I

9. Earnings Per Share

As of March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, 6,100 $ltares of preferred stock have been excluded themveighted average shares
outstanding calculation because they are not constank equivalents.
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10. Income Taxes

The components of the consolidated expehsaifit) for income taxes applicable to operatiaresas follows:

Current:
Federal
State and locz
Foreign
Deferred:
Federal
State and loce
Foreign

Income taxes paid in cash amounted to $18IBm $7.2 million and $6.3 million for fiscal y&s 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Actual tax expense reported on earnings foperations differs from the “expectetiix expense amount (computed by applying the U

States federal corporate tax rate of 35% in 200822nd 2001) as follows:

Computec“expecte” tax expense (benefi
Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting fr
Tax-exempt interest income/ (los

Dividends received deductic

Canadian subsidiary income/ (lo

Federal tax expense/ (benefit) of state and l@oads

Other

Actual federal tax expense/ (bene
State and local income tax expense/ (ben

Actual tax expense/ (benefit) of operatic

F-29

Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

$ 4,44C 3,831 2,252
2,12 3,591 1,07z
84C 92: 1,04:
(19,63) (25,13 (24,659
(1,719 (3,100 (2,257)
$(13,939)  (19,89) (22,549
— — —

Year Ended
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
$(13,629 (23566 (22,629
63C 75¢% —
— 914 —
(1,130 (1,202) (361)
(1,027) (511) (74€)
(42) 2,308 1,32¢
(15,19) (21,309  (22,40))
1,25¢ 1,41¢ (137)
$(13,93)  (19,89) (22,549
— — —
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are casepras follows:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Deferred tax asse

Tax net operating loss and credit carryforwe $ 99,37¢ 88,21:
Accrued expenses/ (benet 127,67 111,30:
Deferred revenue from sale/ leaseb 5,137 9,89:
Policy benefits and losses, claims and loss exgepegable, ne 26,59¢ 30,98
Unrealized gains/ (losse 2,04z (4,9972)
Total deferred tax asse 260,82t 235,40:

Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipme 196,52! 194,27(
Deferred policy acquisition cos 26,127 24,217
Other 5,93 10,86¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 228,58: 229,35¢
Net deferred tax asse $ 32,24 6,04~
| |

Prior to the restatements, AMERCO had a hjstd profitable operations and management hasladed that it is more likely than not
that AMERCO will ultimately realize the full benebf its deferred tax assets. Management has digtednit has tax strategies which could
implemented sufficient to recover all of its deésfitax assets. Accordingly, AMERCO believes thedlaation allowance is not required at
March 31, 2003 and 2002. See also Note 15 of Not&nsolidated Financial Statements.

Under the provisions of the Tax Reform Actl&84 (the Act), the balance in Oxford’s accoursigeated “Policyholders’ Surplus
Account” is frozen at its December 31, 1983 balaofc®19.3 million. Federal income taxes (Phaseil) be payable thereon at applicable
current rates if amounts in this account are distdd to the stockholder or to the extent the agtexceeds a prescribed maximum. Oxford
did not incur a Phase Il liability for the yeansded December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

In connection with the resolution of litigation Wwitertain members of the Shoen family and theipa@tions, AMERCO has deducted
income tax purposes approximately $372.0 milliothef payments made to plaintiffs in a lawsuit. WHIMERCO believes that such income
tax deductions are appropriate, there can be noas=e that such deductions ultimately will bea#d in full. The IRS has proposed
adjustments to the Company’s 1997 and 1996 taxnetiNearly all of the adjustments are attributabldenials of deductions claimed for
such payments. We believe these income tax dedhscéire appropriate and are vigorously contestiadR$ adjustments. No additional ta;
have been provided in the accompanying financékstients, as management believes that none wiltres

At March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002, AMER&®@ RepWest have non-life net operating loss cammdrds available to offset federal
taxable income in future years of $181.6 milliord &181.4 million, respectively. These carryforwaedpire in 2011 through 2020. At
March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002, AMERCO has réiiive minimum tax credit carryforwards of $5.4 lroih and $5.3 million,
respectively, which do not have an expiration dat& may only be utilized in years in which reguac exceeds alternative minimum tax.
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The SAC consolidated group consists of twiasate affiliated groups for tax purposes. The $#allings affiliated group has net
operating losses of $61.6 million and $42.2 milliorfiscal years ending March 31, 2003 and March28D2 respectively, to offset federal
taxable income in future years. The SAC Holdingrbup, which began to file tax returns in fiscahyending March 31, 2003 has a net
operating loss carryforward of $7.6 million to afdederal taxable income in future years. Thesg/fmawards expire in 2013 through 2023.

During 1994, Oxford distributed its investrhenRepWest common stock as a dividend to itsigaaebook value. As a result of such
dividend, a deferred intercompany gain arose dukedalifference between the book value and fawevalf such common stock. However,
such gain can only be triggered if certain evectsio If the DOI places RepWest under conservaipyshat event might be deemed to tric
the deferred gain. The current tax payable astreftiiat deferred gain could be as much as $1BomilHowever, the same hypothetical
action by the DOI would most likely lead to an etting current tax loss to AMERCO resulting in figuecovery of that same tax. To date,
no events have occurred which would trigger suéh gecognition. No deferred taxes have been pralidéhe accompanying consolidated
financial statements as management believes thewermts have occurred to trigger such gain.

Under certain circumstances and sectionsefriternal Revenue Code a change in ownershigakopurposes will limit the amount of net
operating loss carryforwards that can be usedfsebfuture taxable income.

11.  Transactions with Fleet Owners and Other RentaEquipment Owners

Independent rental equipment owners (fleates) own approximately 4% of all U-Haul rentailaes and 0.01% of certain other rental
equipment. There are approximately 1,290 fleet esrincluding certain officers, directors, employead stockholders of AMERCO. Such
AMERCO officers, directors, employees and stockbdcdwned approximately 0.07%, 0.09% and 0.10%l &f-alaul rental trailers during
the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectivdlyental equipment is operated under contrachwi-Haul whereby U-Haul administers
the operations and marketing of such equipmeniranreturn receives a percentage of rental feesIpaitlistomers. Based on the terms of
various contracts, rental fees are distributed-iddul (for services as operators), to the fleet emsr{including certain subsidiaries and related
parties of U-Haul) and to Rental Dealers (includ®gmpany-operated U-Haul Centers).

See also note 19.
12. Employee Benefit Plans

AMERCO employees participate in the AMERCOoyee Savings, Profit Sharing and Employee Stoekéship Plan (the “Plan”)
which is designed to provide all eligible employaeth savings for their retirement and to acquigreprietary interest in AMERCO.

The Plan has three separate features: a phafiing feature under which the Employer may nwkdributions on behalf of participants; a
savings feature which allows participants to dafeome under Section 401(k) of the Internal ReveBade of 1986; and an employee stock
ownership feature under which AMERCO may make ¢butions of AMERCO common stock or cash to acqaireh stock on behalf of
participants. Generally, employees of AMERCO argilgle to participate in the Plan upon completidrma@ne year service requirement.

No contributions were made to the profit gigplan in fiscal year 2003, 2002, or 2001.
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AMERCO has arranged financing to fund the PSfst (ESOT) and to enable the ESOT to purchases. Below is a summary of the
financing arrangements:

Amount
Outstanding
as of Interest Payments
March 31,
2003 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
May 1990 — — — 8
June 199: 14,39¢ 97¢ 1,21 1,118
March 199¢ 14C 11 14 16
February 200( 88t 62 74 —
April, 2001 144 5 — —

Shares are released from collateral andatkakto active employees based on the proportiaielof service paid in the plan year.

Contributions to the ESOT charged to expense w22 iillion, $2.1 million and $2.2 million for fist years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

The shares held by ESOP as of March 31 wefellaws:

March 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
Allocated share 1,63¢ 1,67¢
Shares committed to be relea: — —
Unreleased shart 79E 86(C
Fair value of unreleased sha $3,21¢ 14,97:
[ | [ |

For purposes of the schedule, fair valuenvéleased shares issued prior to December 31,i§3ined as the historical cost of such

shares. Fair value of unreleased shares issuedcuudrs to December 31, 1992 is defined as the Maitdhading value of such shares for
2002 and 2001.

Oxford insures various group life and groigadility insurance plans covering employees ofdbesolidated group. Premiums earned

were $2.7 million, $2.0 million and $1.4 million dog the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 ab@, 28spectively, and were eliminated
in consolidation.

13. Postretirement and Postemployment Benefit

AMERCO provides medical and life insurancedfés to retired employees and eligible dependewts age 65 if the employee meets
specified age and service requirements.

AMERCO uses the accrual method of accourfingostretirement benefits. AMERCO continues todumedical and life insurance
benefit costs as claims are incurred.
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The components of net periodic postretirenbemiefit cost for 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as falow

Year Ended

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

Service cost for benefits earned during the pe $ 29¢ 25¢ 22¢
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement be 35& 30z 27€
Other component (279 (315 (340
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 37¢ 24¢ 164

| | |

The 2003 and 2002 postretirement benefitlitglincluded the following components:

Year Ended

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Beginning of yea $4,98: 4,097
Service cos 29¢ 25¢
Interest cos 35¢ 30z
Benefit payments and exper (122 (81)
Actuarial (gain) los: (53€) 40¢E
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligat 4,97¢ 4,98z
Unrecognized net ga 4,36¢ 4,107
$9,34: 9,08¢

| |

The discount rate assumptions in computiegrformation above were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligat 6.75% 7.252% 7.5(%

The year-to-year fluctuations in the discoate assumptions primarily reflect changes in ih®rest rates. The discount rate represents
the expected yield on a portfolio of high-grade (AAA rated or equivalent) fixed-income investmeniish cash flow streams sufficient to
satisfy benefit obligations under the plans whee.du

The assumed health care cost trend rateinsedasuring the accumulated postretirement beokligation was 5.6% in 2003, declining
annually to an ultimate rate of 4.20% in 2016.

If the health care cost trend rate assumgtioere increased by 1.00%, the accumulated pastregnt benefit obligation as of March 31,
2003 would be increased by approximately $270 thodsnd a decrease of 1.00% would reduce the adatedyostretirement benefit
obligation by $294 thousand.

Post employment benefits, other than retirgiErovided by AMERCO are not material.

14. Reinsurance
In the normal course of business, RepWesiGatfdrd assume and cede reinsurance on both auraimse and risk premium basis.

RepWest and Oxford obtain reinsurance for thatigoif risks exceeding retention limits. The maximamount of life insurance retained on
any one life is $150,001
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A summary of reinsurance transactions byrimss segment is as follows:

Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed to Ne

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2002 Life insurance

force $2,036,99: 1,045,01: 1,613,81. 2,605,78! 62%
— — — —
Premiums earned: Lit 22,97: 10,07¢ 15,11: 28,00¢ 54%
Accident and healt 114,52¢ 15,27¢ 26,58 125,83¢ 21%
Annuity 1,272 — 3,60¢ 4,881 74%
Property and casual 166,67 69,37 51,90: 149,20! 34%
Total $ 305,44¢ 94,72¢ 97,20: 307,92! —
— — — —
Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed to Ne

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2001 Life insurance i

force $2,088,89: 925,60t 1,732,12. 2,895,41 60%
| | | |
Premiums earned: Lit $ 21,437 8,88¢ 14,08: 26,63 53%
Accident and healt 115,36« 18,26¢ 28,05! 125,15( 23%
Annuity 1,651 3,93¢ 5,59( 70%
Property and casual 217,40: 55,30: 91,69¢ 253,79¢ 37%
Total $ 355,85! 82,45t 137,77 411,17( —
| | | |
Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed tset

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2000 Life insurance

force $1,736,33. 923,47 1,812,54i 2,625,40! 69 %
| | | |
Premiums earned: Lit $ 23,66¢ 2,49: 8,232 29,40t 28 %
Accident and healt 72,59: 15,19¢ 16,88¢ 74,28: 23 %
Annuity 574 — 6,93 7,50¢ 92 %
Property and casual 153,81¢ 33,18: 96,28! 216,91! 44 %
Total $ 250,64 50,87( 128,32¢ 328,10¢ —
| | | |

(@) Balances are reported net of intersegmentdcdions. Premiums eliminated in consolidation t8&# million, $8.2 million and
$9.2 million for RepWest, and $2.7 million, $2.0llioh and $1.4 million for Oxford for the years eedtiDecember 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively

To the extent that a reinsurer is unable to meaihtigation under the related reinsurance agretsnRepWest would remain liable for-
unpaid losses and loss expenses. Pursuant tonceftéiese agreemen
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RepWest holds letters of credit of $7.6 millionrfreeinsurers and has issued letters of credit pfagimately $15.7 million in favor of certe
ceding companies as of December 31, 2002.

RepWest is a reinsurer of municipal bond insurahoaugh an agreement with MBIA, Inc. Premiums gatedt through this agreement
recognized on a pro rata basis over the contragrage period. On December 1, 2002, MBIA, Inc. RegpWest entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the agreement on a cutasfébln conjunction with the Termination AgreemdtepWest paid MBIA, Inc.
$3.4 million in December of 2002 for reimbursemehtinearned premiums.

The following is a summary of balances raldtethe agreement with MBIA, Inc as of DecemberZ101:

(In thousands)

Unearned premiurr $4,30(
Case loss reserv $ 70z
Aggregate exposure for Class | municipal bond iasoe $5,20(

15.  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The Company uses certain equipment and oeswggirtain facilities under operating lease commmitis with terms expiring through 2079.
Lease expense was $163.8 million, $170.0 millioth $h73.0 million for the years ended 2003, 2002 2010fL, respectively. During the year
ended March 31, 2003, a subsidiary of U-Haul edtémo two transactions, whereby AMERCO sold retriatks, which were subsequently
leased back. AMERCO has guaranteed $192.0 milliorsidual values at March 31, 2003, for thesetasstethe end of the respective lease
terms. Certain leases contain renewal and fair etarklue purchase options as well as mileage dvat o¢strictions similar to covenants
disclosed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Firritatements for notes payable and loan agreement

Following are the lease commitments for leds®ving terms of more than one year:

March 31, 2003

Property, Plant
and Other Rental
Year Ended Equipment Fleet Total

(In thousands)

2004 $120,33: 117,51 237,84¢
2005 2,837 107,40¢ 110,24!
2006 2,692 84,89: 87,58:
2007 2,17¢ 71,43¢ 73,61
2008 1,37¢ 25,69( 27,06¢
Thereaftel 5,69¢ 10,107 15,80¢
$135,11¢ 417,04¢ 552,16!

| | |

The Company, at the expiration of the lehas,the option to renew the lease, purchase fonaiket value, or sell to a third party on
behalf of the lessor.

The Company maintains credit facilities apasing agreements, collectively the Lease Fagilitilder these Lease Facilities, the lessor
acquires land to be developed for storage locatitisadvances of funds (the Advances) made byateparties to the facilities. AMERCO
separately leases the land and
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improvements, including completed locations (theperties) under the facilities and respective |lesagplements.

In December of 1996, AMERCO executed a $1@filllon Lease Facility with a number of financiaktitutions, which was amended and
restated in July 1999 to $170.0 million. The créaldility related to this Lease Facility terminaieduly of 2001, however the leasing
agreement under which AMERCO leases the Propetties not terminate until July of 2004. In Septemit899, and April of 2001,

AMERCO entered into additional Lease Facilitiesdwoailable credit of $115.5 million and $49.0 nailli respectively. Both the Credit
Facility and the Leasing Agreement for the respedtcilities expire in September 2004 and ApriD20respectively. There was no available
credit under the Lease Facilities at March 31, 2803 2002.

As of March 31, 2003 the Company had oblaratioutstanding of $254.0 million under the Leaaeilies, of this, $117.0 million
represents properties qualifying as operating kase

The facilities contain certain restrictionmar to those contained in Note 6. Upon occureeatany event of default, the lessor may
rescind or terminate any or all leases and, amdmgy things, require AMERCO to repurchase any ofahe properties. The facilities havi
three-year term, with options for successive orex-yenewal terms subject to consent of other artie

Upon the expiration of the facilities, AMERGay either purchase all of the properties basea jpurchase price equal to all amounts
outstanding under the Advances, including the @geand yield thereon, or remarket all of the privgg to a third party purchaser.

In the normal course of business, AMERCO defendant in a number of suits and claims. AMERE@Iso a party to several
administrative proceedings arising from state aall provisions that regulate the removal and/eatp of underground fuel storage tani
is the opinion of management that none of suclssdims or proceedings involving AMERCO, indivadly or in the aggregate, are expec
to result in a material loss. Also see Note 16.

Compliance with environmental requirementfedkeral, state and local governments significaatfgcts Real Estate’business operatiol
Among other things, these requirements regulateigeharge of materials into the water, air andlland govern the use and disposal of
hazardous substances. Real Estate is aware of issg@rding hazardous substances on some of fienpies. Real Estate regularly makes
capital and operating expenditures to stay in caanpk with environmental laws and has put in placemedial plan at each site where it
believes such a plan is necessary. Since 1988,B3¢atle has managed a testing and removal prognanmflerground storage tanks. Under
this program we have spent $43.7 million.

Based upon the information currently available ®EC, compliance with the environmental laws andlitare of the costs of investigat
and cleanup of known hazardous waste sites arexpetcted to have a material adverse effect on AMBR@nancial position or operating
results.

16. Legal Proceedings

Pursuant to the $7.5 million settlement ofass action lawsuit relating to overtime compensaand brought on behalf of current and
former Moving Center General Managers in Califor@arah Saunders, et al. vsHaul Company of California, Inc., final payment waade
on April 5, 2002.

On July 20, 2000, Charles Kocher (“Kocheit8d suit in Wetzel County, West Virginia, Civil Aion No. 00-C-51-K, entitled Charles
Kocher v. Oxford Life Insurance Co. (“Oxford”) séeg compensatory and punitive damages for breadomtract, bad faith and unfair
claims settlement practices arising from an allefgddre of Oxford to properly and timely pay aiataunder a disability and dismemberment
policy. On March 22, 2002, the jury returned a vetrdf $5 million in compensatory damages and $34an in punitive
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damages. On November 5, 2002, the trial court edtan Order (“Order”) affirming the $39 million yuverdict and denying Oxford’s motion
for New Trial Or, in The Alternative, Remittitur.x@rd has perfected its appeal to the West VirgiBigreme Court. On January 27, 2004
matter was argued before the West Virginia Suprémart and taken under advisement. Management dudetieve that the Order is
sustainable and expects the Order to be overtlmpee West Virginia Supreme Court, in part becahegury award has no reasonable
nexus to the actual harm suffered by Kocher. They@my has accrued $725,000, which represents mareengs best estimate of the costs
associated with legal fees to appeal and re-trgéise and the Company’s uninsured exposure tofamamble outcome.

As previously discussed, on June 20, 2003ER@O filed a voluntary petition for relief under &iter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As
debtor-in-possession, AMERCO is authorized undexp@¥r 11 to continue to operate as an ongoing bssjrbut may not engage in
transactions outside the ordinary course of busiméthout the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Gois of the Petition Date, all pending
litigation against AMERCO is stayed, and absenttierorder of the Bankruptcy Court, no party, sabfe certain exceptions, may take any
action, again subject to certain exceptions, tovecon pre-petition claims against AMERCO. Theoadtic stay, however, does not apply to
AMERCO's subsidiaries, other than Amerco Real Es@mpany, which filed for protection under Chagdteéron August 13, 2003.

On September 24, 2002, Paul F. Shoen filderizative action in the Second Judicial Districtu@t of the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Paul F. Shoen vs. SAC Holdingp@ration et al., CV02-05602, seeking damages andadae relief on behalf of
AMERCO from SAC Holdings and certain current andrfer members of the AMERCO Board of Directors, iniihg Edward J. Shoen,
Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shoen as defendantsR&NES named a nominal defendant for purposeseofiémivative action. The
complaint alleges breach of fiduciary duty, selélifeg, usurpation of corporate opportunities, wifohgterference with prospective
economic advantage and unjust enrichment and skekswinding of sales of self-storage propertisiibsidiaries of AMERCO to SAC
Holdings over the last several years. The compkeks a declaration that such transfers are woigel as unspecified damages. On
October 28, 2002, AMERCO, the Shoen directorspthe Shoen directors and SAC Holdings filed Motitm®ismiss the complaint. In
addition, on October 28, 2002, Ron Belec filed avdgive action in the Second Judicial District Coof the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Ron Belec vs. William E. Cartyale, CV 02-06331 and on January 16, 2003, M.Shagament Company, Inc. filed a
derivative action in the Second Judicial Districiutt of the State of Nevada, Washoe County, captidi.S. Management Company, Inc. vs.
William E. Carty, et al., CV 03-00386. Two additadrderivative suits were also filed against thesdi@s. These additional suits are
substantially similar to the Paul F. Shoen derixatiction. The five suits assert virtually identicaims. In fact, three of the five plaintiffs are
parties who are working closely together and chiodge the same claims multiple times. The coumsolidated all five complaints before
dismissing them on May 8, 2003. Plaintiffs havedik notice of appeal. These lawsuits falsely atlahat the AMERCO Board lacked
independence. In reaching its decision to disnhiesé claims, the court determined that the AMER®@@r® of Directors had the requisite
level of independence required in order to havedlwaims resolved by the Board.

A subsidiary of U-Haul, INW Company (“INW"pwns one property located within two different sthbzardous substance sites in the
State of Washington. The sites are referred th@$Yakima Valley Spray Site” and the “Yakima Radd Area.” INW has been named as a
“potentially liable party"under state law with respect to this property aslétes to both sites. As a result of the cleatugis of approximate
$5.0 million required by the State of WashingtdwW filed for reorganization under the federal bankcy laws in May of 2001. A success
mediation with other liable parties has occurred fnure liability to INW will be in the range of7$0,000 to $1.25 million.
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The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SB@3% issued a formal order of investigation tedeatne whether the Company has
violated the Federal securities laws. On Janua®p@3, the Company received the first of four sinas issued by the SEC. SAC Holdings,
the Company’s current and former auditors, andrethave also received one or more subpoenas ighatithis matter. The Company is
cooperating fully with the SEC and is facilitatitige expeditious review of its financial statemeanid any other issues that may arise. The
Company has produced a large volume of documenitetdner materials in response to the subpoenashandompany is continuing to
assemble and produce additional documents andiadatfar the SEC. Although the Company has fullpperated with the SEC in this
matter and intends to continue to fully coopertite, SEC may determine that the Company has vioktderal securities laws. We cannot
predict when this investigation will be completedte outcome. If the SEC makes a determinatiohweahave violated Federal securities
laws, we may face sanctions, including, but nottéohto, significant monetary penalties and injiretelief.

AMERCO is a defendant in four putative claston lawsuits. Article Four Trust v. AMERCO, ét, ®istrict of Nevada, United States
District Court, Case No. CV-N-03-0050-DWH-VPC. Até Four Trust, a purported AMERCO shareholder, memced this action on
January 28, 2003 on behalf of all persons andiestitho purchased or acquired AMERCO securitiewden February 12, 1998 and
September 26, 2002. The Article Four Trust actiegas one claim for violation of Section 10(b)tbé Securities Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder. Mates v. AMERCO, et al. téthStates District Court, District of Nevada, Chge CV-N-03-0107. Maxine Mates,
an AMERCO shareholder, commenced this putativesa@dation on behalf of all persons and entities mii@hased or acquired AMERCO
securities between February 12, 1998 and Septe2@@002. The Mates action asserts claims undéoeetO(b) and Rule 10b-5, and
section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act. KIWGMERCO, et al., United States District CourtNévada, Case No. CV-S-03-0380.
Edward Klug, an AMERCO shareholder, commencedghtative class action on behalf of all persons emtities who purchased or acquired
AMERCO securities between February 12, 1998 andeSdger 26, 2002. The Klug action asserts claim&usdction 10(b) and Rule 10b-5
and section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange & tbldings v. AMERCO, et al., United States Didt@ourt, District of Nevada, Case No.
CV-N-03-0199. IG Holdings, an AMERCO bondholdermsnenced this putative class action on behalf gb@lsons and entities who
purchased, acquired, or traded AMERCO bonds betWwebruary 12, 1998 and September 26, 2002, allegi@igns under section 11 and
section 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and sectid(b) and Rule 10b-5, and section 20(a) of thmuftiees Exchange Act. Each of these four
securities class actions allege that AMERCO engagédnsactions with SAC entities that falsely noyeed AMERCOS financial statement
and that AMERCO failed to disclose the transactipmperly. The actions are at a very early stage. Klug action has not been served. In
the other three actions, AMERCO does not currdmilye a deadline by which it must respond to theptaimts. Management has stated th
intends to defend these cases vigorously. We liaged notice of AMERCO'’s bankruptcy petition ate tautomatic stay in each of the
Courts where these cases are pending.

The United States Department of Labor (“DOIis’presently investigating whether there wereatiohs of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISAThvolving the AMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Shariand Employee Stock Ownership Plan
“Plan”). The DOL has interviewed a number of Compegpresentatives as well as the Plan fiduciameshas issued a subpoena to the
Company and a subpoena to SAC Holdings. At theepitedgme, the Company is unable to determine whetteeDOL will assert any claims
against the Company, SAC Holdings, or the Planci@hies. The DOL has asked AMERCO and its curr@ettbrs as well as the Plan
Trustees to sign an agreement tolling the statuliendations until December 31, 2003 with resptcainy claims arising out of certain
transactions between AMERCO or any affiliate of ARIEO and SAC Holdings or any of its affiliates angls persons have done so. The
DOL recently asked such parties to extend thenplligreement. The DOL has not advised
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the Company that it believes that any violationEBISA have in fact occurred. Instead, the DOLingpdy investigating potential violations.
The Company intends to take any corrective actiahmay be needed in light of the DOL’s ultimatalfngs. Although the Company has
fully cooperated with the DOL in this matter antkinds to continue to fully cooperate, the DOL majedmine that the Company has viola
ERISA. In that event, the Company may face sanstimtluding, but not limited to, significant moagt penalties and injunctive relief.

17.  Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

AMERCO'’s Board of Directors adopted a stodiko-rights plan in July 1998. The rights were deetl as a dividend of one preferred
share purchase right for each outstanding sha#dBfRCQO’s common stock. The dividend distributionsy@ayable on August 17, 1998 to
the stockholders of record on that date. When ésadute, each right will entitle its holder to puasle from AMERCO one one-hundredth of a
share of Series C Junior Participating PreferrediS(Series C), no par value per share of AMERQG@, @rice of $132.00 per one one-
hundredth of a share of Series C, subject to adgist AMERCO has created a series of 3,000,00@sludrauthorized but unissued prefel
stock for the Series C stock authorized in thisldtolder-rights plan.

The rights will become exercisable if a perso group of affiliated or associated persons aequr obtain the right to acquire beneficial
ownership of 10% or more of the common stock witrapproval of a majority of the Board of Direct@fSAMERCO. The rights will expire
on August 7, 2008 unless earlier redeemed or exgthhy AMERCO.

In the event AMERCO is acquired in a merger or pthesiness combination transaction after the rigetsome exercisable, each holde
a right would be entitled to receive that numbesitdres of the acquiring compasygommon stock equal to the result obtained byipiyiihg
the then current Purchase Price by the number nedondredths of a share of Series C for whickylat is then exercisable and dividing that
product by 50% of the then current market pricegtere of the acquiring company.

18.  Stock Option Plan

AMERCO's stockholders approved a ten yeaenmtive plan entitled the AMERCO Stock Option anddntive Plan (the Plan) for officers
and key employees in October 1992. No stock optioresvards were granted under this plan, the péantérminated during fiscal year 2003.

19. Related Party Transactions

AMERCO has related party transactions wittiage major stockholders, directors and officershaf consolidated group as disclosed in
Notes 3 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated Finand&tethents and below. Management believes thatdhsedctions described in the rela
notes and below were consummated on terms equivalémose that would prevail in arm’s-length tractions.

On December 23, 2002, Mark V. Shoen, a dicanit shareholder purchased a condominium in PRp@nizona from Oxford Life
Insurance Company. The purchase price was $2738%8h was in excess of the appraised value.

During fiscal 2003, U-Haul purchased $2.1ligmil of printing from Form Builders, Inc. Mark V h®8en, his daughter and Edward J.
Shoens sons are major stockholders of Form Builders, Buward J. Shoen is Chairman of the Board of Dirscand President of AMERC
and is a significant stockholder of AMERCO. MarkShoen is President, U-Haul Phoenix Operationssadsignificant stockholder of
AMERCO. The Company ceased doing business with Ruitders, Inc. on April 18, 2003.
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During fiscal 2003, Sam Shoen, a son of EdwaiShoen, was employed by U-Haul as project gsoypgrvisor. Mr. Shoen was paid an
aggregate salary and bonus of $77,327 for hiseeswuring the fiscal year.

During fiscal 2003, a subsidiary of the Comp&eld various senior and junior unsecured not&A€ Holdings. Substantially all of the
equity interest of SAC Holdings is owned by MarkShoen, a significant shareholder and executivieaafbf AMERCO. The Company does
not have an equity ownership interest in SAC Haidirexcept for minority investments made by RepVdadtOxford in a SAC Holdings-
controlled limited partnership which holds Canadself-storage properties. The senior unsecuredsrit8 AC Holdings that the Company
holds rank equal in right of payment with the naiésertain senior mortgage holders, but juniothi® extent of the collateral securing the
applicable mortgages and junior to the extent efahsh flow waterfalls that favor the senior maggholders. The Company received cash
interest payments of $26.6 million from SAC Holdsnduring fiscal year 2003. The notes receivablarizad outstanding at March 31, 2003
was, in the aggregate, $394.2 million. The larggsiregate amount outstanding during the fiscal gaded March 31, 2003 was
$407.4 million. At March 31, 2003, SAC Holdings’tes and loans payable to third parties totaled £b8#llion. Interest on the senior and
junior notes accrues at rates ranging from 6.5%38%.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of senior notes of SAC Holdings that tbenany holds at a fixed rate and is paid on
a monthly basis.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of junior notes of SAC Holdings that th@r@any holds at a stated rate of basic
interest. A fixed portion of that basic interesp&d on a monthly basis. Additional interest i&gpan the same payment date based on the
difference between the amount of remaining bas@rést and an amount equal to a specified percemtiile net cash flow before interest
expense generated by the underlying property ntimsum of the principal and interest due on timéosanotes of SAC Holdings relating to
that property and a multiple of the fixed portidrbasic interest paid on that monthly payment date.

The latter amount is referred to as the “démhi-based calculation.”

To the extent that this cash flow-based datmn exceeds the amount of remaining basic istemntingent interest equal to that excess
and the amount of remaining basic interest are paithe same monthly date as the fixed portionagidinterest. To the extent that the cash
flow-based calculation is less than the amoungofaining basic interest, the additional interegapée on the applicable monthly date is
limited to the amount of that cash flow-based dalibon. In such a case, the excess of the remalmasit interest over the cash flow-based
calculation is deferred and all amounts so defelest the stated rate of basic interest until nitgtaf the junior note.

In addition, subject to certain contingengtle junior notes provide that the holder of théens entitled to receive 90% of the
appreciation realized upon, among other thingss#ie of such property by SAC Holdings. To datesmch properties have been sold by ¢
Holdings.

The Company currently manages the self-stoprgperties owned by SAC Holdings pursuant taadsrd form of management
agreement with each SAC Holdings subsidiary, umdech the Company receives a management fee eg@dbtof the gross receipts. The
Company received management fees of $12.3 millioing fiscal year 2003. This management fee is isterst with the fees received for
other properties the Company manages.

RepWest and Oxford currently hold a 46% ladipartnership interest in Securespace LimitechBeship (“Securespace”), a Nevada
limited partnership. A SAC Holdings subsidiary ss\as the general partner of Securespace and ol¥nsraterest. Another SAC Holdings
subsidiary owns the remaining 53%
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limited partnership interest in Securespace. Sepace was formed by SAC Holdings to be the owneadbus Canadian self-storage
properties.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company leagmts for marketing company offices, vehicle rephps and hitch installation centers in 35
locations owned by subsidiaries of SAC Holdingstal tease payments pursuant to such leases wedg1$858 during fiscal year 2003. The
terms of the leases are similar to the terms afdedor other properties owned by unrelated patttigsare leased to the Company.

At March 31, 2003, subsidiaries of SAC Holgiracted as U-Haul independent dealers. The finhand other terms of the dealership
contracts with subsidiaries of SAC Holdings aressabtially identical to the terms of those with @empany’s other independent dealers.
During fiscal 2003, the Company paid subsidiarieSAC Holdings $27,658,641 in commissions pursuarsuch dealership contracts.

The transactions discussed above involving $ibldings have all been eliminated from the Comyfroonsolidated financial statements.
Although these transactions have been eliminatefirfancial statement reporting purposes, excepirfimority investments made by
RepWest and Oxford in Securespace, the Compangdtdsad any equity ownership interest in SAC Haddin

SAC Holdings were established in order tousregself-storage properties which are being mathdyethe Company pursuant to
management agreements. The sale of self-storagenties by the Company to SAC Holdings has in & provided significant cash flows
to the Company and the Company’s outstanding ltm&AC Holdings entitle the Company to participat&AC Holdings’excess cash flov
(after senior debt service).

Management believes that its sales of setage properties to SAC Holdings over the pastrsgyears provided a unique structure for
the Company to earn rental revenues from the SAI0iklgs self-storage properties that the Companyagas and participate in SAC
Holdings’ excess cash flows as described above.

Although the Board of Directors of the appiage subsidiary which was a party to each tramsacetith SAC Holdings approved such
transaction at the time it was completed, the Compid not seek approval by AMERCO'’s Board of Dimes for such transactions.
However, AMERCO's Board of Directors, including timelependent members, was made aware of and relggéredic updates regarding
such transactions from time to time. All futurelrestate transactions with SAC Holdings that inedllite Company or any of its subsidiaries
will have the prior approval of AMERCOQO'’s Board ofrBctors, even if it is not legally required, indlag a majority of the independent
members of AMERCO’s Board of Directors.

During the fiscal year ended 2001, AMERCQisk10.5 million of remanufactured engines and seuaibmotive parts and purchased
$53.7 million of automotive parts and tools frornaampany wherein a major stockholder, director affidey of AMERCO formerly had a
beneficial minority ownership interest. The relapedty interest ceased to exist as of Decembe2®10.

During the fiscal year ended 2001, AMERCOchased $1.1 million of rebuilt torque converterd ather related transmission parts from
a company wherein an owner was a family membermoépr stockholder, director and officer of AMERCUhe related party interest ceased
to exist as of December 31, 2000.

During the years ended 2003, 2002 and 20MERCO purchased $2.1 million, $3.2 million and $8lion, respectively, of printing
services from a company wherein an owner is relstedmajor stockholder, director and officer of ERCO. The Company ceased doing
business with this entity on April 18, 2003.
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In connection with transactions describedvabregarding parts, tools and printing services ltitternal Audit Department of U-Haul
periodically tests pricing against competitive dhirarty bids for fairness.

Management believes that the foregoing tretiteas were consummated on terms equivalent teethwat prevail in arm’s-length
transactions.

20. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The (increase) decrease in receivables,rarahtories and increase (decrease) in accountbleagad accrued expenses net of other
operating and investing activities follows:

Year Ended
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)
Trade receivables, n 11,13 (26,779 (57,520)
I I I
Inventories 12,50¢ 8,64: 9,53¢
I I I
Prepaid expenst (6,567 (6,577 17,95¢
I I I
Deferred income taxe (26,197 (26,307) (4,649
I I I
Accounts payable and accrued expel 28,14: 5,47: 68,54
I I I
Deferred incom (2,877 (4,777 6,572
I I I

21. Summarized Consolidated Financial Information of Irsurance Subsidiaries

Applicable laws and regulations of the Statérizona require Oxford and RepWest to maintainimum capital and surplus determined
in accordance with statutory accounting practidé® amount of dividends that can be paid to shadden® by insurance companies domiciled
in the State of Arizona is limited. Any dividendémcess of the limit requires prior regulatory agyad. At December 31, 2002, Oxford cannot
distribute any of their statutory surplus as divide without regulatory approval. At December 302®RepWest had $6.5 million of
statutory surplus available for distribution. Howevas discussed above, as a result of the Ordeupdrvision issued by the DOI, RepWest
must obtain approval from the DOI prior to any demd payments to AMERCO.

Audited statutory net income (loss) for RepiMfer the years ended December 31, 2002, 2002600 was $4.1 million, $(36.6 million)
and $(28.1 million), respectively; audited statytoapital and surplus was $65.4 million and $15tiion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Audited statutory net income (loes)NAFCIC for the years ended December 31, 200Q12hd 2000 was $(346,000),
$558,000 and $298,000, respectively; audited statutapital and surplus was $3.8 million and $4ilion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Audited statutory net income (loss) for Oxfdor the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 @d@d &as $(11.6 million), $(1.3 million)
and $6.6 million, respectively; audited statutoapital and surplus was $39.1 million and $77.9ionllat December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Audited statutory net income for CElfbr the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 @@ ®as $3.2 million, $3.6 million
and $4.7 million, respectively; audited statutoapital and surplus was $17.2 million and $20.0ionillat December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Audited statutory net income (loss)NAI for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2612000 was $3.1 million,
$0.7 million and $43,000, respectively; auditedugtary capital and surplus was $25.9 million an@.$4million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.
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On November 13, 2000, Oxford acquired alhef issued and outstanding shares of Christianifyidéfe Insurance Company (“CFLIQ}
for $37.6 million. CFLIC’s premium volume is primigrfrom the sale of Medicare Supplement products.

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@odé&upervision issued by the Arizona Departnadrinsurance (“DOI”). The DOI
determined that RepWest's level of risk based eaffiRBC”) allowed for regulatory control. Pursudntthis order and Arizona law, during
the period of supervision, RepWest may not engageitain activities without the prior approvaltbé DOI.

If RepWest fails to satisfy the requiremetabate the DOI's concerns, the DOl may take &rrtction, including, but not limited to,
commencing a conservatorship.

22. Consolidating Industry Segment and Geographic Are®ata

AMERCO has four industry segments represebyeahoving and storage operations (AMERCO anHaiH), real estate (AREC), prope
and casualty insurance (RepWest) and life insuré@géord). SAC Holdings consist of one moving atakrage industry segment. Moving ¢
Storage. Management tracks revenues separatelgipbatnot report any separate measure of the giudifiy for rental of vehicles, rental of
self-storage spaces and sales of products thatquéred to be classified as a separate operagigignant and accordingly does not present
these as separate operating segments. Deferrauéntzxes are shown as liabilities on the consafigattatements. This differs from the
consolidated balance sheet where deferred incoxes tre presented as assets. This presentatiensdiiécause in total the deferred tax asset
is due to the inclusion of SAC.
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Information concerning operations by industry segifiellows:

Consolidating balance sheets by industry segmas of March 31, 2003 are as follows:

AMERCO

U-Haul
Moving and
Storage
Operations

Real
Estate

Property and
Casualty
Insurance(1)

Life
Insurance(1)

Elimingons

SAC
Moving and
Storage
Operations

AMERCO

Consolidated Eliminations

Total
Consolidat

ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents $
Receivables
Notes anc
Mortgage
receivables
net
Inventories,
net
Prepaid
expenses
Investments,
fixed
maturities
Investments,
other
Deferred
policy
acquisition
costs
Other asset

18,52«

87

135,00(

471,88

$ 30,04
22,44:

10,46:
49,22¢

27,40(

170,88t

161,82}

$ 174
1,55¢

17,28t

11

217,61¢

3,991

$ 4,10¢
224,42

253,87:

120,37

13,20¢
88,66(

Investment in
Subsidiarie
Investment in
SACH
Property, plar
and
equipment,
at cost:
Land
Buildings and
improvement
Other
property,
plant and
equipmen
Rental trailer.
and other
rental
equipment
Rental trucks
SAC
Holdings
property,
plant and
equipment

@

625,49!

1,037,751

(41,939

472,29:

18,84¢

145,17°

272,88

149,70°
1,140,29

240,64:

139,13¢

602,67¢

18,04(

704,64

Less
Accumulates
depreciatior

1,726,91.

(990,417

759,85:

(254,409

Total
property,
plant and
equipment

144

736,49¢

505,44!

TOTAL

ASSETS  $1,621,45

$1,208,79.
—

$ 746,08
—

$704,64:
—

(In thousands)

$ 9,32(
23,06:

613,20¢

224,60+

91,89¢
2,28¢

(79,707)(b)

(689,689(b)

964,37!

(769,39))

(1,037,750)(a)

$964,37!
—

$(1,807,14)
|

$ 62,17: $ 4,662

271,49: — (7,7;)(b)

27,743 — (24,879 (b)
49,23: 4,037 =

27,49¢ 811 (6,463)(b)

867,07 — (6,477)(b)

788,77 —  (399,52)(b)

105,10( — —
38,96t 24,63¢ —

2,238,05 34,148 (445,099(a)

(41,939 = 41,93¢(a)

157,98° — —

747,85: — —
291,38¢ — —

149,70° — —
1,140,29: — —

— 1,015,56. (258,27

2,487,22. 1,015,56: (258,27))

(1,245,13) (59,679 6,61¢

1,242,08i 955,88 (251,659

$ 3,438,20° $
—

990,02¢  $(654,81)

$ 66,8
263,7:

2,8¢
53,2°

21,8
860,6(

389,2!

105,11
63,6(

1,827,1

157,9

747,8!
291,3i

149,71
1,140,2

757,2!

3,244,5

(1,298,1

1,946,3

$3,773,4



(1)
(2
(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Included in this caption is land of $273,470, binitgs and improvements of $739,534 and furnitureemdpment of $2,55
Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on di

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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U-Haul
Moving and
Storage
Operations

Real
Estate

Property and
Casualty
Insurance(1)

Life
Insurance(1)

Elimingons

SAC
Moving and
Storage
Operations

AMERCO
Consolidated

Eliminations

Tot
Consol

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

and accrued

expenses
AMERCO's notes

and loans payab
SAC Holdings notes

and loans payable —
Policy benefits and

losses, claims ani

loss

expenses payab —
Liabilities from

investment

contracts —
Other policyholders’

funds and

liabilities —
Deferred income 2,867
Deferred income

taxes 120,44¢
Other liabilities —

$ 139,49¢

861,15¢

$ 263,39¢

31,69¢

168,66¢

30,94

214,71¢

$ 7,897

101,50!

1,011

94,91«
325,78¢

485,38:

Total liabilites  1,123,96:
Minority Interest —
STOCKHOLDERS’

EQUITY
Serial preferred
stock— —
Series A
preferred
stock —
Series B
preferred
stock —
Serial common
stock — —
Series A
common stoc

Common stock

Additional paid-in-
capital

Additional paid-in-
capital — SACH

Accumulated other
comprehensive
loss

Accumulated other
comprehensive
loss — SACH

Retained
earnings/accumulat
deficit

Cost of common
shares in treasui

Unearned ESOP
shares 20

1,441
9,127

396,05(

3,19¢

(54,279

(1,487

561,60¢

(418,179

709,41:

54C

121,23(

(39,849

430,65t

(13,197

531,10¢

[y

147,48:

67,50(

3,30(

70,02¢

13,58¢

112,18!

Total
stockholder’s

equity 497,49:

499,38(

214,98:

199,09°

TOTAL
LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY $1,621,45

$1,208,79:
—

$746,08
—

$704,64:
—

(In thousands)

$ 57C

182,58:

639,99¢

10,14¢

8,66¢
11,31t

$  (39,739(a)
(39,500(b)

(353,059(b)
(337,099(b)

$ 371,61 $ 48,03t

954,85¢ =

— 983,19(

836,63: —

639,99¢ —

30,30¢
34,817

12,03

85,681 (19,919

853,27!

2,50(

16,43t

4,16¢

87,99¢

(769,39)

(6,347)(a)
(355,169(a)

22,094(a)

(698,34()(a)

$ (32,639(b)

(394,17)(b)

(6.469(b)

(98,009)(f)

2,953,911 1,023,33
— 11,82¢

1,441 —
9,12¢ =

396,05( —

3,19¢ 3,19¢

(54,279

(1,487) (1,487

561,601 (43,65()

(418,179 (3,199

(13,177 —

111,10(

(1,037,75)

(531,279
(11,829

(160,260(f)

(3,199(a)

1,487(a)

50,26¢(a)

484,29° (45,13)

$964,37!
—

$(1,807,14)
]

(111,719)(a)

$3,438,20° $ 990,02¢
— —

$(654,81%)
|

5€

3

3,4¢

|
N



1)
(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on d

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC

F-45




Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating balance sheets by industry segras of March 31, 2002 are as follows:

AMERCO

U-Haul
Moving and
Storage
Operations

Real
Estate

Property and
Casualty
Insurance(1)

Life

Insurance(1)

Elimingons

AMERCO
Consolidated

SAC

Moving and

Storage

Operations

Eliminations

Total
Consolidatec

ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents $
Receivables
Notes anc
Mortgage
receivables
net
Inventories,
net
Prepaid
expense:
Investments,
fixed
maturities
Investments,
other
Deferred
policy
acquisition
costs
Other asset

71

10,00(

809,53t

$ 25,71¢
40,06¢

16,92¢

62,48(

24,58:

170,46¢

8,174

$ 57€
(50)

4,89:

10

227,96(

3,71t

$ 5,917
227,04¢

362,56¢

95,717

15,94¢
103,93.

Investment in
Subsidiarie
Investment in
SAC
Property, plar
and
equipment,
at cost:
Land
Buildings and
improvement
Other
property,
plant and
equipmen
Rental trailer.
and other
rental
equipment
Rental trucks
SAC
Holdings
property,
plant and
equipment

@

819,71¢
991,26¢

(34,53

39%

348,41¢

18,35¢

145,43.

270,07¢

1,071,60:
162,76¢

237,10°

142,54(

579,78:

18,241

811,12:

Less
Accumulater
depreciatior

39%

(300)

1,668,23

(917,45Y)

740,56:

(248,52Y

Total
property,
plant and
equipment

95

750,77¢

492,03t

TOTAL

ASSETS $1,776,55
—

$1,099,19!
—

$ 729,14!
——

$811,12:
—

$ 9,15¢
24,59:

632,30¢

174,08

81,97:
1,73¢€

(In thousands)

(32,849(b)

(890,39)(b)

923,85:

(923,23)
(991,269(a)

$923,85:
—

$(1,914,501)
|

$  41,43¢
291,65¢

21,817
62,48¢

24,70¢

994,87¢

645,38°

97,91¢
36,70!

2,216,97!

(34,53)

160,89!

725,21«
288,71:

1,071,60-
162,76¢

2,409,19.

(1,166,28))

1,242,91.

$ 3,425,35!
—

3,292

1,02

21,61¢

25,94:

985,90:

985,90:

(39,156

946,74!

$972,68!
—

(16,789(b)

(14,539 (b)

(10,447 (b)

(6,47¢)(b)

(404,47%)(b)

(452,72¢/(a)

34,53/(a)

(258,27

(258,27)

4,69(

(253,587)

$(671,77Y)
|

$  41,44¢
274,87(

7,27¢
65,77¢

15,27¢

988,39°

240,91:

97,91¢
58,31¢

1,790,191

160,89!

725,21«
288,71:

1,071,60-
162,76¢

727,63(

3,136,82.

(1,200,741

1,936,071

$3,726,27.
—



(1)
(2
(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Included in this caption is land of $264,410, bingg and improvements of $719,728 and furnitureemqdpment of $1,76:
Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on d

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating balance sheets by industry segras of March 31, 2002 are as follows:

U-Haul SAC
Moving and Property and Moving and
Storage Real Casualty Life AMERCO Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1) Elimingons Consolidated Operations Eliminations

Total
Consolid

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

and accrued

expenses $ 37,87¢ $ 203,60¢ $ 10,08¢ $ — $ 9,35:¢ $ (32,619)(a) $ 228,30¢ $ 36,89  $ (31,32¢)(b)
AMERCO's notes

and loans payab 1,030,80! 14,79: 203 — — — 1,045,80: — —
SAC Holdings notes

and loans payable — — — — — — — 961,49¢ (399,617 (b)
Policy benefits and

losses, claims ani

loss expenses

payable — 90,23¢ — 551,59:. 177,75. — 819,58: — —
Liabilities from

investment

contracts — — — — 572,79: — 572,79: — —
Other policyholders’

funds and

liabilities — — — 54,25« 19,34: — 73,59 — —
Deferred income 3,43¢ 33,72t 99¢€ — — — 38,15¢ 15,55( (10,447)(b)
Deferred income

taxes 149,96 228,90( 93,19¢ — 16,08z (381,32)(b) 106,82 (14,867) (98,005)(f)
Other liabilities — 69,29% 429,20: — 10,807 (509,30:)(b) — — —

$ 233
1,045

561

819

572

73

43,

(6,

Total liabilities ~ 1,222,08! 640,55t 533,68! 605,84t 806,13( (923,23) 2,885,06( 999,07¢ (539,39()
Minority Interest — — — — — — — 11,34: (11,34)
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY
Serial preferred
stock—
Series A
preferred
stock — — — — — — — — —
Series B
preferred
stock — — — — — — — — —
Serial common
stock —
Series A
common stoc 1,441 — — — — — 1,441 — —
Common stock 9,12z 54C 3,30( 2,50( (6,342 (a) 9,12z — —
Additional paid-in-
capital 396,55¢ 121,23( 147,34 69,62¢ 16,44: (354,64%)(a) 396,55¢ — (160,266)(f)
Additional paid-in-
capital — SAC 3,19¢ — — — — — 3,19¢ 3,19¢ (3,199 (a)
Accumulated other
comprehensive
loss (37,807) (39,809 — 14,79« 9,904 15,10¢(a) (37,807) — —
Accumulated other
comprehensive
loss — SAC (2,779¢) — — — — — (2,77¢) (2,77¢) 2,77¢@a)
Retained
earnings/accumulat
deficit 601,48: 390,84! 48,11: 117,55t 88,87¢ (645,38¢)(a) 601,48: (34,957 39,64%(a)
Cost of common
shares in treasur  (416,777) — — — — — (416,77)) (3,199 —
Unearned ESOP
shares 20 (14,179 — — — — (14,159 — —

[y

3,344

©orr

236

(37

@,

606
(419

(14,

Total
stockholder’s
equity 554,47: 458,63¢ 195,46( 205,27¢ 117,72. (991,269 540,29¢ (37,73)  (121,044)(a)

381

TOTAL
LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY $1,776,55! $1,099,19!  $729,14! $811,12: $923,85: $(1,914,50i) $3,425,35! $972,68¢  $(671,77Y

$3,726



1)
(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on d

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2003 are sl

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Revenues
Rental
revenue
Net sales
Premiums
Net
investment
and interes
income

Total
revenue

Costs and
expenses
Operating
expenses
Commission
expense
Cost of sales
Benefits and
losses
Amortization
of deferred
policy
acquisition
costs
Lease
expense
Depreciation
net

Total
costs
and
expenst

Equity in
Earnings of
Subsidiary

Equity in
Earning of
SAC

Earnings (loss)
from
operations

Interest
expense

Pretax earnings
(loss)

Income tax
(expense)/bel

Net earnings
(loss)
Less: preferred

stock
dividends

Earnings (loss)
available to
common
shareholders

U-Haul
Moving and Property and SAC Moving
Storage Real Casualty Life AMERCO and Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1) Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations
(In thousands)
$ — $1,433,44. $59,16: $ — $ — $(60,11¢)(c) $1,432,48i $168,02 $(40,510)(c)

— 174,06! 56 — — — 174,12: 48,76¢ —

— — — 152,61¢ 161,39¢ (6,097)(d) 307,92! — —
1,19¢ 29,35¢ 10,69t 22,31¢ 13,89! — 77,457 — (35,889)(e)
1,19¢ 1,636,86! 69,91: 174,93t 175,28¢ (66,207 1,991,99: 216,79! (76,399

43,50: 992,21« (5,507 36,95¢ 40,54¢ (66,207)(c) 1,041,51! 105,28 (12,34%)(c)

— 164,50¢ — — — — 164,50¢ — (27,68)(c)

— 93,73t 21 — — — 93,75¢ 21,35¢ —

37,56( — 128,68( 115,62¢ — 281,86¢ — —

— — — 17,28: 20,53¢ — 37,81¢ — —

927 165,02( 14,18: — — — 180,12¢ — (487)

15 112,81 5,16¢ — — — 117,99¢ 21,37 (1,926
44,44+ 1,565,85: 13,87: 182,91¢ 176,71! (66,207) 1,917,59 148,01¢ (42,43¢)
52,95! — — — — (52,957) — — —
(8,697) — — — — — (8,697) — 8,697
1,00¢ 71,01t 56,04: (7,987) (1,42€) (52,957) 65,70( 68,77¢ (25,26€)
69,21: 9,991 23,65: — — — 102,85¢ 81,16¢ (35,889
(68,209) 61,02: 32,39( (7,987) (1,42€) (52,957) (37,156 (12,389) 10,62:
41,29¢ (21,217  (13,007) 2,612 54¢ — 10,24¢ 3,691 —
(26,917 39,81 19,38¢ (5,379) (877 (52,957) (26,917 (8,697) 10,62:
(12,969 — — — — — (12,967 — —
$(39,87%) $ 39,817 $19,38¢ $ (5,37) $ (877 $(52,957) $ (39,87Y) $ (8,697) $ 10,62%
— — — — — — — — —



1)
(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on di

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2002 are sl

U-Haul
Moving and Property and SAC Moving
Storage Real Casualty Life AMERCO and Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1) Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations

Cc

(In thousands)

Revenues
Rental

revenue $ — $1,425,68" $68,24¢ $ — $ — $(64,325)(c) $1,429,60! $112,74° $(30,109)(c)
Net sales — 198,31. 55 — — 198,36 24.,44¢ —
Premiums — — — 261,97! 159,38( (10,18¢)(d) 411,17( — —
Net

investmen

and

interest

income 873 22,68¢ 8,321 20,65: 23,17t — 75,70¢ — (28,369)(e)

Total
revenue 873 1,646,68. 76,621 282,62¢ 182,55! (74,510 2,114,84: 137,19¢ (58,465

Costs and

expense:
Operating

expenses 8,94t 1,041,35. (4,447 77,210 37,47 (74,510(c) 1,086,03 68,22¢ (7,949)(c)
Commission

expense — 153,46! — — — 153,46! — (13,029)(c)
Cost of sales — 110,44¢ 24 — — — 110,47: 12,221 —
Benefits and

losses — 47,03¢ — 255,75t 120,91° — 423,70¢ — —
Amortization

of deferres

policy

acquisitior

costs — — — 22,09: 18,58 — 40,67+ — —
Lease

expense 918 171,65¢ 11,221 — — — 183,79! — (9,13))
Depreciatior

net (500) 92,35! (2,039 — — — 89,81: 15,07 (1,92¢6)

Total
costs
and
expens 9,36: 1,616,31. 4,764 355,05 176,97: (74,510 2,087,95! 95,51¢ (32,029

Equity in

Earnings o

Subsidiary (10,495 — — — — 10,49t — — —
Equity in

Earning of

SAC (14,02 — — — — — (14,025 — 14,02¢

Earnings

(loss) from

operations (33,010 30,37 71,857 (72,43) 5,58 10,49¢ 12,86t 41,68 (12,417
Interest

expense 30,77: 11,67¢ 34,29¢ — — — 76,747 61,08! (28,367)

Pretax

earnings

(loss) (63,789 18,697 37,55¢ (72,43) 5,58 10,49: (63,887) (19,400 15,95
Income tax

(expense)/

benefit 14,417 (6,117 (15,109 23,73¢ (2,41¢) — 14,51¢ 5,878 —

Net earnings

(loss) (49,36¢) 12,58( 22,45¢ (48,69%) 3,16¢ 10,49 (49,36¢€) (14,02%) 15,95!
Less:

preferred

stock

dividends (12,967) — — — — — (12,967) — —

Earnings
(loss)



available to

common
shareholde $(62,329) $ 12,580 §$22,45¢ $(48,699 $ 3,16¢
| ] | ] |
(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari
(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya
(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incol
(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun
(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di
(f)  Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC

F-49

$ 10,49
—

$ (62,329
|

$(14,025)
|

$ 15,95!
—
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2001 are sl

U-Haul
Moving and Property and SAC Moving
Storage Real Casualty Life AMERCO and Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1) Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations

Co

(In thousands)

Revenues
Rental

revenue $ 2) $1,364,50.  $72,04: $ — $ — $(71,10¢)(c) $1,365,43! $ 92,457 $(21,060)(c)
Net sales — 194,27( 5C — — — 194,32( 17,92 —
Premiums — — — 226,08¢ 112,61¢ (10,59¢)(d) 328,10¢ — —
Net

investmen

and

interest

income 963 24,34¢ 10,96: 25,47¢ 19,00: — 80,751 — (28,45¢)(e)

Total
revenue 961 1,583,12! 83,05: 251,56° 131,61° (81,709 1,968,61. 110,38l (49,519

Costs and

expense:
Operating

expenses 7,11: 1,021,571 467 56,50¢ 29,35: (81,70¢)(c) 1,033,31: 49,237 (6,249)(c)
Commission

expense — 143,58¢ — — — — 143,58¢ — (10,72%(c)
Cost of sales — 116,60: 28 — — — 116,62¢ 9,871 —
Benefits and

losses — 40,521 — 211,32t 79,23: — 331,07¢ — —
Amortization

of deferres

policy

acquisitior

costs — — — 16,594 19,63¢ — 36,23: — —
Lease

expense 688 167,29( 11,57¢ — — — 179,55« — (4,099
Depreciatior

net 123 87,53¢ 5,25¢ — — — 92,92( 12,38t (1,499¢)

Total
costs
and
expens 7,924 1,577,11! 17,32¢ 284,42¢ 128,22: (81,709 1,933,31! 71,49¢ (22,55¢)

Equity in

Earnings o

Subsidiary (13,657 — — — — 13,65: — — —
Equity in

Earning of

SAC (9,400 — — — — — (9,400 — 9,40(

Earnings

(loss) from

operations  (30,01%) 6,00t 65,72¢ (32,867 3,39¢ 13,65: 25,89¢ 38,88: (17,55€)
Interest

expense 25,52; 17,094 44,26¢ — — — 86,88 53,45: (28,45¢)

Pretax

earnings

(loss) (55,537 (11,089  21,45¢ (32,867 3,39¢ 13,65: (60,987 (14,570 10,89¢
Income tax

(expense)/

benefit 11,92¢ 4,921 (8,19¢) 9,88( (1,15¢) — 17,374 5,17( —

Net earnings

(loss) (43,609 (6,16¢)  13,26: (22,98) 2,23¢ 13,65: (43,609 (9,400 10,89¢
Less:

preferred

stock

dividends (12,967) — — — — — (12,967) — —

Earnings
available t(

$1



common

shareholde! $(56,57)) $ (6,169 $13,26: $(22,98) $ 2,23¢
| ] | | ]
(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari
(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya
(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incol
(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun
(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di
(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC

F-50

$ 13,65:
—

$ (56,579
|

$ (9,400
|

$ 10,89¢
—

$
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by industgment for the year ended March 31, 2003 afellass:

U-Haul
Moving and Property and SAC Moving
Storage Real Casualty Life AMERCO and Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1) Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations Con:

(In thousands)
Net cast
flows
provided
(used) by
operating
activities $ 200,51¢ $ 83,49¢ $(87,059 $(75,137) $ (17,989 $(41,777) $ 62,06¢ $ 13,47: $ (1,01)) $

Cash flows
from
investing
activities:
Purchases o
investmen
Property,
plant
and
equipmen (64) (182,409 (30,17¢) — — — (212,649 (30,519 — 2
Fixed
maturiti — — — (10,409 (267,949 — (278,35 — — (2
Common
Stock — — — — — — — — —
Preferred
Stock — — — — — — — — —
Other
asset
investmer — — — — (18,910 17,50( (1,410 — —
(18,910)
Real
estate — — — — (21,759 — (21,759 — — (
Mortgage
loans — — — — (22,000 22,00( — —
Proceeds
from sale
of
investmen
Property,
plant
and
equipmen — 85,28¢ 11,60( — — — 96,88¢ — —
Fixed
maturiti — — — 101,37¢ 262,74: — 364,11 — — g
Common
Stock — — — — — — — — —
Preferred
Stock — — — — 2,88t — 2,88t — —
Real estat — — — — 22,04 — 22,04 — —
Mortgage
loans — 73 13C 561 17,40¢ — 18,17 — —
Changes in
other
investment — — 4,481 (18,19)) (23,579 41,77 4,481 — —

Net cast
provided
(used) by
investing
activities (64) (97,04) (13,96%) 73,32¢ (49,115 81,27: 207,05¢ (30,517 — ((

Cash flows
from
financing
activities:
Net change
in short-
term
borrowing: 5,00( 16,90( — — — — 21,90( — —
Proceeds
from notes 257,00 — 101,32¢ — — (39,500 318,83¢ 58,827 (27,827 3



Debt
issuance
costs

Leveraged
ESOP:
Repaymer
on loan
Purchase

of

shares
Payments

on loan

Principal
payments
on notes

Treasury
stock
acquisitions
net

Preferred
stock
dividends
paid

Investment
contract
deposits

Investment
contract
withdrawa

Net cast
provided
(used) by
financing
activities

Increase
(decrease)
in cash anc
cash
equivalent:

Cash and
cash
equivalent:
at the
beginning
of period

Cash and
cash
equivalents
at the end
of period

(2,330 — (680) —
— 97t — —
(433,789 = 27 =
(1,408) — — —
(6,480) — — —
(181,999 17,878 100,62 —
18,45: 4,327 (402) (1,809
71 25,71¢ 57€ 5,91z

$ 18,52 $ 30,04¢ 174 $ 4,10¢
| | | |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

165,28

(98,029

67,25¢

162

9,15¢

$ 9,32

F-51

(39,500

(3,010 —
975 —
(433,819 (37,139
(1,409 —
(6,480) —
165,28: —
(98,029 —
(35,749 21,69:
20,73¢ 4,65:
41,43¢ 10

$ 62,17: $ 4,66:
| |

28,83¢

1,011

—~
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by industgment for the year ended March 31, 2002 afellasvs:

U-Haul
Moving and Property and SAC Moving
Storage Real Life Casualty AMERCO and Storage
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(l)  Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations

(In thousands)
Net cast
flows
provided
(used) by
operating
activities $ 148,58¢ $ 96,24 $(144,08) $ (5,150 $(61,537) $ 492 $ 34,55 $ (1,346 $ (52,847

Cash flows
from
investing
activities:
Purchases c
investmer
Property,
plant
and
equipmer 12) (248,67() (32,32) — — — (281,009 (378,87)) 278,39¢
Fixed
maturiti — — — (248,67°) (8,88¢) — (257,559 — —
Common
stock — — — (41€) — — (41¢) — —
Preferred
stock — — — (2,072) — — (2,072) — —
Other asset
investmer — — — (2,259 — — (2,259 — —
Real
estate — — — (35) 4,312 — 4,277 — —
Mortgage
loans — — (561) (790) — — (1,35)) — —
Proceeds
from sales
of
investmer
Property,
plant
and
equipmer 69t 143,31" 173,18 — — — 317,19t 53,21« (141,039
Fixed
maturiti — — — 168,98« 64,73: — 233,71t — —
Common
stock — — — — — — — — —
Preferred
stock — — — 4,40( — — 4,40( — —
Real
estate — — — 1,03¢ 2,662 — 3,70( — —
Mortgage
loans — 268 51C 17,91( 2 — 18,69( — —
Changes in
other
investment — — 2,897 (8,57%) 1,56¢ 7,00¢ 2,897 — —

Net cast
(used) by
investing
activities 68¢ (105,08%) 143,70: (70,489) 64,38¢ 7,00¢ 40,20¢ (325,659 137,36

Cash flows

from

financing

activities:
Net change

in short-

term

borrowing (24,070) 14,79% — — — — (9,277) — —
Proceeds

from note — — — — — — — 526,29. (278,399
Debt

issuance



cost
Leverage
Employee
Stock
Ownershij
plan:
Purchase
of
shares
Payments
on loan
Principal
payments
on notes
Preferred
stock
dividends
paid
Treasury
stock
acquisitior
net
Dividends
paid
Investment
contract
deposits
Investment
contract
withdrawals

Net cast
provided
by
financing
activities

Increase
(decrease)
in cash ani
cash
equivalent:

Cash and
cash
equivalent:
at the
beginning
of year

Cash and
cash
equivalent:
at the end
of year

(1) Balances as of December 31, 20

(390) — — —

— (72 — —

— 1,092 — —
(101,739 — (33) —
(12,967) — — —
(10,159 — — —
— — — 7,501

— — — 150,43:
— — — (99,845
(149,31) 15,81« (33) 58,08¢
(43) 6,974 (412) (17,55()

114 18,74t 98¢ 26,70¢

$ 71 $ 25,71¢ 57¢ $ 9,15¢
| | | |

2,84¢

3,06:

$ 5,912
—
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(7,509)

(390)

(72)

1,09t

(101,77)

(12,969

(10,159

150,43:

(99,845

(7,509)

(82,947

(8,189

49,61¢

$ 41,43¢
—

(199,28)

327,00}

10

$ 10

193,87

(84,52




Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by industgment for the year ended March 31, 2001 afellass:

U-Haul
Moving and
Storage

AMERCO Operations

Real
Estate

Life

Insurance(1)

Property and

Casualty

Insurance(1)

Eliminations

AMERCO
Consolidated

SAC Moving
and Storage
Operations

Eliminations

Con

Net cast
flows
provided
(used) by
operating
activities

$ 3,84( $ 106,94¢

$ 68,69¢

$ 3,45¢

Cash flows
from
investing
activities:
Purchases ¢
investmer
Property,
plant
and
equipmen (16)
Fixed
maturiti — —
Common
stock — —
Preferred
stock — —
Other asset
investmer — —
Real
estate — —
Mortgage
loans — (102)
Proceeds
from sales
of
investmer
Property,
plant
and
equipmen —
Fixed
maturiti — —
Common
stock — —
Preferred
stock — —
Real
estate — —
Mortgage
loans — 3,34:
Changes in
other
investment — —

(411,91()

303,57(

(53,06%)

42,197

26€

(67,739
(31,779

(5,915)

(22,467)

101,78l
6,194
37z

13,60

(14,23

Net cast
(used) by
investing

activities (16) (105,100

(10,599

(20,167)

Cash flows
from
financing
activities:

Net change
in short-
term
borrowing

Proceeds
from note: — (44€)

Debt
issuance

156,07( =

$ 15,20¢

(55,137

(26)

50,98!

(9,349

(13,519

(In thousands)

$(81,340)

$ 116,80¢

23,577

(464,989
(122,869
(31,779
(5,918
(26)

(22,569

23,571

(125,81))

156,07(

(446)

$ 15,12«

(369,67))

46,95:

(322,72)

460,53

$ 40,69¢

217,38t

(38,479

178,90¢

(366,019



cost
Leverage
Employee
Stock
Ownershij
plan:
Purchase
of
shares
Payments
on loan
Principal
payments
on notes
Net change
in cash
overdraft
Preferred
stock
dividends
paid
Treasury
stock
acquisitions
net
Dividends
paid
Investment
contract
deposits
Investment
contract
withdrawe

Net cast
provided
by
financing
activities

Increase
(decrease’
in cash an
cash
equivalent

Cash and
cash
equivalent
at the
beginning
of year

Cash and
cash
equivalent
at the end
of year

(1) Balances are as of December 31, 2(

(435) — (259) — —
— (46) — — —

137 1,102 — — —
(137,010 — (52) — _
9,617 — — — —
(12,969 — (57,769 — —
— — — 86,65 —

— — — (72,959 —
(3,819 61C (58,079 13,70 —
6 2,45¢ 27 (3,007) 1,69¢

10€ 16,28¢ 961 29,70¢ 1,36¢
| | | | |
$ 114 $ 18,748 $ 08¢ $ 26,70¢ $ 3,06:
| | | | |

F-53

57,76:

(694

(46)

1,23¢

(137,06)

(9,617

(12,969

86,65"

(72,959

57,76:

10,18¢

1,182

48,43¢

$ 49,61¢
—

(152,94()

307,59

10

$ 10

146,40°

(219,607

a




Table of Contents

Financial information by geographic area aréotiows:

Year Ended United States Canada Consolidated

(All amounts are in thousands U.S. $'s)

March 31, 2003

Total revenue $2,077,33. $ 55,05« $2,132,38
Depreciation/amortization n 169,79¢ 5,46¢ 175,26!
Interest expense/(benef 146,14« 1,98i 148,13:
Pretax earnings/(los (45,629 6,707 (38,92)
Income tax expense/(benet 16,28: (2,349 13,93t
Identifiable asset 3,673,73i 131,92¢ 3,805,66!
March 31, 2002

Total revenue $2,141,22! $ 52,35( $2,193,57!
Depreciation/amortization n 138,40: 5,23( 143,63:
Interest expense/(benef 107,37( 2,09t 109,46!
Pretax earnings/(los (74,829 7,491 (67,33)
Income tax expense/(benet 22,51t (2,629 19,891
Identifiable asset 3,615,10: 117,20¢ 3,732,31

23.  Subsequent Event:

On April 18, 2003, AMERCO filed suit agairitst former auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWg.complaint seeks actual and
punitive damages in excess of $2.5 billion doliss result of the alleged negligent, frauduledttartious conduct of PwC during the last
seven years of its audit engagement.

On June 20, 2003, AMERCO filed a voluntaritpe for protection under Chapter 11 of the UB&nkruptcy Code. AMERCO has taken
this action in order to expedite the financial nesturing of its debt. On August 13, 2003, AmeraaREstate Company filed a voluntary
petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the BankaypCode with joint administration under BK-03-53tGWZ. Not included in the
Chapter 11 filing are the following AMERCO subsidie: U-Haul, Oxford Life Insurance Company andsitbsidiaries, and Republic
Western Insurance Company, among others. The Ghhpfiding by AMERCO is not expected to impact thygerations of these subsidiaries,
and their business will continue uninterrupted. #ddally, since the Company is solvent, with ass#tie in excess of its debt, AMERCO
intends to repay its creditors in full pursuanatfull-value plan of reorganization, without dilugi the interest of its shareholders. On
March 15, 2004, AMERCO emerged from Chapter 11 Withpayment to its creditors and with no dilutitmits stockholders.

On June 30, 2003, RepWest and Oxford exchangedrdsgiective interests in Private Mini for certe#al property owned by certain S/
Holdings entities. The exchanges were non-monetadywere recorded on the basis of the book valiige@ssets exchanged.

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@odé&upervision issued by the Arizona Departnadritsurance (“DOI”). The DOI
determined that RepWest's level of risk based eaffiRBC”) allowed for regulatory control. Pursudntthis order and Arizona law, during
the period of supervision, RepWest may not engageiitain activities without the prior approvaltbé DOI. If RepWest fails to satisfy the
requirements to abate DOI's concerns, the DOI ralg further action, including, but not limited tmmmencing a conservatorship.
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SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

In April 2003, the Company determined that@mnection with overall restructuring efforts, Régst is exiting non-U-Haul related lines
of business.

24.  Guarantor and Nonguarantor Financial Statements

In connection with our emergence from Chafifiebankruptcy on March 15, 2004, the Company @280 million 9.0% Second Lien
Senior Secured Notes due 2009. The notes aredntlyunconditionally guaranteed, jointly and sevgraly all of AMERCO'’s legal
subsidiaries, except for Oxford and RepWest anégtxior SAC Holdings on a consolidated basis. Wilewing condensed consolidating
financial information presents the condensed cadatihg balance sheets as of March 31, 2003 and aad the related condensed
consolidating statements of earnings and condersesblidating cash flow statements for the yeadedrMarch 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
for:

(a) AMERCO;

(b) the guarantor subsidiaries (comprised of U-Haud Amerco Real Estate Company and each of thgiective subsidiaries);
(c) the nonguarantor subsidiaries (comprised ob@kand RepWest and each of their respective siabigis); and

(d) SAC Holdings.

The information includes elimination entrirescessary to consolidated AMERCO, the parent, thighguarantor and nonguarantor
subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries are accountetydhe parent using the equity method of accognfline guarantor and nonguarantor
subsidiaries are presented on a combined basis.
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Cash and cash
equivalents
Receivables
Notes and mortgac
receivables, ne
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses
Investments, fixed
maturities
Investments, other
Deferred policy
acquisition costs
Other Assets

Investment in
subsidiaries
Investment in
subsidiaries —SAC
Property, plant and
equipmen
Land
Building and
improvements
Furniture and
equipment
Rental trailers and
other rental
equipment
Rental trucks
SAC Holdings
property, plant
and equipment(z

Less accumulate
depreciation

Total property,
plant and
equipmen

Total Assets

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

March 31, 2003

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Guarantor Non-guarantor AMERCO SAC Total
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Consolidd Holdings Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS

$ 18,52« $  30,22( $  13,42¢ $ — $ 62,17: $ 4,662 $ — $ 66,83«
— 24,00: 247,48¢ — 271,49: — (7,759 (b) 263,73°

— 27,747 — — 27,74 — (24,879(b) 2,86¢

— 49,23: — — 49,23: 4,037 — 53,27(

87 27,411 — — 27,49¢ 811 (6,467)(b) 21,84¢

— — 867,07 — 867,07 — (6,477)(b) 860,60(
135,00( 388,50! 344,97¢ (79,707)(b) 788,77: — (399,52))(b) 389,25:
— — 105,10( — 105,10( — — 105,10(
471,88t 165,81¢ 90,94¢ (689,684)(b) 38,96t 24,63t — 63,60(
625,49! 712,93: 1,669,01! (769,39) 2,238,05 34,14¢ (445,09)(a) 1,827,10
1,037,75! — — (1,037,75)(a) — — — —
(41,939 — — — (41,939 — 41,93¢a) —
— 157,98° — — 157,98° — — 157,98°

— 747,85: — — 747,85: — — 747,85:

45¢ 290,92: — — 291,38: — — 291,38¢

— 149,70° — — 149,70 — — 149,70°

— 1,140,29- — — 1,140,29 — — 1,140,29-

— — — — — 1,015,56: (258,277 757,29:

458 2,486,76! — — 2,487,22. 1,015,56: (258,27)) 3,244,511

(315) (1,244,82) — — (1,245,13)) (59,679 6,61¢€ (1,298,19))

144 1,241,94. — — 1,242,08: 955,88 (251,659 1,946,31
$1,621,45 $1,954,87: $1,669,01! $(1,807,14) $ 3,438,20° $ 990,02¢ $(654,81%) $3,773,42.
| | | I I | I |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(2) Included in this caption is land of $273,470, buntgh and improvements of $739,534 and equipmefi2(F59
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari
(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya
(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incoi
(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet — (Continued)
March 31, 2003

Guarantor Non-guarantor AMERCO SAC
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Consolidd Holdings Eliminations

Total
Consolidated

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses  $ 139,49¢ $ 271,28t $ 57C $  (39,73Y(a) $ 371,61 $ 48,03: $ (32,633 (b)
AMERCO's notes and
loans payable 861,15¢ 133,19¢ — (39,500)(b) 954,85¢ — —
SAC Holdings’ notes
and loans payable — — — — — 983,19( (394,172)(b)
Policy benefits and
losses, claims and
loss — — — — — — —
expenses payable — 168,66¢ 667,96t — 836,63 — —
Liabilities from
investment contract — — 639,99¢ — 639,99¢ — —
Other policyholders’
funds and liabilities — — 30,30¢ — 30,30¢ — —
Deferred income 2,867 31,95« — — 34,817 12,03: (6,46%)(b)
Deferred income taxes 120,44¢ 309,62¢ 8,66¢ (353,05¢)(b) 85,68! (19,919 (98,009)(f)
Other Liabilities — 325,78: 11,31 (337,099)(b) — —
Total Liabilities 1,123,96: 1,240,511 1,358,82. (769,39)) 2,953,911 1,023,33i (531,279)
Minority interest — — — — — 11,82¢ (11,829
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Series A common stoc 1,441 — — — 1,441 — —
Common stock 9,127 541 5,80( (6,341)(a) 9,127 — —
Additional paid-in-
capital 396,05( 268,71: 86,45¢ (355,16¢)(a) 396,05( — (160,26¢)(f)
Additional paid-in-
capital — SAC 3,19¢ — — — 3,19¢ 3,19¢ (3,199(a)
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss (54,279 (39,849 17,75t 22,094a) (54,279 — —
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss-
SAC (1,487 — — — (1,487 (1,487 1,487(a)
Retained
earning/accumulate
deficit 561,60¢ 498,15t 200,18« (698,34()(a) 561,60¢ (43,650 50,26¢(a)
Cost of common shares
in treasury (418,179 — — — (418,179 (3,199 —
Unearned ESOP shar
in treasury 20 (13,19) — (23,179 — —
Total
Stockholders’
Equity 497,49: 714,36 310,19 (1,037,75i) 484,29° (45,137 (111,71%)(a)
Total Liabilities
and
Stockholders
Equity $1,621,45 $1,954,87: $1,669,01! $(1,807,14) $3,438,20° $ 990,02¢ $(654,81)
| | | | | | |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incoi

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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$ 387,01
954,85¢

589,01¢

836,63:
639,99¢

30,30¢
40,38;
(32,249

3,445,971

1,441
9,127

235,78
3,19¢

(54,279
(1,487)

568,22;
(421,379

(13,177

327,44t

$3,773,42.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet — (Continued)
March 31, 2002

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Guarantor Non-guarantor AMERCO SAC Total
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Consolidd Holdings Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 71 $ 26,29t $ 15,07( $ — $  41,43¢ $ 10 — $  41,44¢
Receivables — 40,01¢ 251,63¢ — 291,65¢ — (16,78¢)(b) 274,87(
Notes and mortgac
receivables, ne — 21,81% — — 21,81% — (14,53¢)(b) 7,27¢
Inventories, net — 62,48¢ — — 62,48¢ 3,292 — 65,77¢
Prepaid expenses 112 24,59 — — 24,70% 1,02:¢ (10,447)(b) 15,27¢
Investments, fixed
maturities — — 994,87! — 994,87! — (6,47¢)(b) 988,39°
Investments, other 10,00¢ 398,42¢ 269,80: (32,84%)(b) 645,38 — (404,47%)(b) 240,91:
Deferred policy
acquisition costs — — 97,91¢ — 97,91¢ — — 97,91¢
Other assets 809,53t 11,88¢ 105,66t (890,39:)(b) 36,70: 21,61¢ — 58,31¢
819,71¢ 585,52: 1,734,97. (923,23) 2,216,97 25,94: (452,72¢)(a) 1,790,191
Investment in
subsidiaries 991,26¢ — — (991,26%(a) — — — —
Investment in
subsidiaries — SA( (34,53) — — — (34,53)) — 34,532(i) —
Property, plant and
equipmen
Land — 160,89! — — 160,89! — — 160,89!
Building and
Improvements — 725,21 — — 725,21« — — 725,21«
Furniture and
equipment 39t 288,31t — — 288,71: — — 288,71:
Rental trailers and
other rental
equipment — 1,071,60: — — 162,76 — — 162,76¢
Rental trucks — 162,76¢ — — 1,071,60: — — 1,071,60-
SAC Holdings
property, plant
and equipment(2) — — — — — 985,90: (258,27)) 727,63(
39t 2,408,79 — — 2,409,19 985,90: (258,27)) 3,136,82.
Less accumulate
depreciation (300) (1,165,98i) — — (1,166,28i) (39,15¢) 4,69( (1,200,74)
Total property,
plant and
equipmen 95 1,242,81 — — 1,242,91: 946,74! (253,58)) 1,936,071
Total Assets $1,776,55. $ 1,828,341 $1,734,97. $(1,914,50i) $ 3,425,35! $972,68! $(671,77Y $3,726,27.
| | | | | | | |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(2) Included in this caption is land of $264,410, buntgs and improvements of $719,728 and furnitureemdpment of $1,76
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incoi

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet — (Continued)
March 31, 2002

Guarantor Non-guarantor AMERCO SAC
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Consolidd Holdings Eliminations

Total
Consolidated

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses  $ 37,87¢ $ 213,69 $ 9,352 $  (32,619(a) $ 228,30¢ $ 36,89: $ (31,32¢)(b)
AMERCO's notes and
loans payable 1,030,80! 14,99¢ — — 1,045,80. — —
SAC Holdings’ notes
and loans payable — — — — — 961,49¢ (399,619 (b)
Policy benefits and
losses, claims and
loss — — — — — — —
expenses payable — 90,23¢ 729,34« — 819,58: — —
Liabilities from
investment contract — — 572,79: — 572,79: — —
Cash overdraft — — — — — — —
Other policyholders’
funds and liabilities — — 73,597 — 73,597 — —
Deferred income 3,43¢ 34,72: — — 38,15¢ 15,55( (10,447)(b)
Deferred income taxe: 149,96! 322,09¢ 16,08: (381,32)(b) 106,82: (14,867) (98,009)(f)
Other liabilities — 498,49! 10,80 (509,30)(b) — — —
TOTAL
LIABILITIES 1,222,08! 1,174,24 1,411,971 (923,23) 2,885,06! 999,07¢ (539,39()
Minority interest — — — — — 11,34: (11,34)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Series A common stot 1,441 — — — 1,441 — —
Common stock 9,12 541 5,80( (6,341)(a) 9,12 — —
Additional paid-in-
capital 396,55¢ 268,57 86,06¢ (354,64%(a) 396,55¢ — (160,266)(f)
Additional paid- in-
capital — SAC 3,19¢ — — — 3,19¢ 3,19¢ (3,199 (a)
Accumulated other
comprehensive los (37,807 (39,809 24,69¢ 15,10¢(a) (37,807 — —
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss
SAC (2,77¢) — — — (2,77¢) (2,77¢) 2,77¢(a)
Retained earnings-end
of year 601,48: 438,95 206,43: (645,389(a) 601,48: (34,959 39,64%a)
Cost of common shart
in treasury (416,77)) — — — (416,77)) (3,199 —
Unearned ESOP shares
in treasury 20 (14,177 — — (14,157 — —
Total
Stockholders’
Equity 554,47: 654,09¢ 322,99¢ (991,269 540,29¢ (37,73) (121,044)(a)
Total Liabilities
and
Stockholders’
Equity $1,776,55. $1,828,34! $1,734,97. $(1,914,50i) $3,425,35! $972,68¢ $(671,77Y
| | | | | | |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(&) Eliminate investment in subsidiari

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incol

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(H Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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$ 233,87
1,045,80:

561,88

819,58¢

572,79¢

73,59
43,25¢
(6,045)

3,344,74i

1,441
9,127

236,29¢
3,19¢

(37,809

(2,779
606,17:
(419,97()

(14,157)

381,52

$3,726,27.
—
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Revenues:
Rental revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment an
interest incom¢

Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Operating expenses
Commission expense
Cost of sale:
Benefits and losses
Amortization of

deferred policy

acquisition costs
Lease expense
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and
expenses

Equity in earnings of
subsidiary

Equity in earnings of
SAC

Earnings (loss) from
operations
Interest expense

Pretax earnings (los
Income tax benefit/
(expense)

Net earnings (loss
Less: preferred stock
dividends

Earnings (loss) availab
to common
shareholders

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings

Year Ended March 31, 2003

Guarantor Non-guarantor AMERCO SAC Total
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Caosolidated Holdings  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
$ — $1,492,60- $ — $(60,11¢)(c) $1,432,48! $168,02° $(40,510)(c) $1,560,00!
— 174,12: — — 174,12: 48,76¢ — 222,88¢
— — 314,01¢ (6,097)(d) 307,92¢ — — 307,92!
1,19¢ 40,05 36,20¢ — 77,457 — (35,889(e) 41,56¢
1,19¢ 1,706,77: 350,22! (66,207) 1,991,99: 216,79¢ (76,399 2,132,38
43,502 986,71: 77,507 (66,207)(c) 1,041,51! 105,28° (12,347)(c) 1,134,46!
— 164,50¢ — — 164,50¢ — (27,68)(c) 136,82°
— 93,75¢ — — 93,75¢ 21,35¢ — 115,11¢
— 37,56( 244,30¢ — 281,86¢ — — 281,86¢
— — 37,81¢ — 37,81¢ — — 37,81¢
927 179,20: — — 180,12¢ — (487) 179,64
15 117,98 — — 117,99¢ 21,37:¢ (1,92¢) 137,44t
44,441 1,579,72: 359,63: (66,207 1,917,59- 148,01¢ (42,43¢) 2,023,17
52,951 — — (52,957 — — — —
(8,697) — — — (8,697) — 8,691 —
1,00¢ 127,05! (9,409 (52,957) 65,70( 68,77¢ (25,26¢) 109,21(
69,21: 33,64 — — 102,85¢ 81,16« (35,889 148,13:
(68,209) 93,41: (9,409 (52,95)) (37,156 (12,389 10,62% (38,92)
41,29¢ (34,219 3,161 — 10,24+ 3,691 — 13,93t
(26,917 59,19¢ (6,24¢) (52,957) (26,917 (8,697) 10,62% (24,98¢)
(12,969 — — — (12,969 — — (12,967)
$(39,875) $ 59,19¢ $ (6,249 $(52,957) $ (39,87Y) $ (8,697) $10,62% $ (37,949
— — — — — — — —

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari
(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya
(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incoi
(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di
(f)  Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings

Year Ended March 31, 2002

Non-
Guarantor guarantor AMERCO SAC Total
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Cosolidated Holdings  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues
Rental revenue $ — $1,493,93! $ — $(64,325(c) $1,429,60! $112,74° $(30,10%)(c) $1,512,25!
Net sales — 198,36° — — 198,36 24,44¢ — 222,81t
Premiums — — 421,35! (10,185)(d) 411,17( — — 411,17(
Net investment an
interest income 873 31,000 43,82¢ — 75,70¢ — (28,369)(e) 47,34
Total revenue 87z 1,723,30 465,18: (74,510 2,114,84: 137,19¢ (58,46%) 2,193,57!
Costs and expenses:
Operating expenses 8,94t 1,036,91: 114,68: (74,510(c) 1,086,03! 68,227 (7,949(c) 1,146,30!
Commission expens — 153,46! — — 153,46! — (13,029)(c) 140,44.
Cost of sales — 110,47: — — 110,47 12,22 — 122,69«
Benefits and losses — 47,03¢ 376,67: — 423,70¢ — — 423,70¢
Amortization of
deferred policy
acquisition costs — — 40,67« — 40,67+ — — 40,67
Lease expens 91¢ 182,87 — — 183,79! — (9,13)) 174,66+
Depreciation, net (500) 90,31: — — 89,81: 15,07 (1,926 102,95°
Total costs and
expense: 9,36: 1,621,07! 532,03( (74,510 2,087,95: 95,51¢ (32,029 2,151,44!
Equity in earnings
subsidiary (10,495 — — 10,49t — — — —
Equity in earnings of SA (14,02%) — — (14,02%) — 14,02 —
Earning from operations (33,010 102,22¢ (66,849 10,49¢ 12,86¢ 41,681 (12,419 42,13¢
Interest expens 30,77: 45,974 — — 76,747 61,08! (28,367) 109,46
Pretax earnings (loss) (63,789 56,25t (66,849 10,49t (63,887) (19,400 15,95 (67,33)
Income tax benefit/
(expense) 14,415 (21,219 21,31¢ — 14,51¢ 5,37¢ — 19,89:
Net earnings (loss (49,36¢) 35,03¢ (45,53)) 10,49t (49,36¢) (14,025 15,95! (47,44()
Less: preferred stock
dividends (12,969 — — — (12,967) — — (12,967)
Earnings (loss) available
to common
shareholders $(62,329) $ 35,03t $(45,53)) $ 10,49t $ (62,329 $(14,02 $ 15,95! $ (60,409
— — — — — — — —

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incoi

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(f)  Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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Revenues
Rental revenue
Net sales
Premiums
Net investmen
and interest
income

Total
revenues

Costs and
expenses:
Operating
expense:
Commission
expense
Cost of sale:
Benefits and
losses
Amortization o
deferred
policy
acquisition
costs
Lease expense¢
Depreciation,
net

Total costs
and
expenses

Equity in earnings
of subsidiary
Equity in earnings

of SAC

Earnings (loss)
from operations
Interest
expense

Pretax earnings
(loss)
Income tax
benefit
(expense

Net earning:
(loss)
Less: preferred
stock dividends

Earnings (loss)
available to
common
shareholders

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings
Year Ended March 31, 2001

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Non-
Guarantor guarantor AMERCO SAC Total
AMERCO Subsidiaries Subsidiaries(1) Eliminations Caosolidated Holdings Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ 2 $1,436,54! $ — $(71,10¢)(c) $1,365,43! $ 92,457 $(21,06()(c) $1,436,83:
— 194,32( — — 194,32( 17,92% — 212,24;

— — 338,70 (10,596)(d) 328,10t — — 328,10¢

962 35,30¢ 44,48( — 80,75! — (28,459(e) 52,297

961 1,666,17: 383,18 (81,709(c) 1,968,61 110,38( (49,519 2,029,48I
7,11z 1,022,04: 85,86 (81,709 1,033,3L 49,23 (6,249)(c) 1,076,30°
— 143,58¢ — — 143,58t — (10,729(c) 132,86!

— 116,62¢ — — 116,62¢ 9,871 — 126,50¢

— 40,52: 290,55¢ — 331,07¢ — — 331,07¢

— — 36,23: — 36,23: — — 36,23:

68¢€ 178,86t — — 179,55 — (4,094 175,46(

123 92,797 — — 92,92( 12,38t (1,49¢) 103,80°
7,924 1,594,44. 412,65: (81,709 1,933,31! 71,49¢ (22,55%) 1,982,25!
(13,657) — — 13,65: — — — —
(9,400 — = — (9,400 — 9,40( —
(30,01%) 71,72¢ (29,467 13,65: 25,89¢ 38,88! (17,55¢) 47,22«
25,52; 61,35¢ — — 86,88 53,45 (28,459 111,87¢
(55,537 10,37( (29,467 13,65: (60,987) (14,570 10,89¢ (64,659
11,92¢ (3,277) 8,722 — 17,374 5,17C — 22,544
(43,609 7,09: (20,74%) 13,65: (43,609 (9,400 10,89¢ (42,110
(12,967) — — — (12,967) — — (12,967)
$(56,57) $  7,09: $(20,74%) $ 13,65: $ (56,57) $ (9,400 $ 10,89¢ $ (55,079
— — — — — — — —

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(@) Eliminate investment in subsidiari
(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya



(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incol

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on di

(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OF INDEPENDENT TRAILER FLEETS
Unaudited

The following Summary of Earnings of IndepentdTrailer Fleets is presented for purposes offyaisaand is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands, except earnings
per $100 of average Investment)

Earnings data (Note A
Fleet owner income

Credited to fleet owner gross rental inca $ 82% 1,02¢ 1,35(C 1,977 2,191
Credited to trailer accident fund (Notes D anc 49 61 79 114 144
Total fleet owner incom 872 1,08¢ 1,42¢ 2,091 2,33t
Fleet owner operation expens

Charged to fleet owner (Note ! 422 532 71¢ 99¢ 873
Charged to trailer accident fund (Notes D ani 9 15 18 23 27
Total fleet owner operation expen: 431 547 737 1,022 90C

Fleet owner earnings before trailer accident furadlit,
depreciation and income tax 40z 49€ 631 97¢ 1,31¢
Trailer accident fund credit (Note [ 39 46 61 91 117
Net fleet owner earnings before depreciation andrime taxe: $ 441 542 692 1,06¢ 1,43¢
I I I I I

Investment data (Note A

Amount at end of yez $1,38¢ 1,66: 2,04¢ 2,65¢ 3,272
| | | | |
Average amount during ye $1,52¢ 1,85t 2,35( 3,574 3,574
| | | | |

Net fleet owner earnings before depreciation andrime taxe:
per $100 of average investment (Note B) (unaud $19.9¢ 20.0¢ 23.3¢ 28.1:2 29.5¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofS8himmary of Earnings of Independent Trailer Fleets.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
NOTES TO SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OF INDEPENDENT TRAILER FLEETS

(A) The accompanying Summary of Earningsnoelpendent Trailer Fleets includes the operatibtimiters under the brand name of “U-
Haul” owned by independent fleet owners. Earnirgta depresent the aggregate results of operatiefiosebdepreciation and taxes.
Investment data represent the cost of trailersimrestments before accumulated depreciation.

Fleet owner income is based on IndependentaRBealer reports of rentals transacted throhghdy preceding the last Monday of each
month and received by U-Haul International, Incthy end of the month and U-Haul Center reportgifals transacted through the last day
of each month. Payments to fleet owners for trailest or retired from rental service as a resuttasnage by accident have not been reflected
in this summary because such payments do not rel&arnings before depreciation and income tanesther, investment (depreciation).

The investment data is based upon the cashitdrs to the fleet owners as reflected by sedesrds of the U-Haul manufacturing
facilities.

(B) The summary of earnings data statedrim$eof amount per $100 of average investment repteshe aggregate results of operations
(earnings data) divided by the average amountw&stment during the periods. The average amounwvebtment is based upon a simple
average of the month-end investment during eadbgehverage earnings data is not necessarily sgmtative of an individual fleet owner’s
earnings.

(C) A summary of operations expenses chadiyedtly to independent fleet owners follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Licenses $ 52 86 124 15C 15¢
Public liability insurance 53 65 87 12¢ 134
Repairs and maintenan 317 381 50¢ 723 58C

$422 532 71¢ 99¢ 87z
| | | | |

(D) The fleet owners and subsidiary U-HauhféCompanies forego normal commissions on aqoxf gross rental fees designated for
transfer to the Trailer Accident Fund. Trailer a@&sit repair expenses, otherwise chargeable todieeérs, are paid from this Fund to the
extent of the financial resources of the Fund. am®unts designated “Trailer Accident Fund credittie accompanying summary of
earnings represents independent fleet owner corungsforegone, which exceed expenses borne byuhd.F

(E) Commissions foregone for transfer toThailer Accident Fund follow:

Fleet Owners

Subsidiary
U-Haul Subsidiary
Companies Companies Independent Total
(In thousands)
Year ended:

March 31, 200: $6,84¢ 3,631 49 10,53:
March 31, 200: 6,38t 3,371 61 9,82
March 31, 200: 6,07: 3,191 79 9,34:
March 31, 200( 6,061 3,15( 114 9,32t
March 31, 199¢ 6,081 3,131 144 9,35¢
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(F) A summary of independent fleet owner eges borne by the Trailer Accident Fund follows:

Year ended:
March 31, 200:
March 31, 200:
March 31, 200:
March 31, 200(
March 31, 199¢

Fleet Owners

Total

Trailer

Subsidiary Trail Accident

U-Haul Subsidiary Sub Accident Repair
Companies Companies Independent Total Retirements Xpenses

(In thousands)

$1,09¢ 582 8 1,68t 394 2,07¢

1,22¢ 647 12 1,88¢ 45~ 2,33¢

1,067 561 18 1,64¢ 49¢ 2,144

1,23: 641 23 1,891 354 2,251

1,14¢ 591 27 1,76€ 34z 2,10¢

(G) Certain reclassifications have been ntadbe Summary of Earnings of Independent Traileets for the fiscal years ended 1999 to

conform to the current year’s presentation.
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SCHEDULE |

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash

Investment in subsidiarie
Due from unconsolidated subsidiar
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS
Liabilities:
Notes and loans payat
Other liabilities

Stockholder equity:
Preferred stoc
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive (lc
Retained earnings/ (los:
Beginning of yea
Net earnings/ (loss
Dividends accrued/ pa

Less:
Cost of common shares in treas
Unearned employee stock ownership plan sk
Total stockholder equity

Total Liabilities and stockholde’ equity

March 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
$ 18,52« $ 71
995,81¢ 956,73"
451,42 792,32
155,69: 27,41¢
$1,621,45 $1,776,55.
| |
" EQUITY

$ 861,15¢ $1,030,80!
262,80 191,27!
10,56: 10,56:
399,24¢ 399,75¢
(55,76%) (40,58()
601,48: 663,81(
(26,917 (49,366
(12,969 (12,969
561,60¢ 601,48:
(418,179 (416,77))
20 20
497,49: 554,47:
$1,621,45 $1,776,55.
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended March 31,

2002 2001
2003 (Restated) (Restated)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenue!
Net interest income from subsidiar $ 1,19¢ $ 872 $ 961
Expense!
Interest expens 69,21 30,77: 25,52:
Other expense 44,44 9,36: 7,924
Total expense 113,65 40,13¢ 33,44¢t
Operating los! (112,465 (39,269 (32,48%)
Equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated sulasids 44,25 (24,52() (23,057
Income tax (expense)/bene 41,29¢ 14,417 11,92¢
Net (loss) $ (26,91) $ (49,369 $ (43,609
Less: preferred stock dividel (12,969 (12,969 (12,969
(Loss) available to common shareholc (39,87Y) (62,329 (56,577
.| .| .|
(Loss) per common share (both basic and dilui $ (1.92) $ (2.9¢) $ (2.6%)
| | |
Weighted average common shares outstan 20,743,07 21,022,71 21,486,37
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net (loss) $ (26,917 $ (49,36¢) $ (43,609
Amortization, ner 1,752 2,04¢ 1,36¢
(Loss) on sal — (559 —

Equity in earnings of subsidiari — — —
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from unconsadida

subsidiaries — — —
Net change in operating assets and liabill 225,67t 196,46¢ 46,08
Net cash provided by operating activit 200,51¢ 148,58¢ 3,84(

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (64) 12 (16)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipi — 69t —
Net cash used by investing activit (64) 683 (16)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in short term borrowin 5,00( (24,070) 156,07(
Proceeds from note 257,00° — —

Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan-repayniemts

loan — — 137
Principal payments on not (433,789 (101,739 (137,010
Debt issuance cos (2,330 (390 (43%)
Repurchase of preferred stc — — —
Preferred stock dividends pe (6,480 (12,967 (12,967)
Treasury stock purchase, 1 (1,409 (10,159 (9,617%)
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt — — —
Net cash used by financing activiti (181,999 (149,31H (3,819
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi 18,45: 43 6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 71 114 10¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of - $ 18,52« $ 71 $ 114
| | |

Income taxes paid in cash amounted to $11ll®m $5.9 million and $5.4 million for 2003, 2@0and 2001, respectively. Interest paid in
cash amounted to $76.6 million, $77.9 million a®@$ million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation, was incorpatateApril, 1969, and is the holding company foHawl International, Inc., Republic
Western Insurance Company, Oxford Life Insurancey@any and Amerco Real Estate Company. The finastaééments of the Registrant
should be read in conjunction with the Consolid&athncial Statements and notes thereto includégisriForm 10-K.

AMERCO is included in a consolidated Fedarabme tax return with all of its U.S. subsidiariéscordingly, the provision for income
taxes has been calculated for Federal income @x&MERCO and subsidiaries included in the consabd return of the Registrant. State
taxes for all subsidiaries are allocated to thpeesve subsidiaries.

The financial statements include only theoaitts of the Registrant (a Nevada Corporation)ctvimclude certain of the corporate
operations of AMERCO (excluding SAC Holdings). Tiheerest in AMERCO’s majority owned subsidiariesxounted for on the equity
method. The debt and related interest expense dER®IO have been allocated to the consolidated sabigisl The intercompany interest
income and expenses are eliminated in the consetidamancial statements.

2. Guarantees

AMERCO has guaranteed performance of celtaig-term leases and other obligations. See Notef Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

3. Notes and Loans Payable

Notes and loans payable consist of the faligw

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Medium-term notes payable, unsecured, 7.23% td?8 @8rest

rates, due through 20: $109,50C  $ 109,50(
Notes payable under Bond Backed Asset Trust, unsegcid.14%
interest rates, due through 2C 100,00( 100,00(

Notes payable to banks under commercial paper agnets,
unsecured, 5.00% to 6.20% interest ri — —
Notes payable to public, unsecured, 7.85% inteetst due throug

2003 175,00( 175,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 7.20% interest rate, duad 2002 — 150,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 8.80% interest rate, coeigiin 200¢ 200,00( 200,00(
Other notes payable, unsecured, 8.15% interestdaéethrough

2017 22,00( 30
Notes payable to banks under revolving lines oflityensecurec

7.00% interest rat 205,00( 283,00(
Debt related to SWAP terminatic 5,58 775
Debt related to BBAT option terminatic 26,55( —
Other shor-term promissory notes, 2.88% interest | 17,52¢ 12,50(

$861,15¢ $1,030,80!

For additional information, see Note 6 of Note€tmnsolidated Financial Statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE V

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (FOR PROPERTY-CASUALTY INS URANCE UNDERWRITERS)

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Claim and Claim

Reserves Adjustment
for Unpaid Expenses Incurred Amortization Paid
Deferred  Claims and Related to of Deferred Claims and
Policy Claim Discount Net Policy Claim
Affiliation with  Acquisition Adjustment if any, Unearned Net Earned  Investment  Current Prior  Fiscal Acquisition Adjustment
Fiscal Year Registrant Costs Expenses Deductec Premiums Premiums(1) Income(2) Year Year Year Costs Expenses
(In thousands)
2003 Consolidated
property
casualty entity $13,20¢ 399,44¢ N/A 62,34¢ 149,20¢ 27,93! 112,28 16,39¢ 200z 17,14: 196,79¢
2002 Consolidated
property
casualty entity $15,94¢ 448,98: N/A 91,72¢ 253,79¢ 27,87¢ 232,98 23,04: 200z 22,067 236,86t
2001 Consolidated
property
casualty entity ~ $21,37 382,65: N/A 107,88( 216,91! 30,37 162,26! 41,288 2001 16,57: 178,22:

(1) The earned and written premiums are reporgahintersegment transactions. Earned premiuimsrelted in consolidation amount to

$3.4 million, $8.2 million and $9.2 million for theears ended 2002, 2001 and 2000, respecti

(2) Net Investment Income excludes net realized gissé€s) on investments of ($5.6 million), ($7.2liil) and ($4.9 million) for the yea

ended 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectiv
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SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalel

Trade receivables, n

Notes and mortgage receivables,
Inventories, ne

Prepaid expenst

Investments, fixed maturitie
Investments, othe

Deferred policy acquisition costs, r
Deferred income taxe

Other asset

Property, plant, and equipment, at ci
Land
Buildings and improvemen
Furniture and equipme
Rental trailers and other rental equipm
Rental trucks
SAC Holdings— Property, plant and equipmenti

Less: Accumulated depreciati
Total property, plant and equipme

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Payables and accrued exper
AMERCO's notes and loans payal
SAC Holding’ notes and loans payat
Policy benefits and losses, claims and loss exgapegable
Liabilities from investment contrac
Other policyholder funds and liabilities
Deferred incomt
Deferred income taxe
Liabilities subject to compromis

Total Liabilities
Stockholder' equity:
Series preferred stoc
Series A preferred stoc
Series B preferred sto«
Series A common stoc
Common stocl
Additional paid ir-capital
Additional paic-in-capital— SAC
Accumulated other comprehensive (la

Retained earnings, AMERC
Retained earnings, SA

December 31, March 31,
2003 2003
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
ASSETS
$ 136,86t $ 66,83¢
239,37t 255,79¢
17,12¢ 10,80¢
55,23( 53,27(
17,48; 21,84¢
763,67: 860,60(
474,97t 389,25
86,60: 105,10(
— 32,24:
98,43( 63,60(
1,889,77. 1,859,34!
159,50¢ 157,98
751,87 747,85:
293,17: 291,38
156,23 149,70°
1,208,30: 1,140,29:
733,21t 757,29:
3,302,31L 3,244,511
1,385,63. 1,298,19!
1,916,68. 1,946,31
$3,806,45! $3,805,66!
| |
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
$ 359,18t $ 387,01
85,38( 954,85t
586,55! 589,01¢
836,22! 836,63.
603,99: 639,99¢
45,52 30,30¢
11,04: 40,38
1,34¢ —
875,37 —
3,404,61 3,478,211
1,441 1,441
9,12: 9,12
235,78 235,78«
3,19¢ 3,19¢
(25,80)) (54,279
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(l— SAC Holdings 3,59¢ (1,487
658,05- 611,87:
(49,46)) (43,65()
(421,379 (421,379

Cost of common shares in treasury,



Unearned ESOP shar (12,727 (13,177

Total stockholdel equity 401,83t 327,44¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $3,806,45! $3,805,66!
| |

(1) SAC Holdings property, plant and equipmenrdled $991.5 million and $1,015.5 million beforen@hations, inter-company eliminations
were $258.2 million and $258.2 million at Decem®#&y 2003 and March 31, 2003 respectiv:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Revenues
Rental Revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment and interest incol

Total revenue
Costs and expense
Operating expenst
Commission expenst
Cost of sale:
Benefits and losse
Amortization of deferred acquisition co:
Lease expens
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and expens
Loss from operation
Interest Expens
Fees on early extinguishment of BB’s

Pretax los:
Income tax benef

Net loss
Less: Preferred stock dividen

Earnings/(loss) available to common sharehol
Basic and diluted loss per common sf

Weighted average common shares outstanding: Badididuted

* 2002 amounts revised to reflect the corrected numbeeighted average common shares outstan

Quarter Ended,

December 31,
2003

December 31,
2002

(In thousands, except share data)

$ 386,49

47,17:
56,08¢
12,82

502,58:

311,97¢
31,13¢
23,907
50,95¢
11,027
36,21«
38,39¢

503,61
(1,030
31,16¢

(32,199
10,53:

$ (24,909

$ (1.9

20,099,87

$ 335,76l
45,07«
80,11¢

6,27¢

467,22

286,75!
32,22¢
22,42
59,70¢

6,25¢
33,26¢
33,31«

473,941
(6,727)
31,41¢
26,55"

(64,69:)
18,90¢

$ (49,029
$ (248

20,022,62*

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
Revenues
Rental revenu $ 1,304,471 $ 1,233,04.
Net sales 182,04t 175,70¢
Premiums 188,02« 243,13:
Net investment and interest incol 35,61« 31,50¢
Total revenue 1,710,151 1,683,39.
Costs and expense
Operating expenst 909,38 900,65!
Commission expenst 116,13. 122,44:
Cost of sale: 87,02: 87,48¢
Benefits and losse 169,80: 200,14:
Amortization of deferred acquisition co: 28,88t 27,89¢
Lease expens 112,05¢ 122,62¢
Depreciation, ne 113,35t 102,40:
Total costs and expens 1,536,63 1,563,64
Earnings from operatior 173,52 119,74«
Interest Expens 92,83¢ 86,30¢
Fees on early termination of BB/ s — 26,55
Pretax earning 80,68: 6,88
Income tax expens 30,581 6,76:
Net earning: 50,09¢ 124
Less: Preferred stock dividen 9,72 9,72
Earnings/(loss) available to common sharehol $ 40,37 $ (9,599
| |
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per common s $ 2.01 $ (0.48)*
| |
Weighted average common shares outstanding: Badididuted 20,082,63 20,005,50*

* 2002 amounts revised to reflect the corrected numbeeighted average common shares outstan
The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

F-73




Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES
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Quarter Ended

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Comprehensive incom

Net earnings/(loss $(21,667) $(45,787)

Changes in other comprehensive inco
Foreign currency translatic 9,70( (970
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investme (3,379 18,69¢
Total comprehensive income/(los $(15,34() $(28,057)
| I

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Comprehensive incom

Net earningy $50,09¢ $ 124

Changes in other comprehensive inco
Foreign currency translatic 11,07¢ (3,647
Unrealized gain on investmer 22,48¢ 13,67¢
Total comprehensive income/(los $83,65¢ $10,15:
I I

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended
December 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 151,20: $ 147,74
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of investmen
Property, plant and equipme (147,34) (196,257
Fixed maturities (50,667) (248,12)
Other asset investmer (78,147 (52,989
Proceeds from sale of investmer
Property, plant and equipme 30,47( 74,26
Fixed maturities 171,40! 291,32¢
Other asset investmer 28,73. 6,14¢
Net cash used by investing activit (45,536) (125,62))
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in shc-term borrowings 5,64¢ —
Proceeds from note 50,00( 130,98:
Leverage Employee Stock Ownership P
Purchase of shari — —
Repayments from log 45k 97t
Principal payments on not (55,716 (205,369)
Preferred stock dividends pe — (6,482)
Treasury stock acquisitions, r — (1,407
Investment contract depos 43,02( 137,48
Investment contract withdrawe (79,047 (74,04
Net cash used by financing activiti (35,637 (17,85¢)
Increase in cash equivalel 70,03: 4,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ¢ 66,83¢ 47,65
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of pi $ 136,86t $ 51,91(
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S
December 31, 2003, December 31, 2002 and March 2003
(Unaudited)

1. Proceedings Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Cod

On June 20, 2003, AMERCO (the “Debtor”) filagbetition for relief under Chapter 11 of the feddankruptcy laws in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada. On Ay 13, 2003, the company’s wholly owned subsidiAmerco Real Estate Company,
filed a petition for relief under Chapter 11 of fleeleral bankruptcy laws in the United States Baptay Court for the District of Nevada.
Under Chapter 11, certain claims against the Dahtekistence prior to the filing of the petitioorfrelief under the federal bankruptcy laws
are stayed while the Debtor continues businessatipas as debtor-in-possession. These claims fieetedl in the December 31, 2003,
balance sheet as “liabilities subject to comprorhigdditional claims (liabilities subject to comprise) may arise subsequent to the filing
date resulting from rejection of executory contsaaicluding leases, and from the determinatiothieycourt (or agreed to by parties in
interest) of allowed claims for contingencies attteo disputed amounts. Claims secured against ¢toDs assets (“secured claims”) also
are stayed, although the holders of such claims ki@ right to move the court for relief from thays Secured claims are secured primarily
by liens of the Debtor’s property, plant and equépin

On October 6, 2003, AMERCO filed its PlarR#forganization and Disclosure Statement with thekBgptcy Court. On November 26,
2003, AMERCO filed an Amended Plan of Reorganizafibe “Plan”). On December 12, 2003, the Bankma@ourt approved AMERCO'’s
Disclosure Statement. On February 2, 2004, the Bgatéy Court confirmed the Plan contingent upon pl&tion of documentation and
agreements acceptable to the involved partiestandutbmission of proposed findings of fact and kmiens of law and a confirmation order
acceptable to all involved parties. AMERCO expéletd by fiscal year end (i) it will satisfy the alocontingencies and (ii) the Bankruptcy
Court will execute a confirmation order. The comf@tion order will become final if it is not appegieithin ten days after entry and
AMERCO intends to proceed to implement the Planemdrge from bankruptcy as soon as possible there@n March 15, 2004,
AMERCO emerged from Chapter 11 with full paymenttte creditors and with no dilutions to its stocklsos.

2. Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Organization

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation (fAMERCQ"), ieetholding company for U-Haul International, IntJ{Haul”), Amerco Real Estate
Company (“Real Estate”), Republic Western Insuradompany (“RepWest”) and Oxford Life Insurance Camp (“Oxford”). Throughout
this Form 10-Q, unless the context otherwise reglithe term “Company” refers to AMERCO and alitelegal subsidiaries. The Company
has four industry segments represented by Movinlgsiarage Operations (U-Haul), Real Estate, Prgart Casualty Insurance (RepWest)
and Life Insurance (Oxford).

SAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Corqtton [, Nevada corporations (collectively, “SA®Idings”), are the holding
companies for several individual corporations thah self-storage properties managed by AMERCO slidrges in the ordinary course of
business. Mark V. Shoen, a significant sharehadderexecutive officer of AMERCO, owns all of theuéy interest of SAC Holdings.

Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statésrEesented here include the accounts of AMERGDitarwholly-owned subsidiaries and
SAC Holdings and their subsidiaries. All materigkir-company accounts and transactions have baeimaied in consolidation. AMERCO
has made significant loans to SAC

F-77




Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Holdings and is entitled to participate in SAC Holgs’ excess cash flow (after senior debt service). Athe equity interest of SAC Holdini
is owned by Mark V. Shoen, a significant sharehotel executive officer of AMERCO. AMERCO does hate an equity ownership
interest in SAC Holdings, except for investmentslsmby RepWest and Oxford in a SAC Holdings-congalimited partnership which holds
Canadian self-storage properties. SAC Holdingshatdegal subsidiaries of AMERCO. SAC Holdings’ setized loan agreements have no
guarantees, or triggers that could create a gusgafiom AMERCO. There are no cross default prowsion indebtedness between
AMERCO and SAC Holdings. The condensed consolidftehcial statements and notes are presentedrastiesl by Form 10-Q and do not
contain certain information included in AMERC®annual financial statements and notes. For a detedled presentation of the accounts
transactions of AMERCO, refer to AMERCO'’s Form 10-K

The condensed consolidated balance sheétCscember 31, 2003 and the related condensed ldaisal statements of operations,
comprehensive income, and cash flow for the quagaded December 31, 2003 and 2002 are unauditedr lopinion, all adjustments
necessary for a fair presentation of such condeosesblidated financial statements have been iedu8uch adjustments consist only of
normal recurring items. Interim results are notassarily indicative of results for a full year.

Revenues, expenses (including professioea)) feealized gains and losses, and provision®$ses directly associated with the
reorganization and restructuring of the businesgeported as part of operating expenses in thel@wmed Consolidated Statements of
Operations. The Condensed Consolidated BalancesStiisénguish pre-petition liabilities subjectdompromise from both those pre-petition
liabilities that are not subject to compromise &adn post-petition liabilities. Liabilities subjetd compromise are reported at the amounts
expected to be allowed, even if they may be seftetesser amounts.

The operating results and financial posittbiRepWest and Oxford have been consolidated obdkis of a calendar year and,
accordingly, results from operations for RepWest @xford are for the quarter and nine months er@atember 30, 2003 and 2002.

Going Concern Basis

On June 20, 2003 (the “Petition Date”), AMER@led a voluntary petition for relief under Chaptl1 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United StatesmiBuptcy Court, District of Nevada (the “Bankruptéourt”) (Case No. 0352103).
AMERCO is continuing to manage its properties apdrate its businesses as “debtor-in-possessioréruhd jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy
Court and in accordance with the applicable prowisiof the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as debtgreissession, AMERCO is authorized
under Chapter 11 to continue to operate as an ngdmnisiness, but may not engage in transactiorssdeuthe ordinary course of business
without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Co@pecific information pertaining to the bankrupfityng may be obtained from the website
www.amerco.com. The Company’s independent audifoadified their opinion on the Company’s March 3003 financial statements by
including an explanatory paragraph in which theprezsed substantial doubt about the Company’syatilicontinue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements do not includeadjustments to reflect future effects on the vecability and classification of assets or the
amount and classification of liabilities that mighsult from these uncertainties.

Restatement and Reclassifications

In connection with the audit of the Comparfinsincial statements for the year ended Marct2803, it was determined that there was a
need for the Company to record adjustments thattegkin the restatement of the Company’s finansatements, 